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ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
COMMERCIAL LIST

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’ CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT,
R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE OR ARRANGEMENT OF
PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC.
AND 2163279 ONTARIO INC. (the “Applicants”)

ICATION UNDER THE COMPANIES’ CREDITORS
NGEMENT ACT, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, AS AMENDED

NOTICE OF APPLICATION

TO THE RESPONDENT(S)

A LEGAL PROCEEDING HAS BEEN COMMENCED by the applicants. The claim
made by the applicants appears on the following pages.

THIS APPLICATION will come on for a hearing before a Judge presiding over the
Commercial List on Thursday, March 22, 2012, at 11:00 am. or so soon thereafter as the
application can be heard at 330 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario.

IF YOU WISH TO OPPOSE THIS APPLICATION, to receive notice of any step in
the application or to be served with any documents in the application, you or an Ontario lawyer
acting for you must forthwith prepare a notice of appearance in Form 38A prescribed by the
Rules of Civil Procedure, serve it on the applicants” lawyer or, where the applicants do not have
a lawyer, serve it on the applicants, and file it, with proof of service, in this court office, and you
or your lawyer must appear at the hearing.

IF YOU WISH TO PRESENT AFFIDAVIT OR OTHER DOCUMENTARY
EVIDENCE TO THE COURT OR TO EXAMINE OR CROSS-EXAMINE WITNESSES
ON THE APPLICATION, you or your lawyer must, in addition to serving your notice of
appearance, serve a copy of the evidence on the applicants’ lawyer or, where the applicants do
not have a lawyer, serve it on the applicants, and file it, with proof of service, in the court office
where the application is to be heard as soon as possible, but not later than 2 p.m. on the day
before the hearing.

IF YOU FAIL TO APPEAR AT THE HEARING, JUDGMENT MAY BE GIVEN
IN YOUR ABSENCE AND WITHOUT FURTHER NOTICE TG YOU.
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I¥F YOU WISH TO OPPOSE THIS APPLICATION BUT ARE UNABLE TO PAY
LEGAL FEES, LEGAL AID MAY BE AVAILABLE TO YOU BY CONTACTING A
LOCAL LEGAL AID OFFICE,

e
e

Date: March 22, 2012 Issued by: c /‘\“_} .
\\ijcal\]iegmtrar " Giusoppa Dipietro
S Registrar
Address of court office: 330 Univergity Avenue
7% Floor

Toronto, ON MSG 1R7
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APPLICATION

1. PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc. and 2163279 Ontario Inc. (collectively, the

“Applicants™) make an application for an order, among other things:

(2)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

&)

(g)

abridging the time for service and filing of this notice of application and the
application record and dispensing with service thereof on any interested party

other than those served with these proceedings;

declaring that each of the Applicants is a company to which the Companies’
Creditors Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, as amended (the “CCAA”)
applies;

staying all proceedings and remedies taken or which might be taken in respect of
the Applicants or any of their property, except upon the leave of the Court being

granted, or as otherwise provided;

authorizing the Applicants to prepare and file with the Court a plan of

compromise or arrangement with their creditors;
appointing PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. (“PwCI”) as monitor of the Applicants;

approving a debtor-in-possession financing facility (the “DIP Facility™) with
2310714 Ontario Inc. in the principal amount of $3,000,000 and granting a
priority charge (the “DIP Charge™) over the assefs, properties and undertakings
of the Applicants (collectively, the “Property”) to secure repayment of the
amounts borrowed by the Applicants under the DIP Facility;

granting a priority charge over the Property in the principal amount of $500,000
to secure the fees and disbursements of counsel to the Applicants, the Monitor and

counsel to the Monitor (the “Administration Charge”);
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(h)  granting a priority charge over the Property in the principal amount of $1,500,000
in order to protect the Applicants’ directors and officers from certain potential

liabilities (the “D&O Charge™); and

(i) granting such further and other relief as counsel may request and this Honourable

Court may permit.
The grounds for the application are:
(a) the Applicants are companies to which the CCAA applies;
(b) the Applicants are insolvent;
{c) the claims against the Applicants exceed $5 million;

(d) such other grounds set forth in the affidavit of Donald Waugh sworn March 22,
2012;

(e) PwCI has consented to act as monitor of the Applicants;

() the circumstances which exist make the order sought by the Applicants

appropriate;
(2) the provisions of the CCAA and, in particular, section 11;

(h) rules 2.03, 3.02, 14.05 and 16 of the Rules of Civil Procedure, R.R.O. 1990, Reg.
194;

(i) sections 97 of the Courts of Justice Act, R.S.0. 1990, c. C.43;
O the equitable jurisdiction of this Honourable Court; and

(k)  such further and other grounds as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court

may permit.

The following documentary evidence will be used at the hearing of the application:
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(a) the affidavit of Donald Waugh, sworm March 22, 2012;

(b) the consent of PwCI dated March 21, 2012 to act as Monitor; and

(¢} such further and other evidence as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court

may permit.

March 22, 2012
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Tel: 416.865.7718
Fax: 416.863.1515
Email: sbabe(@airdberlis.com

Ian Aversa (LSUC # 55449N)
Tel: 416.865.3082
Fax: 416.863.1515
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ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
COMMERCIAL LIST

THE HONOURABLE y  FRIDAY, THE 23" DAY

)
JUSTICE MORAWETZ )  OF MARCH, 2012

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’® CREDITORS
ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.S.C. 1985, c¢. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE OR
ARRANGEMENT OF PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION
SERVICES INC. AND 2163279 ONTARIO INC. (the “Applicants™)

APPLICATION UNDER THE COMPANIES® CREDITORS
ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.S.C, 1985, ¢. C-36, AS AMENDED

INITIAL ORDER

THIS APPLICATION, made by the Applicants, pursuant to the Companies’ Creditors
Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, as amended (the “CCAA”) was heard this day at 330

University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario.

ON READING the affidavit of Donald Waugh, sworn March 22, 2012 and the Exhibits
thereto (the “Waugh Affidavit™), on reading the pre-filing report of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Inc. (“PwCT”), in its capacity as intended Monitor in these proceedings, dated March 21, 2012,
and on hearing the submissions of counsel for the Applicants, counsel for PwCI, counsel for

Castcan Investments Inc. (“Castcan”), and no one else

appearing on this Application, and on reading the consent of PwCI to act as the Monitor,

SERVICE

L. THIS COURT ORDERS that the time for service of the Notice of Application and the
Application Record is hereby abridged and validated so that this Application is properly

returnable today and hereby dispenses with further service thereof.



APPLICATION

2, THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that each of the Applicants is a company
to which the CCAA applies.

PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT

3. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Applicants shall have the authority to file and may,
subject to further order of this Court, file with this Court a plan of compromise or arrangement
(hereinafter referred to as the “Plan”) between, infer alia, the Applicants and one or more of

their secured and/or unsecured creditors as they deem appropriate.

POSSESSION OF PROPERTY AND OPERATIONS

4, THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the Applicants shall remain in possession and
control of its current and future assets, undertakings and properties of every nature and kind
whatsoever, and wherever situate including all proceeds thereof (the “Property”). Subject to
further Order of this Court, each of the Applicants shall continue to carry on business in a
manner consistent with the preservation of its business (the “Business”) and Property. Each of
the Applicants shall be authorized and empowered to continue to retain and employ the
employees, consultants, agents, experts, accountants, counsel and such other persons
(collectively “Assistants”) currenily retained or employed by it, with liberty to retain such
further Assistants as it deems reasonably necessary or desirable in the ordinary course of

business or for the carrying out of the terms of this Order.

5. THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the Applicants, either on its own behalf or on
behalf of another Applicant, shall be entitled but not required to pay the following expenses or

honour the following obligations whether incurred prior to or after the date of this Order:

(a) all outstanding and future wages, salaries, employee benefits, vacation pay and
expenses payable on or after the date of this Order, in each case incurred in the
ordinary course of business and consistent with existing compensation policies

and arrangements;

(b) the fees and disbursements of any Assistants retained or employed by the

Applicants in respect of these proceedings, at their standard rates and charges;




(©)

(d)

-3-

with the prior consent of the Monitor, any or all outstanding and future amounts
owing to or in respect of individuals working as independent contractors in
connection with the Business if, in the opinion of the Applicants, the individual 1s

critical to the Business and ongoing operations of the Applicants; and

with the prior consent of the Monitor, outstanding amounts owing for goods and
services actually supplied to the Applicants (or, where acceptable to the supplier,
return of supplied goods in lieu of such payments), or amounts necessary to obtain
the release of goods contracted for prior to the date of this Order, by suppliers, if,
in the opinion of the Applicants, such payments are necessary in order to ensure
an uninterrupted supply of goods and services to the Applicants which are

material to the continued operation of the Business.

6. THIS COURT ORDERS that, except as otherwise provided to the contrary herein, each

of the Applicants shall be entitled but not required to pay all reasonable expenses incurred by it

in carrying on the Business in the ordinary course on and after the date of this Order, and in

carrying out the provisions of this Order, which expenses shall include, without limitation:

(a)

(b)

all expenses and capital expenditures reasonably necessary for the preservation of
the Property or the Business including, without limitation, payments on account
of insurance (including directors and officers insurance), maintenance and

security services; and

payment for goods actually delivered or services actually supplied to the

Applicants on or after the date of this Order.

7. THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the Applicants shall remit, in accordance with

legal requirements, or pay:

(a)

any statutory deemed trust amounts in favour of the Crown in right of Canada or
of any Province thereof or any other taxation authority which are required to be
deducted from employees’ wages, including, without limitation, amounts in
respect of (i) employment insurance, (ii) Canada Pension Plan, (iii) Quebec

Pension Plan, and (iv) income taxes;



4.

(b) all goods and services or other applicable sales taxes (collectively, “Sales Taxes™)
required to be remitted by such Applicant in connection with the sale of goods
and services by such Applicant, but only where such Sales Taxes are accrued or
collected after the date of this Order, or where such Sales Taxes were accrued or
collected prior to the date of this Order but not required to be remitted until on or

after the date of this Order; and

(c) any amount pavable to the Crown in right of Canada or of any Province thereof or
any political subdivision thereof or any other taxation authority in respect of
municipal realty, municipal business or other taxes, assessments or levies of any
nature or kind which are entitled at law to be paid in priority to claims of secured
creditors and which are attributable to or in respect of the carrying on of the

Business by such Applicant.

8. THIS COURT ORDERS that until such time as a real property lease is disclaimed,
terminate or repudiated in accordance with paragraph 10(c) of this Order (a “Notice of
Repudiation™), each Applicants shall pay all amounts constituting rent or payable as rent under
real property leases (including, for greater certainty, common area maintenance charges, utilities
and realty taxes and any other amounts payable to the landlord under the lease) or as otherwise
may be negotiated between such Applicants and the landlord from time to time (“Rent”), for the
period commencing from and including the date of this Order, twice-monthly in equal payments
on the first and fifteenth day of each month, in advance (but not in arrears). On the date of the

first of such payments, any Rent relating to the period commencing from and including the date

of this Order shall also be paid.

9. THIS COURT ORDERS that, except as specifically permitted herein, the Applicants
are hereby directed, until further Order of this Court: (a) to make no payments of principal,
interest thereon or otherwise on account of amounts owing by the Applicants to any of their
creditors as of this date except in respect of scheduled payments of principal, interest, refunds
and costs to be remitted to Castcan under the Castcan Factoring Agreement or to Royal Bank of
Canada under the RBC Credit Agreement (as such terms are defined in the Waugh Affidavit); (b)

to grant no security interests, trust, liens, charges or encumbrances upon or in respect of any of
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its Property; and (¢) to not grant credit or incur liabilities except in the ordinary course of the

Business.

RESTRUCTURING

10. THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the Applicants shall, subject to such requirements

as are imposed by the CCAA and such covenants as may be contained in the Loan Documents

(as hereinafter defined), have the right to:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

permanently or temporarily cease, downsize or shut down any of its business or
operations, and to dispose of non-profitable, redundant or non-material assets and
operations not exceeding $150,000 in any one transaction or $500,000 in the

aggregate;

terminate the employment of such of its employees or temporarily or indefinitely
lay off such of its employees as it deems appropriate on such terms as may be
agreed upon between the such Applicant and such employee, or failing such

agreement, to deal with the consequences thereof in the Plan;

in accordance with paragraphs 11 and 12, vacate, abandon or quit any leased
premises and/or disclaim, cancel, terminate or repudiate any real property lease
and any ancillary agreements relating to any leased premises, on not less than
seven (7) days notice in writing to the relevant landlord on such terms as may be
agreed upon between such Applicant and such landlord, or failing such

agreement, to deal with the consequences thereof in the Plan;

disclaim, terminate or repudiate, with the prior consent of the Monitor or further
Order of the Court, such of its arrangements, agreements or contracts of any
nature whatsoever, with whomsoever, whether oral or written, as such Applicant
may deem appropriate, in accordance with Section 32 of the CCAA and on such
terms as may be agreed upon between such Applicant and such counter-parties, or

failing such agreement, to deal with the consequences thereof in the Plan; and



-6 -

(e) pursue all avenues of refinancing and offers for material parts of its Business or
the Property, in whole or part, subject to prior approval of this Court being
obtained before any material refinancing or sale (except as permitted by

subparagraph 10(a) above),

all of the foregoing to permit such Applicant to proceed with an orderly restructuring or winding

down of the Business (the “Restructuring”).

11.  THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the Applicants shall provide each of the relevant
landlords and the Monitor with notice of such Applicant’s intention fo remove any fixtures from
any leased premises at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the intended removal. The
relevant landlord shall be entitled to have a representative present in the leased premises to
observe such removal and, if the landlord disputes such Applicant’s entitlement to remove any
such fixture under the provisions of the lease, such fixture shall remain on the leased premises
and shall be dealt with as agreed between any applicable secured creditors, such landlord and
such Applicant, or by further Order of this Court upon application by such Applicant on at least
two (2) days notice to such landlord and any such secured creditors. If such Applicant disclaims,
repudiates or terminates the lease governing such leased premises in accordance with paragraph
10(c) of this Order, it shall not be required to pay Rent under such lease pending resolution of
any such dispute (other than Rent payable for the notice period provided for in paragraph 10(c)
of this Order), and the disclaimer, repudiation or termination of the lease shall be without

prejudice to such Applicant’s claim to the fixtures in dispute.

12. THIS COURT ORDERS that if a Notice of Repudiation is delivered by an Applicant,
then (a) during the notice period prior to the effective time of the disclaimer, repudiation or
termination, the landlord may show the affected leased premises to prospective tenants during
normal business hours, on giving such Applicant and the Monitor 24 hours’ prior written notice,
and (b) at the effective time of the disclaimer, repudiation or termination, the relevant landlord
shall be entitled to take possession of any such leased premises without waiver of or prejudice to
any claims or rights such landlord may have against such Applicant in respect of such lease or
leased premises and such landlord shall be entitled to notify such Applicant of the basis on which

it is taking possession and to gain possession of and re-lease such leased premises to any third
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party or parties on such terms as such landlord considers advisable, provided that nothing herein
shall relieve such landlord of its obligation to mitigate any damages claimed in connection

therewith.

NO PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE APPLICANT OR THE PROPERTY

13. THIS COURT ORDERS that until and including April 21, 2012, or such later date as
this Court may order (the “Stay Period™), no proceeding or enforcement process in any court or
tribunal (cach, a “Proceeding™) shall be commenced or continued against or in respect of the
Applicants or the Monitor, or affecting the Business or the Property, except with the written
consent of the affected Applicant and the Monitor, or with leave of this Court, and any and all
Proceedings currently under way against or in respect of any of the Applicants or affecting the

Business or the Property are hereby stayed and suspended pending further Order of this Court.

NO EXERCISE OF RIGHTS OR REMEDIES

4. THIS COURT ORDERS that during the Stay Period, all rights and remedies of any
individual, firm, corporation, governmental body or agency, or any other entities (all of the
foregoing, collectively being “Persons” and each being a “Person”) against or in respect of the
Applicants or the Monitor, or affecting the Business or the Property, are hereby stayed and
suspended except with the written consent of the affected Applicants and the Monitor, or leave of
this Court, provided that nothing in this Order shall (i) empower the Applicants to carry on any
business which the Applicants are not lawfully entitled to carry on, (ii) affect such investigations,
actions, suits or proceedings by a regulatory body as are permitted by Section 11.1 of the CCAA,
(iii) prevent the filing of any registration to preserve or re-perfect an existing security interest, or

(iv) prevent the registration of a claim for lien.

NO INTERFERENCE WITH RIGHTS

15. THIS COURT ORDERS that during the Stay Period, no Person shall discontinue, fail to
honour, alter, interfere with, repudiate, terminate or cease to perform any right, renewal right,
contract, agreement, lease, sub-lease, licence or permit in favour of or held by either of the
Applicants, except with the written consent of the Applicants and the Monitor, or leave of this

Court.



CONTINUATION OF SERVICES

16.  THIS COURT ORDERS that during the Stay Period, all Persons having oral or wriiten
agreements with either of the Applicants or statutory or regulatory mandates for the supply of
goods and/or services, including without limitation all computer software, communication and
other data services, centralized banking services, payroll services, insurance, transportation
services, utility, leasing or other services to the Business or the Applicants, are hereby restrained
until further Order of this Court from discontinuing, altering, interfering with or terminating the
supply of such goods or services as may be required by the Applicants, and that the Applicants
shall be entitled to the continued use of their current premises, telephone numbers, facsimile
nmumbers, internet addresses and domain names, provided in each case that the normal prices or
charges for all such goods or services received after the date of this Order are paid by the
Applicants in accordance with normal payment practices of the Applicants or such other
practices as may be agreed upon by the supplier or service provider, the affected Applicant and

the Monitor, or as may be ordered by this Court.

NON-DEROGATION OF RIGHTS

17. THIS COURT ORDFERS that, notwithstanding anything else in this Order, no Person
shall be prohibited from requiring immediate payment for goods, services, use of lease or
licensed property or other valuable consideration provided on or after the date of this Order, nor
shall any Person be under any obligation on or after the date of this Order to advance or re-
advance any monies or otherwise extend any credit to the Applicants. Nothing in this Order

shall derogate from the rights conferred and obligations imposed by the CCAA.

PROCEEDINGS AGAINST DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

18.  THIS COURT ORDERS that during the Stay Period, and except as permitted by
subsection 11.03(2) of the CCAA, no Proceeding may be commenced or continued against any
of the former, current or future directors or officers of the Applicants with respect to any claim
against the directors or officers that arose before the date hereof and that relates to any
obligations of the Applicants whereby the directors or officers are alleged under any law to be

liable in their capacity as directors or officers for the payment or performance of such
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obligations, until a compromise or arrangement in respect of the Applicants, if one is filed, is

sanctioned by this Court or is refused by the creditors of the Applicants or this Court.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INDEMNIFICATION AND CHARGE

19.  THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the Applicants shall indemnify its directors and
officers against obligations and liabilities that they may incur as directors or officers of the
Applicants after the commencement of the within proceedings, except to the extent that, with
respect to any officer or director, the obligation or liability was incurred as a result of the

director’s or officer’s gross negligence or wilful misconduct.

20.  THIS COURT ORDERS that the directors and officers of the Applicant shall be entitled
to the benefit of and are hereby granted a charge (the “Directors’ Charge”) on the Property,
which charge shall not exceed an aggregate amount of $1,500,000, as security for the indemnity
provided in paragraph 19 of this Order. The Directors’ Charge shall have the priority set out in
paragraphs 38 and 40 herein.

21. THIS COURT ORDERS that, notwithstanding any language in any applicable
insurance policy to the contrary, (a) no insurer shall be entitled to be subrogated to or claim the
benefit of the Directors’ Charge, and (b) each of the Applicants’ directors and officers shall only
be entitled to the benefit of the Directors® Charge to the extent that they do not have coverage
under any directors’ and officers’ insurance policy, or to the extent that such coverage is denied

or insufficient to pay amounts indemnified in accordance with paragraph 19 of this Order.

APPOINTMENT OF MONITOR

22, THIS COURT ORDERS that PwClI is hereby appointed pursuant to the CCAA as the
Monitor, an officer of this Court, to monitor the business and financial affairs of the Applicants
with the powers and obligations set out in the CCAA or set forth herein and that the Applicants
and their shareholders, officers, directors, and Assistants shall advise the Monitor of all material
steps taken by the Applicants pursuant to this Order, and shall co-operate fully with the Monitor
in the exercise of its powers and discharge of its obligations and provide the Monitor with the
assistance that is necessary to enable the Monitor to adequately carry out the Monitor’s

functions.
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23. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor, in addition to its prescribed rights and
obligations under the CCAA, is hereby directed and empowered to:

(a)

(b)

(¢)

(d)

(¢)

%)

(2)

(h)

monitor the Applicants’ receipts and disbursements;

report to this Court at such times and intervals as the Monitor may deem
appropriate with respect to matters relating to the Property, the Business, and such

other matters as may be relevant to the proceedings herein;

assist the Applicants, to the extent required by the Applicant, in their
dissemination, to the DIP Lender (as defined in paragraph 31 below) and its
counsel on a periodic basis of financial and other information as agreed to
between the Applicants and the DIP Lender which may be used in these

proceedings including reporting on a basis to be agreed with the DIP Lender;

advise the Applicants in their preparation of the Applicants’ cash flow statements
and reporting required by the DIP Lender, which information shall be reviewed
with the Monitor and delivered to the DIP Lender and its counsel on a periodic

basis, but not less than weekly, or as otherwise agreed to by the DIP Lender;

advise the Applicants in their development of the Plan and any amendments to the

Plan;
assist the Applicants with the Restructuring;

assist the Applicants, to the extent required by the Applicants, with the holding

and administering of creditors’ or sharcholders’ meetings for voting on the Plan;

have fall and complete access to the Property, including the premises, books,
records, data, including data in electronic form, and other financial documents of
the Applicants, to the extent that is necessary to adequately assess the Applicants’

business and financial affairs or to perform its duties arising under this Order;

be at liberty to engage independent legal counsel or such other persons as the

Monitor deems necessary or advisable respecting the exercise of its powers and
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performance of its obligations under this Order, including being at liberty to retain
and utilize the services of entities related to PwCI as may be necessary to perform

the Monitor’s duties hereunder;
)] consider, and prepare a report and assessment of the Plan;

(k) assist the Applicants with their continuing restructuring activities and in the
conduct of any sale process or processes to sell the Property and Business or any

part thereof;

(1) advise and assist the Applicants in their negotiation with suppliers, customers and

other stakeholders; and

(m)  perform such other duties as are required by this Order or by this Court from time

to time.

24, THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor shall not take possession of the Property and
shall take no part whatsoever in the management or supervision of the management of the
Business and shall not, by fulfilling its obligations hereunder, be deemed to have taken or

maintained possession or control of the Business or Property, or any part thereof.

25. THIS COURT ORDERS that nothing herein contained shall require the Monitor to
occupy or to take control, care, charge, possession or management (separately and/or
collectively, “Possession”) of any of the Property that might be environmentally contaminated,
might be a pollutant or a contaminant, or might cause or contribute to a spill, discharge, release
or deposit of a substance contrary to any federal, provincial or other law respecting the
protection, conservation, enhancement, remediation or rehabilitation of the environment or
relating to the disposal of waste or other contamination including, without limitation, the
Canadian Environmental Protection Act, the Ontario Environmental Protection Act, the Ontario
Water Resources Act, or the Ontario Occupational Health and Safety Act and regulations
thereunder (the “Environmental Legislation™), provided however that nothing herein shall
exempt the Monitor from any duty to report or make disclosure imposed by applicable
Environmental Legislation. The Monitor shall not, as a result of this Order or anything done in

pursuance of the Monitor’s duties and powers under this Order, be deemed to be in Possession of
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any of the Property within the meaning of any Environmental Legislation, unless it is actually m

possession,

26. THIS COURT ORDERS that that the Monifor shall provide any creditor of the
Applicants and the DIP Lender with information provided by the Applicants in response to
reasonable requests for information made in writing by such creditor addressed to the Monitor.
The Monitor shall not have any responsibility or liability with respect to the information
disseminated by it pursuant to this paragraph. In the case of information that the Monitor has
been advised by the Applicants is confidential, the Monitor shall not provide such information to
creditors unless otherwise directed by this Court or on such terms as the Monitor and the

Applicants may agree.

27. THIS COURT ORDERS that, in addition to the rights and protections afforded the
Monitor under the CCAA or as an officer of this Court, the Monitor shall incur no liability or
obligation as a result of its appointment or the carrying out of the provisions of this Order, save
and except for any gross negligence or wilful misconduct on its part. Nothing in this Order shall

derogate from the protections afforded the Monitor by the CCAA or any applicable legislation.

28. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor, counsel to the Monitor and counsel to the
Applicants shall be paid their reasonable fees and disbursements incurred both before and after
the making of this Order, in each case at their standard rates and charges, by the Applicant as
part of the costs of these proceedings, The Applicants are hereby authorized and directed to pay
the accounts of the Monitor, counsel for the Monitor and counsel for the Applicants on a weekly
basis and, in addition, the Applicants are hereby authorized to pay to the Monitor, counsel to the
Monitor, and counsel to the Applicants, retainers in the amounts of $75,000, $50,000 and
$75,000, respectively, to be held by them as security for payment of their respective fees and

disbursements outstanding from time to time

29. THIS COURT ORDERS that, if requested by the DIP Lender, any interested party or
this Court, the Monitor and its legal counsel shall pass their accounts from time to time, and for
this purpose the accounts of the Monitor and its legal counsel are hereby referred to a judge of

the Commercial List of the Ontario Superior Court of Justice.
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30.  THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor, counsel to the Monitor and the Applicants’
counsel shall be entitled to the benefit of and are hereby granted a charge (the “Administration
Charge™) on the Property, which charge shall not exceed an aggregate amount of $500,000, as
security for their professional fees and disbursements incurred at the standard rates and charges
of the Monitor and such counsel, both before and after the making of this Order in respect of
these proceedings and as security for any liability of the Monitor or costs incurred by the
Monitor to defend any claims arising as a result of its appointment or the fulfillment of its duties
in carrying out the provisions of this Order, save and except for any gross negligence or wilful
misconduct. The Administration Charge shall have the priority set out in paragraphs 38 and 40

hereof.

DIP FINANCING

31. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Applicants are hereby authorized and empowered to
obtain and borrow under a credit facility from 2320714 Ontario Inc. (the “DIP Lender”) in order
to finance the Applicants’ working capital requirements and other general corporate purposes
and capital expenditures, provided that borrowings under such credit facility shall not exceed the

principal amount of $2,800,000 unless permitted by further Order of this Court,

32. THIS COURT ORDERS that such credit facility shall be on the terms and subject to the
conditions set forth in the loan agreement between the Applicants and the DIP Lender dated as of

March 22, 2012 (the “Loan Agreement”), filed.

33.  THIS COURT ORDERS that the Applicants are hereby authorized and empowered to
execute and deliver the Pari Passu Priorities Agreement (as defined in the Waugh Affidavit) and
such other credit agreements, mortgages, charges, hypothecs and security documents, guarantees
and other definitive documents (collectively, the “Definitive Documents”), as are contemplated
by the Loan Agreement or as may be reasonably required by the DIP Lender pursuant to the
terms thereof, and the Applicants are hereby authorized and directed to pay and perform all of
their indebtedness, interest, fees, liabilities and obligations to the DIP Lender under and pursuant
to the Loan Agreement and the Definitive Documents as and when the same become due and are

to be performed, notwithstanding any other provision of this Order.
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34. THIS COURT ORDERS that the DIP Lender shall be entitled to the benefit of and is
hereby granted a charge (the “DIP Lender’s Charge”) on the Property, which DIP Lender’s
Charge shall not secure an obligation that exists before this Order is made. The DIP Lender’s

Charge shall have the priority set out in paragraphs 38 and 40 hereof.
35. THIS COURT ORDERS that, notwithstanding any other provision of this Order:

(a) the DIP Lender may take such steps from time to time as it may deem necessary
or appropriate to file, register, record or perfect the DIP Lender’s Charge or any

of the Definitive Documents;

(b) upon the occurrence of an event of default under the Loan Agreement, the
Definitive Documents or the DIP Lender’s Charge, the DIP Lender, upon seven
(7) days notice to the Applicants and the Monitor, may exercise any and all of its
rights and remedies against the Applicants or the Property under or pursuant to
the Loan Agreement, the Definitive Documents and the DIP Lender’s Charge,
including without limitation, to cease making advances to the Applicants and set
off and/or consolidate any amounts owing by the DIP Lender to the Applicants
against the obligations of the Applicants to the DIP Lender under the Loan
Agreement, the Definitive Documents or the DIP Lender’s Charge, to make
demand, accelerate payment and give other notices, or to apply to this Court for
the appointment of a receiver, receiver and manager or interim receiver, or for a
bankruptcy order against the Applicants and for the appointment of a trustee in

bankruptcy of the Applicants; and

36.  the foregoing rights and remedies of the DIP Lender shall be enforceable against any
trustee in bankruptey, interim receiver, receiver or receiver and manager of the Applicants or the

Property.

37. THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that the DIP Lender shall be treated as
unaffected in any plan of arrangement or compromise filed by the Applicant under the CCAA, or

any proposal filed by the Applicant under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act of Canada (the
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“BIA™), with respect to any advances made under the Loan Agreement or the Definitive

Documents.

VALIDITY AND PRIORITY OF CHARGES CREATED BY THIS ORDER

38.  THIS COURT ORDERS that the priorities of the Directors” Charge, the Administration
Charge and the DIP Lender’s Charge (collectively, the “Charges”), as between them, shall be as

follows:
First — Administration Charge (to the maximum amount of $500,000);
Second — DIP Lender’s Charge; and
Third — Directors’ Charge (to the maximum amount of $1,500,000).

39.  THIS COURT ORDERS that the filing, registration or perfection of the Charges shall
not be required, and that the Charges shall be valid and enforceable for all purposes, including as
against any right, title or interest filed, registered, recorded or perfected subsequent to the
Charges coming into existence, notwithstanding any such failure to file, register, record or

perfect.

40. THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the Charges shall constitute a charge on the
Property and:

(a) the Directors’ Charge and the DIP Lender’s Charge shall rank in priority to all
other security interests, trusts, liens, charges and encumbrances, claims of secured
creditors, statutory or otherwise (collectively, “Encumbrances”) in favour of any
Person with the exception of valid, enforceable and perfected Encumbrances

existing as at the filing date; and

(b) the Administration Charge shall rank in priority to all other Encumbrances in

favour of any Person.

41. THIS COURT ORDERS that except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, or as
may be approved by this Court, the Applicants shall not grant any Encumbrances over any

Property that rank in priority to, or pari passu with, any of the Charges.
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42. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Directors’ Charge, the Administration Charge, the
Loan Agreement, the Definitive Documents and the DIP Lender’s Charge shall not be rendered
invalid or unenforceable and the rights and remedies of the chargees entitled to the benefit of the
Charges (collectively, the “Chargees”) and/or the DIP Lender thereunder shall not otherwise be
limited or impaired in any way by (a) the pendency of these proceedings and the declarations of
insolvency made herein; (b) any application(s) for bankruptcy order(s) issued pursuant to BIA, or
any bankruptcy order made pursuant to such applications; (c) the filing of any assignments for
the general benefit of creditors made pursuant to the BIA; (d) the provisions of any federal or
provineial statutes; or (e) any negative covenants, prohibitions or other similar provisions with
respect to borrowings, incurring debt or the creation of Encumbrances, contained in any existing
loan documents, lease, sublease, offer to lease or other agreement (collectively, an
“Agreement”) which binds the Applicants, and notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in

any Agreement:

(a) neither the creation of the Charges nor the execution, delivery, perfection,
registration or performance of the Loan Agreement or the Definitive Documents
shall create or be deemed to constitute a breach by either of the Applicants of any

Agreement to which it is a party;

(b) none of the Chargees shall have any liability to any Person whatsoever as a result
of any breach of any Agreement caused by or resulting from the Applicants
entering into the Loan Agreement, the creation of the Charges, or the execution,

delivery or performance of the Definitive Documents; and

(c) the payments made by the Applicants pursuant to this Order, the Loan Agreement
or the Definitive Documents, and the granting of the Charges, do not and will not
constitute preferences, fraudulent conveyances, transfers at undervalue,
oppressive conduct, or other challengeable, reviewable, void or voidable

transactions under any applicable law.

43.  THIS COURT ORDERS that any Charge created by this Order over leases of real
property in Canada shall only be a Charge in the Applicants’ interest in such real property leases.
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SERVICE AND NOTICE

44, THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor shall (i) without delay, publish in the Globe
and Mail a notice containing the information prescribed under the CCAA, (ii) within five days
after the date of this Order, (A) make this Ordef publicly available in the manner prescribed
under the CCAA, (B) send, in the prescribed manner, a notice to every known creditor who has a
claim against the Applicants of more than $1000, and (C) prepare a list showing the names and
addresses of those creditors and the estimated amounts of those claims, and make it publicly
available in the prescribed manner, all in accordance with Section 23(1)(a) of the CCAA and the

regulations made thereunder.

45. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Applicants and the Monitor be at liberty to serve this
Order, any other materials and orders in these proceedings, any notices or other correspondence,
by mearding true copies thereof by prepaid ordinary mail, courier, personal delivery or
electronic transmission to the Applicants’ creditors or other interested parties at their respective
addresses as last shown on the records of the Applicants and that any such service or notice by
courier, personal delivery or electronic transmission shall be deemed to be received on the next
business day following the date of forwarding thereof, or if sent by ordinary mail, on the third

business day after mailing.

46. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Applicants, the Monitor, and any party who has filed a
Notice of Appearance may serve any court materials in these proceedings by e-mailing a PDF or
other electronic copy of such materials to counsels’ email addresses as recorded on the Service
List from time to time, and the Monitor may post a copy of any or all such materials on its

website at www.pwc.com/car-peas .

GENERAL

47. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Applicants or the Monitor may from time to time

apply to this Court for advice and directions in the discharge of its powers and duties hereunder.

48, THIS COURT ORDERS that nothing in this Order shall prevent the Monitor from
acting as an interim receiver, a receiver, a receiver and manager, or a trustee in bankruptcy of the

Applicants, the Business or the Property.
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49, THIS COURT HEREBY REQUESTS the aid and recognition of any court, tribunal,
regulatory or administrative body having jurisdiction in Canada or in the United States, to give
effect to this Order and to assist the Applicants, the Monitor and their respective agents in
carrying out the terms of this Order. All courts, tribunals, regulatory and administrative bodies
are hereby respectfully requested to make such orders and to provide such assistance to the
Applicants and to the Monitor, as an officer of this Court, as may be necessary or desirable to
give effect to this Order, to grant representative status to the Monitor in any foreign proceeding,
or to assist the Applicants and the Monitor and their respective agents in carrying out the terms

of this Order.

50.  THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the Applicants and the Monitor be at liberty and 1s
hereby authorized and empowered to apply to any court, tribunal, regulatory or administrative
body, wherever located, for the recognition of this Order and for assistance in carrying out the
terms of this Order, and that the Monitor is authorized and empowered to act as a representative
in respect of the within proceedings for the purpose of having these proceedings recognized in a

jurisdiction outside Canada.

51, THIS COURT ORDERS that any interested party (including the Applicants and the
Monitor) may apply to this Court to vary or amend this Order on not less than seven (7) days
notice to any other party or parties likely to be affected by the order sought or upon such other

notice, if any, as this Court may order.

52, THIS COURT ORDERS that this Order and all of its provisions are effective as of
12:01 a.m. Eastern Standard Time on the date of this Order.
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Japuar—t5-—2040Court File No. s2:CV-12-9656-00CL
ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
COMMERCIAL LIST
THE HONOURABLE )
)
JUSTICE )

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’ CREDITORS
ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, AS AMENDED

ISE OR

AND IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPR

ARRANGEMENT OF :
lieartyPCAS PATIENT CARE _AUTOMATION SERVICES

INC. AND 2163279 ONTARIO INC, (the  “Applicants™)

APPLICATION UNDER THE COMPANIES ! CREDITORS

INITTAL ORDER

THIS APPLICATION, made by the AppheantApplicants, pursuant to the Companies’
Creditors Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, as amended (the “CCAA”) was heard this day

at 330 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario.

ON READING the affidavit of
2012 and the Exhibits theretoeand-on-bein
be—affoctod—by—the—charges—eres

reading the pre-filing report of PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. (“PwCI™), in its capacity as

intended Monitor in these proceedings. dated March 21, 2012, and on hearing the submissions of




counsel for

for Castcan Investments Inc. Casﬁ;an”\. and 1o one

else appearing on this Application, and on reading the consent o’

to act as the Monitor,

SERVICE

L. THIS COURT ORDERS that the time for service of the Notice of Application and the
Application Record is hereby abridged and validated® so that this Application is properly

returnable today and hereby dispenses with further service thereof.

APPLICATION

2. THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that gach of the ApplieantApplicanis is a
company to which the CCAA applies.

PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT

3. THIS COURT ORDERS that the ApplieantApplicants shall have the authority to file

and may, subject to further order of this Court, file with this Court a plan of compromise or

arrangement (hereinafter referred to as the “Plan”)_be

more of their secured and/or unsecured creditors as they deem appropriate.

POSSESSION OF PROPERTY AND OPERATIONS

4, THIS COURT ORDERS that gach of the AppliecantApplicants shall remain in
possession and control of its current and future assets, undertakings and properties of every
nature and kind whatsoever, and wherever situate including all proceeds thereof (the

“Property”). Subject to further Order of this Court, each of the ApplieantApplicants shall
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continue to carry on business in a manner consistent with the preservation of its business (the
“Business™) and Property. Fhe—ApphesntEach of the Applicants shall be authorized and
empowered to continue to retain and employ the employees, consultants, agents, experts,
accountants, counsel and such other persons (collectively “Assistants”) currently retained or

employed by it, with liberty to retain such further Assistants as it deems reasonably necessary or

desirable in the ordinary course of business or for the carrying out of the terms of this Order.

5. 6—THIS COURT ORDERS that theeach of the Applicants, either on its own behalf or

on behalf of another Apphcant shall be entitled but not required to pay the following expenses or_
s whether incurred prior to or after_the date of this Order:

(a) all outstanding and future wages, salaries, employee—and—pension benefits,
vacation pay and expenses payable on or after the date of this Order, in each case
incurred in the ordinary course of business and consistent with existing

compensation policies and arrangements; ane




(b)

(@)

- 4.

the fees and disbursements of any Assistants retained or employed by the
ApplieantApplicants in respect of these proceedings, at their standard rates and

charges;

with the nrior consent of the Monitor, any or all outstanding and. future amounis

owing to or in respect of individuals working as independent contractors in

connection with the Business if. in the opinion of the Applicants, the individual is

with the prior consent of the Monitor, outstanding amounts owing for goods and

services actuallv supplied to the Applicants (or, where acceptable to the supplier.,

return of sunnlied goods in lieu of such pavments), or amounts necessary to obtain

the release of goods contracted for prior to the date of this Order, by suppliers, if,

in the opinion of the Applicants, such payments are necessary in order fo ensure

an uninterrupted supplv_of soods and servigces to the Applicants which are

6. 7-THIS COURT ORDERS that, except as otherwise provided to the contrary herein,

each of the ApplieantApplicants shall be entitled but not required to pay all reasonable expenses
incurred by the-Applieantit in carrying on the Business in the ordinary course on ang after_the

date of this Order, and in carrying out the provisions of this Order, which expenses shall include,

without limitation:

(a)

(b)

all expenses and capital expenditures reasonably necessary for the preservation of
the Property or the Business including, without limitation, payments on account of
insurance (including directors and officers insurance), maintenance and security

services; and

payment for goods actually delivered or services actually supplied to the
W&MMW the date of this Order.

7 $-THIS COURT ORDERS that cach of the ApplieantApplicants shall remit, in

accordance with legal requirements, or pay:



(a)

(b)

(c)

- 5.

any statutory deemed trust amounts in favour of the Crown in right of Canada or
of any Province thereof or any other taxation authority which are required to be
deducted from employees’ wages, including, without limitation, amounts in
respect of (i) employment insurance, (ii) Canada Pension Plan, (iii) Quebec

Pension Plan, and (iv) income taxes;

all goods and services or other applicable sales taxes (collectively, “Sales Taxes”)
required to be remitted by thesuch Applicant in connection with the sale of goods
and services by thesuch Applicant, but only where such Sales Taxes are accrued
or collected after the date of this Order, or where such Sales Taxes were accrued
or collected prior to the date of this Order but not required to be remitted until on

or after the date of this Orders; and

any amount payable to the Crown in right of Canada or of any Province thereof or
any political subdivision thereof or any other taxation authority in respect of
municipal realty, municipal business or other taxes, assessments or levies of any
nature or kind which are entitled at law to be paid in priority to claims of secured
creditors and which are attributable to or in respect of the carrying on of the

Business by theguch Applicant.

9-THIS COURT ORDERS that until such time as a real property lease is disclaimed-fer-

resitiated}’, terminate or repudiated in accordance with the-CCAAthe-Apphicantparagraph 10(c).

of this Order (a “Notice of Repudiation”™), each Applicants shall pay all amounts constituting

B e tlintaahonid panin ifthere-gre-loss
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rent or payable as rent under real property leases (including, for greater certainty, common area
maintenance charges, utilities and realty taxes and any other amounts payable to the landlord
under the lease) or as otherwise may be negotiated between the-Applieantsuch Applicants and the
landlord from time to time (“Rent™), for the period commencing from and including the date of
this Order, twice-monthly in equal payments on the first and fifteenth day of each month, in
advance (but not in arrears). On the date of the first of such payments, any Rent relating to the

period commencing from and including the date of this Order shall also be paid.
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9. 19-THIS COURT ORDERS that, except as specifically permitted herein, the Appheant
isApplicants are hereby directed, until further Order of this Court: (a) to make no payments of
principal, interest thereon or otherwise on account of amounts owing by the ApphicantApplicants

to any of itstheir creditors as of this date_gxgept in respect of scheduled pavments of principal

Affidavit); (b) to grant no security interests, trust, liens, charges or encumbrances upon or in

respect of any of its Property; and (c) to not grant credit or incur liabilities except in the ordinary

course of the Business.

RESTRUCTURING

10, +THIS COURT ORBERS that gach of the AppheantApplicants shall, subject to such
requirements as are imposed by the CCAA and such covenants as may be contained in the

PefinitiveLoan Documents (as hereinafter defined), have the right to:

(a) permanently or temporarily cease, downsize or shut down any of its business or
operations, Jand to dispose of pon-profitable, redundant or non-material assets and
operations not exceeding $¢150.000 in any one transaction or $€5300,000 in the
aggregatef’,

(b)  jterminate the employment of such of its employees or temporarily or indefinitely
lay off such of its employees as it deems appropriate};®-and_on such terms as may,

be_agreed upon between the such Applicant and such employee, or failing such

acreement, to deal with the consequences thereof in the Plan:

{c) in accordance with paragraphs 11 and 12, vacate, abandon or quit any leased

premises and/or disclaim. cancel, terminate or repudiate any real properfy lease
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and anv ancillarv agreements relating to any leased premises, on not less than

seven (7) davs notice in writing to the relevant landlord on such terms as may be

(d)  disclaim, terminate or repudiate. with the prior consent of the Monitor or further

Order of the Court. such of its arrangements. agreements or contracts of any

nature whatsoever. with whomsoever, whether oral or written, as such Applicant

may deem appropriate, in accordance with Section 32, of the CCAA and on such

terms as may be asreed upon between such Applicant and such counter-parties, or

failing such asreement. to deal with the conseauences thereof in the Plan: and

(e) fey-pursue all avenues of refinancing and offers for material parfs of its Business
or_the Property, in whole or part, subject to prior approval of this Court being

obtained before any material refinancing_or sale (except .as permitted by

3

all of the foregoing to permit thesuch Applicant to proceed with an orderly restructuring or.
winding down of the Business (the “Restructuring”).

11.  12-THIS COURT ORDERS that gach of the ApphieantApplicants shall provide each of
the relevant landlords and the Monitor with notice of #kesuch Applicant’s intention to remove
any fixtures from any leased premises at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the intended
removal. The relevant landlord shall be entitled to have a representative present in the leased
premises to observe such removal and, if the landlord disputes thesuch Applicant’s entitlement to
remove any such fixture under the provisions of the lease, such fixture shall remain on the leased
premises and shall be dealt with as agreed between any applicable secured creditors, such
landlord and thesuch Applicant, or by further Order of this Court upon application by thesuch

Applicant on at least two (2) days notice to such landlord and any such secured creditors. If

theguch Applicant disclaims-fer—resitiatest, repudiates or ferminates the lease governing such
leased premises in accordance with Speton—32-of-the-CCAAparagraph 10(c) of this Order, 1t

shall not be required to pay Rent under such lease pending resolution of any such dispute {other

than Rent payable for the notice period provided for in Seetion-32(5paragraph 10(c) of the-
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EAAthis Order), and the disclaimer-ferresitiation] of the lcase shall

be without prejudice to theguch Applicant’s claim to the fixtures in dispute.

‘ shatienNotice of
Repudiation is delivered pursnantto-Section32-of the-CCAADY an Applicant, then (a) during the
notice period prior to the effective time of the disclaimer—{er—resikiation], repudiation or
termination, the landlord may show the affected leased premises to prospective tenants during
normal business hours, on giving thesuch Applicant and the Monitor 24 hours’ prior written
notice, and (b) at the effective time of the disclaimer-fesresiHation], repudiation or termination,
the relevant landlord shall be entitled to take possession of any such leased premises without
waiver of or prejudice to any claims or rights such landlord may have against thesuch Applicant
in respect of such lease or leased premises and such landlord shall be entitled to notify thesuch
Applicant of the basis on which it is taking possession and to gain possession of and re-lease
such leased premises to any third party or parties on such terms as such landlord considers
advisable, provided that nothing herein shall relieve such landlord of its obligation to mitigate

any damages claimed in connection therewith.

NO PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE APPLICANT OR THE PROPERTY

3. 4-THIS COURT ORDERS that until and including »
21, 2012, or such later date as this Court may order (the ‘iStay Period™), no proceeding or
enforcement process in any court or tribunal (each, a “Proceeding”) shall be commenced or
continued against or in respect of the ApphiesntApplicants or the Monitor, or affecting the
Business or the Property, except with the written consent of the_affected Applicant and the

Monitor, or with leave of this Court, and any and all Proceedings currently under way against or

in respect of any of the AppheantApplicants or affecting the Business or the Property are hereby
stayed and suspended pending further Order of this Court.

NO EXERCISE OF RIGHTS OR REMEDIES

14.  45-THIS COURT ORDERS that during the Stay Period, all rights and remedies of any
individual, firm, corporation, governmental body or agency, or any other entities (all of the

foregoing, collectively being “Persons” and each being a “Person”) against or in respect of the
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AppheantApplicants or the Monitor, or affecting the Business or the Property, are hereby stayed
and suspended except with the written consent of the Appheantaffected Applicants and the
Monitor, or leave of this Court, provided that nothing in this Order shall (i) empower the
AwslieantApplicants to carry on any business which the Applieant-isApplicanis are not lawfully
entitled to carry on, (if) affect such investigations, actions, suits or proceedings by a regulatory
body as are permitted by Section 11.1 of the CCAA, (iii) prevent the filing of any registration to
preserve or re-perfect agn existing security interest, or (iv) prevent the registration of a claim for

lien.

NO INTERFERENCE WITH RIGHTS

15.  +6--THIS COURT ORDERS that during the Stay Period, no Person shall discontinue,
fail to honour, alter, interfere with, repudiate, terminate or cease to perform any right, renewal

right, contract, agreement, lease, sub-lease, licence or permit in favour of or held by either of the
ApstieastApplicants, except with the written consent of the ApphieantApplicants and the

Monitor, or leave of this Court.

CONTINUATION OF SERVICES

written agreements with either of the AppheantApplicants or statutory or regulatory mandates for

the supply of goods and/or services, including without limitation all computer software,
communication and other data services, centralized banking services, payroll services, insurance,
transportation  services, utility,_leasing or other services to the Business or the
AppheantApplicants, are hereby restrained until further Order of this Court from discontinuing,
altering, interfering with or terminating the supply of such goods or services as may be required
by the ApphicantApplicants, and that the ApphicantApplicants shall be entitled to the continued
use of itstheir current premises, telephone numbers, facsimile numbers, internet addresses and
domain names, provided in each case that the normal prices or charges for all such goods or
services received after the date of this Order arc paid by the AppheantApplicants in accordance
with normal payment practices of the ApphieantApplicants or such other practices as may be
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agreed upon by the supplier or service provider-and-each-ef, the_affected Applicant and the
Monitor, or as may be ordered by this Court.

NON-DEROGATION OF RIGHTS

17. 18—THIS COURT ORDERS that, notwithstanding anything else in this Order, no
Person shall be prohibited from requiring immediate payment for goods, services, use of lease or
licensed property or other valuable consideration provided on or after the date of this Order, nor
shall any Person be under any obligation on or after the date of this Order to advance or
re-advance any monies or otherwise extend any credit to the AppheantApplicants. Nothing in
this Order shall derogate from the rights conferred and obligations imposed by the CCAA”

PROCEEDINGS AGAINST DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

subsection 11.03(2) of the CCAA, no Proceeding may be commenced or continued against any of
the former, current or future directors or officers of the AppheantApplicants with respect to any
claim against the directors or officers that arose before the date hereof and that relates to any
obligations of the ApplieantApplicants whereby the directors or officers are alleged under any
law to be liable in their capacity as directors or officers for the payment or performance of such
obligations, until a compromise or arrangement in respect of the ApplieantApplicants, if one is
filed, is sanctioned by this Court or is refused by the creditors of the ApphieantApplicants or this

Court.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INDEMNIFICATION AND CHARGE

19. 20-THIS COURT ORDERS that gach of the ApphiesntApplicants shall indemnify its

directors and officers against obligations and liabilities that they may incur as directors or

officers of the AppheamtApplicants after the commencement of the within proceedings,” except
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to the extent that, with respect to any officer or director, the obligation or liability was incurred as

a result of the director’s or officer’s gross negligence or wilful misconduct.

20, 2+-THIS COURT ORDERS that the directors and officers of the Applicant shall be
entitled to the benefit of and are hereby granted a charge (the “Directors’ Charge™)” on the
Property, which charge shall not exceed an aggregate amount of $&1,500,000, as security for the
indemnity provided in paragraph {28{19 of this Order. The Directors’ Charge shall have the

priority set out in paragraphs $38} and {40} herein.

insurance policy to the contrary, {a) no insurer shall be entitled to be subrogated to or claim the
benefit of the Directors’ Charge, and (b) each of the Apy CaApplicants’ directors and officers
shall only be entitled to the benefit of the Directors’ Charge to the extent that they do not have

coverage under any directors’ and officers’ insurance policy, or to the extent that such coverage
is denied or insufficient to pay amounts indemnified in accordance with paragraph {26419 of this
Order.

APPOINTMENT OF MONITOR

22, 23 THIS COURT ORDERS that Pw(Cl] is hereby appointed

o monitor the business and

pursuant to the CCAA as the Monitor, an officer o
financial affairs of the AppleantApplicants with the powers and obligations set out in the CCAA
or set forth herein and that the AppheantApplicants and #stheir shareholders, officets, directors,
and Assistants shall advise the Monitor of all material steps taken by the AppheastApplicants
pursuant to this Order, and shall co-operate fully with the Monitor in the exercise of its powers
and discharge of its obligations and provide the Monitor with the assistance that is necessary to

enable the Monitor to adequately carry out the Monitor’s functions,

23,  24-THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor, in addition to its prescribed rights and
obligations under the CCAA, is hereby directed and empowered to:

gﬁmwpwmwwf%mmmmrgm%m&w%w%%e
Applicant conld-obtain-adequate-indemnifieation-insutance forthe-director-or-officerat-areasonable-cost:



(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

M
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monitor the Applicant’sApplicants’ receipts and disbursements;

report to this Court at such times and intervals as the Monitor may deem
appropriate with respect to matters relating to the Property, the Business, and such

other matters as may be relevant to the proceedings herein;

assist the AppheantApplicants, to the extent required by the Applicant, in #stheir
dissemination, to the DIP Lender (as defined in paragraph 31 below) and its
periodic basis of financial and other
information as agreed to between the ApphesstApplicants and the DIP Lender

counsel on a =

which may be used in these proceedings including reporting on a basis to be

agreed with the DIP Lender;

advise the AppheantApplicants in  #stheir  preparation of  the
Awpphicant’sApplicants’ cash flow statements and reporting required by the DIP
Lender, which information shall be reviewed with the Monitor and delivered to
the DIP Lender and its counsel on a periodic basis, but not less than

weekly, or as otherwise agreed to by the DIP Lender;

advis

ApplicantApplicants in #stheir development of the Plan and any

amendments to the Plan;

assist the ApphicantApplicants with the Restructuring;

assist the Applicants, to the extent required by the ApplicantApplicants, with the
holding and administering of creditors” or shareholders’ meetings for voting on

the Plan;

¢a+have full and complete access to the Property, including the premises, books,
records, data, including data in electronic form, and other financial documents of
the ApplieantApplicants, to the extent that is necessary to adequately assess the
ApphicentsApplicants’ business and financial affairs or to perform its duties

arising under this Order;
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(1} {a3-be at liberty to engage independent legal counsel or such other persons as the
Monitor deems necessary or advisable respecting the exercise of its powers and

performance of its obligations under this Order, including being at liberfy to retain

dS 1MaV DE NCCCSSAryY 1o ] Q11

Q

k) assist_the Applicants with their confinuing restructuring activities and in the

conduct of any sale process or processes to sell the Property and Business or any

Qgg lbg Ls..\gij'

[4)] advise and assist the Applicants in their negotiation with suppliers, customers and

other stakeholders; and

(m)  @-perform such other duties as are required by this Order or by this Court from

time to time.

24, 25 _THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor shall not take possession of the Property
and shall take no part whatsoever in the management or supervision of the management of the
Business and shall not, by fulfilling its obligations hereunder, be deemed to have taken or

maintained possession or control of the Business or Property, or any part thereof,

25, 26-THIS COURT ORDERS that nothing herein contained shall require the Monitor to
occupy or to take control, care, charge, possession or management (separately and/or collectively,
“Possession”) of any of the Property that might be environmentally contaminated, might be a
pollutant or a contaminant, or might cause or contribute to a spill, discharge, release or deposit of
a substance contrary to any federal, provincial or other law respecting the protection,
conservation, enhancement, remediation or rehabilitation of the environment or relating to the
disposal of waste or other contamination including, without limitation, the Canadion
Environmental Protection Act, the Ontario Environmental Protection Act, the Ontario Water
Resources Act, or the Ontario Occupational Health and Safety Act and regulations thereunder

(the “Environmental Legislation™), provided however that nothing herein shall exempt the
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Monitor from any duty to report or make disclosure imposed by applicable Environmental
Legislation. The Monitor shall not, as a result of this Order or anything done in pursuance of the
Monitor’s duties and powers under this Order, be deemed to be in Possession of any of the

Property within the meaning of any Environmental Legislation, unless it is actually in possession.

26. 27-THIS COURT ORDERS that that the Monitor shall provide any creditor of the
ApphieantApplicants and the DIP Lender with information provided by the ApplieantApplicants
in response to reasonable requests for information made in writing by such creditor addressed to
the Monitor. The Monitor shall not have any responsibility or liability with respect to the
information disseminated by it pursuant to this paragraph. In the case of information that the
Monitor has been advised by the AppheantApplicants is confidential, the Monitor shall not

provide such information to creditors unless otherwise directed by this Court or on such terms as

the Monitor and the AppheantApplicants may agree.

27.  28-THIS COURT ORDERS that, in addition to the rights and protections afforded the
Monitor under the CCAA or as an officer of this Court, the Monitor shall incur no liability or
obligation as a result of its appointment or the carrying out of the provisions of this Order, save
and except for any gross negligence or wilful misconduct on its part. Nothing in this Order shall

derogate from the protections afforded the Monitor by the CCAA or any applicable legislation.

28.  29-THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor, counsel to the Monitor and counsel to the
ApphicantApplicants shall be paid their reasonable fees and disbursements_incurred both before

and_after the making of this Order, in each case at their standard rates and charges, by the

Applicant as part of the costs of these proceedings. The Appheant-isApplicants are hereby

authorized and directed to pay the accounts of the Monitor, counsel for the Monitor and counsel

for the ApplicantApplicants on a weekly basis and, in addition, the
AppheantisApplicants are hereby authorized to pay to the Monitor, counsel to the Monitor, and

counsel to the ApphicantApplicants, retainers in the sreu
$50,000 and $75.000, respectively,} to be held by them as security for payment of their respective

fees and disbursements outstanding from time to time

29, 30-THIS COURT ORDERS that_if requested by the DIP Lender, any inferested parly

or this Court, the Monitor and its legal counsel shall pass their accounts from time to time, and
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for this purpose the accounts of the Monitor and its legal counsel are hereby referred to a judge of

the Commercial List of the Ontario Superior Court of Justice.

30. 31-THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitot, counsel to the Monitor—-ay: and the

ApphieantzsApplicants’ counsel shall be entitled to the benefit of and ate hereby granted a charge
(the “Administration Charge”) on the Property, which charge shall not exceed an aggregate

500.000. as security for their professional fees and disbursements incurred at
the standard rates and charges of the Monitor and such counsel, both before and after the making

of this Order in respect of these proceedings_and as security for any lability of the Monitor _or

costs incurred by the Monitor to defend any claims arising as a result of its appointment or the

fulfillment of its duties in carrving out the provisions of this Order, save and except for any gross

necligence or wilful misconduct. The Administration Charge shall have the priority set out in

paragraphs {38} and {40} hereof.

DIP FINANCING

31, 32-THIS COURT ORDERS that the ApplicestisApplicants ate hereby authorized and

s

empowered to obtain and borrow under a credit facility from
Ontario Inc. (the “DIP Lender”) in order to finance the ApplieantsApplicants’ working capital
requirements and other general corporate purposes and capital expenditures, provided that

borrowings under such credit facility shall not exceed e principal amount of $2,800.000

unless permitted by further Order of this Court.

32, 33—THIS COURT ORDERS FHATthat such credit facility shall be on the terms and
subject to the conditions set forth in the commitment—letter]loan agreement between the

ApphicastApplicants and the DIP Lender dated as of

33, 34-THIS COURT ORDERS that the Applieant-isApplicants arg hereby authorized and

empowered to execute and deliver suehthe Pari Passu Priorities Agreement (as.defined in the

Wauch Affidavit) and such other credit agreements, mortgages, charges, hypothecs and security

documents, guarantees and other definitive documents (collectively, the “Definitive

Documents™), as are contemplated by the CommitmentLetterloan Agreement or as may be
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reasonably required by the DIP Lender pursuant to the terms thereof, and the Appheant
isApplicants are hereby authorized and directed to pay and perform all of itstheir indebtedness,
interest, fees, liabilities and obligations to the DIP Lender under and pursuant to the Cenmmitment-
LetterLoan Agreement and the Definitive Documents as and when the same become due and are

to be performed, notwithstanding any other provision of this Order.

34. 35 THIS COURT ORDERS that the DIP Lender shall be entitled to the benefit of and
is hereby granted a charge (the “DIP Lender’s Charge”) on the Property, which DIP Lender’s
Charge shall not secure an obligation that exists before this Order is made. The DIP Lender’s

Charge shall have the priority set out in paragraphs {38} and {40} hereof.

35, 16-THIS COURT ORDERS that, notwithstanding any other provision of this Order:

(a) the DIP Lender may take such steps from time to time as it may deem necessary or
appropriate to file, register, record or perfect the DIP Lender’s Charge or any of

the Definitive Documents;

(b) upon the occurrence of an event of default under_the Loan Agreement, the

Definitive Documents or the DIP Lender’s Charge, the DIP Lender, upon
=seyen (7) days notice to the ApphieantApplicants and the Monitor, may

%

exercise any and all of its rights and remedies against the ApphieartApplicants or
the Property under or pursuant to the nraitment-LetterLoan Agreement, the
Definitive Documents and the DIP Lender’s Charge, including without limitation,
to cease making advances to the ApphesstApplicanis and set off and/or
consolidate any amounts owing by the DIP Lender to the AppheantApplicants
against the obligations of the AppheantApplicants to the DIP Lender under the
Commitment—LetterLoan Agreement, the Definitive Documents or the DIP

Lender’s Charge, to make demand, accelerate payment and give other notices, or
to apply to this Court for the appointment of a receiver, receiver and manager or
interim receiver, or for a bankruptey order against the ApphieantApplicants and for
the appointment of a trustee in bankruptcy of the ApplieantApplicants; and
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36.  {erthe foregoing rights and remedies of the DIP Lender shall be enforceable against any

trustee in bankruptcy, interim receiver, receiver or receiver and manager of the

AppheantApplicants or the Property.

37. THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that the DIP Lender shall be treated as
unaffected in any plan of arrangement or compromise filed by the Applicant under the CCAA, or
any proposal filed by the Applicant under the Bawkruptcy and Insolvency Act of Canada (the

“BIA™), with respect to any advances made under_the Loan Agreement or the Definitive

Documents.

VALIDITY AND PRIORITY OF CHARGES CREATED BY THIS ORDER

38. THIS COURT ORDERS that the priorities of the Directors’ Charge, the Administration
Charge and the DIP Lender’s Charge (collectively, the "Charges”, as ernongbetween them, shall

be as follows*:

First — Administration Charge (to the maximum amount of §

Second — DIP Lender’s Charge; and

Third — Directors’ Charge (to the maximum amount of :

39. THIS COURT ORDERS that the filing, registration or pe fection of the Birccters™
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“ChareesCharges shall not be required, and that the Charges shall be valid and enforceable for
all purposes, including as against any right, title or interest filed, registered, recorded or perfected
subsequent to the Charges coming into existence, notwithstanding any such failure to file,

register, record or perfect.
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40, THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the Charces shall constitute a charge on the

2o o ‘. .

Property and;
ACL CPEETS N ETnT ENS N R T AN P S O : :

{a) WO CORRT-£ I —thn eh—ot—the—Directors——Charpe—the
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Administration—Charpe—snd—the—P-Tendesis- Charse—(olas—constituted—-and
dafinad hereind.ahall o frdegl : tho Tie arbgr g \ o ]
defined-herein)-shall-constitute—n-charpo-en—the-Properh—and-sueh-Chargesthe

Directors’ Charge apnd ihe DIP Lender’s Charge shall rank in priority to all other

security interests, trusts, Hens, charges and encumbrances, claims of secured
creditors, statutory or otherwise (collectively, “Encumbrances”) in favour of any

Person-_with the exception of valid, enforceable and perfected Encumbrances

(b)  the Administration Charge shall rank in priority o all other Encumbrances in

Tavour of any Person,

41. THIS COURT ORDERS that except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, or as
may be approved by this Court, the AppheantApplicanis shall not grant any Encumbrances over

42, THIS COURT ORDERS that the Directors’ Charge, the Administration Charge, the
1 oan Agreement, the Definitive Documents and the DIP Lender’s Charge

shall not be rendered invalid or unenforceable and the rights and remedies of the chargees
entitled to the benefit of the Charges (collectively, the “Chargees™) and/or the DIP Lender
thereunder shall not otherwise be limited or impaired in any way by (a) the pendency of these
proceedings and the declarations of insolvency made herein; (b) any application(s) for
bankruptcy order(s) issued pursuant to BIA, or any bankruptcy order made pursuant to such
applications; (c) the filing of any assignments for the general benefit of creditors made pursuant
to the BIA; (d) the provisions of any federal or provincial statutes; or (e) any negative covenants,
prohibitions or other similar provisions with respect to borrowings, incurring debt or the creation

of Encumbrances, contained in any existing loan documents, lease, sublease, offer to lease or
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other agreement (collectively, an “Agreement”) which binds the ApplieantApplicants, and

notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any Agreement:

(a) neither the creation of the Charges nor the execution, delivery, perfection,
registration or performance of the Cemmitment—tetterloan Agrecment or the
Definitive Documents shall create or be deemed to constitute a breach by gither of

the AppleantApplicants of any Agreement to which it is a party;

(b) none of the Chargees shall have any liability to any Person whatsoever as a result
of any breach of any Agreement caused by or resulting from the
ApplieantApplicants entering into the Cemmitment-betlerLoan Agreement, the
creation of the Charges, or the execution, delivery or performance of the

Definitive Documents; and

(c) the payments made by the AppheantApplicants pursuant to this Order, the
Comaytn sterLoan Agreement or the Definitive Documents, and the

granting of the Charges, do not and will not constitute preferences, fraudulent
conveyances, transfers at undervalue, oppressive conduct, or other challengeable,

reviewable, void or voidable transactions under any applicable law.

43,  THIS COURT ORDERS that any Charge created by this Order over leases of real
property in Canada shall only be a Charge in the Applicant’sApplicants’ interest in such real
property leases.

SERVICE AND NOTICE

44.  THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor shall (i) without delay, publish in

S i +ithe Globe and Mail a notice containing the information
prescribed under the CCAA, (ii) within five days after the date of this Order, (A) make this Order

publicly available in the manner prescribed under the CCAA, (B) send, in the prescribed manner,
a notice to every known creditor who has a claim against the AppheantApplicants of more than
$1000, and (C) prepare a list showing the names and addresses of those creditors and the
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estimated amounts of those claims, and make it publicly available in the prescribed manner, all in

accordance with Section 23(1)(a) of the CCAA and the regulations made thereunder.

45,  THIS COURT ORDERS that the AppheantApplicants and the Monitor be at liberty to
serve this Order, any other materials and orders in these proceedings, any notices or other
correspondence, by forwarding true copies thereof by prepaid ordinary mail, courier, personal
delivery or electronic transmission to the Apphesnt’sApplicants’ creditors or other interested
parties at their respective addresses as last shown on the records of the ApphieantApplicants and
that any such service or notice by courier, personal delivery or electronic transmission shall be
deemed to be received on the next business day following the date of forwarding thereof, or if

sent by ordinary mail, on the third business day after mailing,

46.  THIS COURT ORDERS that the ApplieantApplicants, the Monitor, and any party who
has filed a Notice of Appearance may serve any court materials in these proceedings by e-mailing
a PDF or other electronic copy of such materials to counsels’ email addresses as recorded on the
Service List from time to time, and the Monitor may post a copy of any or all such materials on

WWW, DWC.COMT/CAr-nCcas .

its website at ;

GENERAL

47. THIS COURT ORDERS that the ApplieantApplicants or the Monitor may from time to
time apply to this Court for advice and directions in the discharge of its powers and duties

hereunder.

48. THIS COURT ORDERS that nothing in this Order shall prevent the Monitor from

acting as an interim receiver, a receiver, a receiver and manager, or a frustee in bankruptey of the

ApphieantApplicants, the Business or the Property.

49, THIS COURT HEREBY REQUESTS the aid and recognition of any court, tribunal,
regulatory or administrative body having jurisdiction in Canada or in the United States, to give
effect to this Order and to assist the AppleantApplicants, the Monitor and their respective agents
in carrying out the terms of this Order. All courts, tribunals, regulatory and administrative bodies

are hereby respectfully requested to make such orders and to provide such assistance to the
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AppheantApplicants and to the Monitor, as an officer of this Court, as may be necessary or
desirable to give effect to this Order, to grant representative status to the Monitor in any foreign
proceeding, or to assist the ApphesntApplicants and the Monitor and their respective agents in
carrying out the terms of this Order.

50.  THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the AppheantApplicants and the Menitor be at
liberty and is hereby authorized and empowered to apply to any court, tribunal, regulatory or
administrative body, wherever located, for the recognition of this Order and for assistance in
carrying out the terms of this Order, and that the Monitor is authorized and empowered to act as a
representative in respect of the within proceedings for the purpose of having these proceedings

recognized in a jurisdiction outside Canada.

51, THIS COURT ORDERS that any interested party (including the AppheantApplicants
and the Monitor) may apply to this Court to vary or amend this Order on not less than seven (7)
days notice to any other party or parties likely to be affected by the order sought or upon such

other notice, if any, as this Court may order.

52. THIS COURT ORDERS that this Order and all of its provisions are effective as of
12:01 a.m., Bastern Standard3aylight Time on the date of this Order.

120843924
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Court File No. CV-12-9656-00CL

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
COMMERCIAL LIST

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’ CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT,
R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE OR ARRANGEMENT OF
PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC.
AND 2163279 ONTARIO INC. (the “Applicants™)

APPLICATION UNDER THE COMPANIES’ CREDITORS
ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.S.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, AS AMENDED

AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
(sworn March 22, 2012)

I, Donald Waugh, of the City of Oakville, in the Province of Ontario, MAKE OATH
AND SAY AS FOLLOWS:

1. I am the Executive Chairman, co-founder and a director of PCAS Patient Care
Automation Services Inc. (“PCAS”). I am also the Chairman and a director of 2163279 Ontario
Inc., doing business as Touchpoint (“Touchpoint™), a company 49% owned by PCAS. As such,
[ have personal knowledge of the matters to which I hereinafter depose in this Affidavit. Where
1 do not have personal knowledge of the matters set out herein, I have stated the source of my

information and, in all such cases, believe it to be true,
I NATURE OF APPLICATION AND RELIEF SOUGHT

2. This Affidavit is sworn in support of an application by PCAS and Touchpoint
(collectively, the “Applicants™) under the Companies’ Creditors Arvangement Act, R.S.C. 1985,
¢. C-36, as amended (the “CCAA”) for an order, among other things:

(a) staying all proceedings and remedies taken or which might be taken in respect of
the Applicants or any of their property, except upon the leave of the Court being

granted, or as otherwise provided;
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(b) authorizing debtor-in-possession (“DIP”) financing for the Applicants;

(c) authorizing the Applicants to prepare and file with the Court a plan of

compromise or arrangement with their creditors; and
(d) appointing PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. (“PwCI”) as monitor of the Applicants.

3. The Applicants are technology companies in the pre-revenue stage of development and
have run out of start-up capital. The most likely scenario in this proceeding is a going concern
sale with respect to certain assets. However, there is also the possibility that there could be a
restructuring of the Applicants’ business. Protection under the CCAA will allow for a sale to
happen under the supervision of the Court for the benefit of all stakeholders and also allow for

the prospect of a restructuring.
IL BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANTS AND THEIR BUSINESS

4, PCAS is a privately held corporation incorporated pursuant to the Canada Business
Corporations Act on March 3, 2006, under the name “PCAS Physician Clinic Automation
Services Inc.”. On February 16, 2007, articles of amendment were filed to change PCAS’ name
to its current name. A copy of a corporation information report for PCAS obtained from

Industry Canada is attached as Exhibit “A” this Affidavit.

5. PCAS is a healthcare technology company that has developed and is rapidly
commercializing a unique, automated pharmacy dispensing platform poised to revolutionize the
way pharmacy is practiced and prescriptions are dispensed. PCAS’ principal technology and
product is the PharmaTrust MedCentre™ (“MedCentre”), a pharmacist-controlled, customer-
interactive, prescription dispensing system akin to a “pharmacy in a box™ or prescription-
dispensing ATM that capitalizes on current healthcare and pharmacy industry trends. Each
MedCentre sells for approximately $130,000, and then the purchaser’s licensed use of the

technology within the MedCentre generates an income stream for the life of the unit.

6. PCAS believes that the MedCentre is currently the only commercial, scalable, platform-
enabled and fully-automated remote dispensing solution for pharmaceuticals available today.

The MedCentre facilitates live pharmacist counselling via two-way audio-video communication
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with the ability to dispense prescription medicines under pharmacist control on a 24/7 basis and
has the capacity to store over 2,500 items. At scale, the MedCentre value proposition offers the
potential to lower the cost of dispensing prescriptions and expand access to care while providing
significant improvements in convenience to patients and improving drug utilization, compliance
and patient safety. The MedCentre provides benefits to all major stakeholders in the pharmacy

dispensing value chain including patients, pharmacies, physicians, governments and payers.

7. PCAS’ second technology and product, which is in early development, is the
PharmaTrust MedHome™ (“MedHome™), a personal in-home device that dispenses unit doses to
patients at pre-set times and provides patient monitoring and reminders to ensure patient health
and safety. This simple and easy-to-use device also enables patients to immediately connect
with a pharmacist, physician, caregiver or emergency response at the touch of a button. In a
retirement home setting, the in-room MedHome device can be used in concert with a centrally

located MedCentre, to deliver a complete on-site medication management system.

8. Touchpoint was incorporated pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (Ontario} on
February 12, 2008, as “PCAS Newco Pharmacy Inc.”. On July 31, 2009, articles of amendment
were filed to change Touchpoint’s name to “Direct Care Pharmacy Inc.”. On June 13, 2011,
further articles of amendment were filed to change Touchpoint’s name to “Touchpoint Pharmacy
Inc.”. Finally, on November 11, 2011, articles of amendment were filed to change Touchpoimt’s
name to its current numbered company name. A copy of a corporation profile report for
Touchpoint obtained from Ontario Ministry of Government Services is attached as Exhibit “B”

to this Affidavit.

9. Touchpoint operates a retail pharmacy business in Ontario using MedCentres. Ontario
Regulation 58/11, enabling remote dispensing, was ratified on March 18, 2011 and the first
MedCentre received approval from the Ontario College of Pharmacists on August 31, 2011.
Since that time, Touchpoint has deployed 18 MedCentres in hospitals, medical centres and first

nations communities in Ontario.

10.  Under Ontario law, no corporation incorporated after 1954 can own or operate a
pharmacy unless the corporation is majority-owned by pharmacists. Touchpoint is therefore

49% owned by PCAS and 51% owned by three pharmacists who are selected and employed by
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PCAS. PCAS does, however, under the Touchpoint sharcholders® agreement, hold veto power
over any changes to the board of Touchpoint and over most other board-level decisions other
than those relating to safety. PCAS also has a “call right” under the Touchpoint shareholders’
agreement which effectively means the three pharmacists hold their shares at PCAS’ leisure. A
corporate organizational chart for PCAS, Touchpoint and all their affiliates is attached as
Exhibit “C” to this Affidavit. A copy of the Touchpoint sharcholders agreement is attached as
Exhibit “D” to this Affidavit. A copy of the resolutions of the board of directors of Touchpoint
approving the corporation’s CCAA filing and DIP borrowing is attached as Exhibit “E” to this

Affidavit, which resolutions are signed by the current roster of pharmacist shareholder/directors.

11. PCAS presently employs 191 full-time employees, 15 part-time employees, and S
contract employees in Canada, as well as 2 employees in the United States, and 1 contractor in

the United Kingdom.

12. The Applicants’ primary operations are conducted out of the following three leases

premises in Qakville, Ontario:

(a) 2910 Brighton Road, being the location of the head offices, and the base for all

administration, as well as some engineering and warehousing;

(b) 2880 Brighton Road, used for manufacturing, drug warehousing, a licensed

pharmacy and a call centre; and
(c) 2440 Winston Park Drive, used by the technology and infrastructure groups.

13. The Applicants’ United States and United Kingdom affiliates also have small sales
offices in Chicago and London, respectively. The London operations are in the process of

being shut down.
III. APPLICANTS’ CURRENT FINANCIAL SITUATION

14.  PCAS has raised over $60 million of start-up capital from more than 550 sharcholders,
including employee shareholders, medical investment professionals, financial experts,
_entreprencurs and private investment vehicles. Since the start of this year, PCAS has continued

to try to raise money, first with a private placement of up to $100,000,000 in common shares and
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then, as well, through a private placement of up to $30,000,000 in convertible debentures. Both
offerings were marketed by J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, BMO Capital Markets and Goldman,
Sachs & Co. These offerings were not successful and, since early March, 2012, the Applicants

have been close to running out of cash.

15.  On March 7, 2012, PCAS met its payroll only through a last-minute factoring of certain
Scientific Research & Experimental Development (“SR&ED”) investment tax credits, Onfario
Innovation Tax (“OIT”) credits and Harmonized Sales Tax (“HST”) refund accounts receivable

by Castcan Investments Inc. (“Castean™), a company controlled by certain existing shareholders
of PCAS.

16. In the past two weeks, PCAS has reduced its salaried employee headcount from 274 to
193 and reduced its contractors from 96 to 5. PCAS is, however, once again out of cash and,
without immediate funding, will be wholly unable to fund its payroll of approximately $696,000
on Friday, March 23, 2012, Funding of that payroll to the PCAS’ payroll servicer, ADP, was
due on Wednesday, March 21, 2012 and is therefore already late.

17.  The Applicants are also in arrears to their communications and wireless providers, certain
of whom have threatened to terminate services. If these services were to be cut off, the

MedCentres presently deployed in the field would immediately cease to function.

18.  As at the date hereof, PCAS’ liabilities total approximately $8,360,000 and Touchpoint’s
liabilities total approximately $6,800,000 (approximately $6,500,000 of which are liabilities to
PCAS). Touchpoint’s liability as a guarantor of all of PCAS’ obligations under the intended DIP
Facility (as defined in paragraph 58 below), will add to Touchpoint’s total liabilities. Copies of
the Applicants’® draft balance sheet as at March 15, 2012 and the Applicants’ unaudited draft
December 31, 2011 financial statements are attached as Exhibit “F” to this Affidavit.

19. On October 25, 2011, PCAS signed a 5-year customer Memorandum of Understanding
(the “MoU”) with a national pharmacy retail chain in the United States. Assuming successful
pilots and adoption rates, the MoU contemplates this chain purchasing up to 2,900 MedCentre

units from 2012-2014, representing up to $438 million of revenue in that period.
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20.  PCAS is currently in active discussions with another 15 large enterprise clients which,
combined, could result in similar deployment and revenue numbers as are contemplated by the
MoU. The recent private placements were based on projected revenue and EBITDA growth to
$943 million and $180 million, respectively, by 2015.

21.  PCAS currently has approximately $3,000,000 worth of manufactured MedCentres ready
for sale, but will not sell them unless it has the financing (through the DIP Facility or otherwise)

necessary to maintain the operations required to support its deployed MedCentres.

22.  There is therefore tremendous value and potential to be preserved in the Applicants.
IV. STAKEHOLDERS

(a) RBC

23.  PCAS and Royal Bank of Canada (“RBC”) are parties to a credit letter agreement dated
October 12, 2011 (the “RBC Credit Agreement”), pursuant to which RBC agreed to provide a
$2,000,000 revolving demand facility margined against accounts receivable ("RBC Facility
#17), a $1,000,000 term loan margined against SR&ED and OIT tax credits (“RBC Facility
#27), a $500,000 term facility available at RBC’s sole discretion (“RBC Facility #37), a $40,000
VISA facility (on which there is approximately $50,000 owing) and a foreign exchange contracts
facility (collectively, with RBC Facility #1, RBC Facility #2 and RBC Facility #3, the “RBC
Facilities”). A copy of the RBC Credit Agreement is attached as Exhibit “G” to this Affidavit.

24.  PCAS made a general security agreement in favour of RBC (the “PCAS RBC GSA™),
registration in respect of which was made pursuant to the Ontario Personal Property Security Act
(the “PPSA™) on April 11, 2011, pursuant to financing statement number 20116411 1946 1531
6702, reference file number 669008349. A copy of the PCAS RBC GSA is attached as Exhibit
“H” to this Affidavit.

25.  Pursuant to a guarantee and postponement of claim dated November 18, 2011,
Touchpoint guaranieed all the obligations of PCAS to RBC up to the maximum principal amount
of $3,800,000 (the “Touchpoint RBC Guarantee™). The Touchpoint RBC Guarantee is secured

by a general security agreement dated November 18, 2011, registration in respect of which was
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made pursuant to the PPSA on November 15, 2011, pursuant to financing statement number
20111115 1622 1590 1296, reference file number 674381628 (the “Touchpoint RBC GSA”).
RBC had also previously made a PPSA registration against Touchpoint’s prior name “Direct
Care Pharmacy Inc.”, pursuant to financing statement number 20110411 1946 1531 6703,
reference file number 669008358. A copy of the Touchpoint RBC Guarantee is attached as
Exhibit “I” to this Affidavit, and a copy of the Touchpoint RBC GSA is attached as Exhibit “J”
to this Affidavit.

26.  RBC also holds a $3,800,000 limited guarantee and a general security agreement from
PharmaTrust Corp., and inactive affiliate of the Applicants.

27. PCAS has been offside its financial covenants under the RBC Credit Agreement almost
from the start, which covenants include maintaining a cash balance in operating accounts at RBC
in the minimum amount of $3,000,000. RBC Facilities has therefore made only limited
advances under RBC Facility #1 and an advance under RBC Facility #2 against 2010 SR&ED
and OIT tax credits (which was due and repayable by December 31, 2011). The total
indebtedness of PCAS to RBC outstanding as at the date hereof is approximately $866,800,
which includes $408,374 in principal advanced under RBC Facility #2 against PCAS® 2010
SR&ED and OIT tax credit. RBC also has an $805,108.50 letter of credit outstanding to PCAS’
2440 Winston Park Drive landlord, but this is secured by a GIC in an equivalent amount posted
as cash collateral with RBC. PCAS’ request to obtain further availability under the RBC

Facilities has been denied.
(by Kohl & ¥risch

28.  Kohl & Frisch Limited (“KFL”) is a major drug supplier to Touchpoint. PCAS made an
inventory purchase money security agreement dated February 26, 2008 in favour of KFL,
registration of which was made pursuant to the PPSA on February 26, 2008, pursuant to
financing statement number 20080226 1613 1862 5534, reference file number 642941379 (the
“PCAS KFL Security™). Touchpoint made a general security agreement dated November 11,
2011 in favour of KFL, with registration having been previously made in favour of KFL pursuant
to the PPSA on April 8, 2008, pursuant to financing statement number 20080408 1537 1862
8343, reference file number 644006151 (the “Touchpoint KFL GSA™). A copy of the PCAS
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KFL Security is attached as Exhibit “K” to this Affidavit, and a copy of the Touchpoint KFL
GSA is attached as Exhibit “L” to this Affidavit.

29.  RBC, KFL and the Applicants are parties to a Priorities Agreement dated November,
2011 (the “RBC-KFL Priorities Agreement”) pursuant to which KFL agreed to subordinate its
security interests in all the assets of the Applicants with the exception of inventory supplied by
KFL, in respect of which RBC agreed to subordinate its security interest. A copy of the RBC-
KFL Priorities Agreement is attached as Exhibit “M” to this Affidavit. As at the date hereof,
Touchpoint is indebted to KFL in the amount of $43,646 for supplied drug inventory.

{c) Castean

30.  The Applicants and Castcan (in trust for itself and certain others) entered into a
SR&ED/OITC/HST Purchase Agreement dated March 6, 2012 (the “Castcan Factoring
Agreement”) pursuant to which Castcan purchased certain 2009, 2010 and 2011 SR&ED and
OIT tax credits and HST credits and all refunds in respect thereof. The Applicants have certain
repurchase obligations under the Castcan Factoring Agreement, which obligations are secured by
a general security agreement from PCAS (the “PCAS Castean GSA”) and a general security
agreement from Touchpoint (the “Touchpoint Castean GSA”), each dated March 6, 2012.
Registration in respect of the PCAS Castcan GSA was made pursuant to the PPSA on March 6,
2012, pursuant to financing statement number 20120306 1449 1530 7679, reference file number
676656324, and registration in respect of the Touchpoint Castcan GSA was made pursuant to the
PPSA on March 6, 2012, pursuant to financing statement number 20120306 1944 1331 8670,
reference file number 676656333. A copy of the PCAS Castcan Factoring Agreement is
attached as Exhibit “N”, a copy of the PCAS Castcan GSA is attached as Exhibit “0” to this
Affidavit, and a copy of the Touchpoint Castcan GSA is attached as Exhibit “P” to this
Affidavit.

31.  Castcan, RBC and the Applicants entered into an agreement dated March 6, 2012 (the
“RBC-Castcan Priorities Agreement”) pursuant to which RBC agreed to subordinate, in favour
of Castcan, its security interest in all of the Applicants” SR&ED and OIT tax credits and HST
credits, except to the e.xtent RBC advanced funds under RBC Facility #2 against PCAS™ 2010
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SR&ED and OIT tax credit. A copy of the RBC-Castcan Priorities Agreement is attached as
Exhibit “Q” to this Affidavit,

(d) Other Secured Creditors

32. Other than the creditors described above, 1 am not aware of any other creditors with

general security over the Applicants’ assets.

33.  PCAS leases certain computer equipment and software from IBM Canada Limited
(“IBM”), and presently owes IBM approximately $251,614, with scheduled monthly payments
of $12,000. IBM made a registration pursuant to the PPSA against PCAS on December 20,
2010, by financing statement number 20101220 1451 1530 1324, reference file number
666667611, in respect of goods supplied, leased or financed by IBM.

34.  GE VFS Canada Limited Partnership (“GE”) registered pursuant to the PPSA against
PCAS on December 28, 2011, pursuant to financing statement number 20111228 1638 5064
0020, reference file number 675318627, in respect of equipment supplied by GE. GE has
advised us that this registration was made in response to an application PCAS had made for a
copier lease that was never ultimately entered into. Iam advised by counsel that this registration

was, in fact, discharged on March 19, 2012.

35. A summary of PPSA registrations made against the Applicants is attached as Exhibit
“R” to this Affidavit.

(e)  Landlords

36. PCAS’ leases to the 2910 Brighton Road head office location and the 2880 Brighton
Road location are both with 2725312 Canada Inc. as landlord, and both have terms ending March
31,2016. Presently rent is paid on both locations until the end of March, 2012.

37. PCAS’ lease to the 2440 Winston Park Drive property is with 2440 Winston Park Drive
Limited Partnership, and has a terms ending February 22, 2019. Rent is presently paid on this
location until the end of March, 2012. This landlord also has the benefit of a letter of credit from
RBC in the amount of $805,108.50, which is approximately equal to one years’ total rent.
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i) Government
38.  As at the date of this Affidavit, the Applicants’ outstanding HST obligations are all

current (with the Applicants in a net credit position), as are their source deduction remiftances.

As previously mentioned, all payroll is made through ADP.
(g) Employees

39. The Applicants employ 193 non-unionized employees as of the date of this filing, most of
who work at the three Oakville, Ontario premises. Wages and benefits totalled approximately

$14,400,000 for the last fiscal year (ending December 31, 2011), or $1,200,000 per month.

40, The Applicants’ next payroll is March 22, 2012. As at the date of this Affidavit, the
Applicants estimate accrued, yet unpaid employee vacation pay in addition to pay through to

March 22, 2012 to be approximately $500,000.
41. The Applicants have no pension plans.

42.  Ttis the intention of the Applicants’ that, if this Court should so order, in the three months
that a restructuring is expected to take, the number of employees will be reduced further to

approximately 170.

43,  There is a risk, which has been communicated thoroughly to employees, that there may
not be enough funding to continue to pay wages if additional funding beyond the DIP Facility is
not found by the time the DIP Facility is fully advanced.

(h) Trade Creditors

44, As at March 22, 2012, the Applicants’ other unsecured liabilities, including trade
payables, totalled approximately $6,100,000.

V. RESTRUCTURING UNDER CCAA PROTECTION

45.  The Applicants are insolvent as they are not able to pay their liabilities as they become

due. Although there are parties performing due diligence in respect of potential equity
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investments, the Applicants are unable to raise additional equity financing in time to cover

pending payroll and other critical payables.

46.  In order for the Applicants to ensure the best possible recovery for their stakeholders,
including, without limitation, creditors, employees, customers and landlords, management of the

Applicants has determined that a restructuring and/or a sale of its business is required.

47, With the support of PwCl, the Applicants intend to canvass the marketplace to determine
whether there are any parties interested in purchasing the business and assets of one or both

Applicants as a going concern.

48.  The Applicants will continue to seek other forms of funding in addition to or as an
alternative to, the DIP Facility. This will keep open the possibility of restructuring of the

Applicants as going-concern entities.
VL. STAY OF PROCEEDINGS

49, A stay of proceedings is required to enable PwCI to work with the Applicants to conduct
a review of the Applicants’ business, as well as a detailed review of all creditors of the
Applicants posing a threat of proceedings or termination of essential services. Such a review
will enable PwCT to determine the validity of the creditors’ claims, and understand the priority of
such claims. All of the above will constitute the first step in the Applicants formulation of a plan

of compromise or arrangement.

50. A CCAA stay of proceeding is needed to ensure that the Applicants’ business can be
restructured and/or sold in an efficient and orderly way under the protection of the Court without
the threat of proceedings or discontinuation of essential services. A stay of proceedings will
restrain temporarily the exercise of rights and remedies under the various agreements, preserve

the status quo and restrain existing creditors from taking unfair advantage in the circumstances.

51. The Applicants believe that a stay of proceedings will not materially prejudice any of the
existing creditors when compared to the consequences if a stay of proceedings is not granted.
The DIP Lender (as defined in paragraph 56 below) has agreed to provide the Applicants with
the DIP Facility and continue funding necessary post-filing expenses during the CCAA
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proceedings, the details of which are set out below. I believe that the alternative to a stay of

proceedings is the forced sale and/or liquidation of the Applicants and their assets, respectively.
VII. THE PROPOSED MONITOR

52.  PwCI has been assisting the Applicants in preparing for this CCAA application. The
Applicants have prepared a projected cash flow analysis to determine the amounts required to
finance the Applicants’ operations for the next thirteen (13) weeks, assuming the relief sought is
granted (the “Cash Flow Projection™). The amounts set out in the Cash Flow Projection reflect,
among other things, the minimum payments required to maintain the Applicants’ business during
the initial thirty (30) day stay period, as well as professional fees. Attached and marked as
Exhibit “S” is a copy of the thirteen (13) week Cash Flow Projection.

53. Management believes that it is in the best interests of all stakeholders if this Court
appoints PwCI as the court-appointed monitor of the Applicants. As a result of PwCI’s
assistance with the preparation of the Cash Flow Projection and its involvement with the
Applicants and certain of its major stakeholders in advance of and in preparation for this filing,
PwClI has gained insight into the Applicants’ business and will be in a position to perform the

monitoring duties effectively and without further delay.

54.  PwCI has consented to act as monitor of the Applicants in accordance with the
requirements of the CCAA, subject to the Court’s approval. A copy of PwCI’s consent is

included in the Application Record in these proceedings.

VIII. FINANCING DURING CCAA PROCEEDINGS

55.  The Applicants attempted to seek DIP financing from multiple sources, and continued in
such attempts right up to the date of this Affidavit. All existing shareholders were approach
approximately two weeks ago with an offer to finance a corporation formed as a special purpose
vehicle to provide DIP financing, but only approximately $1,500,000 in serious commitments
were originally obtained. The Applicants were also in negotiation with a private individual to
provide $10,000,000 in DIP financing, but the conditions to this financing (which included
assurances as to the value of business and assets) could not be met. A certain private lending

corporation has also been conducting due diligence right up to the date of this Affidavit with an
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eye to providing DIP financing, but it has not initiated any formal negotiations. Finally, within
the days prior to the date of this Affidavit, the Applicants were in serious negotiation with a
German pharmaceutical company for DIP financing in the amount of $10,000,000, which

negotiations were, unfortunately terminated by that potential lender at the eleventh hour.

56. “On March 20, 2012, T sent a renewed request to shareholders notifying them that the
hoped-for DIP financing from the German lender had fallen through. In the response to that
request, the Applicants’ counsel, Aird & Berlis LLP (“A&B”), has received $285,000 into its
trust account from shareholders wishing to fund the special purpose vehicle DIP lender, 2310714
Ontario Inc. (the “DIP Lender”). We also have firm commitments in writing from other
shareholders for an additional $2,465,000 of funding to the DIP Lender. It is the intention that
the DIP. Lender will obtain independent counsel and all funds contributed to the DIP Facility
(including funds already remitted to A&B) will be held in trust by such counsel and advanced to
PCAS from there.

57. The Sharcholders who fund the DIP Lender will each received a convertible promissory
note secured by a general security agreement, and will enter into a pari passu priorities
agreement between each other, the DIP Lender and the Applicants (the “Pari Passu Priorities
Agreement”). Each sharcholder who has committed to such funding is an accredited investor
within the meaning of National Instrument 45-106 - Prospectus and Registration Exemptions,
and was advised at the outset by PCAS to obtain independent legal advice. In addition, being
existing shareholders, these parties, throughout the past several weeks, have received regular
shareholder communications and have had the opportunity to participate in numerous
sharcholder conference calls, whereby shareholders have been kept appraised of the Applicants’
financial situation. It is my belief that they all have a good understanding of the risks they face

when putting up their money to Fund the DIP Lender.

58. The DIP Lender will provide the Applicants with the financing the Applicants will need
to have available to them during these proceedings through a new credit facility (the “DIP
Facility”) to an initial maximum of $2,800,000 pursuant to a DIP Loan Agreement dated on or
about March 22, 2012 (the “DIP Loan Agreement™). The DIP Loan Agreement contemplate
increases to the DIP Facility by subsequent amendment, so long as the DIP Charge (as defined
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below) is increased commensurately. A copy of the form of the DIP Loan Agreement is attached

and marked as Exhibit “T”,

59, As provided in the DIP Loan Agreement, the DIP Facility is conditional on the
Applicants obtaining, as part of the initlal Order sought in these proceedings (the “Inmitial
Order”) a charge in favour of the DIP Lender (the “DIP Charge”) over all of the Applicants’
assets, ranking first in priority to any existing security other than: (a) employee and other super-
priority claims; (b) the administration charge in the amount of $500,000 being sought as part of
the Initial Order (the “Administration Charge”); and (c) any valid, enforceable and perfected

security interests/liens existing as at date of the Initial Order (the “Existing Secured Claims™).

60. The Applicants believe that the terms of the DIP Facility are favourable to them having
regard to the circumstances and that the amount of the DIP Facility is necessary and reasonable
in the circumstances to ensure that the Applicants have a prudent and responsible level of
liquidity so that they can meet post-filing obligations as they become due for the period of the
initial stay and beyond. The Applicants will not be able to continue their operations or initiate

any restructuring or going-concern sale efforts without access to the DIP Facility.

IX. DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ CHARGE

61. Myself and Kym Anthony are the directors of PCAS and myself, Jim Gay, Bonnie Lewis

and Sunny Lalli are the directors of Touchpoint (collectively, the “Directors™).

62.  The Directors, as a condition of their continued involvement with the Applicants, have
indicated that their respective involvement is conditional upon the granting of an order under the
CCAA which grants a charge on the Applicants’ property in the maximum amount of
$1,5000,000 (the “Directors’ Charge”), approximately equal to three weeks wages plus accrued
vacation pay, as security for the Applicants’ indemnification for possible liabilities which may be
incurred by such Directors and officers, which would rank fourth in priority behind the
Administration Charge (as defined in the Order in connection with these proceedings), the

Existing Secured Claims and the DIP Charge.

63. The Directors’ Charge is required in order to provide a level of protection to the Directors

and the officers of the Applicants with respect to the possible liabilities imposed on individuals
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in their capacity as directors or officers of a corporation. 1 believe that the request of the
Directors and officers to receive adequate protection in the form of the Directors’ Charge is fair
and reasonable and advances the integral need of the Applicants to have a fully functional,

experienced and qualified board of directors and capable officers.
X. = CONCLUSION

64.  Management believes that the Applicants’ business cannot continue to operate with its
current funding and that, in order to maximize recovery to stakeholders, immediate DIP funding

and restructuring is required.

65.  For the reasons previously given, the Applicants have concluded that the best available
method of realizing upon the Applicants’ inventory and maximizing recovery for stakeholders is
through the restructuring process outlined in this Affidavit and under the protection of the
CCAA.

66.  Itisin the best interests of all stakeholders of the Applicants for this Honourable Court fo
grant the relief sought by the Applicants. Tt will allow the Applicants, with the support of the
DIP Lender, to restructure the business, which should add value for all stakeholders. 1 believe
this is preferable to the Applicants’ assets becoming subject to bankruptcy or receivership

proceedings.

67.  This Affidavit is sworn in support of the relief requested by the Applicants and for no

other or improper purposes.

SWORN BEFORE ME at the City of
Oakuville, in the Province of Ontario,
this 22" day of March, 2012

)
)
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A commissioner of oaths, etc. DONALD WAUGH

s

2t~



TAB A



Attached is Exhibit “A” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22" day of March, 2012
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Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc
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. PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC.

:j Status
i Active

. 2880 Brighton Road, Unit 2
. Oakville ON L6H 553
Canada

Active CBCA corporations are required to update this information within 15 days of any change.

Il‘llmum “
L2 11

. Directors

. stain addresses of

Active CBCA corporations are required to.update this information within 15 days of any change.
. Anniversary Date (MM-DD) Date of Last Annual Meeting
: 03-03 2011-05-27
Annual Filing Period (MM-DD) Type of Corporation
. 03-03 to 05-02 Non-distributing corporation with more than 50 shareholders

| Status of Annual Filings
© 2012 - Due to be filed

: 2011 - Filed

. 2010 - Filed

Corporate .
Corporate Name History R
© 2006-03-03 to 2007-02-16 PCAS PHYSICIAN CLINIC AUTOMATION SERVICES INC.
2007-02-16 to Present PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC.

https:/Awww.ic.ge.ca/...nsCanada/fdrlCrpDtls html?corpId=6531130&V_TOKEN=1332155979828&crpNm=PCAS &crpNmbr=&bsNmbr=[19/03/2012 7:21:46 AM]
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Certificates Issued and Filings .
Certificate of Incorporation
& 2006-03-03

Certificate of Amendment
: 2007-02-16 Amendment details: Corporate name

Certificate of Amendment *
© 2008-08-05 Amendment details: Other

Certificate of Amendment *
5 2009-07-28 Amendment details: Number of directors

Certificate of Amendment *
: 2011-06-24 Amendment details: Other

fter.2010-03-20. Some cert|f|ca'
_..__nformatlon

* Amendment details’
prior-to 2000 may: ric

Date Modified: 2012-02-14 Al Terms an

https://warw.ic.ge.ca/.. nsCanada/fdriCrpDtls himl?corpld=6531130&V_TOKEN=1332155979828&crpNm=PCAS &crpNmbi=&bsNmbr=[19/03/2012 7:21.46 AM]
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Attached is Exhibit “B” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22° day of March, 2012

?U Al Q,Q)r Sm Ay

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, ete




Request |D: 014073815 Province of Ontario Date Report Produced: 2012/03/19

Transaction |D: 471297563 Ministry of Government Services Time Report Produced: 08:03:18
Category |D: UN/E Page: 1

CORPORATION PROFILE REPORT

Ontario Corp Number Corporation Name Incorporaticn Date

2163279 2163279 ONTARIO INC. 2008/02/12

Corporatlon Type

ONTARIO BUSINESS CORP,

Corporation Status

ACTIVE

Jurisdiction

ONTARIO

Former Jurisdiction

NOT APPLICABLE

Registered Office Address Date Amalgamated Amalgamation Ind.
LORETO GRIMALDI NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE
2880 BRIGHTON ROAD

New Amal. Number Netice Date
Suite # UNIT 2
OAKVILLE NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE
ONTARIO
CANADA L6H 553 Letter Date
Maliling Address NOT APPLICABLE
LORETO GRIMALDI Revival Date Continuation Date
2880 BRIGHTON ROAD

NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE

Suite # UNIT 2
OAKVILLE Transferred Out Date Cancel/inactive Date
ONTARIO

CANADA LBH 553

Actlvity Classification
NOT AVAILABLE

Number of Directors
Mirimum Maximum

00001 00010

NOT APPLICABLE

EP Licence Eff.Date
NOT APPLICABLE

Date Commenced
in Ontario

NOT APPLICABLE

NOT APPLICABLE

B Licence Term.Date
NOT APPLICABLE

Date Ceased
in Ontario

NOT APPLICABLE




Request 1D: 014073815 Province of Ontario

Transaction |D: 47129753 Ministry of Government Services

Category ID; Page:

CORPORATION PROFILE REPORT

Ontaric Corp Number Corporation Name

2183279 2163279 ONTARIO INC.
Corporate Name History Hfective Date

2163279 ONTARIO INC, 2011/08/11
TOUCHPOINT PHARMACY INC. 2011/06/13

DIRECT CARE PHARMACY INC. 2009/07/31

PCAS NEWCO PHARMACY INC, 2008/02/12
Current Business Name(s) Exist: YES

Expired Business Name(s) Exist: NQ

Date Report Produced:
Time Report Produced:
UN/E

2012/03/19
08:03:18
pa



Request iD: 014073815
Transaction ID: 47129753
Category iD: UN/E

Province of Ontario
Ministry of Government Services
Page:

CORPORATION PROFILE REPORT

Ontaric Corp Number

2163279

Administrator:
Name (Individual / Corporation)

JHM
GAY

Date Began
2011/05/14
Designation

DIRECTOR

Administrator:
Name (Individual / Corporation)

SANDEEP
LALLI

Date Began
2011/05/13
Designation

DIRECTOR

Corporation Name

2163279 ONTARIO INC.

Address

20 VALLEY TRAH.

EAST GWILLIMBURY

ONTARIO

CANADA L9N OHB
First Director

NOT APPLICABLE

Officer Type Resident Canadian

Y
Address

138 PEFFERLAW CIRCLE
BRAMPTON
ONTARIO
CANADA LB6Y 0OL2

First Director

NOT APPLICABLE
Officer Type Resident Canadian

Y

Date Report Produced:
Time Report Produced:

2012/03/19
08:03:18
3



Request ID; 014073815 Province of Ontario Date Report Produced:  2012/03/19
Transaction 1D: 47129753 Ministry of Government Services Time Report Produced: 08:03:18
Category 10: UN/E Page: 4

CORPORATION PROFILE REPORT

Ontario Corp Number Corporation Name

2183279 2163279 ONTARIO INC.

Administrator:

Name (Individual / Corporation) Address
BONNIE
5982 BELL HARBOUR DR.
LEWIS
MISSISSAUGA
ONTARIO
CANADA L5M 5K5
Date Began First Director
2011/05/13 NOT APPLICABLE
Designation Officer Type Resident Canadian
DIRECTOR Y

Administrator:

Name (Individual / Corporation) Address
PETER

1226 OLD POST DR.
SAUNDERS

OAKVILLE

ONTARIO

CANADA L6M 1A8
Date Began First Director
2011/06/13 NOT APPLICABLE
Designation Officer Type Resident Canadian

OFFICER PRESIDENT



Request iD: 014073815
Transaction ID; 47129753
Category |D: UN/E

Province of Ontaric

Date Report Produced:
Ministry of Government Services Time Report Produced:

Page:

CORPORATION PROFILE REPORT

Ontario Corp Number

2163279

Administrator:
Name (Individual / Corporation)

DANA
TUNKS

Date Began
2011/06/13
Designation

OFFICER

Administrator:
Name (Individual / Corporaticn)

DONALD
WAUGH

Date Began
2012/03/06
Designation

DIRECTOR

First Director
NOT APPLICABLE
Officer Type
TREASURER

First Director
NOT APPLICABLE
Offlcer Type

Corporation Name

2163279 ONTARIO INC.

Address

1263 DEVON RD.

OAKVILLE
ONTARIO
CANADA L&J 2L7

Resident Canadian

Address

252 ALSCOT CRES.

OAKVILLE
ONTARIO
CANADA L6J 4R4

Resident Canadian
Y

2012/03/19
08:03:18
5



Request ID: 014073815 Province of Ontario Date Report Produced:
Transaction 1D: 47129753 Ministry of Government Services Time Report Producad:
Category |D: UN/E Page:

CORPORATION PROFILE REPORT

Ontario Corp Number Corporation Name

2163279 2163279 ONTARIO INC.

Administrator:

Name (individual / Corporation) Address
DONALD
252 ALSCOT CRES.
WAUGH
OAKVILLE
ONTARIO
CANADA 16J 4R4
Date Began First Director
2012/03/06 NOT APPLICABLE
Designation Officer Type Resident Canadian

OFFICER CHAIRMAN

2012/03/19
08:03:18
6




Request |D: 014073815 Province of Ontario Date Report Produced: 2012/03/19
Transaction |D: 47129753 Ministry of Government Services Time Report Produced: 08:03:18

Category |D: UN/E Page: 7

CORPORATION PROFILE REPORT

Ontario Corp Number Corporation Name

2163279 2163279 ONTARIO INC.

Last Document Recorded
Act/Code Description Form Date

CIA CHANGE NOTICE 1 2012/03/13 (ELECTRONIC FILING)

THIS REPORT SETS QUT THE MOST RECENT INFORMATION FILED BY THE CORPORATION ON OR AFTER.J
N THE ONTARIO BUSINESS INFORMATION SYSTEM AS AT THE DATE AND TIME OF PRINTING. Al
CURRENT DIRECTORS OR OFFICERS ARE INCLUDED IN THE LiST OF ADMINISTRATORS.

ADDITIONAL HISTORICAL INFORMATICN MAY EXIST ON MICROFICHE.

2 AND RECORDED
WHO ARE RECORDED AS

The issuance of this report in electronic form is authorized by the Ministry of Government Services.
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Attached is Exhibit “C” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012

%}w@,% SCD&{\:

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc
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TAB D



Attached is Exhibit “D” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22”9 day of March, 2012

:PU i’bw}\/ g:w\\

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, ete




Flez .

THIS SHAREHOLDERS AGREEMENT is made effective January 31, 2008

AMONG:
MIMA CARUANA, of the City of Woodbridge, in the Province of Ontario,
JIM GAY, of the City of Newmarket, in the Province of Ontario and
SARAH YOUSSEF, of the City of Toronte, in the Province of Ontario,
each a “Pharmacist” and collectively called the “Pharmacists™ and specifically
called the “Founding Pharamcists”
-and -
PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC., a corporation
incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario, called
GGPCAS!"
- and -
"PCAS NewCo Pharmacy”, a corporation incorporated under the laws of the
Province of Ontario, called
“Pharmacy”
RECITALS:
A, Pharmacy has applied to be registered as, and upon registration shall operate, a pharmacy

in accordance with the Drugs and Pharmacies Regulation Act (Ontario) (the “Pharmacy
Legislation™),

B. Pursuant to the Pharmacy Legislation, the majority of the directors and the majority of
the legal and beneficial owners of all the issued shares in the Aufhiorized Capital of a pharmacy
corporation must be pharmacists licensed by the Ontario College of Pharmacists (the “College™).

C. Pharmacy has been incorporated for the purpose of providing pharmacy services
operating under a business partnership with PCAS (the “Pharmacy Business™), and PCAS has
agreed to invest capital in Pharmacy and to provide it with the benefits of its management
expertise and experience in the pharmaceutical industry.

D.  The Pharmacists are each a pharmacist licensed by the College and an employee of PCAS
and have agreed to participate in Pharmacy in order to provide pharmacist services to Pharmacy
and, in order to ensure compliance by Pharmacy with the provisions of the Pharmacy
Legislation, the Pharmacists are collectively:
L. the registered and beneficial owners of the majority of the issued shares in the
Authorized Capital of Pharmacy; and

2. the majority of the directors of Pharmacy.

174196351



E. PCAS has agreed to make the services of the Pharmacists available to Pharmacy on a
full-time basis.

F. Pursuant to this Agreement, Sarah Youssef is the manager designated by Pharmacy and

the Pharmacists are the owners of the Pharmacy Business, pursuant to and in accordance with the
Pharmacy Legislation.

G. Recognizing that PCAS and its Affiliates will provide the capital required in order to
create, operate and develop the Pharmacy Business, the Parties intend to operate the Pharmacy
Business so as to minimize for financial purposes the goodwill of the Pharmacy Business, and its
profits and, subject to this Agreement, will cause the Pharmacy, the Pharmacists and PCAS to
enter into such agreements between the Parties and to take or cause to be taken such actions as
may be necessary ot advisable to fulfill such intention.

H. It is contemplated that, from and after the date of this Agreement, and unless there are
changes made in accordance with this Agreement in the composition or ownership of the Shares
(as defined below), there shall be issued and outstanding that number of Shares, which shall be
held by the Pharmacists and PCAS, as set out in Schedule B1,

THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES THAT, in consideration of the mutual covenants and

agreements provided in this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which is acknowledged by each Party, the Parties agree as follows:

1. INTERPRETATION

1.1 Defined Terms. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement have the meanings given in
Schedule A.

1.2 Recitals. The Parties represent and warrant to each other that the Recitals are true and
correct.

1.3 Schedules. The following schedules (the “Schedules”) are attached to and form an
integral part of this Agreement:

Schedule A Definitions

Schedule B1 Number and Owners of Shares

Schedule B2 Agreement of PCAS regarding Pharmacists
Schedule C  General Provisions

Schedule '  Particulars for Notices

Schedule E  Restrictive Covenant

1.4 Deemed Amendment. If necessary in order to preserve the original scope and intent of
~ this Agreement, at any time after a reorganization or recapitalization of Pharmacy or its
amalgamation into or with another corporation or after re-division, consoclidation,
reclassification, subdivision or other change of any Securities, this Agreement shall,
without further act or formality, be deemed to be amended to apply to any new class,

series or number of Securities into which any Shares may be changed.

[Type text]



31

3.2

3.3

C34

TERM

Term Defined. This Agreement shall commence on January 31, 2008 and shall
terminate, and the provisions of this Agreement shall be of no further force or effect
whatsoever, upon the completion of:

(a) a Distribution to the Public; or
(b)  a Transaction,

(the “Term™),

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF PHARMACY

Directors. Pharmacy shall have no more than three (3) directors at all times during the
Term, a majority of whom must be pharmacists licensed by and in good standing with the
College, the remaining seats on the board (the “PCAS Director(s)"”) shall be appointed by

PCAS at its sole direction and PCAS shall have the right to remove the PCAS
Director(s).

The initial directors shall be;

a) Jim Gay, Pharmacist Director and Chairman of the Board

b) Sarah Youssef, Pharmacist Director and Designated Manager Pharmacist
¢) Mima Caruana, Pharmacist Director and Pharmacist

d) Peter Suma, PCAS Director and COO of PCAS

All Directors shall serve while they are actively employed or retainer by PCAS and/or the

Pharmacy should a Director cease to be employed by PCAS and/or the Pharmacy said
Director shall cease to be & Director of the Pharmacy.

The PCAS Director shall have two votes on the board, all other Directors one vote.
Pharmacist Directors shall receive 50,000 PCAS Class A Common Shares per year as
compensation for sitting on the board and a meeting fee of $400.00 per scheduled formal
meeting of the Board of Directors of Pharmacy.

Pharmacy Business. Pharmacy shall not carry on any business other than the Pharmacy
Business at any time during the Term.

Designated Manager. Pharmacy designates Sarah Youssef, as the manager of the

Pharmacy Business for purposes of and in accordance with the Pharmacy Legislation (the
“Designated Manager™),

Voting and.Related Matters. The Parties shall do or cause to be done all things and . .

acts, including the execution of documents and resolutions and the holding of meetings,
to ensure that at all times during the Term the officers of Pharmacy shall be:

Chief Executive Officer: Peter Suma
President: Sarah Youssef

[Type text]



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4

Secretary: Mima Caruana
Treasurer; Peter Suma
Shareholder Meetings.

(a) Any two Shareholders, one of whom shall be a Pharmacist, and one of whom
shall be a PCAS Director present in person or represented by proxy constitute a
quorum for a shareholders meeting.

(b) Subject to this Agreement, all decisions of the Shareholders shall be decided by a
majority of votes cast or by such greater percentage as may be required by law.

Execution of Contracts. Subject to this Agreement, and unless otherwise authorized by
the Board, al contracts and documents binding Pharmacy shall require the signatures of
the President and any one of the Chief Executive Officer, Secretary and the Treasurer.

Status of Pharmacists. Each Pharmacist represents and warrants to and in favour of the
PCAS and Pharmacy (hat the right of the Pharmacist to practice Pharmacy in the
Province of Ontario is not subject to any condition, limitation, restriction or suspension
made by the College or any Governmental or any Regulatory Authority; and that there
are no grounds upon which the College or any Governmental or Regulatory Authority
could commence any disciplinary proceedings against the Pharmacist.

Management and Operational Decisions.

(a) The Designated Manager shall be responsible for managing and operating the
Pharmacy Business, and shall devote all of his/her Pharmacy working time to the
exercise of those responsibilities.

()  The Designated Manager shall have final authority with respect to any matter
which, pursuant to the provisions of the Pharmacy Legislation, is required to be
under the direction and control of a pharmacist licensed by the College.

(© The Chief Executive Officer of Pharmacy shall have final authority with respect
to any matter which, pursuant to the provisions of the Pharmacy Legislation, is
not required to be under the direction and control of a licensed pharmacist.

Agreements with PCAS; Taking Action.

(a) In furtherance of the intentions of the Parties expressed in Recital G, and in
reliance upon the authority provided in Section 3.8(¢), Pharmacy shall enter into
agreements (termineble on 30 days notice) with PCAS, to be executed in
accordance with Section 3.6, on such financial terms and other conditions

- approved by the officers of Pharmacy so executing such agreements,-in order fo
obtain for the Pharmacy Business:

N a licence for the use of the name “PharmaTrust™; and

[Type text]



(b)

-5—

(i1) the services of PCAS’ executive, managerial, support, administrative and
clerical personnel and the use the premises, computer and communications
systems, office equipment, supplies and other property of Strategies.

In furtherance of the intentions of the Parties expressed in Recital G, the Parties,
collectively, shall take or cause to be taken all action throughout the Term,
including the payment by Pharmacy of management bonuses to the Shareholders
from time to time and at any time, necessary or advisable in order to reduce the
grass margin and/or income of Pharmacy to zero.

3,10 Consents Required. Unless the written consent of PCAS is first obtained, but subject to

Section 3.8:

(a) The Atticles and by-laws of Pharmacy shall not be amended;

(b) There shall be no material change in the nature of the Pharmacy Business, nor
shall any action be taken which may lead to or result in such material change;

(c) Pharmacy shall not undergo any fundamental corporate change, including any
amalgamation, arrangement, continuation, re-organization, liquidation, dissolution
or winding up;

(d) Pharmacy shall not restructure, reorganize the board and/or management;

(e) Pharmacy shall not borrow meney (including, without limitation, pursuant to all
lease obligations), in any amount and whether on a secured or unsecured basis;

63 Pharmacy shall not sell, transfer, lease (as lessor), lend on security or otherwise,
mortgage, pledge, charge, hypothecate, exchange, convey, finance or refinance or
otherwise deal with or dispose of or create any lien or charge on, all or any part of
or any interest in property or assets of Pharmacy (other than the sale of inventory
in the ordinary course of business, and the disposition of surplus or obsolete
property in the ordinary course of business);

(g) Pharmacy shall not negotiate or enter contracts, agreements or instrumenis in
respect of matters out of the ordinary course of business;

(h) Pharmacy shall not pay dividends, payments or other distributions to Shareholders
or salaries, bonuses, payments or other distributions fo directors, officers and
designated management individuals;

@i} Pharmacy shall not incur or make any commifment with respect to any
expenditures in excess of $10,000;

Q) Pharmacy shall not make any loan or advance; S

(k) Pharmacy shall not commence or settie any legal, administrative or regulatory

[Type text]
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®H Pharmacy shall not approve of any payment to the Shareholders or other Affiliates
for services, supplied or sold to Pharmacy; and

(m) Pharmacy shall not redeem or purchase for cancellaticn any Shares, except as
expressly provided for in this Agreement.

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL, RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER AND LEGEND ON

SHARE CERTIFICATES

4.1

42

4.3

4.4

4.5

51

Authorized Capital. The Authorized Capital of Pharmacy presently consists of an
limited number of common shares, the numbers of which and the legal and beneficial

owners of which, and the number of Shares legally and beneficial owned by them, is set
out in Schedule B1,

No Right to Transfer. Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, no
Shareholder shall Pledge and/or Transfer his or her right, title or interest in or to any
Shares to any Person.

Legend. Every certificate representing Shares now, or at any time during the Term,
issued to any Shareholder shail have typed or otherwise written upon it a legend
substantially to the following effect:

“The shares represented by this certificate are subject to certain restrictions on the
right to pledge, transfer, sell, assign or otherwise deal with the shares represented
by this certificate, pursuant to a shareholders agreement made as of January 31,
2008 and notice of the terms and conditions of such agreement is hereby given.”

Shareholders Consent. The Shareholders expressly consent to any Transfer of Shares
made pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

Pharmacy Legislation. Notwithstanding any other provision of fhis Agreement, no
Transfer of Shares shall be made which is not in compliance with the Pharmacy

Legislation, and any Transfer of or attempt to Transfer Shares in violation of this Article
4 shall be a null and void and of no legal effect whatsoever.

PURCHASE OF PHARMACISTS’ SHARES
Call Right.

(2) Pharmacy shall have the unfettered right, exercisable by Pharmacy for any reason
whatsoever at any time on or before the expiry of the Term by delivery to any
Pharmacist of written notice (the “Call Notice™), to compel such Pharmacist to

~sell-all of the Shares held by him/her at that time to a Qualified Purchaser for - =

aggregate proceeds of sale equal to $1.00 (the “Call Right” and the “Call
Proceeds”, respectively).

()  Upon receipt of the Call Notice, the Pharmacist (or his/her legal representatives,
as applicable), shall sell the Shares held by the Pharmacist at that time, and in

[Type text]



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

.

accordance with the Call Notice, for aggregate consideration equal to the Call
Proceeds and on the terms set out in this Article 5 (the “Call Transaction™).

Exit Right.
(a) If for any reason and at any time on or before the expiry of the Term:

(i)  the Shareholders determine that Pharmacy shall surrender its licence
pursuant to the Pharmacy Legislation to operate a Pharmacy; or

(ii)  if Pharmacy ceases for any reason to hold a licence pursuant to the
Pharmacy Legislation to operate a Pharmacy,

Pharmacy shall have the unfettered right, exercisable by delivery to any or all of
the Pharmacists of written notice (the “Exit Notice”), to compel such
Pharmacist(s) to sell all of the Shares held by him/her at that time to one or more
Persons designated by Pharmacy in the Exit Notice, none of whom need be a
licensed pharmacist, (collectively, the “Designated Purchaser”) for aggregate
proceeds of sale equal to $1.00, respectively (the “Exit Right” and the “Exit
Proceeds™, respectively).

(b)  Upon receipt of the Exit Notice, the Pharmacist (or his/her legal representatives,
as applicable), shall sell the Shares held by the Pharmacist at that time, and in
accordance with the Exit Notice, for aggregate consideration egual to the Exit
Proceeds and on the terms set out in this Article 5 (the “Exit Transaction™).

Conditions. Payment of the purchase price of any Shares sold and purchased pursuant to
this Article 5 in each case, shall be made without any interest and shall be conditional
upon Pharmacy having obtained the prior written approval of holders of any indebtedness
pursuant to any Security Agreement.

Closing. The closing of a purchase and sale of Shares pursuant to this Article 5 shall take
place at the registered office of Pharmacy, commencing at 10 a.m., on the 10" Business
Day after the date of exercise of the Call Right or the Exit Right, as the case may be, or
such other date as the Parties shall agree.

Closing Deliveries. At the closing provided for in Section 5.4, the Pharmacist shall
deliver to the Qualified Purchaser or the Designated Purchaser, as the case may be:

(a) the certificates representing the appropriate number and class of Shares duly
endorsed for transfer (including any required tax waiver and declaration of
transmission received from the legal representatives of the Pharmacist, in the case

of a sale feIIowmg the death of the Pharmaczst) (the “Endorsed Certlﬁcate”)
“and

(b) the Additional Closing Documents.
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5.6

5.7

6.1

6.2

6.3

-8

No Affect on Rights and Obligations. The completion of a Transaction shall not release

the Pharmacist from any of its obligations pursuant to this Agreement, which obligations
shall remnain in full force and effect.

Appointment of Attorney.

(a) Without prejudice to any other provision of this Agreement, if any Pharmacist is
not present or represented at closing, or is present or represented but fails for any
reason whatsoever to execute and deliver the Endorsed Certificate or any of the
Additional Closing Documents, such Pharmacist irrevocably constitutes and
appoints the Chief Executive Officer of Pharmacy or his/her nominee a true and
lawful attorney-in-fact and agent for, in the name of and on behalf of the
Pharmacist to execute and deliver in the name of the Pharmacist an Endorsed
Certificate and all such Additional Closing Documents,

(b) Each Pharmacist ratifies and confirms, and agrees to ratify and confirm, all that
the attorney may lawfully do or cause to be done as agent for the Pharmacist by
virtue of the provisions of Section 5.7(a).

INDEMNITY IN FAVOUR OF THE FOUNDING PHARMACISTS

Indemmnity. PCAS, PCAS’ insurance providers, Pharmacy and Pharmacy’s insurance
providers and shall jointly and severally indemnify and save harmless each Pharmacist
and his/her heirs and legal personal representatives from and against all costs, charges
and expenses, including an amount paid to settle any action or to satisfy a judgment
reasonably incurred by the Pharmacist in respect of any civil, criminal, or administrative
proceeding to which the Pharmacist is involved or joined by reason of the Pharmacist
being or having been a director and officer of Pharmacy, provided the Pharmacist’s
conduct satisfies the standards provided in sections 136(1)(a) and (b) of the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario).

No Adverse Presumption. For the purposes of Section 6.1, the termination of any civil,
criminal, administrative or other proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction or
similar or other result will not of itself create a presumption either that the Pharmacist(s}
did not act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of Pharmacy or
that, in the case of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding that is enforced by a

monetary penalty, the Pharmacist(s) did not have reasonable grounds for believing that
his/her conduct was lawful.

Legal Action by Pharmacy. In respect of an action by or on behalf of Pharmacy or a
body corporate to procure a judgment in its favour, to which the Pharmacist(s) is/are
made a party by reason of such Pharmacist’s association with Pharmacy, Pharmacy will

‘make applicationfor -approval of ‘the appropriate court, as defined in the Business

Corporations Act (Ontario), to fulfil its obligations under this Agreement to indemnify
such Pharmacist and his/her heirs and legal representatives, against, and to advance
moneys in respect of, all costs, charges and expenses reasonably incurred by such
Pharmacist in connection with such action if such Pharmacist fulfils the conditions set out
in Sections 6.1 and 6.2.
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6.4

7.1

—_9_

Payment of Costs. Pharmacy will pay all expenses covered by this Agreement and
incurred by the Pharmacists, the Pharmacists’ heirs and legal representatives, in
defending any civil, criminal or administrative proceeding to which any Pharmacist or the
Pharmacists’ heirs and legal representatives, are made a party by reason of the
Pharmacists® association with Pharmacy, in advance of the final disposition of such
action or proceeding,.

RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

Restrictive Covenants. Subject to Section 7.2, each Pharmacist covenants and agrees
for the benefit of Pharmacy, PCAS and any Qualified Purchaser or any or them
(individually and collectively, the “PCAS Related Group”) that during the Term and for
two (2) years thereafter the Pharmacist shall not, either alone or in partnership or in
concert with, or on behalf of, any Person, whether as a vendor, partner, agent, employer,
employee, consultant, lender, shareholder, joint venturer, investor, or as a director of any
corporation or association, or in any other manner or capacity whatsoever, directly or
indirectly:

(@) (Non-Compete) carry on, engage in, assist in, have any equity or other interest in,
provide any financial assistance or consulting or advisory services to, permit his
name or any part thereof to be used or employed by, on or in connection with, or
have any active or passive interest in, any business that is directly competitive
with the Pharmacy Business or the business of PCAS, by virfue of providing
home delivery pharmacy coordinated with a physician dispensing operation, at
any time during the Term, or is gimilar in concept, design, format or otherwise to
the Pharmacy Business or the business of PCAS, anywhere within the Geographic
Area, Naote that this Non-Compete clause shall not restrict in any way the
Pharmacists right to seek employment in community pharmacy or other
pharmacist work during or after the Term of this Agreement, this Non-Compete is
only attempting to restrict the ability of the Pharmacist to take the specific
information and training from working at the Pharmacy and/or PCAS to a
company attempting to directly compete with PCAS and the Pharamey’s
innovative business model(s);

(b}  solicit or contact any Person that was or is a customer, client, vendor, franchisee
or supplier (or had been approached or specifically targeted to become a
customer, client, vendor, franchisee or supplier) of the Pharmacy Business, for
any business purpose that is directly competitive with the Pharmacy Business
and/or the business of PCAS at any time during the Term;

{c) induce or cause, or assist any Person to induce or cause, any customer, client,
vendor, franchisee or supplier of any member of the Pharmacy Business to change

their relationship or association with any of the members of the Pharmacy =~

. Business and/or PCAS in a way that adversely affects the interests (whether
financial or otherwise) of PCAS or any of its Affiliates; or

(d)  employ, engage, offer employment or engagement to or solicit the employment or
engagement of or otherwise entice away from the employment or engagement in
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or with the Pharmacy Business and/or PCAS or assist any Person in the
commnission of any such activities, any individual who is employed or engaged by
or in the Pharmacy Business and/or PCAS, whether or not such individual would
commit any breach of her contract or terms of employment or engagement by
leaving the employ or the engagement with or in the Pharmacy Business and.

Exceptions. Section 7.1 shall not be construed to prohibit any Pharmacist from owning
less than two percent (2%) of any class of securities of any competitor of the Pharmacy
Business which is publicly traded on a securities exchange, provided that such
Pharmacist does not teke part in the management of, or undertake any of the activities
described in Section 7.1(a) for, such competitor.

Non-Disparagement. No Pharmacist shall not engage in any pattern of conduect that
involves the making or publishing of written or oral statements or remarks (including the
repetition or distribution of derogatory rumours, allegations, negative reports or
comments) which are disparaging, deleterious or damaging to the integrity or reputation
of the Pharmacy Business, any of PCAS, any of its Affiliates, or the management of any
such entity.

Non-Disclosure. No Pharmacist shall at any time now or in the future for any purpese or
in any manner whatsoever, directly or indirectly, use, disclose, divulge, furnish, transfer,
sell, release or otherwise deal with or make available to any Person any Confidential
Information except as may be strictly required in connection with the performance of the
Pharmacist’s duties and responsibilities with and to the Pharmacy Business and/or the
business partnership or working of PCAS,

Covenants Reasonable. Each Pharmacist acknowledges and agrees that:

(a) The covenants in this Agreement are reasonable in the circumstances and are
valid and necessary to protect the legitimate business interests of Pharmacy and/or
PCAS and its Affiliates;

(b) The breach by any Pharmacist of any of the provisions of this Agreement would
cause serious and irreparable harm to Pharmacy and/or PCAS and its Affiliates
(for each of which PCAS acts as agent) which could not adequately be
compensated for in damages, and PCAS and its Affiliates shall have the right, in
addition to any other rights and remedies available to each of them at law or in
equity, to enforce their respective rights and the Pharmacists’ obligations under
this Agreement not only by an action or actions for damages, but also by an action
or actions for specific performance or an interim, interlocutory or permanent
injunction without the necessity of an undertaking as to damages by PCAS and its
Affiliates in order to enforce or prevent amy violations (whether anticipatory,

- continuing -or future) -of -the provisions of this Apreement. = Each Pharmacist
agrees to waive any defences he/she may have to any such actions taken by PCAS
and its Affiliates and agrees to consent to an order for an injunction or specific
performance sought by any such entity;

() In addition to any other rights and remedies available to PCAS and its Affiliates at
law or in equity, PCAS and its Affiliates shall have the right and remedy to
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trequire any or all of the Pharmacists to account for and pay over to PCAS and its
Affiliates all compensation, profits, monies, accruals, increments or other benefits
(collectively, the “Benefits™) derived or received as a result of any transactions
constituting a breach of any of the covenants contained herein, and the
Pharmacist(s) shall account for and immediately pay over such Benefits to PCAS
and its Affiliates;

(d)  The duration of the Term shall be extended for the period which equals the period
during which any Pharmacist is in breach of any of the provisions of this

Agreement plus the length of any court proceedings necessary to stop such
violation;

(e) The principles of law to be applied to the interpretation of this Agreement are
those that apply to restrictive covenants given by a seller on the sale of a business;
and

D FEach Pharmacist’s expertise and capabilities are such that his/her obligations
under this Agreement (and the enforcement thereof by injunction or otherwise)
will not prevent his/her from earning a hivelthood.

Affiliates. This Agreement and all of its provisions shall, in addition to being for the
benefit of PCAS, be for the benefit of each present and future Affiliate of PCAS.

Indemmification by Pharmacists. Each Pharmacist indemnifies and saves PCAS and its
Affiliates, and each of such entity’s shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents
and representatives (individually, an “Indemnified Party”, for each of which PCAS acts
as agent) harmless from and against ail Claims and Losses suffered by, imposed upon or
asserted against the Indemnified Party as a result of any violation, contravention or
breach of this Restrictive Covenant by such Pharmacist.

PCAS REPRESENTATIVE

Appointment of PCAS Representative. PCAS appoints, effective immediately, Peter
Suma, or his nominee, to act as PCAS’ representative (the “PCAS Representative™),
and by PCAS’ execution of this Agreement appoints the PCAS Representative as PCAS’
true and lawful attorney, in PCAS’ name, place and stead to act on PCAS’ behalf as
contemplated by the terms of this Agreement.

Effect of Power of Attorney. With the power of attorney so granted by PCAS to the
PCAS Representative, PCAS has authorized the PCAS Representative to take any further
action which the PCAS Representative shall consider necessary or desirable in
connection with the foregoing, thereby piving the PCAS Representative full power and

~authority to' do and perform sach and every act and thing whatsoever requisite and -

necessary to be done in and about the foregoing, and has ratified and confirmed that the
PCAS Representative shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.
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9. INDEPENDENT LEGAL ADVICE

9.1  Confirmation. Each Pharmacist confirms that he/she has obtained independent legal
advice in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated by this
Apgreement.

[Sigratures follow on next page.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been exccuted by the Parties.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED )
in the presence of )

Witness % Mima Caruana
SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED )
in the presence of )
)

) -
Witness ) an Gay

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED )
in the presence of )
)
) 207
Witness ) Sarah Youssef
PCAS PATIENT CARE
AUTOMATION 5 S INC.
Per:

&Mter Suma

Title; COO & President

T have authority to bind the corporation,

PCAS NewCo Pharmacy Inc.

- Per:

he: Pefer Suma
Titte: CEOQ
I have authority to bind the corporation,
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SCHEDULE A
Definitions

In this Agreement:

“Additional Closing Documents” means any agreements, certificates, transfers,
assignments, instruments, releases, resolutions and other documents deemed necessary or
advisable by PCAS:

(a) vesting or confirm valid title to the Shares in a Qualified Purchaser, and

(b) to complete any Transaction,

including the Restrictive Covenant.

“Affiliate” has the meaning given in section 1.1 of the Business Corporations Act
{Ontario). '

“Agreement” means this shareholders agreement, including the Schedules, as amended,
revised, replaced, supplemented or restated from fime to time in accordance with the
provisions of this shareholders agreement.

% Authorized Capital” means the authorized capital of Pharmacy set out in its Articles,
as such authorized capital may be amended from time to time during the Term by
amended Articles.

«Articles” has the same meaning as “articles” as defined in the Business Corporations
Act (Ontario).

“Business Day” means any day other than a day which is a Saturday, a Sunday or a
statutory or civic holiday in the Province of Ontario.

“Call Notice” has the meaning given in Section 5.1.
«Call Proceeds” has the meaning given in Section 5.1.
“Call Right” has the meaning given in Section 5.1.

«Call Transaction” has the meaning given in Section 53.1.

“Cause”, with respect to any Pharmacist, shall be deemed to include, in addition to the
meaning given by applicable law (including any applicable jurisprudence):

(@) awilful failure or refusal by the Pharmacist to perform his/her properly dssigned

duties or services for Pharmacy,

(b} the conviction of the Pharmacist for a criminal act or other offence denoting
moral turpitude pursuant to the provisions of the Criminal Code of Canada or any
other criminal or penal statute of any applicable jurisdiction whatsoever;
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{c) a breach by the Pharmacist of, or failure or refusal by the Pharmacist to perform,
in any materia! respect any of his/her obligations under the respective Restrictive
Covenant, or any employment agreement with Pharmacy to which the Pharmacist
is or may during the Term become a party;

(@)  a failure or refusal by the Pharmacist to perform his/her duties to Pharmacy in a
loyal manner and with a view to promoting the best interests of Pharmacy or any
Subsidiary of Pharmacy;

{e) gross negligence, wilful misconduct or fraud by the Pharmacist;

(f) failure or refusal by the Pharmacist to obey the reasonable policies of Pharmacy;

(g suspension or revocation for any reason by the College of the Pharmacist’s license
to practice pharmacy; or

(h) failure by the Pharmacist to manage and operate the Pharmacy Business in
compliance with applicable Law.

“Claims” means claims, demands, causes of actions, actions or suits whether at law or
equity or whether in contract, negligence, strict liability or tort or atherwise and any

regulatory proceedings instituted by any third party for which the liability or the costs or
expernses are Losses;

“collectively” means, in relation to a group of Persons or things, any and all of those
Persons or things.

“College” has the meaning attributed to it in Recital A.

“Confidential Information” means and includes, collectively, the Records and all
material and information (whether oral or written, data, compilations, analyses,
documentation, or in any other form) not included in the Records, and in each case, every
part thereof and all copies thereof; provided, however, that the foregoing does not extend
to or include any of the foregoing that is or becomes a matter of public knowledge
otherwise than as a result of a breach of this Agreement by a Pharmacist;

“Default Call Right” has the meaning given in Section 6.5.
“Designated Manager” has the meaning given in Section 3.3,
“Designated Purchaser” has the meaning given in Section 5.2.

«Distribution to ¢the Publie” shall mean an initial public offering of the Shares or of any

..other class of Shares comprised in the Authorized Capital. . ... .. ... ... ... ... .

«“Endorsed Certificate” has the meaning given in Section 3.3.
“Exit Notice” has the meaning given in Section 5.2.

“Exit Proceeds” has the meaning given in Section 5.2.
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“Records” means and includes, collectively, all data, information and records of or
relating to the Pharmacy Business, whether in written form or stored on computer-related
media including, without limitation, all originals, copies (including, without limitation,
handwritten copies) and extracts, compilations and analyses of all:

(a) operating information and data, financial or otherwise including, without
limitation, books, business reports, plans and projections, books of account,
records of assets, liabilities, past sales and purchases, invoices, inventory data and
costing reports, accounts receivable data, credit information, information of or
relating to the Pharmacy Business, its profit margins, past, current or prospective
employees, customers and suppliers (including their names, addresses and
preferences), customer and supplier relationships, call lists, customer lists,
customer profits, proposals, and other confidential customer informatien, billing
practices, financial structure and information, employees, employee relationships,
employee lists and data, markets or marketing plans, information of or relating to
potential business ventures and other activities of all kinds, and all other records,
documents, files and other information related to any or all of the foregoing;

() formulae, designs, codes, licences, computer software used or developed by the
Pharmacy Business, technical information, research and development data,
concepts, business or operating techniques, methods and procedures, inventions,
discoveries and methods of processing and production;

(c) information of or relating to any product, device, equipment or machinery as used
or being developed for use by the Pharmacy Business;

(d) files, manuals, databases and records, correspondence, documents and contracts;
and

(e) lists of, files relating to, and agreements with, customers, suppliers, service
contractors and employees of the Pharmacy Business,

“Related person” has the meaning given in the Jncome Tax Act (Canada).

“Restrictive Covenant” means the Restrictive Covenant in the form attached as
Schedule E.

“Schedules” has the meaning attributed to it in Section 1.3.
“Section” means a section of this Agreement.

“Security Agreement” means any security agreement, as defined in the Personal
~Property Security Act (Ontario) entered into between Pharmacy or any of its Affiliates

and any secured party, a8 deéfinéd in such legislation, dealing ‘at arm’s length with

Pharmacy and any such Affiliate, as any such security agreement may be amended,
supplemented or replaced from time to time.

“Shares” means shares in the Authorized Capital which are issued and outstanding from
time to time during the Term, which classes and numbers of shares are listed in Schedule
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“Exit Right” has the meaning given in Section 3.2,
“Exit Transaction’ has the meaning given in Section 5.2.
“Geographic Area” means Canada,

“Governmental or Regulatory Authority” means any court, tribunal, arbitrator, agency,
commission, official, body or other governmental or regulatory authority of Canada, of
any foreign country, or of any provinee, territory, county, city or other political

subdivision thereof.

“including” or “includes” means “including (or includes) without limitation”.
“Indemnified Party"” has the meaning given in Section 7.7.

“Losses” means any claim, loss, liability, deficiency, damage, amount paid in settlement,
expense or cost {including reasonable costs of investigation, defence and legal fees and

EXPEInses).

“Law” means any civil or common law, statute (including the Pharmacy Legislation),
regulation, treaty, convention regulation, directive, decision, bylaw, ordinance, circular,
code, order, notice, demand, decree, rule, injunction, resolution, jadgment or
recommendation of any Governmental or Regulatory Authority.

“Parties” means the Pharmacists, PCAS and Pharmacy, and “Party” means any one of
them.

“PCAS’ Representative” has the meaning given in Section 8.1

“Person” any individual, corporation (including any non-profit corporation), general or
limited partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, estate, trust, association,
organization, labour union, unincorporated organization or other entity or Governmental
or Regulatory Authority.

“Pharmacy Business” means the pharmacy business carried on by Pharmacy, which
Pharmacy is licensed to operate pursuant to the Pharmacy Legislation and which provides
pharmacy services.

“Pharmacy Legislation” has the meaning attributed to it in Recital A.

«“Qualified Purchaser” means an individual or corporation designated by PCAS and any
Related person of PCAS who is:

- (a) ... apharmacist licensed by and in good standing with the College; or

() a corporation permitted to own or operate a Pharmacy pursuant to sections 142
and 144 of the Pharmacy Legislation.

“Recitals” means the recitals to this Agreement.
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Bl, together with the names of the persons who are the current legal and beneficial
owners, respectively, of those classes and numbers of shares.

“Shareholders” means, collectively, PCAS and the Pharmacist and any transferees or
assignees of Shares from any of them whe, in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement, shall at any time become holders of Shares and become bound by the
pravisions of this Agreement, and “Shareholder” means any one of them.

“Subsidiary” shall have the meaning given in the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).
“Term” has the meaning given in Section 2.

“Terminal Event” means, in relation to any Pharmacist, that the Pharmacist has died or
ceased to be an employee of Pharmacy because of disability.

“Transaction” means a Call Transaction and an Exit Transaction.

«Transfer” means, as to any Shares, to sell, or in any other way transfer, assign, pledge,
distribute, encumber or otherwise dispose of such Shares (including the foreclosure or
other acquisition by any lender with respect to Shares pledged to such lender by a
Shareholder), sither voluntarily or involuntarily and with or without consideration.
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SCHEDULE Bl
Number and Class of Shares Shareholder
49 Common PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
17 Common Mima Caruana
17 Common Jim Gay
17 Common Sarah Youssef
100 Common (Total Issuable)

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
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SCHEDULE B2
Agreement of PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc. regarding Pharmacists

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc., agrees to make the
services of its employees, Mima Caruana, Jim Gay and Sarah Youssef, each a member in good
standing of the Ontario College of Pharmacists, available to Pharmacy on an exclusive, full-time
basis until such time as Pharmacy notifies PCAS that the services of Mima Caruana, Jim Gay
and Sarah Youssef are no longer required.

DATED with effect as of January 31, 2008.

PCAS PATIENT £4d

Per;

Title: ¥. Sv gl

T have avthority to bind the corporation.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.)
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SCHEDULE C

General Contract Provisions

(&) Any notice (including a Call Notice or an Exit Notice), document or thing
required or permitied to be given or delivered under this Agreement (a “Notice”)
shall be deemed to be properly given or delivered to a Party if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

delivered in person to the address of the Party set out in Schedule D and

acknowledged by written receipt signed by the person receiving such
notice;

faxed to the Party receiving such notice at its number set out in Schedule
D;or

sent by prepaid registered letter or courier delivered addressed to the Party
receiving such notice at its respective address set out in Schedule D.

(b) Any Notice given in accordance with the provisions of Section 1.12 of this
Schedule C shall be deemed to have been given and received:

®

(i)

(iii)

if delivered in person in accordance with the provisions of Section 1.1(a)
of this Schedule C, on the day of delivery in person (provided that such
day is a Business Day at the place of receipt, and that delivery occurred
prior to 5:00 p.m. (local time of the recipient} and, if it is not a Business
Day, on the next following Business Day);

if faxed in accordance with the provisions of Section L.1(b) of this
Schedule C before 5:00 pam. at the place of receipt, on the date of receipt
of the fax, provided that such day is a Business Day at the place of receipt
and, if it is not, on the next following Business Day; and

if sent by prepaid registered letter or courier delivery in accordance with
the provision of Section 1.1(c) of this Schedule C, on the date the letter is
actually received by the Party to whom the Notice is addressed,

{c) For greater certainty, a letter delivered by courier where the courier obtains a
written acknowledgement of receipt from the Party to whom the Notice is
addressed shall be considered a Notice in person in accordance with Section
1.1{d)(1) of this Schedule C rather than a Notice of a letter in accordance with
Section 1.1(d)(iii) of this Schedule C.

(d)  Any Party may from time to time by notice in writing given in accordance with
the provisions of this Section 1.1 of this Schedule C change its address for
purposes of this Section 1.1 of this Schedule C.
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Sections, Headings and Index. The index, the insertion of headings, and the division of
this Agreement into Articles and Sections, are for convenience of reference only and shall
not affect the construction or interpretation of this Agreement,

Amendments. No supplement, modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be
binding unless executed in writing by the Parties,

Assignment.

(a) Neither this Agreement nor any of its provisions is assignable by any Pharmacist
without the prior written consent of PCAS, which consent may be withheld by
PCAS in its unfettered discretion, and any attempt to assign any of the rights,
benefits, duties or obligations of this Agreement without the prior written consent
of PCAS is void.

(6)  PCAS and Pharmacy and, if applicable, a Qualified Purchaser, may assign this
Agreement and any of its provisions without notice to or the consent of the
Pharmacists.

(c) Section 1.4(b) of this Schedule C is intended to confer benefits on a Qualified
Purchaser, a Person not party to this Agreement.

Gender and Number. Words importing the singular only shall include the plural and
vice versa, and words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine and
neutral genders and vice versa,

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the Province of Ontaric and the federal laws of Canada applicable
therein. The Parties attorn to the jurisdiction of the courts in the Province of Ontario, and
any litigation between the Parties arising pursuant fo or in connection with this
Agreement, or any of its provisions, shall be referred to the courts in the Province of
Ontario.

Provisions Severable. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Any provision of this Agreement held
invalid or unenforceable only in part or degree shall remain in full force and effect to the
extent not held invalid or unenforceable.

Counterparts and Electronic Delivery.

(a)  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts with the same
effect as if all Parties had signed the same original Agreement, and each such
counterpart shall be deemed io be an originally executed Agreement. S

(b) All counterparts of the Agreement taken together shall be deemed for all purposes
to constitute one originally executed Agreement, binding on the Parties,
notwithstanding that all Parties have not executed the same counterpart.
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() No Party shall be required to produce or account for more than one such
counterpart in making proof of this Agreement.

(d) A copy of this Agreement delivered by telefacsimile or other glectronic means, or
a photocopy of this Agreement, executed by a Party required to execute this
Agreement in counterpart or otherwise, shall constitute a properly executed,
delivered and binding document or counterpart of the executing Party.

Public Announcements. Except as required by law, no Party will issue a press release
or otherwise publicly disclose the existence of or any information concerning this
Agreement or any of the documents or agreements referred to in this Agreement, without

the prior written consent and approval by the other Parties of the text of such press
release or other disclosure,

Entire Agreement, This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the
Shareholders in their capacity as holders of Shares and Pharmacy pertaining to
obligations of the Shareholders in regard to Pharmacy. Except as provided in this
Agreement, there are no oral statements, representations, warranties, undertakings or
agreements between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.

Limitation on Agreement. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any
obligation on Pharmacy to teke any action or do or cause to be done anything which may
constitute a breach of or a default under any Security Agreement.

Further Assurances. The Parties shall do or cause to be done all acts and things and
shall execute and deliver or cause to be executed and delivered all such instruments and
to exercise or cause to be exercised any and all voting rights attaching to Shares held by
each of them in order that all provisions of this Agreement shall be fully and effectively
carried out, implemented and given effect to in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

Binding Nature of Agreement. This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be
binding upon the Parties and their respective heirs, legal personal representatives,
successors (including successors by way of amalgamation, rcorganization of other
fundamental change) and permitted assigns.

Time of the Essence. Time shall be of the essence of this Agreement.

Waiver. No failure or delay on the part of a Party in exercising any power or right under
this Agreement shall operate as a waiver by the Party of the power or right. No single or
partial exercise by a Party of any right or power under this Agresment shall preclude any
further or other exercise by the Party of the right or power. No waiver of any provision

 of this Agreement by a Party shall be effective unless the waiver is given in writing, and

no consent to any departure by a Party from any provision of this Agreement shall be
effective unless the consent is given in writing. Any waiver or consent shall be effective
only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which it was given. No
notice to or demand on 4 Party in any circumstances shall entitle the Party to any other or
further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances.
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Independent Legal Advice. Each Pharmacist acknowledges having obtained
independent legal advice from his/her own selicitors, respectively, with respect to the
terms of this Agreement prior to its execution and further acknowledges that he/she
understands the terms of and his/her respective rights and obligations under this
Agreement.

Legislative References. Any reference in this Agreement fo any legislation, or to any
section of or any definition in any legislation, shall be deemed to be a reference to such
legislation or section or definition as amended, supplemented, substituted, replaced or re-
enacted from time to time.

Neutral Interpretation. This Agreement constitutes the product of the negotiation of
the Parties and the enforcement of this Agreement shall be interpreted in a neutral
manner, and not more strongly for or against any Party based upon the source of the
drafismanship hereof.

No Agreement Prior to Execution. This Agreement and all discussions or agreements

made prior to this Agreement shall only be enforceable on the Parties once this
Agreement is executed in writing.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
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SCHEDULE D
Particulars for Notices

In the case of a Notice to PCAS and/or Pharmacy, at:

PCAS NewCo Pharmacy Inc.

¢/o PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
2880 Brighton Rd., Unit #2

Qakville, Ontario

L6H 583

Attention: Peter Suma, President & COOQ
Fax No.: 9035-829-5504

In the case of a Notice to Mima Caruana, at:
Mima Caruana

60 Beatrice Way

Woodbridge, Ontario

LAL 5T3

Fax:

In the case of a Notice to Jim Gay, at:

Jim Gay

20 Valley Trail RR#1
Newmarket, Ontario
L3Y 4V8

Fax;

In the case of 2 Notice to Sarah Youssef, at:

Sarah Youssef

0 Green Meadows Circle
North York, Ontario
M2JI 5G6

Fax:
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Attached is Exhibit “E” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012

{?‘l)m@,pj( gfl)hl

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc




2163279 ONTARIO INC.

The following resolutions, signed by all of the directors of 2163279 Ontario Inc.
(the “Corporation”), are hereby passed pursuant to the provisions of the Ontario Business
Corporations Act (the “Act™):

APPROVAL OF AN APPLICATION UNDER THE COMPANIES® CREDITORS
ARRANGEMENT ACT AND OF DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION FINANCING

WHEREAS the best interests of the Corporation would be served by the making of an
application pursuant to the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, as
amended (the “CCAA”™) to commence proceedings under the CCAA (the “CCAA
Proceedings™), and to enter into a loan agreement with Boehringer-Ingelheim to obtain debtor-
in-possession financing;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESGLVED THAT:
1. The recitals above are confirmed.

2. The Corporation is hereby authorized to make an application (the “Application™) to
Ontario Superior Court of Justice (the “Court™) for an order in substantially the form
attached hereto as Schedule “A”, with such amendments as the Court may required
and/or any officer or director of the Corporation may agree to.

3, Any officer or director of the Corporation is authorized to swear an affidavit in support of
the Application.
4, Any officer or director of the Corporation is authorized and directed to execute and

deliver and file with any court in the name and on behalf of the Corporation and under its
corporate seal or otherwise all such certificates, instruments, agreements, plans,
arrangements, conveyances, bills of sale, transfers, notices, affidavits and other
documents and to do all such other acts and things as in the opinion of such person may
be necessary or desirable in connection with the Application and with the performance by
the Corporation of its obligations thereunder.

5. The Corporation is hereby authorized to:

(a) borrow up to $10,000,000 from Boehringer-Ingelheim (the “DIP Lender”) by
way of the debtor-in-possession credit facility provided by the DIP Lender
pursuant to the loan agreement (the “DIP Loanm Agreement”) between the
Corporation and the DIP Lender made on or about March 19, 2012 (such credit
facility herein collectively referred to as the “DIP Facility”™) substantially in the
form of the draft DIP Loan Agreement attached hereto as Schedule “B”;

(b) grant to the DIP Lender all notes, instrurments, agreements, guarantees and
security presently held by the DIP Lender as provided for under the DIP Facility
(the “DIP Security™), as security for the obligations of the Corporation to the DIP
Lender pursuant to the DIP Loan Agreement, in accordance with the terms
thereof;

PCAS Parient Care Automation Services Inc.
CCAA and DIP Resolutions
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The DIP Facility and the DIP Security and all other notes, agreemenis, guarantees,
security or instruments now or hereafter delivered to the DIP Lender pursuant thereto
shall not be rendered invalid or unenforceable and the rights and remedies of the
DIP Lender shall not be otherwise limited or impaired in any way by the pendency of the
CCAA Proceedings and the declarations of insolvency made therein and shall constitute a
fixed lien against the property pursuant to the terms of the DIP Facility and the
DIP Security.

Any officer or director of the Corporation is authorized and directed to execute and
deliver, in the name and on behalf of the Corporation and under its corporate seal or
otherwise:

(a) the DIP Loan Agreement substantially in the form of the draft DIP Loan
Agreement attached hereto and to contain such other terms and conditions as the
person signing the same may approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced
by his or her signature thereto;

(b) such credit agreements, mortgages, charges, hypothecs and security documents,
guarantees and other definitive documents (collectively, the “Loan Docaments™)
as maybe required pursuant to the DIP Loan Agreement or contemnplated by the
DIP Facility or as may be required by the DIP Lender pursuant to the terms
thereof, in such form and containing such terms and conditions as the person
signing the same may approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by his
or her signature thereto; and

(© such certificates, documents, agreements, applications for letters of credit,
designations and instruments, including notes and drafts, as may, in the opinion of
such person, be necessary or desirable to give effect to the DIP Loan Agreement
and to implement the intent of this resolution;

Any officer or director of the Corporation is authorized and directed to pay and perform,
in the name and on behalf of the Corporation and under its corporate seal or otherwise all
of the Corporation’s indebtedness, interest, fees, liabilities and obligations to the DIP
Lender under and pursuant to the DIP Facility, the DIP Security and the Loan Documents
as and when the same become due or are to be performed and to do all such other acts
and things as may, in the opinion of such person, be necessary or desirable to give effect
to the DIP Loan Agreement and to implement the intent of this resolution.

[REMAINDER INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

2163279 Ontarie Inc.
CCAA and DIP Resolutions



DATED the day of March, 2012.

Bonnie Lewis

w Gay

Sunny Lalli”

2163279 Ontario Inc.
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Attached is Exhibit “F” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012

?Uﬂece JJ’ g)ﬂi‘

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, efc
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.

Draft and unaadited

Consolidated statements of operations and deficit
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
(Note 15)
$ $
Sales 1,008,644 1,224,193
Cost of sales 1,429,807 1,121,244
Gross profit {421,263} 102,949
Expenses
Selling and marketing 1,801,636 1,364,632
General and administrative 4,053,038 1,563,919
Research and development 5,177,899 4,926,406
Investment tax credits and government
grants (Note 4) {277,893) (1,851,775)
Payroll and payroll costs 16,929,985 8,389,635
Professional fees 971,059 787,121
Amortization of other assets 183 182
Amartization of property and equipment 895,070 470,238
29,650,977 15,650,356
Other (income) expense
Amortization of deferred gain on sale
and leaseback transaction - (27,779}
Loss on disposal of property and
equipment 148,120 -
interest expense {20,618} 403,859
127,502 376,180
Net loss 30,199,742 15,923 587
Deficit, beginning of period 33,260,420 17,336,833
Deficit, end of pericd 63,460,162 33,260,420
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.

draft and unaudited
Consolidated balance sheets

Years ended December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010

January 1,
2011 2010 2010
{Note 15) {Note 15)
$ ] 5
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 5,204,704 7,773,001 1,157,723
Miscellaneous receivables 1,721,149 803,762 821,737
inventories (Note 3) 2,406,494 1,956,141 1,126,554
Investment tax credits and government
grants receivable {Note 4) 1,095,000 1,280,000 1,713,526
Prepaid expenses and deposits 286,563 182,021 48,795
10,713,910 11,994,925 4,868,335
Property and equipment (Note 5) 4,182,875 1,125,211 1,004,575
Other assets (Note 6) 1,861 2,044 2,226
14,898,646 13,122,180 5,875,136
Liabilities
Current .
Accounts payabie and accrued charges 6,399,074 1,842,973 1,158,088
Deferred revenue 642,200 675,875 644,150
Current portion of loans payable {Note 7) - 93,539 246,196
Current portion of abligation under capital lease (Note 8) 121,388 75,511 96,273
Current porticn of deferred gain - - 27,779
Convertible debentures (Note 9) - 75,000 2,571,214
7,162,662 2,762,898 4,743,700
Long term portion of obligation under capital lease (Note 8) 130,226 27,383 102,894
Loans payable (Note 7) - 26,288 40,123
7,292,888 2,817,269 4,886,717
Shareholders’ equity {Note 10)
Share capital 66,374,321 40,730,203 16,817,559
Warrants 2,178,187 2,018,176 1,026,778
Equity conversion feature of convertible debentures - 4,211 203,112
Contributed surplus 2,513,412 814,741 277,803
Deficit (63,460,162)  (33,260,420) (17,336,833)
7,605,758 10,304,911 988,419
14,898,646 13,122,180 5,875,136
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.

Draft and unaudited

Consolidated statements of cash flows
for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2610
{Note 15)
$ $

Dperating activities
Net loss (30,159,742} (15,923,587)
fteres not affecting cash

Accretion of convertible debentures - 86,286
Amortization of properly and equipment 895,070 470,236
Loss oh dispesal of property and equipment 148,120 89,346
Amortization of other assets 183 182
Amortization of gain on sale leasetrack fransaction - (27,779
Warrants issued in lieu of salary 140,145 38,481
Share capital issued in lieu of salary 4,908,057 4,479,309
Share capitai Issued in lisu of payment {o vendors 65,799 891,533
Share capital issued in feu of interest payment 16,828 474,543
Stock-based compensation expense 1,726,910 503,340

(25,310,630} {8,918,130)

Changes In non-cash working capital ftems

Miscellansous receivables {917,387) 17,975
inventores {450,353) (529,587)
Investment tax cradits and government grants
receivable 185,000 433,526
Prepaid expenses and deposits (104,542) {133,226)
Accounts payable and accrued charges 4,556,100 684,885
Deferred revenue {33,675) 31,725
(22,075,487} {8,712,832)
Financing activities

Proceeds from debt financing 364,765 -
Repayment ¢f debt financing (336,672} (262,065)
Repayment of convertible debentures - (222,512)
Proceeds from exercise of options 177,457 3,600
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 10,792 -
Proceeds from issuarnice of common shares 23,391,602 16,488,308
23,608,044 16,608,328

Investing activity

Acquisition of property and equinment {4,100,854) (680,218)
Net changs in cash position (2,568,247} 6,615,278
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 7,773,001 1,157,723
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 5,204,704 7,773,004
Supplemental cash flow Information

interest paid 38,685 145,282

interest received 59,303 29,489

Woarrants issued on converiible debentures 41,841 968,140

Acqguisition of property and equipment

financed under capitaf lease 364,765 -
Stock-based compensation expense charged to costs
of acquiring share capital 130,351 -

Transfer to contributed surplus on cancedlation of warrants 9,183 17,203

Transfer to confributed surplus on cancefiation of options 25,298 39,711

Transfer of contributed surplus fo share caplial on ’

exercise of options 37,422 496

Transfer of contributed surplus to share capital on

exercise of warrants 10,792
Transfer of equity conuersian feature fo contributed

surplus for convertible debenturas not exercised . 16,892
Share capital issued on conversion of convertible

debentures 75,000 2,355,500
Transfer of equity convarsion feaitre to share

capital on conversion of conwertible debentures 4,211 182,010
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

1. Nature of business and continuation of the business

PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc. (the "Company”) was incorporated on March 3, 2006
under the provisions of the Canada Business Corporations Act. Since incorporation, the Company has
devoted substantially all of its efforts to business planning, research and development, recruiting
management and technical staff, acquiring operating assets and raising capital.

While the financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles appticable to a
going concern, several adverse conditions and events cast substantial doubt upon the validity of this
assumption. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company incurred a loss of $30,198,742
(2010 - loss of $15,923,587) and has an accumulated deficit of $83:460,162. To date, the Company has
funded operations through private equity placements and bani 5. Although there is no assurance
that the Company will be successful in raising additichal eqy coessfully completing the
development of its product offerings, commercializing itsf ind achieving profitability,
marragement is confident that the Company will be ablg as a going concemn. Accordingly, no
adjustments to the carrying values of the assets angiiabilities have’ &n made to these accounts.

if the going concern assumption were not appro j
be necessary to the carrying values of assets:
classifications used.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of presentation :

The consolidated financial statemea
Canadian Institute of Chartered
atient Care Automation Services
armaTrust MedServices Inc.,

., Pharmatrust (UK) Limited,

5, Pharmatrust (US) Corp.,

Accountants (“CICA") and comprise thefinancial sta
inc. and its wholly-owr sidiary compa \gs, Pha

been prepared in accordance with ASPE for going concern entities and
rcounting policies:

Inventory

hit parts for the Company’s manufacturing of MedCentres and
pharmaceutical drugs. W progress and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Raw matérials are valued at the lower of cost and replacement cost, with cost being
determinad on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventory consists o

Page &



PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Properly and equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost less related investment tax credits and is amortized on a
straight-line basis, over the following periods;

Computer equipment 5 years
Computer software 1 year
Equipment 5 years
Fumniture and fixtures 5 years
Vehicles 3 years

Leasehold improvements term of the lease

impairment of long-fived assets

The Company foliows the Canadian accounting sta
requires that an impairment loss be recognized w,
amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverabl
is recorded in the period in which the impalrm

The Company has determined that there was no
2011.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue relates to deposits;;
of the Campany’s MedCentres. Thes
rights and ob!lgatlons of ownership of thez edCén

Other asseis

Other assets ares
annum.

Income faxes

aetérmmed based on differences between the
ies, and are measured using the substantlve!y

The Compan
Common shares:
component of the dé
ascribed to the holders to convert the debentures into Common shares, is recorded in
shareholders' equity. The components were measured at their respecilve fair values at the date the
debentures were issued. The canying value of the debt component is accreted fo the original face value
of the debentures over the redemption period.

issued corg@ ble debentures ("debentures"). These debentures are convertible into
sare ret{g} ble under certain circumstances at the option of the holder. The debt
&isrecorded as a liability. The remaining component, representmg the value

a
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Einancial assets and financial Hablliies are initially recognized at fair value when the Company becomes
a pariy to the contractual pravisions of the financial instrument. Subsequently, all financial instruments
are measured at amortized cost.

The Company may, from time to time, enter into forward exchange contracts to minimize exchange rate
fluctuations relating to US dollar denominated purchases and sales and accounts payahle and
receivable. All forward exchange contracts are marked-to-marke

alue are expensed as incurred.
re added to the carrying vaiue of the asset
or netted agalnst the carrysng value of the llablirty and an 3 i ruzed over the expected life of the

Transact;on costs related to financial instruments measured at

With respect to financial assets measured at c@
an impairment loss, if any, when i determmes?
penod in the expected timing or amount of future

impairment was recognized, the pik
the period the reversal ocours.
Revenue recogm‘tion

ment exists, the product has
dmg pr ittt acceptance, the fees are fixed
ision for estimated returns and

A Handbook Section 3870, stock-hased

‘based mpensat;on pla s escribed in Note 10. The fair-value of stoci
rg employees and consultants is determined upon the date of grant
se over the vesting period for directors, officers or employees

ognlzed as comp
period of seN

corresponding contributed surplus and the proceeds received by the
sapntai i stock optians are repurchased from directors, officers or

X insideration paid over the carrying amount of the stock or stock
options repurchas ) ‘to contributed surplus andfor deficit.
Ressarch and develap gxpenses
Research costs are expensed as incurred.

Development costs that meet the criteria for deferral under ASPE and that are expected to provide future
benefits with reasonable certainty are deferred, net of any related investment tax credits and government
grants, and amortized over the estimated sales revenue of the products. Other development costs that
do not meet these criteria are expensed as incurred.

During the period, in the opinion of management, no development costs incurred met all the criteria for
deferral and amortization under ASPE.
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment tax credits and govemment assistance

Investment tax credits, which are earned as a result of incurring qualifying research and development
expenditures, are accounted for using the cost reduction method. Under this method, investment tax
credits are treated as a reduction of the relevant asset account or of research and development
expenses in the period that the credits become available and there is reasonable assurance that they will
be realized.

Government assistance is accounted for as a reduction of the relatgd expense.

Guarantees

The Company follows Accounting Guideline 14, Disclosuregs rantees {("AcG-14"), which addresses

the disclosure to be made by a guarantor in its annuat firy
guarantees. '

The Company has disclosed its guarantees in Note?
Capital disclosures

The Company follows the recommendations of
section requires the disclosure of information abo

Account balances and transactions:
dollars using the temporai method.

e balance sheet date and non-
wes and expenses are

fy with ASPE requires management to make
ounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure

The preparation of firf :
ssumph@

3.
Jdanuary 1
2011 2010 2010
(Note 15) {(Note 15)
$ $ $
Pharmaceutical drugs and supplies 552,065 63,229 49,968
Consignment inventory - 57,411 58,198
Raw materials 1,677,634 1,835,501 1,018,388
Work-in-process 178,795 - -
2,406,494 1,956,141 1,126,554

The amount of inventory recognized in cost of sales during the year ended December 31, 2011 was
$1,209,818, { 2010 - $1,074,020). The amount of inventory recognized in research and development
expenses during the year ended December 31, 2011 was $709,019, (2010 - $nil).
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2011
As at December 31, 2011, $nil ( 2010 - $210,150) of the work-in-process inventory was subject to a
capital lease.

4. investment tax credits and government grants

The Company claims research and development deductions and related investment tax credits for

income tax purposes based on management's interpretation of the applicable legislation

in the Income

Tax Act of Canada. These claims are subject to audit by Canada Revenue Agency and any adjustments
that result could adjust the investment tax credits recorded. In the opinion of management, the treatment

of research and development cosis for income tax purposes is app opriate.

The Campany also receives government grants under the Indy
(“IRAP"™. 5

J&search Agsistance Program

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company; Fdeg investment tax credits and IRAP

grants of the following:

January 1
2010
{Note 15)
$
SR&ED investment tax credifs 1,170,479
IRAP granis 994 354 543,047
1,280,000 1,713,526
5. Property and equipmer
January 1,
2010 2010
{Note 15} {Note 15)
Net book MNet book Net book
value value value
$ $ $
1,776,068 671,782 497 402
210,406 128,500 10,438 5,778
369,604 1,319,549 311,133 332,650
96,469 410,784 62,656 44 884
| 315,018 533,584 68,202 123,861
Vehicles 929 2,539 14,380 - -
75,750 1,692,875 4,182,875 1,125,211 1,004 675
6. Other assets
January 1,
2011 2010 2010
{Note 15} (Note 15}
Accumulated Net book Net book Net book
Cost amoriization valug value value
$ $ $ $ $
Trademark 2,300 746 1,554 1,700 1,782
incorporation costs 544 237 307 344 444
2,844 983 1,861 2,044 2,226
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

Loans payable

January 1,
2011 2010 2010
{Note 15)  (Note 15)
Non-revolving term facility bearing interest at 106.25%
per annum, repayable in equal monthly payments of
$6,809, principal and interest, secured by a general
security agreement, matured March 2011, 95,479
Non-revolving term facilty bearing interest at 10.25%
per annum, repayable in equal monthly payment
56,646
interest, secured by a general s&
a personal guarantes in the amoun
80,591 134,194
120,527 286,318
93,538 246,196
26,088 40,123

For the peric

2012 135,251
2013 135,251
270,502
Less amounts representiiig interest at 7.05% 18,868
251,614
| ess cuirent portion 121,388
130,226

General and administrative expenses include approximately $22,100 (2010 — § nil) of interest related to

this obligation.
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

9. Converiibie debentures

In prior years, the Company issued convertible debentures with conversion feaiures attached that allow
the holders to convert the debentures to Common shares of the Company. The convertible debentures
have been segregated into their debt and equity components. The debt component of the convertible
debentures, representing the present value of the redemption amount, is included in fiabilities and the
aquity component representing the holder's option to converi the converiible dehentures to Common
shares is classified as a component of shareholders’ equity (Note 10(e)). These components have been
measured at their respective fair values af the date the convertit &idebentures were issued. The debt
component will be accreted to the redemption vaiue of the cor {e debentures over the life of the
convertible debentures. :

15% Convertible debentures

During 2008 and 2009, the Company issued $800,000
per annum compounded annually. Of the $364,08
converted into 573,767 Common shares in 2008
converted inte 811,593 Common shares at $0:
and not converted to shares at maturity.

ke remaining $243,47 dincl
er share in 2010 and $18/603 was paid out in cash

maturity.

vertible debentures bearing interest
s mature over various petiods

During the 2009 fiscal year, the Com{a
at 15% per annum compounded annua
between August 25, nuary 13
Company. The de i ampany at a price of $0.30 per
he purchase of one Common share
ats if a liquidity event has not occurred
vent occurs between the periods February 27,

hares will be issued.

1e, including interest, $2,129,660 was converted
arrants, and $236,462 was paid out in cash and not
.\i},ened in January 2011 to 306,098 Common shares

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2011 2010 2010

(Note 15) (Note 156)

$ $ $

15% convertible debentures - 75.000 2,571,214

During the year ended December 31, 2011, accretion expense of $nil ( 2010 - $86,286) was charged
to the debt component of the convertible debentures. Interest expense of $401 was incurred in the year
ended December 31, 2014 ( 2010 - $300,731) and was charged to operations in respact of the
convertible debentures.

Page 11



PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inec.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31,2011

i0.  Share capital
(a) Authorized

An unlimited number of Common shares, voting, entitied to dividends if and when declared by the
Board of Directors and entifled to all remaining property of the Corporation upon dissolution.

At the annual and special meeting [date?] the Shareholders’ authorized the filing of Articles of
Amendment that amended the share capital of the Company by xchanglng each Class A share for
one Common share which has the same attributes as the Cias ‘Ashares plus an enfittement to
dividends if, as and when, and in such amounts, as may b &d by the Board of Directors and (ii)
daleting the authorized, not unissued, Class B shares. :

(b}  Issued and outstanding — Corminon shares

Numberpf shares Amount

= 3
Balance, December 31, 2009 95,80 16,817,559
Issuance of Common share 20,000 4,098
fssuance of Common share 15,197,741 17.477 404
Issuance of Common shares 1,437,066 -
issuance of Comimon shares 2,349,569 788,318
Issuance of C 7.098,865 1,260,083
: 737,966 891,533

5,174,669 4,479,309

- {988,099)

127,816,279 40,730,203

308,096 54,198

20,748,861 23,858,376

1,798,897 1,861,856

805,632 214879

1,834,088 -

{xiii} 67,450 21,584
- {467 775)

153,376,303 66,374,321
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

10. Share capital (continued)}

(b)

Issued and autstanding (continued)

Period ended December 31, 2010

®

(in)

(iii)

(iv)

v

In June 2010, the Company issued 20,000 Common shares for cash proceeds of $3,600
upon the exercise of 20,000 options. Stock based compensation expense of $496
previously recorded as & component of contrabuted stirplus related to these options has
also been allocated to share capitai.

Throughout 2010, the Company issued 15,1
$17,477.404 as part of a round of financin

ommon shares for cash proceeds of

In connection with a round of financing:i
additional 1,437,666 Common shar:
financing agreement, if the Comgm
transaction or public offering withil
subscribers would be enfitled wi
purchased.

in 2008, the Cojiipany was required to issue an
erafion. Pursuant to the
fakeover, a qualified
of financing, the

he comymon shares

months of closing the ¥a
ayment an additional 30%

on shares on co rs;on of the 2008
00,000 of the pnnclpai amount of the
debentures, $104,87 location of $83,447 of the related

equity conversion featu

f $1,04 _53 was made fo the value of the
ther, if no I1qu1d|ty event occurs between the periods
34,988 Common penalty shares will be issued.

{ix)
(x)

(i)

inferest, ‘an n aliocahon of $4,211 of the related equity conversnon feature An alocation
of $41,841 was made fo the value of the warrants issued upon convarsion.

The Company issuad 20,748,961 Comimon sharas for cash proceeds of $23,859,376 as
part of a round of financing.

The Company issued 1,798,887 Common shares in lieu of salaries and in lieu of payment
to vendors fotaling $1,961,858.

The Company issted 805,632 Common shares for cash proceeds of $177,457 upon the
exercise of 805,632 options, Stock based compensation expense of $37,422 previously
recorded as a component of contributed surplus related to these options has been
aflocated to share capital.
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

10.

{c)

Share capital {continued)

(xii)  In connection with the convertible debentures issued in 2009, the Company was reguired
to issue an additional 1,534,988 Common shares at no additional considerafion. Pursuant
to the debenture agreement, if the Company did not conclude a reverse takeover, a
qualified transaction or public offering within 24 monihs of closing the debenture issuance,
the subscribers would be enfitied to, without payment, an additional 30% of the converied
principal amount.

(xiiiy The Company issued 67,450 Common shares for cash proceeds of $10,792 upon the
exercise of 57,450 warrants, Stock based compensation expense of $10,792 previously
recorded as a component of warrants related to thesedptions has been allocation to share
capital.

Stock-based compensation plan

for the benefit of directors,

The Company maintains an Employee Sl
rs may designate which

officers, employees and consultants. U
directors, officers, employees and consui
Plan provides that the aggregate number
Plan shall not exceed fifteen (15%) percent of*
diluted basis. The expiry daf&dnd price payable'd
by the Board of Directors, at f

Directors, 1/35 of the shares subject:
avaiiable for purchase on a cumj:
granted.

& Option Plan (the

the Plan, the Board of D

ts of the Company are fo begranted options. The

Gmmaon sQafeg available f “'s.x{_\ance under the
tstanding Common shargs:calculated on a

& exercise of any option granted is fixed

otherwise agreed by the Board of

nder this Plan shall vest and become

iencing on the date that the option is

A summary | asember 31, 20114, December 31,
2010 and, then ended are as foliows;
December 31, January 1,
2010 2010
(Note 12) ) {Note 12)
Weighted Number  Weighted
average of average
options price options price
$ $
0.32 11,323,141 0.24 B,495444 .18
118 6,013,753 0.43 5,087,897 0.31
0.22 (20,000) 018  (120,000) 0.13
0.46 (1,570,000) 0. 114 {120,000} 0.30
0.65 15,746,894 0.32 11,323,141 0.24
Options, exercisable,
end of year 13,889,042 0.46 8803638 028 5,240,801 0.19
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

10.  Share capital (continued)

{d) Stock-based compensation plan (continued)

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31,

2011;
Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Range of Number average  average:; Number average
exercise outstanding at  remaining exercisable at exercise
prices December 31, 2011 iife in years December 31, 2011 prices
$0.10 - $0.16 205,000 205,000 013
$0.16 - $0.30 576,659 576,659 0.26
$0.30 - $G.40 960,204 811,181 0.30
$0.30 - $1.15 1,043,751 0.37
$1.15 815,312 1.18
$0.10- $0.16 4,405,000 0.15
$0.16 - $0.30 000 0.25
$0.30- $0.40 2,853,878 0.31
$0.30-$1.15 2,501,628 0.53
$1.15 1,777,830 1.15
13,899,042 ) 0.46
Tha fair v Black-Scholes option pricing mode!

2011 20190

1.20% to 2.55% 1.80% to 4.05%
34.8% to 36.9% 32.8% to 37.0%
0% 0%

5-10 years 5-10 years

any recoghized $397,857 (2010 - $278,177) in stock-hased
inon-employees and $1,239,053 (2010 - $116,366) in stock-based
siemployees. Stock-based compensation is included in payroll and
ent of operations and deficit.
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

10, Share capital (continued}

{e} Contributed surplus

A continuity schedule of contributed surplus is as follows:

3

Balance, December 31, 2008 277,803
Stack based compensation expense charged to

share capital on options exarcised (496)
Equity conversion feature of 15% converti

not exercised 16,891
Canceliation of warrants 17,203
Stock based compensation recorded in thgperiod (Note 15) 503,340
Balance, December 31, 2010 814,741
Stock based compensation;Expense charged

share capital on options € : (37,422
Cancellation of warrants 9,183
Stock based compensation recorded in’ 1,726,910
Balance, December. 31, 2011 : 2,513,412
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2011

Warrants

(d)

The following table summarizes warrants outstanding as at December 31, 2011, December 31,
2010 and January 1, 2010,

December 31,
2011

December 31,
2010
{Note 15)

Number Number

Mumbar

January 1,
2010
{Note 15)

Qutstanding warrants granied in fieu of salaries
to purchase Common shares at $0.10
per share, expiring 2011

Cutstanding warrants granted in fieu of salaries
to purchase Common shares at $0.12
per share, expiring 2012

Qutstanding warrants granted in lieu of salaries
to purchase Common shares at $0.30
per share, expiring 2012

Outstanding wamanis granted in fieu of salaries
to purchase Common shares at $0.12
per share, expiring 2012

Cutstanding warrants granted in lieu of salaries
to purchase Comimon shares at $0.16
per share, expiring 2012

Qutstanding warrants to purchase Commaon
shares at $0.16 per share, expiring 2012

Quistanding warrants to puschase Commen
shares at $0.18 per share, expiring 2013

Quistanding warrants granted in lieu of salaries
to purchase Cemimen shares af $0.30
per share, expiring 2014

Outstanding warrants granted in lisu
to purchase Comimon shares af,
per share, expiring 2014

Qutstanding warrants o pusch
shares at $6.30 per share,

Ouistanding warrants granted i m 215
o purchase Commaon shares at LS
per share, expiring,

Outstanding |

S
to :Jurchase Commia; 1 st\ares at $0.12
per share expiting 20475,

per share, expiring 2017

Qutstanding warrants granted in fied of
to purchase Comman shares at $0.30:
per share, expiring 2018

Quistanding warranis granted in liey of salanies
{e purchase Common shares at $0.40
per share, expiring 2019

Quistanding warrants granted in lieu of salaries
to purchase Corimon shares at $0.40
per share, expiring 2020

Cutstanding warrants granted in lleu of salaries
to purchase Common shares at $1.15
per share, expiring 2020

$ $

100,060

9,579

37,714

1,367,789

62,500

9,962

64,008
194,532
7098865

09,981 965,140

- 243,394 31,952
- 243,851 95,832

24,421 - .

362,489 49,228 - -

1,841,058 319,520 - -
285,298 75,084 ; .
647,245 234,602 - .
243,394 46,531 - .

243,051 138,176

6,360:

100,000

100,000

469,225

734,203

3,278,297
62,500

44,445

285,298

647,245

$

1,897

9,578

46,923

85,285

518,813
6,360

13,334

85,560

258,898

13,199,170 2178187 _12.950.524 2016 17(;

RARRER)

TOZ6.778
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2011
11.  Income taxes (note is to be completed when analysis available)
The tax effect of significant components of the Company’s future income tax assets and liabilities is as
follows:
2011 2010
$ $
Future income tax assets (liabilities)
Investment Tax Credit - {229,000)
Property and equipment e {66,100)

intangible assets -
207,800

Financing costs
Tax loss carryforwards 5,590,000
Unutilized Scientific Research and Experimental
Development expenditures 640,000
6,152,700
Valuation allowance (6,152,700}
Future income tax assets -
A valuation allowance of 100% has been establishediin | ChOl e tax assets due
to the uncertainty of the Company's
A reconciliation between the Com
2010
%
Statutory rafe - 31.00
Valuation allowang - (20.82)
Permanent differ - (10.18}
Other - -
Effective tax rale - -
apital To§ges of approximately $xx,xxx,000 available for carry-forward to reduce
x purpases which, if unused, will expire as follows:
$

2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

12.  Financial instruments
Fair value

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, miscellaneous receivables, accounts payable and accrued
charges approximate their carrying value due to their short maturities based on management estimates.
The fair value of loans payable and obligation under capital lease approximates its fair value as interest
is accrued on these amounts at fair market rates,

Foreign exchange risk

The Company may undertake sales and purchases tfransactions: A Rf_reign currencies, and therefore is
feyiexchange rates. The Company does

The balance sheet includes the following amounts, in Cahadian do s, with respect to financial assets
and liabilities for which cash flows are originally denominated in forejgt i

5

US dollars
Cash 4,676
Accounts payable and accrued charges 40,355

GBP

Cash 14,795
Accounts receivable -
Accounts payable and accrued charge! 80,658
- 1,263

13.

under operating (&2

$

2012 1,006,926
2013 1,158,921
2014 1,021,470
2015 1,029,494
2018 852,774
Thereafter 1,596,584
5,854 168
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011 '

14.

15.

Guarantees

in the normal course of business, the Company enters into agreements that meet the definition of a
guarantee. The Company's primary guarantees subject to the disclosure requirements of AcG-14 are as
follows:

(a) The Company has provided indemnities under its lease agreements for the use of its operating
facilities. Under the terms of thase agreements the Company agrees fo indemnify the
counterparty for various items including, but not limited to, alt fiabilities, loss, suits, and damages
arising during, on or after the term of the agreement. The maximum amount of any potential
future payment cannot be reasonably estimated.

(b)  Indemnity has been provided te all directors and o he Company for various items
including, but not limited to, alf costs to setile su é‘@tj@a s due to association with the
Company, subject to certain restrictions. The Ct L s.purchased directors and officers
liability insurance to mitigate the cost of any:bgtent ks, or actions. The term of the

indemnification is not explicitly defined,
party served as a director or officer of {

r which the indemnified
ount of any potantial

{€) In the normal course of business, the Corﬁp Vb d. | that include
indemnities in favour of third& rties, such as‘pireh Sizonfidentiality

9
ce agreements. These indemnification
sounterparties for osses inclirred by the
eguiations or as a result of Htigation
] rparty as a censequence of the
: y'defined and the maximum amount
ably ated

contracts, information tech
agreements may require the
counterparties as a resulf of b
claims or statutory sanctions thatimay be suff
fransaction.
of any poten

énts the Company from making a reasonable

a5 in assessing the amount of liability which stems
limited coverage offered to counterparties.
payments under such or similar indemnification

en accried in the balance sheet with respect to these

AT

The nature of theggine
estimate of the maxit

g

bly the standards in Part 1| of the CICA Accounting Handbook for private
T =anadian generally accepted accounting principles.

The financial statem
accounting principles’
Adoption, for first-time & &rs of this basis of accounting. The date of adoption of ASPE was
January 1, 2011 and the date of transition was January 1, 2010.

The impact of adopting these standards was accounted for as follows:

()  The Company has elected to not apply the recognition and measurement aspects of Part | of the
CICA Handbook, Section 3870, Stock-Based Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments,
to stock-based compensation granted or issued prior to the date of transition to accounting
standards for private enterprises In accordance with an exemption of Part Il of the CICA
Handbook, Section 1500, First-Time Adopticn. Therefore, there is no adjustment o the
Company's deficit at January 1, 2010. .
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

15,

Impact of the change in the basis of accounting (continued)

(by  Adjustment to deficit as at December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010

December 31, January 1,

2010 2010

§ $

Deficit, as previously reported 33,307,809 17,336,833
Deduct:

Remeasurerent of stock-based compensation (47,189) -

Deficit, as adjusted E 33,260,420 17,336,833

{c) Reconciliation of 2010 nat loss for the ye. {8d December 31 i

10 with the amount shown in
these financial statements: %

$

(15,970,778}

155,687

(108,798)
(15,923 ,587)
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

15. Impact of the change in the basis of accounting (continued)
(d)  Adjustments to shareholders’ equity at January 1, 2010 and December 31, 2010:

December 31, January 1,
20190 2010
$ $
Share capital, as previcusly reporied 40,651,990 16,817,558
Add:
Remeasurement of warranis issued upon
conversion of debentures (i) 78,213 -
Share capital, as adjusted 44,730,203 16,817,558
cember 31, January 1,
2010
§
Warrants, as previously reported 1,026,778
Deduct:
Remeasurement of warrants {155,987) -
Remeasurement of warrants iss
(78,213) -
2,015,178 1,026,778
December 31, January 1,
2010 2010
$ &
705,943 277,803
108,798 -
814,741 277,803

apply the recognition and measurement aspects of CICA Handbook
bck-based awards granted or issued prior to the date of transition to

volatility measure to both employee and non-employee awards based on a comparable
entity or an industry index.
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Attached is Exhibit “G” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22° day of March, 2012

Yoneel Seni

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc




Royal Bank of Canada
Cormmercial Financial Services
6880 Financial Drive - 2™ Floor

Mississauga, Ontario L3N 7Y5

Tel.: {905) 286 — 7277
Fax: {905) 286 — 7279

Qctober 12, 2011
Private and Confidential

PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC.
Unit 2

2880 Brighton Road

Qakville, Ontario

L6H 583

ROYAL BANK OF CANADA (the “Bank”) hereby offers the credit facilities described below (the
“Credit Facilities”) subject to the terms and conditions set forth below and in the attached Terms
& Conditions and Schedules (sollectively the *Agreement”). Unless otherwise provided, all dollar
amounts are in Canadian currency.

The Bank reserves all of its rights and remedies at any time and from time to time in connection
with any or all breaches, defaults or Events of Default now existing or hereafter arising under this
Agreement or any other agreement delivered to the Bank, and whether known or unknown, and
this Agreement shalt not be construed as a waiver of any such breach, default or Event of
Default.

BORROWER: PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc. (the “Borrower™)

CREDIT FACILITIES
Facility #1: $2,000,000 revolving demand facility by way of:

a) RBP based loans (“RBP Loans”)

Revolve in increments $5,000 Minimum retained $0
of: halance:
Revolved by: Bank Irtersst rate (per annum}): | RBP + 1,5%

b) RBUSER based lcans in US currency (“RBUSER Loans”)

Revolve in increments $5,000 Minimurn retained $0
of: balance:
Revoived by Bank Interest rate {per annum): | RBUSBR + 1.5%

c) Letiers of Guarantee {(“LGs")

Fees to be advised on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Fees and drawings fo be charged to
Borrowar's accounts. Minimum fee of $100.

® Registered Trademark of Royal Bank of Canada

SRF # 192128007



PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc. 2 October 12, 2011

AVAILABILITY

The Borrower may borrow, convert, repay and reborrow up to the amount of this facility provided
this facility is made available at the sole discretion of the Bank and the Bank may cancel or
restrict the availability of any unutilized portion at any time and from time to fime without notice.

Borrowings outstanding must not exceed at any time the aggregate of the following, less Potential
Prior-Ranking Claims (the “Borrowing Limit"). -

a) 75% of Good Canadian/US Accounts Recelvable; and
b) 90% of Goad EDC Accounts Receivable.

REPAYMENT

Notwithstanding compliance with the covenants and all other terms and conditions of this
Agreement, and regardless of the maturities of any outstanding instruments or contracts,
Borrowings under this facility are repayable on demand.

GENERAL ACCOUNT

The Borrower shall estabiish current accounts with the Bank in each of Canadian currency and

US currency (each a "General Account™) for the conduct of the Borrower’s day-to-day banking

business. The Borrower authorizes the Bank daily or otherwise as and when determined by the

Bank, to asceriain the balance of each General Account and:

a) if such position is a debit balance the Bank may, subject to the revolving increment amount
and minimum retained balance specified in this Agreement, make available a Borrowing by
way of RBP Loans, or RBUSBR Loans as applicable, under this facility;

b} if such position is a credit balance, where the facility is indicated to be Bank revolved, the
Bank may, subject to the revolving increment amount and minimum retained balance
specified in this Agreement, apply the amount of such credit batance or any part as a
repayment of any Borrowings outstanding by way of RBP Loans, or RBUSBR Loans as
applicable, under this facility.

Facility #2: $1,000,000 non-revolving term facility by way of.
a) RBP Loans Interest rate (per annum}: RBP + 1.5%

AVAILABILITY

The Borrower may borrow up to the amount of this term facility provided this facility is made
available at the sale discretion of the Bank and the Bank may cancel or restrict availability of any
unutilized portion of this facility at any time from time to time without notice.

The aggregate Borrowings advanced under this facility must not exceed 75% of the Borrower's
filed, cash refundable Scientific Research & Experimental Development (“SR&ED”) investment
tax credits.

REPAYMENT

The Borrower agrees that the aggregate Borrowings advanced in respect of any filed, cash
refundable SR&ED investment tax credits financed under this facility shatl be repayable in full on
the earlier of (i) the date of receipt by the Borrower of the SR&ED tax credit refund in connection
with the SR&ED investment tax credit financed and (ii) the day which occurs 180 days from the
filing date of the applicable SR&ED investment tax credit, provided that in any event all
Borrowings outstanding under this facility are repayable in full on December 31, 2011.

Facility #3: $500,000 non-revolving term facility by way of:

a) RBP Loans interest rate (per annum): RBP +1.5%
AVAILABILITY

The Borrower may borrow up to the amount of this term facility provided this facility is made

avallable at the sale discretion of the Bank and the Bank may cancel or restrict avallability of any
unutifized portion of this facility at any time from time o time without notice.




PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc.

October 12, 2011

A maximum of two draws will be permitted under this facility.

REPAYMENT
Payment Armount: To be determined at Payment Frequency: Monthly
drawdown ) :
Payment Type: Principal Plus Interest | First payment date: 30 days from initial
drawdown
Repayable in full on: | The last day of a 1 Original Amortization | 12

year term from initial

{months)

drawdown

OTHER FACILITIES

The Credit Facilities are in addition to the following facilities {the “Other Facilities”). The Other
Facilities will be governed by this Agreement and separate agreements between the Borrower
and the Bank. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and any such separate
agreament, the terms of the separate agreement will govern.

a} VISA Business to a maximum amount of $50,000; and

b) All Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts outstanding at any time and from time to time.

FEES

Monthly Fees:

Payable in arrears on the same day of each month,
Revoiving Funds Arrangement Fee: $250

Facility Fee for Facility #1: 0.20% per annum.

SECURITY
Security for the Borrawings and all other obligations of the Borrower to the Bank (collectively, the
“Security”), shall include:

a) General security agreement on the Bank's form 924, as amended, signed by the Borrower
constituting a first ranking security interest (subject to Permitted Encumbrances} in all
personal property of the Borrower,

n) Guarantee and postponement of claim on the Bank's form 812 in the amount of $3,800,000
signed by 2163279 Ontario Inc., supported by a general security agreement on the Bank’s
form 924, as amended, constituting a first ranking security interest (subject to Permitted
Encumbrances) in all parsonal property of 2163278 Ontario Inc.; and

¢) Guarantee and postponement of claim on the Bank’s form 812 in the amount of $3,800,000
signed by Pharmatrust Corp., supported by a general security agreement on the Bank's form
924, as amended, constituting a first ranking security interest (sublect to Permiited
Encumbrances} in all personal property of Pharmatrust Corp.

FINANCIAL COVENANTS

In the event that the Borrower changes accounting standards, accounting principles and/or the
application of accounting principles during the term of this Agreement, all financial covenants
shall be calculated using the accounting standards and principles applicable at the time this
Agreement was entered into.

Without affecting or limiting the right of the Bank to terminate or demand payment of, or cancel or
restrict availability of any unutilized portion of any demand or other discretionary facility, the
Borrower covenants and agrees with the Bank that the Borrower will:
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a) maintaln on a consolidated basis, to be measured as at the end of each month:

i. a minimum aggregate cash balance held in accounts with the Bank of $3,000,000 at all
fimes.

b)  maintain on a consolidated basis, to be measured as at the end of each fiscai quarter:
{. Tangibie Net Worth of at least $6,000,000.

c) not, and will ensure that each of its subsidiaries does not, without the prior writter: consent
of the Bank:

i.  redeem any of its share capital, pay dividends or pay interest or principal payments in
respect of shareholder loans. '

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
The Borrower will provide the following to the Bank;

a) monthly Borrowing Limit Certificate, substantially in the form of Schedule "G” signed on
behalf of the Borrower by any one of the Chief Executive Officer, the President, the Chief
Financial Officer, the Treasurer, the Comptrofler, the Chief Accountant or any other employee
of the Borrower holding equivalent office, within 20 days of each month end;

b} quarterly internally prepared unaudited consolidated financial statements for the Borrower,
within 45 days of each fiscal quarter end;

¢) quarterly Compliance Ceriificate, substantially in the form of Schedule “H” signed by an
authorized signing officer of the Borrower, within 45 days of each fiscal quarter end, certifying
compliance with this Agreement including the financial covenants set forth in the Agreement;

d) annual Compliance Certificate, substantially in the form of Schedule “H” signed by an
authorized signing officer of the Borrower, within 120 days of each fiscal year end, certifying
compliance with this Agreement;

e) annual audited consolidated financial statements for the Borrower, within 120 days of each
fiscal year end; and

f} annual forecasted consolidated balance sheet and income and cash flow statements for the
Borrower, prepared on a quarterly basis for the next following fiscal year, within 90 days of
each fiscal year end.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT
in no event wiil the Credit Facilities or any part thereof be available unless the Bank has received:

a) a duly executed copy of this Agresment,

b} the Security provided for herein, registered, as required, to the satisfaction of the Bank;

¢) internally prepared unaudited consolidated financial statements for the Borrower for the most
recently compieted fiscal quarter end, containing results satisfactory to the Bank;

d) the audited consolidated financial statements for the Borrower for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2010, containing results satisfactory to the Bank;

e) confirmation of commitments from investors o purchase share capital of the Borrower in an
aggregate amount not less than $40,000,000 and completion of due diligence in respect of
such commitments satisfactory to the Bank;

f) such financial and other information or documents relating to the Borrower or any Guarantor
if applicable as the Bank may reascnably reguire; and

g) such olher authorizations, approvals, opinions of the Botrower’s internal legal counsel and
other documentation as the Bank may reasonably require.
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Addltlonaiiy,

H) all documentation to be received. by the Bank shall be in farm and substance Satlsfactory fo
the Bank;

i) no Borrowing under Facility #2 will be available unless the Bank has received (i} copies of the
Botrower's 2007 and 2008 SR&ED investment tax credit filings and (i) evidence that the cash
refunds received by the Borrower for such SR&ED investment tax credits wete greater than

95% of the arnount cla|med

ONGOING CONBITIONS FACILITY #2

In addition fo the conditions sel {orth above in the Conditions Precedent section, the availability of
any Borrowing under Facility #2 is conditional upen the receipt of the following prior to each and
gvery Borrowing:

a) a comfort letter from a third party auditor, acceptable to the-Bank, confirming that acecrued
SR&ED eligibie expenses for the SR&ED investment tax credits to be financed with such
Borrowing have been filed appropriately; and

b) a certificate from the Borrower certifying that all Potential Prior-Ranking Claims are up o
date.

GOVERNING LAW JURISDICTION
Province of Ontaric.

ACCEPTANCE
This Agreement is open for acceptance until November 14, 201 1, after which date it will be null
and void, unless extended in writing by the Bank.

ROYAL BANKf F CANADA
Pear: . o ’\h
Name. Kebtmﬁrénch

Title:  Senicr Account Manager

/mf

We aoknowlfigge and accept the terms and conditions of this Agreement
on this day of _etoko / . 2011,
PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION S8ERVICES INC.

Per: j M

Name: Dond "TUNES -
Title: CFO

Per: ol 7 £ f‘/&ﬂ?y}%
?;?[Z‘*: 7 L / // Loreto Grimaldi

h ’ CLO, General Counsel & Secretary
m&m&mmmnswceslﬁc,

I/"We have the authority to bind the Borrower

\attachntents:

Terms and Conditions

Schedules:

«  Definitions

Calculation.and Payment of Interest and Fees
Additional Borrowing Condifions

Borrowing Limit Certificate

Compliance Cértificate

RBC Covarity Dashboard Terms and Conditions
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Bank is requested by the Borrower to make the Credit Facilities available to the Borrower in
the manner and at the rates and times specified in this Agreement. Terms defined elsewhere in
this Agreement and not otherwise defined in the Terms and Conditions below or the Schedules
attached hereto have the meaning given to such terms as so defined. In consideration of the
Bank making the Credit Facilities available, the Borrower agrees, and if the Borrower is
comprised of more than one Person, such Perscns jointly and severally agree, or in Quebec
solidarily agree, with the Bank as follows:

REFAYMENT

Amounts outstanding under the Credit Facilities, together with interest, shall become due in the
manner and at the rafes and times specified in this Agreement and shall be paid in the currency
of the Borrowing. Unless the Bank otherwise agrees, any payment hereunder must be made in
money which is legal tender at the time of payment. In the case of a demand facility of any kind,
the Borrower shall repay all principal sums outstanding under such facility upon demand
including, without limitation, an amount equai to the face amount of all LGs which are unmatured
or unexpired, which amount shall be held by the Bank as security for the Borrower’s obligations to
the Bank in respect of such Borrowings. Where any Borrowings are repayable by scheduled
blended payments, such payments shall be applied, firstly, to interest due, and the balance, i
any, shall be applied to principal outstanding. If any such payment is insufficient to pay all interest
then duse, the unpaid balance of such interest will be added to such Borrowing, will bear interest
at the same rate, and will be payabie on demand or on the date specified herein, as the case may
be. Borrowings repayable by way of scheduled payments of principal and interest shall be so
repaid with any balance of such Borrowings being due and payable as and when specified in this
Agreement. The Borrower shall ensure that the maturities of instrurments or contracts selected by
the Borrower when making Borrowings will be such so as to enable the Borrower to meet its
repayment obligations. For any Borrowings that are repayable by scheduled payments, if the
scheduled payment date is changed then the Maturity Date of the applicable Borrowings shali
automatically be amended accordingly.

PREPAYMENT ‘
Where Borrowings are by way of RBP Loans or RBUSBR Loans, the Borrower may prepay such
Borrowings in whele or in part without fee or premium,

The prepayment of any Borrowings under a term facility andfor any term loan will be made in the
reverse order of maturity.

EVIDENCE OF INDEBTEDNESS

The Bank shall maintain accounts and records (the “Accounts™} evidencing the Borrowings
made available to the Borrower by the Bank under this Agreement. The Bank shall record the
principal amount of such Borrowings, the payment of principal and interest on account of the
Borrowings, and all other amounts becoming due to the Bank under this Agreement. The
Accounts constitute, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive evidence of the indebtedness of
the Borrower to the Bank pursuant fo this Agreement. The Borrower authorizes and directs the
Bank to automatically debit, by mechanical, efectronic or manual means, any bank account of the
Barrower for ail amounts payable under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the
repayment of principal and the payment of interest, fees and all charges for the keeping of such
bank accounts.

GENERAL COVENANTS

Without affecting or limiting the right of the Bank to terminate or demand payment of, or cancel or

restrict availability of any unutilized portion of, any demand or other discrefionary facility, the

Borrower covenants and agrees with ihe Bank that the Borrower;

a) witl pay all sums of meney when due under the terms of this Agreement;

b) will immediately advise the Bank of any event which constitutes or which, with notice, lapse of
fime or both, would constitute an Event of Default;

c) will file all material tax retums which are or will be required to be filed by it, pay or make
provision for payment of all material taxes (including interest and penalties) and Potential
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&

a)

h)

o)

a}

)
§)

Prior-Ranking Claims, which are or will become due and payable and provide adequate
reserves for the payment of any tax, the payment of which is being contested;

will give the Bank 30 days prior notice in writing of any intended change in its ownership
structure (other than (i) transfers by shareholders to spouses, family trusts, RRSPs, RRIFs
and related non-arm’s length entities, and (if) the Borrower’s planned additional equity
financing round scheduled to commence marketing in the Fall of 2011, with approximate
gross proceeds of up to $100,000,000, provided that in the latter case, where any new
shareholder's basic equity ownership following such equity financing exceeds 5%, the notice
and approval specified in this section shall apply) and i will not make or facHitate any such
change withaut the prior wyitten consent of the Bank, not to be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed;

wiil comply with all Applicable Laws, including, without fimitation, ali Environmental Laws;

wiill immediately advise the Bank of any action requests or viclation notices received
concerning the Borrower and hold the Bank harmless from and against any losses, costs or
expenses which the Bank may suffer or incur for any environment related liabilities existent
now or in the future with respect to the Borrower,

will defiver to the Bank such financial and other information as the Bank may reasonably
request from time to time, inciuding, but not limited to, the reports and other information set
out under Reporting Requirements;

will immediately advise the Bank of any unfavourable change in its financial position which
may adversely affect its ability to pay or perform its obligations in accordance with the terms
of this Agreement;

will keep its assets fully insured against such perils and in such manner as would be
customarily insured by Persons carrying on a similar business or owning similar assets and,
in addition, for any buildings located in areas prone to fiood andfor earthquake, wilt insure
and keep fully insured such buildings against such perils;

except for Permitted Encumbrances, will not, without the prior written consent of the Bank,
grant, create, assume or suffer to exist any mortgage, charge, lien, pledge, security interest
or other encumbrance affecting any of its properties, assets or other rights;

will not, without the prior written consent of the Bank, sell, transfer, convey, lease or
otherwise dispose of any of its properties or assets other than in the ordinary course of
business and on commercially reasonable terms;

will not, without the prior written consent of the Bank, guarantee or otherwise provide for, on a
direct, indirect or contingent basis, the payment of any monies or performance of any
obligations by any other Person, except as may be provided for herein;

will not, without the prior written consent of the Bank, merge, amalgamate, or otherwise enter
into any other form of business combinatian with any other Person;

will permit the Bank or its representatives, from fime to time, ) to visit and inspect the
Borrower's premises, properties and assets and examine and obtain copies of the Borrower’s
records or other information, i} to collect information from any entity regarding any Potential
Prior-Ranking Claims and fii) to discuss the Borrower’s affairs with the auditors, counse! and
other professional advisers of the Borrower, The Borrower hereby authorizes and directs any
such third party to provide to the Bank or its representatives all such information, records or
documentation requested by the Bank, it being understood that the Borrower shall be invited
to attend and participate in all such meetings and discussions,

will not use the proceeds of any Credit Facility for the benefit or on behalf of any Person other
than the Borrower or its affiliates;

will promptly advise the Bank of any payment of tax credits or any compensation at source
initiated by the Borrower, Canada Revenue Agency or Revenue Quebec upon receipt of such
payment or knowledge of such compensation;

will apply any cheque or amount received as refundable tax credit(s) solely against any
amounts cutstanding under any Credit Facility in connection with such investment tax
credit(s});

wilt file the corporate income tax within 180 days of each fiscal year end confirming
investment tax credits claimed for that year; and

will maintain an accounting system that clearly identifies its admissible expenditures by
project.
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EXPENSES, ETC.

The Borrower agrees to pay the Bank all fees, as stipulated in this Agreement. The Borrower also
agrees to pay all fees (including legal fees), costs and expenses incurred by the Bank in
connection with preparation, negotiation and documentation of this Agreement and any Security
and the operation, enforcement or termination of this Agreement and the Security.

CENERAL INDEMNITY

The Borrower hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the Bank and its directors, officers,
employees and agents harmless from and against any and all claims, suits, actions, demands,
debts, damages, costs, losses, obligations, judgements, charges, expenses and liabilities of any
nature which are suffered, incurred or sustained by, imposed on or asserted against any stich
Person as a result of, in connection with or arising out of 1) any Event of Default, ii) the Bank
acting upon instructions given or agreements made by electronic fransmission of any type, iii} the
presence of Contaminants at, on or under or the discharge or likely discharge of Contaminants
from, any properties now or previously used by the Borrower or any Guarantor and iv) the breach
of or non compliance with any Applicable Law by the Barrower or any Guarantor.

AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS

No amendment or waiver of any provision of this Agreement will be effective unless it is in wrlting,
signed by the Borrower and the Bank. No failure or delay, on the part of the Bank, in exercising
any right or power hereunder or under any Security or any other agreement defivered fo the Bank
shall operate as a waiver thereof. Any amendments requested by the Borrower wili require
review and agreement by the Bank and its counsel. Costs related to this review will be for the
Borrower's account.

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and permitted assigns. The Borrower shall not be entitled
fo assign or transfer any rights or obligations hereunder, without the consent in writing of the
Bank. The Bank may assign or transfer alf or any part of its rights and obligations under this
Agreement to any Person. The Bank may disclose to potential or actual assignees or transferees
confidential information regarding the Borrower and any Guarantor if applicable, (including, any
such information provided by the Borrower, and any Guarantor if applicable, to the Bank} and
shall not be liable for any such disclosure.

GAAP

Unless otherwise provided, all accounting terms used in this Agreement shall be interpreted in
accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, as appropriate, for publicly
accountable enterprises, private enterprises, not-for-profit organizations, pension plans and in
accordance, as appropriate, with Public Sector Accounting Standards for government
organizations in effect from time to time, applied on a consistent basis from period fo period. All
tinancial statements and/or reports shall be prepared using one of the above bases of
presentation, as appropriate. Except for the transition of accounting standards in Canada, any
change in accounting principles or the application of accounting principles is only permitied with
the prior written consent of the Bank.

SEVERABILITY

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement and such invalid provision shait be deemed
to be severable.

GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the Province
Identified in the Governing Law Jurisdiction section of this Agreement and the laws of Canada
applicable therein, The Borrower irrevocably submits fo the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the
courts of such Province and acknowledges the competence of such courts and irevocably
agrees to be bound by a judgment of any such court.
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DEFAULT BY LAPSE OF TIME
‘The mere lapse of time fixed for performing an obligation shall have the effect of putting the
Borrower, or a Guarantor if applicable, in default thereof.

SET-OFF

The Bank is authorized {but not abligated), at any time and without notice, to appty any credit
balance (whether or not then due) in any account in the name of the Borrower, or to which the
Borrower is beneficially entitled (in any currency) at any branch or agency of the Bank in or
towards satisfaction of the indebtedness of the Barrower due to the Bank under the Credit
Facilities and the other obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement. For that purpose, the
Bank is irrevocably authorized to use all or any part of any such credit balance to buy such other
currencies as may be necessary to effect such application.

- NOTICES :
Any notice or demand to be given by the Bank shall be given in writing by way of a letter
addrassed to the Borrower. if the leffer is sent by telecopier, it shall be deemed recaived on the
date of transmission, provided such fransmission is sent prior to 5:00 p.m. on a day on which the
Borrower's business is open for hormal business, and otherwise on the next such day. If the Tetter
is sent by ardinary mail to the address of the Borrower, it shall be deemed received on the date
falling five (5) days following the date of the letter, unless the letter is hand-delivered to the
Borrower, in which case the letter shall be deemed to be received on the date of delivery. The
Barrower must advise the Bank at once about any changes in the Borrower’s address.

CONSENT OF DISCLOSURE

The Borrower hereby grants permission to any Person having information in such Person’s
possession relating to any Potential Prior-Ranking Claim, to release such information fo the Bank
(upon its wrltten request), solely for the purpose of assisting the Bank to evaluate the financial
condition of the Borrower.

NON-MERGER
The provisions of this Agreement shall not merge with any Security provided to the Bank, but
shall continue in full force for the benefit of the parties hereto.

JOINT AND SEVERAL

Where more than one Person is liable as Borrower or Guarantor if applicable for any obligation
under this Agreement, then the liability of each such Person for such obiigation is joint and
several {in Quebec, solidarily} with each other such Person.

LIFE AND DISABILITY INSURANCE

The Borrower acknowledges that the Bank has offered it insurance on the Borrowings under
Business Loan Insurance Plan Policy 51000 ("Policy") issued by Sun Life Assurance Company of
Canada to the Bank and the Borrower hereby waives this offer or acknowledges it is inelfigible for
this offer and acknowledges that Borrowings are not insured under the Policy as at the date of
acceptance of this Agreement,

If there are any discrepancies between the insurance information above, and the Business Loan
fnsurance Plan documents regarding the Borrowings, the Business Loan Insurance Plan
documents govern.

Business Loan Insurance Plan premiums, if applicable, are taken with your scheduled loan
payments. In the case of blended payments of principal and interest, as premiums fiuctuate
based on various factors such as, by way of example, the age of the insured and changes to the
insured loan balance, a part of the premium payment may be deducted and taken from the
scheduled blended loan payment with the resuilt that the amortization period may increase in the
case of any such loan to which this coverage applies. Refer to the Business Loan Insurance Plan
application (form 3460 Eng or 53460 Fr) for further explanation and disclosure.



PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc. 10 October 12, 2011

COUNTERPART EXECUTION

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparis and by different parties in
separate counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all
of which taken together constitute one and the same instrument.

ELECTRONIC MAIL AND FAX TRANSMISSION
The Bank is entitled to rely on any agreement, document or instrument provided to the Bank by
the Borrower or any Guarantor as applicable, by way of electronic mail or fax transmission as
though it were an original docurnent. The Bank is further entitled to assume that any
communication from the Borrower received by electronic mail or fax trangmission is a reliable
communication from the Borrower.

ELECTRONIC IMAGING

The parties hereto agree that, at any time, the Bank may convert paper records of this Agreement
and all other documentation delivered to the Bank (sach, a "Paper Record") info electronic
images (each, an “Electronic lmage”) as part of the Bank's normal business practices. The
parties agree that each such Electronic Image shall be considered as an authoritative copy of the
Paper Record and shall be legally binding on the parties and admissible in any legal,
administrative or other proceeding as conclusive evidence of the contents of such documentin
the same manner as the original Paper Record.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

The Botrower represents and warrants fo the Bank that:

a) ltis duly incorporated, validly existing and duly registered or qualified to cary on business in
each jurisdiction in which its business or assets are located;

b) the execution, delivery and performance by it of this Agreement have been duly authorized by
all necessary actions and do not violate its constating documents or any Applicable Laws or
agreemaents to which it is subject or by which It Is bound;

¢} no event has occurred which constitutes, or which, with notice, lapse of time, or both, would
constitute, an Event of Default;

d) there is no claim, action, prosecution or other proceeding of any kind pending or threatened
against it or any of its assets or properties before any court or administrative agency which
relates to any non-compliance with any Environmental L.aws which, if adversely determined,
might have a material adverse effect upon its financial condition or operations or its ability to
perform its obligations under this Agreement or any Security, and there are no circumstances
of which it is aware which might give rise to any such proceeding which it has not fully
disclosed to the Bank; and

@) it has good and marketable title to all of its properties and assefs, free and clear of any
encumbrances, other than encumbrances as may be provided for herein (including Permitted
Encumbrances).

Representations and warranties are deemad io be repeated as at the time of each Borrowing
hereunder.

LANGUAGE

The parties hereto have expressly requested that this Agreement and all related documents,
including notices, be drawn up in the English language. Les parties ont expressement demande
que la présente convention et tous les documents y afférents, y compris les avis, soient redigés
en langue anglaise.

WHOLE AGREEMENT

This Agreement and any documents or instruments referred to in, or delivered pursuant to, or in
connection with, this Agreement constitute the whole and entire agreement between the Borrower
and the Bank with respect to the Credit Faciliies.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Without affecting or limiting the right of the Bank to terminate or demand payment of, or to cancel
or restrict availability of any unutiiized portion of, any demand or other discretionary facility, each
of the following shali constitute an “Event of Default” which shall enfitle the Bank, in its sole
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distretion, to cancel any Credit Facilities, demand immediate repayment in full of any amounts

outstanding under any term facility, together with outstanding accrued interest and any other

indebtedness under or with respect to any term facility, and to realize on all or any portion of any

Security:

a) failure of the Borrower to pay any principal, interest or other amount when due pursuant to
this Agreement;

b) failure of the Barrower, or any Guarantor if applicable, to observe any covenant, term or
condition contained in this Agreement, the Security, or any other agreement delivered to the
Bank or in any documentation relating hereto or thereto;

¢} the Borrawer, or any Guarantor if applicable, is unable to pay its debts as such debts become
due, of is, or is adjudged or declared to be, or admits to being, bankrupt or insolvent;

d) if any proceeding is taken to effect a compromise or arrangement with the creditors of the
Borrower, or any Guarantor if applicable, or to have the Borrower, or any Guarantor if
applicable, declared bankrupt or wound up, or to have a receiver appointed for any part of the
assets or operations of the Borrower, or any Guarantor if applicable, or if any encumbrancer
takes possession of any part thereof;

e} if in the opinion of the Bank there is a material adverse change in the financial condition,
ownership ar operation of the Borrower, or any Guarantor If applicable;

f) if any representation or warranty made by the Borrower, or any Guarantor if applicable, under
this Agreement or in any other document relating hereto or under any Security shall be false
in any material respect; or

g) if the Borrower, or any Guarantor if applicable, defaults in the payment of any other
indebtedness (other than trade accounts payable), whether owing to the Bank or to any other
Person, or defaults in the performance or observance of any agreement in respect of such
indebtedness where, as a result of such default, the maturity of such indebtedness is or may
be accelerated.

Should the Bank demand Immediate repayment in full of any amounts oufstanding under any
term facifity due to an Event of Default, the Borrower shalf immediately repay all principal sums
outstanding under such facility and all other obiigations in connection with any such term facility.

EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATIONS '

I, for any reason, the amount of Borrowings outstanding under any facility, when converted to the
Equivalent Amount in Canadian currency, exceeds the amount available under such facility, the
Borrower shall immediately repay such excess ar shall secure such excess to the satisfaction of
the Bank.

JUDGEMENT CURRENCY

If for the purpose of obtaining judgement in any court in any jurisdiction with respect to this
Agreement, it is necessary fo convert info the currency of such jurisdiction (the "Judgement
Currency") any amount due hereunder in any currency other than the Judgement Currency, then
conversion shail be made at the rafe of exchange prevailing on the Business Day before the day
on which judgement is given. For this purpose "rate of exchange" means the rate at which the
Bank would, on the relevant date, be prepared to sell a similar amount of such currency in the
Toronto foreign exchange market, against the Judgement Currency, in accordance with normal
banking procedures.

In the event that there is a change in the rate of exchange prevailing between the Business Day
before the day on which judgement is given and the date of payment of the amount due, the
Borrower will, on the date of payment, pay such additional amounts as may be necessary {0
ensure that the amount paid on such date is the amount in the Judgement Currency which, when
converted at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of payment, Is the amount then due
under this Agreement in such other currency together with interest at RBP and expenses
(including legal fees on a solicifor and client basis). Any additional amount due from the Borrower
under this section will be due as a separate debt and shall not be affected by judgement being
obtained for any other sums due under or in respect of this Agreement.
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Schedule “A” to the Agreement dated October 12, 2011, between PCAS Patient Care Automation
Services Inc., as Borrower, and Royal Bank of Canada, as the Bank.

DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms and phrases shall have the following
meanings:

“Applicable Laws” means, with respect to any Person, property, transaction or avent, all present
or future applicable laws, statutes, regulations, rules, orders, codes, treaties, conventions,
judgements, awards, determinations and decrees of any governmental, regulatory, fiscal or
monetary body or court of competent jurisdiction in any applicable jurisdiction;

“Borrowing” means sach use of a Credit Facility and all such usages outstanding at any time
are “Borrowings”;

“Business Day" means a day, excluding Saturday, Sunday and any other day which shall bea
legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions are closed throughout Canada;

=CanadianfUS Accounts Recelvable” means trade accounts receivable of the Borrower owing
by Persons whose chief operating activities are located in the US or Canada;

“Contaminant” includes, without imitation, any pollutant, dangerous substance, fiquid waste,
industrial waste, hazardous material, hazardous substance or contaminant including any of the
foregoing as defined in any Environmental Law;

“EDC Accounts Receivable” means trade accounts receivable of the Borrower, where the
payment has been insured by Export Development Canada (“EDC”), and the Bank has been
provided with a duly executed Direction to Pay on EDC Form E-8 supported by a copy of the
applicable insurance policy and any renewals thereof;

“Environmental Activity” means any activity, event or circumstance in respect of a
Contaminant, including, without limitation, its storage, use, holding, coliection, purchase,
accumulation, assessment, generation, manufacture, construction, processing, treatment,
stabllization, disposition, handling or transportation, or its Release into the natural environment,
including mavement through or in the air, soil, surface water or groundwater;

“Environmental Laws” means all Applicable Laws relating to the environment or occupational
health and safety, or any Environmental Activity,

“Equity” means the total of share capital, (excluding preferrad shares redeemable within one
year) contributed surplus and retained earnings plus Postponed Debt;

“Equivalent Amount” means, with respect to an amount of any currency, the amount of any
other currency required to purchase that amount of the first mentioned currency through the Bank
in Toronto, in accordance with normal banking procedures;

“Good CanadianfUS Accounts Receivable” means Canadiarn/US Accounts Receivable
excluding EDC Accounts Receivable and excluding (i) the entire amount of accounts, any portion
of which is outstanding more than 80 days after billing date, provided that the under 90 day
portion may be Included where the over 90 day portion is less than 10% of the amount of
accounts, or where the Bank has designated such portion as nevertheless good, (i) all amounts
due from any affiliate, (jii) bad or doubtful accounts, (iv) accounts subject to any security interest
or other encumbrance ranking or capable of ranking in priority to the Bank's security, (v) the
amount of all holdbacks, contra accounts or rights of set-off on the part of any account debtor, or
(vi) any accounts which the Bank has previously advised to be ineligible;
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“Good EDC Accounts Receivable™ means EDC Accounts Receivable, excluding (i) the entire
amount of accounts, any portion of which is outstanding more than 90 days after billing date,
provided that the under 90 day portion may be included where the over 90 day portion is less
than 10% of the amount of accounts, ar where the Bank has desighated such portion as
neverthetess good, (ii} all amounts due from any affiliate, (iii) bad or doubtful accounts, {iv)
accounts subject to any security interest or other encumbrance ranking or capable of ranking in
priority to the Bank’s security, (v} the amount of all holdbacks, contra accounts or rights of set-off
on the part of any account debtor, or (vi) any accounts which the Bank has previously advised to
be ineligible;

“Guarantor” means any Person who has guaranteed the obligations of the Borrower under this
Agreement;

“L etter of Guarantee” or “LG” means a documentary credit issued by the Bank on behalf of the
Borrower far the purpose of providing security te a third party that the Borrower or a person
designated by the Borrower wili perform a contractual obligation owed to such third party;

“Maturity Date” means the date on which a facility is due and payable in full;

“Permitted Encumbrances™ means, in respect of the Borrower or any Guarantor:

a) liens arising by operation of law for amounts not yet due or delinquent, minor encumbrances
on real property such as easements and rights of way which do not materially detract from
the value of such property, and security given to municipalities and similar public authorities
when required by such authorities in connection with the operations of the Borrower or any
Guarantor in the ordinary course of business;

b) purchase-money security interests;

c) other liens securing indebtedness or other obligations where the aggregate amount of such
indebtedness or other obligations for the Borrower and the Guarantors does not exceed
$500,000 at all imes;

d) Security granted in favour of the Bank;

*Person” includes an individual, a partnership, a joint venture, a trust, an unincorporated
organization, a company, a corporation, an association, a government or any department or
agency thereof including Canada Revenue Agency, and any other incorporated or unincorporated
entity,

“Postponed Debt” means indebtedness that is fully postponed and subordinated, both as to
principal and interest, on terms satisfactory to the Bank, to the obfigations owing to the Bank
hereunder;

“potential Prior-Ranking Claims” means all amounts owing or required to be paid, where the
tailure to pay any such amount could give rise o a claim pursuani io any law, statute, regulation
or otherwise, which ranks or is capabie of ranking in priority to the Security or otherwise in priority
to any claim by the Bank for repayment of any amounts owing under this Agresment;

“RBP” and “Royal Bank Prime” each means the annual rate of interest announced by the Bank
fram time to time as being a reference rate then in effect for determining interest rates on
commercial loans made in Canadian currency in Canada;

“RBUSBR” and “Royal Bank US Base Rate” each means the annual rate of interest
announced by the Bank from time to time as a reference rate then in effect for determining
interest rates on commercial joans made in US currency in Canada,

“Release” includes discharge, spray, inject, inoculate, abandon, deposit, spill, leak, seep, pour,
emit, empty, throw, dump, place and exhaust, and when used as a noun has a similar meaning;

“Tangible Net Worth” means the total of Equity less intangibies, deferred charges, leasehold
improvements, deferred tax credits and unsecured advances to related pariies. For the purpose
hereof, intangibles are assets lacking physical substance;
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“US” means United States of America.
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Schedule “B” to the Agreement dated Ociober 12, 2011, befwean PCAS Patient Care Automation
Services Inc., as Berrower, and Royal Bank of Canada, as the Bank.

CALCULATION AND PAYMENT OF INTEREST AND FEES

LIMIT ON INTEREST
The Borrower shall not be obligated to pay any interest, fees or costs under or in connection with
this Agreement in excess of what is permitted by Applicable Law.

OVERDUE PAYMENTS

Any amount that is not paid when due hereunder shall, uniess interest is otherwise payable in
respect thereof in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or the instrument or contract.
governing same, bear interest until paid at the rate of RBP plus 5% per annum or, in the case of
an amount in US currency if applicable, RBUSBR plus 5% per annum, Such interest on overdue
amounts shall be computed daily, compounded monthly and shall be payable both before and
after any or ali of default, maturity date, demand and judgement.

EQUIVALENT YEARLY RATES

The annual rates of interest or fees to which the rates calculated In accordance with this
Agreement are equivalent, are the rates so calculated multiplied by the actual number of days in
the calendar year in which such calculation is made and divided by 365.

TIME AND PLACE OF PAYMENT

Amounts payable by the Borrower hereunder shall be paid at such place as the Bank may advise
from time to time in the applicable currency. Amounts due on a day other than a Business Day
shall be deemed to be due on the Business Day next following such day. Interest and fees
payable under this Agreement are payable both before and after any or all of default, maturity
date, demand and judgement.

RBP LOANS AND RBUSBR LOANS

The Borrower shall pay interest on each RBP Loan and RBUSER Loan, monthly in arrears, on
the 26th day of each manth or such other day as may be agreed to between the Borrower and the
Bank. Such interest will be calcuiated monthly and will accrue daily on the basis of the actual
number of days elapsed and a year of 365 days and shall be paid in the currency of the
applicable Borrowing.

LETTER OF GUARANTEE FEES

The Borrower shall pay LG fees in advance on a quarterly basis calculated on the face amount of
the LG issued and based on the number of days in the upcoming quarter or remaining term
thereof and a year of 365 days. LG fees are non-refundable.

FACILITY FEES

The fee will be calcuiated in arrears, paid as per the frequency indicated in the Fees section of
this Agreement and will accrue daily on the unutilized and uncancelled portion of the amount of
the applicable facility from and including the date of acceptance of this Agreement.
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Schedule “D” to the Agreement dated October 12, 2011, between PCAS Patient Care Automation
Services Inc., as Borrower, and Royal Bank of Canada, as the Bank.

ADDITIONAL BORROWING CONDITIONS
LGs:
Borrowings made by way of LGs will be subject to the following terms and conditions:
a) each LG shail expire on a Business Day and shall have a term of not more than 365 days;

b} at least 2 Business Days prior to the issue of an LG, the Borrower shall execute a duly
authorized application with respect to such LG and each LG shalt be governed by the terms
and conditions of the relevant application for such contract;

¢) an LG may hot be revoked prior to its expiry date uniess the consent of the beneficiary of the
i.G has been obtained, : :

d) any LG issued under a term facility must have an expiry date on or before the Maturity Date
of the term facility, unless otherwlse agreed by the Bank; and

&) If there is any inconsistency at any time between the terms of this Agreement and the terms
of the application for LG, the terms of the application for LG shall govern,

FEF Confracts

“Foreign Exchange Forward Contract” or “FEF Contract” means a currency exchange
transaction or agreement or any option with respect to any such transaction now existing or
hereafier entered into between the Borrowsr and the Bank;

At the Borrower's request, the Bank may agree to enter into FEF Contracts with the Borrower
from time to time. The Borrower acknowledges that the Bank makes no format commitment
herein to enter into any FEF Contract and the Bank may, at any time and at all times, in its sole
and absolute discretion, accept or reject any request by the Borrower to enter into a FEF
Contract. If the Bank does enter into a FEF Contract with the Barrower, it will do so subject to the
following:

a) the Borrower shall promptly issue or countersign and refurn a confirmation or
acknowledgement of the terms of each such FEF Contract as required by the Bank;

b) the Borrower shall, if required by the Bank, promptly enter into a Foreign Exchange and
Options Master Agreement or such other agresment in form and substance satisfactory to the
Bank to govern the FEF Confract(s);

¢) in the event of demand for payment under the Agreement of which this schedule forms a part,
the Bank may terminate all or any FEF Cantracts. If the agreement governing any FEF
Contract does not contain provisions governing termination, any such termination shall be
effected in accordance with customary market practice. The Bank’s determination of amounts
owing under any terminated FEF Contract shall be conclusive in the absence of manifest
error. The Bank shall apply any amount owing by the Bank to the Borrower on termination of
any FEF Contract against the Borrower's obligations to the Bank under the Agreement and
any amount owing to the Bank by the Borrower on such termination shall be added to the
Borrower’s obligations to the Bank under the Agreement and secured by the Security;

d) the Borrower shall pay all required fees in connection with any FEF Contracts and indemnify
and hold the Bank harmless against any loss, cost or expense incurred by the Bank in
relation to any FEF Contract;
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e) any rights of the Bank herein in respect of any FEF Contract are in addition to and not in
limitation of or substitution for any tights of the Bank under any agreement governing such
FEF Contract. In the event that there is any inconsistency at any fime between the terms
hereof and any agreement governing such FEF Contract, the terms of such agreement shakli
prevail; and

f) In addition to any security which may be held at any time in respect of any FEF Contract,
upon request by the Bank from time to time, the Borrower will deliver fo the Bank such
sacurity as is acceptable to the Bank as continuing collateral security for the Borrower’s
obligations to the Bank in respect of FEF Contracts.
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Schedule “G” to the Agreement dated October 12, 2011, between PCAS Patient Care Automation
Services Inc., as Borrower, and Royal Bank of Canada, as the Bank.

BORROWING LIMIT CERTIFICATE

L , representing the Borrower heraby certify as of
month ending :

1. | am familiar with and have examined the provisions of the Agreement dated October 12,
2011 and any amendments thereto, between PCAS Patient Care Autornation Services Inc.,
as Borrower, and Royal Bank of Canada, as the Bank and have made reasonable
investigations of corporate records and inquiries of other officers and sentor personnel of the
Borrower. Terms defined In the Agreemeant have the same meanings where used in this

certificate.
2. The Borrowing Limit is § , calculated as follows:
Total Canadian/US Accounts Receivable excluding EDC $
Accounts Receivable
Less: a)  Accounts, any portion of which exceeds 80 $
days
b)  Accounts due from affiliates $
¢)  “Under 90 days” accounts where collection is $
suspect
d}  Accounts subject fo prior encumbrances $
8} Holdbacks, contra-accounts or rights of set-off  §
f)  Other ineligible accounts $
Plus: g}  Under 90 day portion of accounts included in a) $
above, where the over 90 day pottion is less
than 10% of the amount of accounts, or which
the Bank has designated as nevertheless good
Good Canadian/US Accounts Receivable A S
Marginable Good Canadian/US Accounts Receivable at 75% of B &
B
Total EDC Accounts Receivable $
Less: a)  Accounds, any portion of which exceeds 90 3
days
b)  Accounts due from affiliates $
¢} “Under 80 days” accounts where collection is
suspect
d)  Accounts subject to prior encumbrances 5
e} Holdbacks, conira-accounts or rights of set-off  §
fy  Other ineligible accounts $
Plus; g) Under 90 day portion of accounts included ina} §
above, where the over 90 day portion is iess
than 10% of the amount of accounts, or which
the Bank has designated as nevertheless good
Good EDG Accounts Receivable C 3§
Marginable Good EBC Accounts Receivable at 90% of C D %

Less: Potential Prior-Ranking Claims while not limited to these
include:

Sales tax, Excise & GST

Employee source deductions such as E.L, CPP, Income Tax
Workers Compensation Board

Wages, Commissions, Vacation Pay

Unpaid Pension Plan Coniributions

Overdue Rent, Property & Business Tax and potential claims
from third parties such as subcontractors

Other

I
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Total Paotential Prior-Ranking Claims E §
Borrowing Limit (B+ D-E) $
Less: Facility #1 Borrowings $
Margin Surplus (Deficit) $

3. Annexed hereto are the following reports in respect of the Borrower:

a) aged list of accounts receivable,

b) aged list of accounts payabls,

c) aged list of EDC Accounts Receivable indicating country of origin for each receivable
and most recent credit approval listing from EDC supported by Direction to Pay on EDC
form EB6, and

d) listing of Potential Prior-Ranking Claims.

4. The reports and information provided herewith are accurate and complete in all respects and

all amounis certified as Potential Prior-Ranking Ctaims are current amounts owing and not in
arrears.

Dated this day of , 20

Per:

Name:

Title:
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Schedule "H” to the Agreement dated October 12, 2011 between PCAS Patient Care Aufomation
Services Inc., as Borrower, and Royal Bank of Canada, as the Bank.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

I, , representing the Borrower hereby certify as of
fiscal quarter/fiscal year ending :

1. | am familiar with and have examined the provisions of the Agreement dated October 12,
201 1and any amendments thereto, between PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc., as
Borrower, and Royal Bank of Canada as the Bank, and have made reasonable investigations
of corporate records and inquiries of other officers and senior personnel of the Borrower and
any Guarantor if applicable. Terms defined in the Agreement have the same meanings where
used in this certificate.

2. The representations and warranties contained in the Agreement are frue and correct.

3. No event or circumstance has occurred which constitutes or which, with the giving of notice,
tapse of time, or both, would constitute an Event of Default and there is no reason to believe
that during the next fiscal guarter of the Borrower, any such event or circumstance will occur,

4. Tangible NetWorthis § , being not less than the minimum required amount of
$6,000,000 (tested each fiscal quarter).

5. The aggregate cash balance in bank accounts with the Bank on a consolidated basis Is
, being not less than the minimum required aggregate amount of $3,000,000
{tested each month).
5. The detailed calculations of the foregoing ratios and covenants is set forth in the addendum
annexed hereto and are true and correct in all respects.

Dated this day of . 20

Per:
Namse:
Title:

Per:
Name:
Title:
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Schedule “J” to the Agreement dated October 12, 2011, between PCAS Patient Care Automation
Services Inc., as Borrower, and Royal Bank of Canada, as the Bank.

RBC COVARITY DASHBOARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

If the Borrower elects to fulfill the reporting requirements relating to the submission of financial
information set out in this Agreement by accessing a secure web based portal ("RBC Covarity
Dashboard") via the Internet and using RBC Covarity Dashboard to electronically upload the
Borrower's financial information and to complete online and elsctronically submit certificates,
reports and/or forms (the “Service”), then the following terms and conditions (the “RBC Covarity
Dashboard Terms and Conditions”) apply and are deemad fo be included in, and form part of, the
Agreement.

1. Definitions. For the purpose of the RBC Covarity Dashboard Terms and Conditions:

“Disabling Code” means any clock, timer, counter, computer virus, worm, software lock, drop
dead device, Troian horse routing, trap door, time bomb, or any other unauthorized codes,
designs, routines or instructions that may be used to access, modify, replicate, distort, delete,
damage or disable any Electronic Channel, including any related hardware or software.

“Designated User” an individual permitted to act on behalf of and bind the Borrower in all
respects, and specifically in the submission of Electronically Uploaded Financial Information
and/or Electronically Submitted Certificates.

“Electronic Channel” means any telecommunication or electronic tfransmission method which
may be used in connection with the Service, including computer, Internet, telephone, e-mail or
facsimile.

“Electronic Communication” means any information, disclosure, request or other
communisation or agreement sent, received or accepted using an Electronic Channel.

“Electronically Submitted Certificates” means certificates, reports and/or forms completed
online and electronically submitted by any Designated User accessing the Service.

“Electronically Uploaded Financial Infermation” means financial data, reports and/or
infarrmation of the Borrower elecironically uploaded by any Designated User accessing the
Service.

“Internet” means a decentrafized global communications medium and the world-wide network of
computer networks, accessible 1o the public, that are connected to each other using specific
protocols, which provides for file transfer, electronic mail, remote log in, news, database access,
and other services.

“Password” means a combination of numbers andfor letters selected by a Designated User that
is used to identify the Designated User. The Password is used in conjunction with a User 1D to
access the Service.

“Security Breach” means any breach in the security of the Service, or any aclual or threatened
use of the Service, a Security Device, or Electronic Channel in a manner contrary to the
Agreement, including, without limitation, the introduction of Disabling Code or a Virus to the
Service.

“Security Device” means a combination of a User 1D and Password.

“Software” means any computer program or programming (in any cade format, including source
code), as modified from time to time, and related documentation.

“User ID” means the combination of numbers and/or letters selected by the Borrower used to
identify a particular Designated User. The User ID is used in conjunction with a Password to
access the Service.
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“Virus” means an element which is designed to corrupt data or enable access {o or adversely
jmpact upon the performance of computer systems, including any virus, worm, logic bomb and
Trojan horse.Terms defined in the Agreement have the same meanings where used in the RBC
Covarity Dashboard Terms and Conditions.

2. Access to the Service. The Borrower will appoint one or more Designated User(s) to access
the Service on behalf of the Borrawer. The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that each
Designated User appointed by the Borrower may electronically upload the Borrower's financial
information and may view all previously uptoaded financial Information and all calculations in the
RBC Covarity Dashboard.

At the time of registration for the Service, the Borrower will advise the Bank of the name and e-
mail address of each Designated User. The Borrower will immediately advise the Bank if a
Designated User changes or is no longer valid.

The Bank will pravide the Borrower with a User 1D and temporary password for each Designated
User. Each Designated User will receive the User ID and temporary password delivered to their
e-mail address. Each Designhated User will change the temporary password {o a unique
Password which may not be easily guessed or obtained by others. I it is suspected or known
that the Password has been compromised in any way, the Password must be changed
immediately.

On first access to the Service, each Designated User will be required to read and agree to terms
of use which will thereafter be accessible fram a link located on each web page of the Service.

3. Security Devices. The Borrower recognizes that possession of a Security Device by any
person may resuit in that person having access to the Service. The Borrower agrees that the use
of a Security Device in connection with the Service, including any information sent, received or
accepted using the Service, will be deemed to be conclusive proof that such information is
accurate and complete, and the submission of which is authorized by, and enforceable against,
the Borrower.

The Borrower is responsible for maintaining the security and confidentiality of Security Devices
which may be used in connaction with the Service. The Borrower is responsible for ensuring that
a Security Device will only be provided to and used by a Designated User. The Borrower agrees
to be bound by any actions or omissions resuliing from the use of any Security Device in
connection with the Service.

4. Security. Each party shall at all times have in place appropriate policies and pracedures to
protect the security and confidentiality of the Service, Electronic Channels and Electronic
Communication and to prevent any unauthorized access to and use of the Service and Electronic
Channels. The Borrower agrees to comply with any additional procedures, standards or other
security requirements that the Bank may require in order fo access the Service.

The Borrower will not (i) access or use the Service for an iifegal, fraudulent, maliclous or
defamatory purpose, or (if) take steps or actions that could or do undenmine the security, integrity,
effectiveness, goodwill or connectivity of the Service (including illegal, fraudulent, malicious,
defamatory or other activities that threaten to harm or cause harm to any other person).

The Borrower agrees not to transmit via the Service any viruses, worms, defects, Trojan horses
or any items of a destructive nature. The Borrower shall maintain the security of their computer by
using anti-virus scanning, a firewall and instaliing the latest security patches to provide assurance
that ne Virus is introduced into the systems or Software while accessing the Service.

5. Unsecure Electronic Channels. The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that If it uses, or I
it authorizes and directs the Bank to use, any unencrypied Electronic Channel, including
unencrypted e-mail or facsimile, any Electronic Communication sent, received and/or accepted
using such Electronic Channel is not secure, reliable, private or confidential. Any such Electronic
Communication could be subject to interception, loss or alteration, and may not be received by
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the intended recipient in a timely manner or at all. The Borrower assumes full responsibility for
the risks associated with such Electronic Communication.

6. Notice of Security Breach. The Borrower shall notify the Bank by notifying the RBC Account
Manager in writing immediately of any Security Breach including: (i) any application vulnerability
or if a Virus is contained in or affects transmission of information to the Service; or (it} if the
Borrower krnows or reasonably ought to know that an unauthorized person may have access to
the Service, Security Device or Electrenic Channel.

If a Security Breach occurs the Borrower shall: (i) assist the Bank in the management of any
consequences arising from it; (i) take any reasonable steps necessary for it to take to mitigate
any harm resulting from it; and (iii) take appropriate steps to prevent its recurrence.

7. Binding Effect. Any Electronic Communication that the Bank receives from or in the name of,
or purporting to be from or in the name of, the Borrower or any other person on the Borrower’s
behalf in connection with the Service, will be considered to be duly authorized by, and
enforceable against, the Borrower. The Bank will be authorized fo rely and act on any such
Electronic Communication, even if the Electronic Communication was not actually from the
Borrower or such other person or differs in any way from any previous Electronic Communication
sent to the Bank. Any Electronically Uploaded Financial information will be considered to be
financial information submitted to the Bank by an Individual permitted to act on behalf of and bind
the Borrower in all respects, and the Bank will be authorized to rely and act on any such
Electronically Uploaded Financial Information accordingly.  Any Electronically Submitted
Ceriificates will be considered to be certificates, reports and/or forms completed and submitted to
the Bank by an individual permitted to act on behalf of and bind the Borrower in &ll respects, and
the Bank will be authorized to rely and act on any such Electronically Submitted Certificates
accordingly.

8. Representations and Warranties. The Borrower represents and warrants to the Bank that
each tme Electronically Uploaded Financial Information and/or Electronically Submitted
Certificates are submitted: (i}all financlal statements, certificates, forms, reports and all
information contained therein will be accurate and complete in all respects; (i} all amounts
certified as Potential Prier-Ranking Claims will be current amounts owing and not in arrears;
{iii} all representations and warranties contained in the Agreement will be true and correct; and
{iv) no event will have occurred which constitutes, or which, with notice, lapse of time, or both,
would constiiute an Event of Default or breach of any covenant.or other term or condition of the
Agreement. The Borrower will be deemed to repeat these representations and warranties each
time Electronically Uploaded Financial Information andfor Electronically Submitied Certificates
are submitted.

9. Evidence. Electronic records and cther information obtained by the Bank in an Electronic
Communication will be admissible in any legal, administrative or other proceedings as conclusive
evidence of the contents of those communications in the same manner as an original paper
document, and the Borrower waives any right to object to the introduction of any such record or
other information into evidence on that basis.

10. Limitation of Liability. The Bank is not responsible or liable for any damages arising from:
(i) inaccurate, incomplete, false, misleading, or fraudulent information provided to the Bark;
(it) losses incurred as a result of an actual or potential Security Breach; or (iii) losses incurred as
a result of application vulnerability or Virus that js contained in or affects any Software or systems
used by or on behalf of the Borrower in connection with the Service.

Although every effort is made o provide secure transmission of information, timely
communication and confidentiality cannot be guaranteed. In no event shall the Bank be iable for
any loss or harm resulting from the use of the Service, or from a breach of confidentiality in
respect of use of the Service,

i1. Termination. The ability of the Borrower fo fulfill the reporting requirements relating to
the submission of financial information set out in the Agreement using RBC Covarity Dashboard
shall terminate upon revocation of access to the Service. In addition, the Bank may suspend or
terminate access to or discontinue the Service immediately for any reason at any time without
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prior notice. The Bank will not be respansible for any loss or inconvenience that may result from
such suspension or termination. The Borrower, upon giving notice fo the Bank by notifying the
RBC Account Manager in writing, may terminate use of the Service at any time.

12. Amendment. The Bank may amend these RBC Covarity Dashboard Terms and Conditions
upon 30 days notice (which may be glven electronically by way of e-mail or in writing) to the
Borrower. The Barrower agrees that the continued use of the Service after the effective date of a
change will constitute conclusive evidence of consent to all such amendments and the Borrower
shall be bound by the amendments,
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Attached is Exhibit “H” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22" day of March, 2012

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc



GEMERAL SECURITY AGREEMENT

E-FORM 924 (03/2008)
1. SECURITY INTEREST

{a) For value received, the undersigned {"Debtor"), hereby granis to ROYAL BANK OF CANADA ({"RBC"), a
security interest {the “Security Interest") in the undertaking of Debtor and in all of Debtor's present and after acquired
personat property including, without limitation, in all Goods (including all parts, accessories, attachments, special 1ools,
additions and accessions thereto), Chattel Paper, Documents of Title lwhether negotisble or not}, Instruments,
Intangibles, Money and Securities and aft other Investment Property now owned or hereafter owned or acquired by or
on behalf of Debtar (including such as may be returned to or rapossessed by Debtor) and in all proceeds and renewals
thereof, accretions thereto and substitutions therefore {nereinafter coltectively called “Collateral”), and including,
without limitation, all of the following now owned or hereafter ewnied or acguired by or on behalf of Debtor:

(i} ali inventory of whatever kind and wherever situate;

{i) all equipment {other than Inventory} of whatever kind and wherever siuate, including, without
limita‘cion,klalij machinery, tools, apparatus, plant, fumniture, fixtures and vehicles of whatsoever
nature or kind;

(it} all Accounts and book debts and generally all debts, dues, claims, choses in action and demands
of every nature znd kind howsocever arising or secured including letters of credit and advices of
credit, which are now due, owing or aceruing or growing due to or owned by of which may
hereafter hecome due, owing or acerung of growing due 1o or owned by Debtor {"Debts"”);

{iv} ajl lists, records and files relating to Debtor's customers, clients and patients;

{vi all deeds, documents, writings, papers, hooks of account and other books relating to or being
recards of Debts, Chattel Paper or Rocuments of Title or by which such are or may hereafter he
secured, evidenced, acknowiedged or made payable;

{vi) ail contractual rights and insurance ciaims;

{(vii) ali patents, Industrial dasigns, trade-marks, trade secrets and know-how including without
limitation environmental technology and biotechnology, confidential information, trade-names,
goodwill, copyrights, personality rights, plant breeders’ rights, integrated circuit topographies,
software and #il other forms of intellectual and industrial property, and any registrations and
appiications for registration of any of the foregoing (collectively “intellectual Property™}; and

{vili}ali property described in Schedule "C" or any scheduie now or hereafter annexed hereto.

(b} The Security Interest granted hereby shall not extend or apply to and Collateral ghall not include the last
day of the term of any lease or agreement therefor but upon the enforcement of the Security interest, Debtor shall
stand possessed of such last day in trust to assign the same to any person acquiring such term. .

{c) The terms "Goods", "Chattel Paper”, "Document of Title", “instrument”, "Intangible”, "Security",
YInvestment Property”, "proceed", inventary”, "accession”, "Money”, “Acgount”, “financing statement” and
“financing change statement” whenever used herein shall be interpreted pursuant to thair respectiveé meanings when
used in The Personal Property Security Act of the province referred to in Clause 14{s}, as amended from time to time,
which Act, including amendments thereto and any Act substituted therefor and amendments therete is herein referred
to as the "P.P.S.A.". Provided always that the term "Goods™ when used herein shall not include "consumer goods" of
Debtor as that term is defined in the P.P.8.A., the term “Inventory” when used herein shall include livestock and the
young thereoi after conception and crops that become such within one year of execution of this Security Agreement
and the term “Investment Property”, if not defined in the P.P.8.A., shall be interpreted according to its meaning In the
Personal Property Security Act {Ontario). Any reference herein to “Collaterai” shall, unless the contexi otherwise
raquires, he deemed a reference to "Collateral or any part thateof”.

2. INDEBTEDMESS SECURED

The Security Interest granted hereby secures payment and performance of any and all obligations,
indebtedness and liability of Debtor to RBC {including interest thereon) prasent or future, direct or indirect, absolute or
contingent, matured or not, extended or renewed, wheresoever and howsoever incurred and any uitimats unpaid
balance thereof and whether the same is from time to time reduyced and thareaftar increased or entirely extinguished
and thereafter incurred again and whether Debtor be bound alone or with another or others and whether as principal or
suraty (nereinafier collectively called the "Indebtedness”™). If the Security Interest in the Collateral is not sufficient, in
the event of default, to satisfy all Indebtedness of the Debtor, the Debtor acknowledges and agrees that Debtor shall
*ft?min?e to be iiable for any Indebiedness remaining outstanding and RBC shall be entitied to pursue full payment

ergof.

3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF DEBTOR

Debtor represents and warrants and so long &s this Security Agreement remains in effact shall be deemed to
continuously represent and warrant that: .

(a) the Collateral is genuine and owned by Debtor free of ail security interests, mortgages, liens, claims,
charges, licenses, leases, infringements by third parties, encumbrances or other adverse claims or interests {hereinafter
collectively called "Encumbrances"), save for the Security Intarest and those Encumbrances shown on Schedule "A" or
hersafter approved in writing by RBC, prior to their creation or assumption;

(b} all Inteliectual Propenty applications and registrations are valid and in good standing and Debtor is the
owner of the applications and registrations;

. {s) each Debt, Chattel Paper and Instrument constituting Coltateral is enforceable in accordance with its terms
against the party obligated to pay the same {the "Account Debtor"}, and the amount represented by Debtor to REC
from time 1o time as owing by each Account Debtor or by all Account Debtors will be the correct amount actually and
uncenditionally owing by such Account Debtor or Account Debtors, except for normal ¢ash discounts where applicable,
and no Account Debtor will have any defence, set off, claim or counterclaim against Debtor which can be assarted
against RBC, whether in any proceeding to enforce Collateral or atherwise;
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{di the iocations specified In Schedule "B" as to busingss operations and records are accurate and compiete
and with respect to Goods (including Inventory} constituting Collateral, the locations spacified in Schedule "B" are
gccurate and complete save for Goods in transit to such locations and Inventory on lease or consignment; and alf
fixtures or Goods about to become fixtures and alt crops and all oil, gas or other minerals to ba extracted and ali timber
to be cut which forms part of the Collateral will be situate at one of such tocstions; and

{e) the execution, delivery and performance of the obligations under this Security Agreement and tha creation
of any security interest in or assignment hereunder of Debtor's rights in the Collateral to RBC wili not result in 2 breach
of any agreement 10 which Debtor is a party,

4. COVENANTS OF THE DEBTOR

So long as this Security Agreement remains in effect Debtor covenants and agrees: .

{a} to defend the Coliateral against the claims and demands of all other parties claiming the same or an
interest therein; to diligently initiate and prosecute legal action against all infringers of Debtor's rights in Intellectual
Property; to taks all reasanable action to keep the Collateral free from all Encumbrances, except for the Security
Interest, licenses which are compulsory under federal or provincial legislation and those shown on Schadule "A" or
hereafter approved in writing by REC, prior to their creation or assurnption, and not to self, sxchange, transfer, assign,
isase, license or otherwise dispose of Collateral or any interest therein without the prior written consent of RBC;
provided always that, until default, Debtor may, in the ordinary course of Debtor's business, sell or lease inventory and,
subject to Clause 7 hersof, use Money available to Debtor;

{b} to notify RBC promptly of:

(i} any change in the information contained hereln or in the Schadules hereto relating to Debtor,
Debtor's business or Collateral,

(ii} the details of any significant acquisition of Collateral,

{iif

the details of any claims or litigation aifecting Debtor or Collateral,
{iv) any loss or damage to Collateral,

{v) any default in an amount exceeding $250,000 by any Account Debtor in payment or ather
performance of its obfigations with respect to Collateral, and

{(vi} the return to or repossession by Debtor of Collateral;

(c) ta keep Collateral in good arder, candition and repair and not to use Coliateral in violation of the provisions
of this Security Agresmnent or any other agreement relating to Collateral or any policy insuring Collsteral or any
applicable statute, law, by-law, rule, regulation or ordinance; to_keep all agreements, registrations and applications
relating to Inteilectual Property and inteilectual property used by Debtor in its business in good standing and to renew
all agreements and registrations as may be necessary or desirable to protect Intellectual Property, unless othsrwise
agreed In writing by RBC; to apply to register all existing and future copyrights, trade-marks, patents, integrated circuit
topegraphies and indusirial designs whenever it is commercially reasonable to do so; :

(d) to do, execute, acknowledge and deliver such financing statements, financing change statements and
further assignments, wansfers, documents, acts, matters and things (including further schedules hereto) as may he
reasonably requestied by RBC of or with respect to Collateral in order to give effect to these presents and to pay all
costs for searches and filings in connection tharewith;

. {e} to Jaay all taxes, rates, levies, assessments and other charges of every nature which may be lawfully
Iewecibi assessed or imposed against or in respect of Debtor or Collateral as and when the same become due and
payable;

{f) to insure coflateral In such amounts and against such risks as would customarily be insured by a prudent
owner of simitar Collateral and in such additional amounts and against such additional risks as RBC may from time to
time direct, with loss payable to REC and Debtor, as insureds, as their respective interests may appear, and 1o pay all
premiums therefor and deliver copies of policies and evidence of renewal to RBC on reguest;

{g) to prevent Collateral, save inventory sold or ieased as permitted hereby, from being or becoming an
accession to other property not covered by this Security Agreement;

(h} to carry on and condyct the business of Debtor in a proper and efficient manner and so as to protect and
preserve Collateral and to keep, in accordancs with generally accepted accounting principies, consistently applied,

proper books of account for Debtor's business as wall as ascurate and complete records concerning Collateral, and
mark any and all such records and Collateral at RBC's request so as to indicate the Security Interest;

{iY to deliver to RBC from time 1o time promptly upoen request:

{i) any Documents of Title, Instruments, Securities and Chattel Paper constituting, representing or
relating to Collateral,

{ii} all books of aceount and ali records, ledgers, reporis, correspondence, schaedules, documents,
statemsnts, lists and other writings relating to Coliateral for the purpose of inspecting, auditing or
copying the same,

(itiy alt financial staternents prepared by or for Debtor regarding Debtor's businaess,

{iv) all policies and certificates of insurance relating to Collateral, and

(v} such information concerning Collateral, the Debtor and Debtor's business and affairs as RBC may
reasonably request.
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5. USE AND VERIFICATION OF COLLATERAL

Subject to compliance with Debtor's covenants contained herein and Clause 7 hereof, Debtor may, until defsult, possess,

operate, collect, use and enjoy and deal with Collateral in the ordinary course of Deblor's business in any manner not inconsistent with

the provisions hereof; provided always that ABC shall have the right at any time and from time to time to verify the existence and state
of the Collateral in any manner RBC may consider appropriate and Debtor agrees to furnish ail assistance and information and to
perform all such acts as RBC may reasormbly request in connection therewith and for such purpose to grant t¢ RBC or Its agents
access to all places where Collateral may be located and to all premises occupied by Dabtor,

8. SECURITIES, INVESTMENT PROPERTY

if Coliateral at any time includes Securities, Debtor authorizes RBC to transfer the same or any part thereof into its own name
or that of its nominee(s) sc that RBC or its nomines(s} may appear of record as the sole owner thereo; provided that, untii default,
RBC shall deliver promptiy to Debtor all notices or other communications received by it or its nominee(s} as such registered owner and,
upon demand and receipt of payment of any necessary expenses thereof, shall issue to Debtor or its order a proxy to vote and take ail
action with respect 10 such Securities. After default, Debtor waives all rights to receive any notices or communications received by
RBC or its nominee{s) s such registered owner and agrees thet no proxy issued by RBC to Debtor or s order as aforesald shall
thereafter bs effective.

Where any Investment Property is hald in or credited to an account that has been established with a securities intermediary, RBC may,
gt any time after default, give a notica of exclusive control t6 any such securities intermediary with respect to such Investment
roperty.

7. COLLECTION OF DEBTS

After default under this Security Agreement, RBC may notify all of any Account Debtors of the Security Interest and may also
direct such Account Debtars to make ali payments on Coifateral to RBC. Debtor acknowledges that any payments on or other
proceeds of Collateral received by Debtor from Account Debtors, whether before or after notification of this Security Interest to
Account Debtors and whether before or after default under this Security Agreement, shall be received and held by Debtor in trust for
RBC and shall be turned over to RBC upon reguest.

8, INCOME FROM AND INTEREST ON COLLATERAL

(a) Until default, Debtor reserves the right 1o recsive any Money constituting income from or interest on Collateral and if ABC
Becgives any such Money prior to default, RBC shall elther credit the same ageinst the Indebtedness or pay the same promptly to
ebtor. .

{b) After default, Debtor will not request or receive any Money constituting income from or interest on Coltatera) and if Debtor
receives any such Money without any request by it, Debtor will pay the same promptly to RBC.

9. INCREASES, PROFITS, PAYMENTS OR DISTRIBUTIONS
{a} After default has occourred, Debtor authorizes RBC:,

{i} to receive any increase in or profits on Coliaterat (sther than Money) and to hold the same as part
of Collateral. Money so received shall be weated as income for the purposes of Clause 8 hereof and
dealt with accordingly;

(it} to receive any payment or distribution upon redemption or retirement or upon dissolution and
liquidation of the issuer of Collateral; to surrender such Collateral in exchange therefor and to
fiold any such payment or distribution as part of Collateral.

(b} 1If Debtor receives any such increase or profits (other than Money} or payments or distributions, Debtor will deliver the
same promptly to RBC to be held by RBC as herein provided,

10, DISPOSITION OF MONEY

Subject to any applicable reguirements of the P.P.S.A., all Money collected or received by RBC pursuant to or in exercise of
any right it possesses with respect to Collateral shail be applied on aceount of indebtedness in such manner as RBC deems best or, at
the option of RBL, mag ke held unappropriated in @ toilateral account or released to Debtor, all without prejudice to the liability of
Debtor or the rights of RBC hereunder, and any surplus shall be accounted for as required by law.

11. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

The happening of any of the following events or conditions shall constitute default hereunder which is herein referred to as "default":

{a) the nonpayment when due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, of any principal or interest forming part of
Indebtedness or the failure of Debtor to abserve or perform any obligation, covenant, term, provision or condition
contained in this Security Agreement or any other agreement betwean Debtor and RBC;

i ‘éb) l1:he death of or a declgration aof incompetency by a court of competent jurisdiction with respect to Debtor, if
an individual;

. le} the bankruptey or insoivency of Debtor; the filing against Debtor of a petition in bankruptey; the making of
an asslgnment for the benefit of creditors by Debtor; the appointment of a receiver or trustee for Debtor or for any assets
of Debtor or the institution by or against Debtor of any other type of insolvency proceeding under the Bankruptcy and
Insolvency Act or otherwise;

{d} the institution by or against Debtor of any formal or informal proceeding for the dissolution or fiquidation of,
settlement of claims against or winding up of affairs of Debtor;

{e) if any Encumbrance affecting Collateral becomes enforceabie against Coltateral:

{f) if Debtor ceases or threatens io cease to carry on business or makes or agrees to make a bulk sale of assets
without complying with applicabie law or commits or threatens to commit an act of bankruptcy;

(g} if any execution, seyuestratian, extent or other process of any court becomes enforceable against Debtor or
if distress or analogous process is levied upon the assets of Debtor or any part thereof;
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W) if any certificate, statement, representation, warranty or audit report heretofore or hereafter furnished by or on
behaif of Debtor pursuant to or in gonnection with this Security Agreement, or otherwise (including, without limitation, the
representations and warranties contained herein) or as an indugement to RBC to extend any credit to or to enter irto this or any
other agreement with Debtor, proves to have been false in any material respect at the time as of which the facts therein set forth
were stated or certified, or proves to have omitted any substantial contingent or unliguidated liability or claim against Debtor; or
if upon the date of execution of this Security Agreement, there shall have been any material adverse change in any of the facts
disciosed by any such certificate, representation, statement, warranty or audit report, which change shall not have been
disciosed to RBC at or prior to the time of such execution.

12 ACCELERATION

RBC, in its sole discretion, may declare ali ar any part of Indehtedness which Is not by its terms payabie on demand 1o
be Immediately due and payable, without demand or notice of any kind, in the event of default, or if RBC considers itseif insecure
or that the Collateral is in jeopardy. The provisions of this clause are not intended in any way to affect any rights of RBC with
respect 10 any Indebtedness which may now or hereafter be payable on derand.

13. REMEDIES

{a) Upon default, RBC may appoint or reappoint by Instrument In writing, any person or persons, whethner an officer or
officers or an employee or employees of RBC or not, to be & receiver or receivers {hereinafter called a "Receiver”, which term
when used herein shall include a receiver and manager) of Collateral {including any interest, income or profits tharefrom) and may
remove any Receiver so appointed and appoint another in his/her stead. Any such Receiver shall, so far as concerns
responsibility for his/her acts, be deemed the agent of Debtor and not RBC, and RBC shell not be in any way responsible for any
misconduct, negligence or non-feasance on the part of any such Receiver, his/her servants, agents or smployees. Subject to the
provisions of the instrument appointing him/her, any such Receiver shall have power to take possassion of Collateral, o preserve
Collateral or its value, to carry on or concur in carrying on all or any part of the business of Debtor and to seli, lease, license or
otherwise dispose of or concur in selling, leasing, licensing or otherwise disposing of Collateral. To facilitate the feregain
powers, any such Receiver may, to the exclusion of ali others, incluging Debtor, enter upon, use and occupy all premises owne
or occupied by Debtor wherein Collateral may be situeate, maintain Collateral uponr such premises, borrow money on a secured or
unsecured basis and use Collateral directly in carrying on Dabtor's business or as security for loans or advances to enable the
Receiver to carry on Debtor's business or otherwise, as such Receiver shall, in its discretion, determine. Except as may be
otherwise directed by RBC, all Money regeived from time to time by such Receiver in carrying out his/her appoirntment shall be
received in trust for and paid over to RBC. Every such Receiver may, in the discretion of RBC, be vested with alt or any of the
rights and powers of RBC.

(b} Upon default, RBC may, sither directly or through its agents or nominees, exercise any or all of the powers and
rights given to a Receiver by virtue of the fore?oing sub-clause {a). .

(c) RBC may take possession of, collect, demand, sue on, enforce, recover and receive Coilateral and give vaiid and
hinding receipts and discharges therefor and in respect thereof and, upon default, RBC may sell, license, lease or otherwise
dispose of Collateral in such manner, at such time or times end piace or places, for such consideration and upon such terms and
conditions as to RBC may seem reasonable. .

{d} In addition to those rights granted herein and i any other agreement now or hereafter in effect between Debtor and
REC and in additlen to any cther rights RBC may have at law or in equity, RBC ghall have, both before and after default, all rights
and remedies of a securad Earty under the P.P.S.A. Provided always, that RBC shall not he liable or accountabie for any failure
to exercise its remedies, take possession of, callect, enforce, realize, sell, lease, license or otherwise dispose of Cotlateral or to
institute any proceedings for such purposes. Furthermore, RBC shall have no obligation 1o take any steps 10 preserve rights
against prior gartjes to any Instrument or Chattel Paper whether Collateral or proceeds and whether or not in RBC's possession
and shatt not be liable or accountable for failure to do so.

{e) Debtor acknowledges that RBC or any Receiver appointed by it may take possession of Collateral wherever it may
be located and by any method permitted by law and Debtor agrees upon request from RBC or any such Raceiver to assemble and
deliver possession of Coffateral at such place or places as directed.

Debtor agrees to be liable for and to pay all costs, charges and expenses reasonably incurred by RBC or any
Receiver appointed by it, whether directly or for services rendered (inciuding reasonable solicitors and auditors costs and other
legal expenses and Receiver remuneration), in operating Debtor's accounts, in preparing or enforcing this Security Agreement,
taking and maintaining custody of, preserving, repairing, processing, preparing for disposition and disposing of Collateral and in
enforcing or coﬂec:ting Indebtedness and all such costs, charges and expenses, together with any amounts owing as a result of
any borrowing by RBC or any Receiver appointed by it, as parmitted hereby, shall be a first charge on the proceeds of realization,
collection or disposition of Coliateral and shall be secured hereby.

g} RBC will give Debtor such notice, if any, of the date, time and place of any public sale ar of the date after which
any private disposition of Collateral is to be made as may be required by the P.P,8.A..

{(n) Upon defauit and receiving written demand from RBC, Dabtor shall take such further action as may be necassary to
evidence and effect an assignmant or licensing of Inteliectual Property to whomeaver RBC directs, including to RBC. Debtor
appoints any officer or director or branch manager of RBC upon default to be its attorney |n accordange with spplicable
legislation with full power of substitution and to do on Debtor's behalf anything that is required to assign, ficense or transfer,
and to record any assignment, licence or transfer of the Collateral. This power of attorney, which is coupled with an interest, is
irrevocable until the release or discharge of the Security Interest.

14, WMISCELLANEOQUS ’

(a) Debtor hereby authorizes RBC 1o file such financing statements, financing change statements and other documaents
and do such acts, matters and things {including completing and adding schedules hereto identifying Coliateral or any permittad
Encumbrances affecting Coliateral or identifying the locations at which Debtor's business is carried on and Coliateral and records
relating thereto are situate) as RBC may deem appropriate to perfect on an ongoing basis and continue the Security Intersst, to
protect and preserve Collateral and to realize upon the Security Interest and Debtor hereb}/1 irrevocably constitutes and appoints
the Manager or Acting Manager from time to time of the herein mentioned branch of RBC the true and lawiful attorney of Debtor,
with full power of substitution, 1o do any of the foregaing in the name of Debtor whenever and wherever it may be deemed
necessar?( or expedient. . .

b) Without limiting any other right of REC, whenever Indebtedness is immediately due and gayabie or REBC has the right
to declare Indebtedness to be immediately due and payeble (whether or not it has so declared), RBC may, in its scle discretion
set off against Indsbtedness any and ell amounts then owed to Debtor by RBC in any capacity, whether or not due, and RBC
shall be deemed to have exsrcised such right to set off immediately at the tima of making its decislon to do g6 even though any
charge therefor is made or entered on REC's records subsequent thereto.

{z}  Upon Debtor’s failure to perform any of ite duties hereunder, RBC may, but shall not be obligated to,
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perform any or all of such duties, and Debtor shall pay to RBC, forthwith upon written demand therefor, an amount
equal to the expense incurred by RBC in so doing plus interest thereon from the date such expanse Is incurred until it is
paid at the rate of 15% per annum. . )

d) RBC may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give up security, accept compositions,
gompound, compromise, settle, grant releases and discharges and otherwise deal with Debtor, debtors of Dabtar,
sureties and others and with Collateral and other security as RBC may ses fit without prejudice to the lisbility of Debtar
ot RBC's right to hold and realize tha Security Interest. Furthermore, RBC may demand, collect and sue on Collateral in
either Debtor's or RBC's name, at RBC's option, and may endorse Debtor's name on any and &l cheques, commercial
paper, and any other Instruments pertaining to or constituting Collateral, )

{e} No delay or omission by RBC in exercising any right or remedy hereunder or with respect to any
Indebtedness shail operate as a waiver thereof or of any other right or remedy, and no single or partial exercise thereof
shalt preciude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or remedy. Furthermore, RBC may
remedy any defauit by Debtor hereunder or with respect to any Indebtedness in any reascnabie manner without
waiving the default remedied and without waiving any other prior or subsequent default by Debtor. All rights and
remedies of RBC granted or recognized herein are cumutative and may be exercised at any ime and from time to time
indapendently or in combination.

o {1 Debtor waives grotest of zny Instrument constituting Collateral st any time held by RBC on which Debtor
is in any way liable and, subject to Clause 13{g) hereof, notice of any other action taken by RBC.

{g) This Security Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their
respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns. In any action brought by an assignee of thig
Security Agreernent and the Security Interest or any part thereo? to enforce any rights hereunder, Debtor shall not
assert against the assignee any claim or defence which Debtor now has or hereafter may have against RBC. f more
than one Debtor executes this Security Agreement the obligations of such Debtors hereunder shalt be joint and several.

(h) RBC may provide any financial and other information it has about Debtor, the Security Interest and the
Collateral to any one acquiring or who may acquire an interest in the Security Interest or the Collateral from the Bank or
any ohe acting on behalf of the Bank.

{i} Save for any schedules which may be added hereto pursuant 10 the provisions hereof, no modification,
variation or amendment of any provisien of this Security Agreement shall be made except by & writien agreement,
executed by the parties hereto and no waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless in writing. .

j) Subject to the requirements of Clauses 13(g} and 14{k) hersof, whenever sither party hereto is reguired or
entitled to notify or direct the other or to make a demand or request upon the other, such notice, direction, demand or
request shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given, in the case of RBC, it gelivered to it or sent by prapald
registered mail addressed to it at its address herein set forth or as changed nursuant hereto, and, in the case of Debtor,
if delivered to it ar if sent by prepaid registered mail addressed to It at its last address known to RBC. Either party may
notify the other pursuant hereto of any change In such party's pringipal address to be used for the purposes hereof,

{k} This Security Agreement ang the security afforded hereby is in addition to and not in substitution for any
other security now or hereafter held by RBC and is intended 1o be a continuing Security Agreement and shall remain in
full force and effect until the Manager or Acting Manager frem time to time of the hereln mentioned branch of RBC
shali actually receive written notice of its discontinuance; and, notwithstanding such notice, shalt remain in full force
and effect thereafter untit all Indebtedness contracted for or created before the receipt of such notice by RBC, and any
extensions or renewals thereof (whether made befora or after receipt of such notice) together with interast accruing
thereon after such notice, shall be paid in full,

{i) The headings used in this Security Agreement are for convenience only and are not be considered a part of
this Security Agreement and do not in any way limit or amplify the terms and provisions of this Security Agreement.

.. {m) When the context so requires, the singular number shall be read as if the plursl were expressed and the
provisions heraof shall be read with all grammatical changes necessary dependent upon the person referred to being a
male, female, firm or corporation.

{n) iIn the event any provisions of this Security Agreement, as amended from time to tims, shall be deemed
invalid or void, in whole or in part, by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining termns and provisions of this
Security Agreement shall remain in fuil force and effect.

(o} Nothing herein contained shall in any way cbligate RBC to grant, continue, renew, extend time for
payment of or accept anything which constitutes or would constitute Indebtedness.

{p} The Security Interest created hereby Is intended to attach when this Security Agreement is signed by
PDebtor and delivered to RBC,

(q} Debtor acknowiedges and agrees that in the event it amalgamates with any cther campany or companies
it is the intention of the parties hereto that the term “"Delbtor” when used herein shall apply to each of the
amalgamating companies and to the amaigamated company, such that the Security Interest granted hereby

) {i) shall extend to "Collateral” (as that term is harein definsd) owned by each of the amalgamating
companies and the amalgamated company at the time of amalgamation and to any “"Coliateral” thereafter ewned or
acquired by the amalgamated company, and

) {ii) shail secure the "Indebtedness” {as that term is herein defined) of each of the amalgamating
companies and the amalgamated company to RBC at the time of amalgamation and any “indebtedness® of the
amalgamated company to RBC thereafter erising. The Security Interest shall attach to "Collateral" cwned by each
company amalgamating with Debtor, and by the amelgamated company, at the time of the amalgamation, and shail
attach Eﬂo any "Collateral” thereafter owned or acouired by the amalgamated company when such becomss owned or is
acquired,

{r) In the event that Debtor is a body corporate, It Is hereby agreed that The Limitation of Civil Rights Act of
the Province of Saskatchewan, or any provision thereof, shall have no application to this Security Agreement or any
agreament or instrument renewing or extending or collateral to this Security Agreement. in the event that Debtor is an
agricuitural corporation within the meaning of The Saskatchewan Farm Security Act, Debtor agrees with BBC that all of
Part [V {other than Section 46} of that Act shall not apply to Debtor,

(s} This Security Agreement and the transactions evidenced hereby shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the province in which the herein branch of RBC is jocated, as those laws may from time to
Hime bs in effect, except if such branch of RBC is located in Quebec then, this Security Agreemant and the transactions
evidenced hereby shali be governed by and construed in accordance with the [aws of the Province of Ontario and the
laws of Canada appiicable therein,

15. COPY OF AGREEMENT
(a} Debtor hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of this Security Agreement,
b) Debtor waives Debtor's right to receive a copy of any financing statement or financing changs

statementi registered by RBC or of any verification statement with respect to any financing statement or financing
change statement registered by RBC. {Applies in all P.P.8.A. Provinces except Ontario}.
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16. Debtor represents and warrants that the foliawing information is accurater

INDIVIDUAL DEETOR
SURNAME (LAST NAME) FIRST NAME SECOND NAME BIRTH DATE
. YEAR MONTH DAY
ADDAESS OF INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR iy PROVINCE POSTAL CODE
SURNAME [LAST NAME] FIRST NAME SECOND NAME BIRTH DATE
YEAR MONTH DAY
ADDRESE.OF INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR [if IWFFERENT FROM AROVE) CHY PAQVINCE POSTAL.CGDE

rBLLSJLLESﬁ-_D_EElOR
NAME OF BUSINESS DEETOR

PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC. )
ABDRESS OF BUSINESS DEBTOR ey PROVINGE | POSTAL CORE
Unit 2, 2880 Brighton Road Cakville ON L&H 583
P )
TRADE NAME OF DEBTOR |
PRINGIPAL ADDRESS OF DIFFERENT FROM ABOVE crY PROVINGE POSTAL CODE
IN WITNESS WHEREOF Debtor has executed this Security Agreement this - tlay of ,
PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC.
. 7
4(- ? ) __,/ A 7 /{.‘. MJ% -
WITNESS : s V L / /
: ' Lorsto Grimaldi
PCAS Pellent Care Automtion Senes
. i 4 ‘ _‘}, ¥
BRANCH ADDRESS -

MISS-KBI ONTARIO-LIFE SCIENCES
6880 FINANCIAL DRIVE, 2"° FLR
MISSISSAUGA, ON

L5N 7Y5
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{ENCUMBRANCES AFFECTING COLLATERAL)
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SCHEDULE "B"

Locations of Debtor's Business Operations

Linit 2, 2880 Brighton Road
Qakville, ON
L6H 583

2. Locations of Racords refating to Collateral (if different from 1. above}
Same as above

3. Locations of Coliateral (if different from 1. above)
Same as above
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$CHEDULE "C"
(DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY}
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Attached is Exhibit “I” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012

?UW o Son

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, ete
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RETENTIGN - M

GUARANTEE AND POSTPONEMENT OF CLAIM

TO: ROYAL BANK OF CANADA

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt whereof is hereby acknowiedged, the undersigned and each of them
{if more tharn one) hereby jointly and severally guarantee(s) payment on demand to Royal Bank of Canada (hereinafter
cailed the "Bank") of all debts and liabilities, present or future, direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, matured or not,
at any time owing by PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC. {hereinafter called the "Customer”) to the
Bank or remaining unpaid by the Customer to the Bank, heretofore or hereafter incurred or arising and whether incurred
by or arising from agreement or dealings between the Bank and the Customer or by or from any agreement or dealings
with any third party by which the Bank may be or become in any manner whatsocever a creditor of the Customer or
however otherwise incurred or arising anywhere within or outside the country where this guaraniee is executed and
whether the Customer be bound alone or with another or others and whether as principal or surety (such debts and
fiabilities being hereinafter called the "Liabilities"); the liability of the undersigned hereunder being limited to the sum of §
3,800,000.00 Three Million Efght Bundred Thousand Deliars together with interest thereon from the date of demand for
payment at a rate equal to the Baak's Prime Interest Rate per annum in effect from time to time pfus 5.000  Five percent
per annum as well after as before default and judgment.

AND THE UNDERSIGNED AND EACH OF THEM (IF MORE THAN ONE) HEREBY JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY AGREE(S)
WITH THE BANK AS FOLLOWS:

(1} The Bank may grant time, renewals, extensions, indulgences, releases and discharges 1o, take securities (which
word as used herein includes securities taken by the Bank from the Customer and others, monies which the Customer
has on deposit with the Bank, other assets of the Customer held by the Bank in safekeeping or otherwise, and other
guarantees} from and give the same and any or afl existing securities up to, abstain from taking securities from, or
perfecting securities of, cease or refrain from giving credit or making loans or advances to, or change any term or
condition appiicablie to the liabilities, including without limitation, the rate of interest or maturity cate, if any, or introduce
new terms and conditions with regard to the liabilities, or accept compositions from and otherwise deal with, the
Customer and others and with all securities as the Bank may see fit, and may apply all moneys at any 1ime received
from the Customer or others or from securities upon such part of the liabilities as the Bank deems best and change any
such application in whole or in part from time to tirhe as the Bank may see fit, the whole without in any way limiting or
lessening the liability of the undersigned under this guarantee, and ne loss of or in respect of any securities received by
the Bank from the Customer or others, whether occasioned by the fault of the Bank or otherwise, shail in any way limit
or lessen the liabitity of the undersigned under this guarantee.

(2} This guarantee shali be a continuing guarantee and shall cover ail the Liabilities, and it shail apply to and secure any
ultimate balance due or remaining unpaid to the Bank.

{3) The Bank shall not be bound to exhaust ifs recourse against the Customer or others or any securities it may at any
time hold before being entitied to payment frem the undersigned of the Liabilities. The undersigned renouncel(s) to all
henefits of discussion and division.

{(4) The undersigned or any of them may, by notice in writing delivered 1o the Manager of the branch or agency of the
Bank receiving this instrument, with effect from and after the date that is 30 days following the date of receipt by the
Bank of such notice, determine their or his/her Hability under this guarantes in respect of Ligbilities thereafter incurred or
arising but not in respect of any Liabilities theretofore incurred or arising even though not then matured, provided,
howaever, that notwithstanding receipt of any such notice the Bank may fulfil any requirements of the Customer based
on agreements express or implied made pror to the receipt of such notice and any resulting Liabilities shall be covered
by this guarantee; and provided further that in the event of the determination of this guarantee as to one or more of the
undersigned it shall remain a continuing guarantee as to the other or others of the undersigned.

(5} All indebtedness and lability, present and future, of the customer to the undersigned or any of them are hereby

assigned to the Bank and postponed to the liabilities, and all moneys received by the undersigned or any of them in
respect thereof shali be receivad in trust for the Bank and forthwith upon receipt shall be paid over to the Bank, the
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whole without in any way fimiting or lessening the liability of the undersignad under the foregoing guarantee; and this
assignment and postponement is independent of the said guarantee and shali remain In full effect notwithstanding that the
fiability of the undersigned or any of them under the said guarantes may be extinct. The term "Liabilities”, as previously
defined, for purposes of the postponement feature provided by this agreement, and this section in particular, includes any
funds advanced or held at the disposal of the Customer under any line(s} of credit.

(6) This guarantee and agresment shall not be affected by the death or ioss or diminution of capacity of the undersigned
or any of them or by any change in the name of the Customer or in the membership of the Customer's firm through the
death or retirement of one or more partners ¢ the introduction of one or more other partners or otherwise, or by the
acquisition of the Customer's business by a corporation, or by any change whatsoever in the objects, capital structure or
constitution of the Customer, or by the Customer's business being amalgamated with a corporation, but shall
notwithstanding the happening of any such event continue to apply to all the Liabilities whether theretofore or thereafter
incurred or atising and in this instrument the word "Customer” shalt include every such firm and corporation,

[7) This guarantee shalf not be considered as wholly or partially satisfied by the payment or liquidation at any time or
times of any sum or sums of money for the time peing due or remaining unpaid to the Bank, and all dividends,
compositions, proceeds of security valued and payments received by the Bank from the Custemer or from others or from
estates shail be regarded for all purposes as payments in gross without any right on the part of the undersigned to claim in
reduction of the liability under this guarantee the benefit of any such dividends, compositions, proceeds or payments or any
securities held by the Bank or proceeds thereof, and the undersigned shall have no right to be subrogated in any rights of
the Bank until the Bank shail have recelved payment in full of the Liabilities.

(8) Al monies, advances, renewals, credits and credit facillties in fact borrowed or obtained from the Bank shall be
deemad to form part of the Liabilities, notwithstanding any lack or limitation of status or of power, incapacity or disability
of the Customer or of the directors, partners or agents of the Customer, or that the Customer may not be a legal or suable
entity, or any irregularity, defect or informality in the borrowing or obtaining of such monies, advances, renewals, credits or
credit facifities, or any other reason, simitar or not, the whole whether known to the Bank or not. Any sum which may not
be recoverabls from the undersigned on the footing of a guarantee, whether for the reasons set out in the previous
sentence, or for any other reason, similar or not, shall be recoverable from the undersigned and each of them as sole or
principal debtor in respect of that sum, and shall be paid to the Bank on demand with interest and accessories.

19) This guarantee is in addition to and not in substitution for any other guarantee, by whomsoever given, at any time
held by the Bank, and any present or future obligation to the Banlk incurred or arising otherwise than under a guarantee, of
the undersigned or any of them or of any other obligant, whether bound with ar apart from the Customer; excepting any
quarantee surrendered for cancellation on delivery of this instument.

{10) The undersigned and each of them shall be bound by any account settled between the Bank and the Customer, and
if o such account has been so settled immediately before demand for payment under this guarantee any account stated by
the Bank shail be accepted by the undersigned and each of them as conclusive evidence of the amount which at the date of
the account so stated is due by the Customer to the Bank or remains unpaid by the Customer to the Bank,

{(11) This guaraniee and agreement shall be operative and binding upon every signatory thereoi notwithstanding the
non-execution thereof by any other proposed signatory or signatories, and possession of this instrument by the Bank shall
be conclusive svidence against the undersigned and each of them that this instrument was not delivered in escrow or
pursuant to any agreement that it should not be effective until any conditions precedent or subseguent had been complied
with, uniess at the time of receipt of this instrument by the Bank each signatory thereof obtains from the Manager of the
bratch or agency of the Bank receiving this instrument a letter setting out the terms and conditions under which this
instrument was delivered and the conditions, if any, to be observed before it becomes etfective.

{12) No suit based on this guarantee shall be instituted untii demand for payment has been made, and demand for
payment shail be deemed to have been effectually made upen any guarantor if and when an envelope containing such
demand, addressad to such guaranter at the address of such guarantor last known 1o the Bank, s posted, postage prepaid,
in the post office, and in the event of the death of any guarantor demand for payment addressed to any of such guarantor's
heirs, executors, administrators or legal representatives at the address of the addressee last known to the Bank and posted
as aforesaid shall be deemed to have been effectually made upen &l of them. Moreover, when demand for payment has
been made, the undersigned shall also be liabie to the Bank for afl fegal costs {on a solicitor and own client basis} incurred
by or on behaif of the Bank resulting from any action instituted on the basis of this guarantee. All payments hereunder
shall be made to the Bank at a branch or agency of the Bank.

(13} This instrument covers ali agreements between the pariies hereto relative to this guarantee and sssignment and
postponement, and none of the parties shall be bound by any representation or promise made by any person relative thereto
which is not embodied herein.
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114) This quarantee and agreement shall extend to and enure to the benefit of the Bank and its successaors and assigns,
and every referance herein to the undersigned or to each of them or to-any of them, is a reference to and shall be construed
as ingluding the undersigned .and the heirs, executors, administrators, lsgal representatives, sUCCESSOTS and assigns of the
undersigned or of each of them or of dny of them, as the case may be, to and upen &l of whom this guarantee and
agreement shall éxtend and be binding.

{15} Prime Interest Rate is the annual rate of interest announced from time to time by Royal Bank of Canads as a
reference rate then in effect for determiriing interest rates on Canadian dallar commercial loans in Canada.

(16} This Guarantee and Postponement of Claim shall be governed by and constried in accordancg with the laws of the
Provinee of Outario (“Jurisdiction”}, The undersigned irrevocably submits to the courts of the Jurisdiction in any action or
proceeding arising out of or relating to this Guarentee and Postponement of Clairm, and ifrevocably agrees that all such
actions and proceedings may be heard and determined in su¢h courts, and irrévocably waives, to the fullest extent possible,
the defense of an inconvenient forum. The undersigned agrees that a judgment or order in any such agtion or proceeding
may pe enforced in other jurisdigtions: in any manner provided by law. Provided, however, that the Bank may serve legal
precess in any manner permitted by law or may bring an action or proceeding against the undersigned: or the. property or
assets of the undersigned in the gourts of any other jurisdiction.

[Applicable
na 117} The Undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of this agreement.
Proviges
axcept
omeicr (18} The Undersigned Rereby waives Undersigned's right to receive a copy of any Financing Statement or Financirig
Change Statement registerad by the Banks . & i
EXECUTED at bl this Nowgpda, (€ SF
IMONTH)  DAY]  (YEAR)
iN THE PRESENCE OF Loreto Grimaldi

CLO, General Counsel & Secretary

- = 2163279 ONT 3;1} INC // . FCAS Patient Core Autornation Services fne.

A LA |

Witness

Witness T g g

N

e

A R NN

Witness
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ITo be completed when the guarantee is stated to be governed by the laws of the Province of Alberta, the loan is
repayable in Alberta, the guarantes is executed in Alberta, the Customer carries on business in Alberta, or the guarantor
is resident or owns assets in Alberta.)

corpiss THE GUARANTEES ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ACT, {ALBERTA)
L CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY PUBLIC
Gorvarsto

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

{1} of __ ~ in the
Province of , the guarantor in the guarantee dated made between ROYAL BANK OF
CANADA and , which this certificate is

attached to or noted upon, appeared in person before me and acknowledged that he/she had executed the guarantee;

{2} | satisfied myself by examination of the guarantor that he/she is aware of the contents of the guarantee and
understands it.

Given at this under my hand and seal of office

(SEAL OF NOTARY PUBLIC}

A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR

(Guarantor

o san in STATEMENT OF GUARANTOR
31&%” { am the peraon named in the certificate

Signatura of Guarantor

g'o be completed when the guarantee is stated to be governed by the laws of the Province of Saskatchewan and the
orrower of Guaranior is a farmer in Saskatchewan, or the farmer or Guarantor owns farm assets In Saskatchewan.)

THE SASKATCHEWAN FARM SECURITY ACT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF GUARANTEE
{SECTION 31) ‘
CERTIFICATE OF LAWYER OR NOTARY PUBLIC

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

{1} of _ in the
Province of , the guarantor in the guarantee dated made between ROYAL BANK OF
CANADA and , which this cerfificate is

attached to or noted upon, appeared in person before me and acknowledged that he/she had executed the guarantas;
(2) | satisfied myself by examination of the guarantor that he/she is aware of the contents of the guarantee and
understands it.

{3} | have not prepared any documents on behalf of the creditor, Royal Bank of Canada, refating 1o the transaction
and | am not otherwise interested in the transaction;

{4} I acknowledge that the guarantor signed the following "Statermnent of Guarantor” in my presence.

Given at this under my hand and seal of office
(SEAL REQUIRED WHERE NOTARY
PUBLIC SIGNS CERTIFICATE) A LAYWYER OR A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR

STATEMENT OF GUARANTOR

| am the person named in the certificate

Signature of Guarantor
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Account i RETENTION - M
Numbar
File
Name

2163279 ONTARIO INC. (the "Guarantor")
RESQOLUTION OF DIRECTORS

Whefeas it is deemed expedient and in the best interests of the Guarantor that it lend assistance to PCAS PATIENT
CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC. (the "Customer”} in connection with its borrowings, both present and future,
from ROYAL BANK:OF CANADA {the "Bank™).

NOW THEREFORE BE IT DULY RESOLVED

1. THAT the Guarantor guararitee paymert to the Bank of all present ang future debts and liabilities, including interast
due at any time by the Customer fo the Bank; provided that the liability of the Guarantor shall be limited to the sum of
$ 3,800,000.00 Three Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars together with interest from the date of demand for
payment at ¢the Banl's Prime Intgrest Rate per annum in effect from time to time plus 5.000 Five per cent per annum;

For the purposes hereof (whére applicabis), Prime Interest Rate means the annugl rate of interest announced from
time to time by the Bank as a reference rate then in effect for determining interest rates on Canadian Dollar comimercial
loans in Canada.

2. THAT the Guarantor further secure the Bank by postponing afl debts and claims, present and future, of the
Guarantor against the Customer to the debts and claims of the Bank agasinst the Customer.

3. THAT the Guarantee and Postponement of Claim on the form attached, be and is hereby approved as containing a
correct statement of the terms and conditions upon which the said guarantee and postponement are te be made and that
the said Guarantee/Suretyship and Postpanement of Claim be dufy executed for and. in the name of the Guarantor (under
the corporate seal where required)

P e

by Dm@?\f« Lum\(,g, LA ciad ke
(IDENTI&BY NAME AND TITLE) o

and A RS TN el v Pl - )(_CM,‘J\
{IDENTIFY BY NAME AND TITLEY ,}

with such alterations, additions, amendments and deletiéns as they may approve; and that the Guarantes/Suretyship and
Postponement of Claim so executed is the Guarantee and Postponement of Claim autherized by this resolution.

4. THAT for the purpose of securing this Guarantee, of any present or future debts or liabilities, including intefest due
at any time, by the Customer to the Bank, the Guarantor shall piovide to the Bank any security, including
accommadation endorsements, which thie Bank may request, and that for such purpose the cfficers of the Guarantor
mentioned in paragraph 8 hereof be and they are hereby empowered for and oh behalf of the Guarantor ta provide such
security and to execute such further documents as the Bank may require.

5. That a copy of this Resolution, certified by the Secretary of the Guarantor {under the corporate seal where required}
be given to the Branch of the Bank where the Customer has its account, and that the designation of the officers under
Section 3 of this Resolution shall be binding upon the Guarantor until a Resolution, certified by the Secretary of the
Guarantor, changing the officers is received by that branch of the Bank.

CERTIFICATE

It is hereby certified by the undersignad that the foregoing is a Resolution of the Directors of the Guarantor in
accordance with the Guarantor's By-iaws, constating documents, any unanimeus shareholders' agreemenis made by the
shareholders of the Guarantor and all other laws governing the Guaranior; all as amended from time to time, which
Resolution is now in full force and effect.

it is hereby further certified that there are no provisions in the articles or by-laws of the Guarantor or in ary
unanimaous shareholder agreement which restrict or limit the powers of the Guarantor or of its directors 1o borrow meney
upon the credit of the Guarantar, to issue, reissue, sell or pledge debt obligations of the Guarantof, to give a guarantes
on behalf of the Guarantor to securé the parformance of an obiigation of any person, t¢ mortgage, hypothecate; piedge
or utherwise create a security interest in all or any property of the Guarantor, owned or subsequently acquired, to secure
any obligation of the Guarantor and 1o delegate the powers referred to above to a directar, officer or comimittee of

directors.
NI S prely

CERTIFIED this , as witness, where required by law, under the corporate seal
of the Guarantor.

{MONTH) DAY} {YEAR) //]
{FOR BANK USE ONLY} /M/&/ 4 /
INITtALS E? ﬁ j}/
Prepared by Checked by / (s L }f -\Y

e
TK {Corporate Seal where required by law) / Secratary

{
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Attached is Exhibit “J” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012

/Dfmé_;{?ﬁ/ S@Y\‘z

t

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc
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GENERAL SECURITY AGREEMENT
1. SECURITY INTEREST

{a) Eor value received, the undersigned {"Debtor"), hereby grants to ROYAL BANK OF CANADA ("RBC"), a
security interest (the "Security Interast") in the undertaking of Debtor and in all of Debtor's present and after acquired
personal property including, without limitation, in all Goods (including all parts, accessorigs, attachments, special tools,
additions and accessions thereto), Chattel Paper, Documents of Title (whether negotiable or not), Instruments,
Intangibles, Money and Securities and all other investment Property now owned or hereafter owned or acquired by or on
hehalf of Debtor (including such as may be returned to or repossessed by Debtor) and in all proceeds and renswals
thereof, accretions thereto and substitutions therefore (hereinafter collectively called "Collateral"}, and including, without
limitation, all of the foilowing now owned or hereafter owned or acquired by or on behalf of Debtor:

iy all inventory of whatever kind and wherever situate;

{i) all equipment (pther than Inventory) of whatever kind and wherever situate, including, without
hmitatlon,kalld machinery, tools, apparatus, plant, furniture, fixtures and vehicles of whatsoever
nature or kind;

{iiiy all Accounts and book debts and generally all debts, dues, claims, cheses in action and demands of
avery nature and kind howsoever arising or secured including letters of credit and advices of credit,
which are now due, owing or accruing or growing due to or owned by or which may hereafter
become due, owing or accruing or growing due to or owned by Debtor {"Debts”);

(iv) all lists, records and files relating to Debtor's customers, clients and patients;

{v) all deeds, documents, writings, papers, books of account and other books relating to or being
records of Debis, Chattel Paper or Documents of Title or by which such are or may hereafter be
secured, evidenced, acknowledged or made payable;

{vi} all contractual rights and insurance claims;

-

{vii} all patents, industrial designs, trade-marks, trade secrets and know-how including without
limitation environmental technology and biotechnology, confidential information, trade-names,
goodwill, copyrights, personality rights, plant breeders' rights, integrated circuit topographies,
software and all other forms of inteliectual and industrial property, and any registrations and

applications for registration of any of the foregoing {collectively "Intellectual Property”); and
{viii}all property described in Schedule *C" or any schedule now or hereafter annexed hereto.

{n} The Security Interest granted hereby shali not extend or apply to and Collateral shali not include the last day
of the term of any lease or agreement therefor but upon the enforcement of the Security Interest, Debtor shall stand
possessed of such last day in trust to assign the same to any person acquiring such term.

{c} The terms "Goods", “Chatiel Paper”, "Document of Title", "Instrument", “intangible”, "Security",
"Investment Property”, "proceed”, "Inventory”, "accession”, "Money”, "Account”, "financing statement” and "financing
change statement® whenever used herein shall be interpreted pursuant to their respective meanings when used in The
Personal Property Security Act of the province referred to in Clause 14(s}, as amended from time to time, which Act,
including amendments thereto and any Act substituted therefor and amendments thereto is herein referred fo as the
“p P.S.A.", Provided always that the term "Goods” when used herein shall not include "consumer goods” of Debtor as
that term is defined in the P.P.S.A., the term "Inventory” when used herein shall include livestock and the young thereof
after conception and crops that become such within one year of exscution of this Security Agreement and the term
"Investment Property”, if not defined in the P.P.5.A., shali be interpreted according to its meaning in the Personal
Property Security Act (Ontaric). Any reference herein to "Collateral” shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be
deemed a reference to "Collateral or any part thereof”.

2. INDEBTEDNESS SECURED

The Security Interest granted hersby secures payment and performance of any and all obligations, indebtedness
and liability of Debtor to RBC {including interest thereon) present or future, direct or indirect, absoiute or contingent,
matured or not, extended or renewed, wherescever and howsoever incurred and any ultimate unpaid balance thereof and
whether the same is from time to ime reduced and thereafter increased or entirely extinguished and thereafter incurred
again and whether Debtor be bound alohe or with another or others and whether as principal or surety (hereinafter
collectively called the "Indebtedness”). If the Security Interest in the Collateral is not sufficient, in the event of default,
to satisty all Indebtedness of the Debtor, the Debtor acknowlaedges and agrees that Debtor shall continue to be liable for
any Indebtedness remaining outstanding and RBC shall be entitled to pursue full payment thereof.

3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF DEBRTOR

Debtor represents and warrants and so long as this Secwrity Agreement remains in effect shall be deemed to
continuously repraesent and warrant that:

(a) the Collateral is genuine and owned by Debtor free of all security interests, mortgages, liens, claims,
charges, licenses, leases, infringements by third parties, encumnbrances or other adverse claims or Inferests (hereinafter
coliectively called "Encumbrances”), save for the Security interest and those Encumbrances shown on Schedule "A" or
hereafier approved in writing by RBC, prior te their creation or assumption;

() all Intetlectual Property applications and registrations are valid and in good standing and Debtor is the owner
of the appiications and registrations;

() each Debt, Chattel Paper and Instrument constituting Coilatera! is enforgeable in accordance with its terms
against the party obligated to pay the same {the "Account Dehior”), and the amount represented by Debtor to RBC from
time to time as owing by each Account Debtor or by afl Account Debtors will be the correct amount actually and
unconditionally owing by such Account Debtor or Account Debtors, except for nermal cash discounis where applicable,
and no Account Debtor will have any defence, set off, claim or counterclaim against Debtor which can be asserted
against RBC, whether in any proceeding to enforce Collateral or otherwise;
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() the focations specified in Schedule "B" as to business operations and records are accurate and complets
and with respect io Geods (including inventory} constituting Collateral, the locations specified in Schedule "B" are
accurate and complete save for Goods in transit to such locations and Inventory on lease of consighment; and all fixiures
or Goods about to become fixtures and all crops and all oil, gas or other minerals to be extracted and all timber to be cut
which forms part of the Collateral wili be situate at one of such tocations; and

{¢) the execution, delivery and performance of the obligations under this Security Agreement and the creation
of any security interest in or assignment hereunder of Debtor's rights in the Coltateral to RBC will not result in a breach
of any agreement to which Debtor is a party.

4. COVENANTS OF THE DEBTOR

So long as this Security Agreement remains in effect Debtor covenants and agrees:

{a) to defend the Collateral against the claims and demands of all other parties claiming the same or an interest
therein; to diligently initiate and prosecute legal action against all infringers of Debtor’s rights in Intellectual Property; to
take ail reasonable action to keep the Coliateral free from all Encumbrances, except for the Security Interest, licenses
which are compulsory under federat or provincial legislation and those shown on Schedule "A" or hereafter approved in
writing by RBC, prior to their creation or assumption, and not to sell, exchange, transter, assign, lease, license or
otherwise dispose of Collateral or any interest therein without the prior written consent of RBC; provided always that,
until default, Debtor may, in the ordinary course of Debtor's business, seli or lease Inventory and, subject to Clause 7
hareof, use Money available to Debtor;

{b) 1o notify RBC promptly of:

(Y any change in the information contained herain or in the Schedules hereto relating to Debtor,
Debtor's business or Collateral,

{ii) the detaiis of any significant acquisition of Coliateral,
(i) the details of any claims or litigation affecting Debtor or Collaterat,
{iv} any loss or damage to Collateral,

{v) any default by any Account Debtor in payment or other performance of its obligations with respect
to Collateral, and

{vi) the return to or repossession by Debtor of Collateral;

{¢) to keep Collateral in good erder, condition angd repair and not to use Collateral in violation of the provisions
of this Security Agreement of any other agreement relating to Coliateral or any policy insuring Collateral or any
applicable statute, law, by-law, rule, regulation or ordinance; o keep all agreements, registrations and applications
relating to Intellectual Property and intellectual property used by Debtor in its business in good standing and to renew all
agreements and registrations as may be necessary or desirable ta protect Intellectual Property, unless otherwise agreed
in writing by RBC; to apply io register all existing and future copyrights, trade-marxs, patends, integrated circuit
topographies and industrial designs whenever it is commercially reasonable to do so;

{d) 1o do, execute, acknowledge and deliver such financing statements, financing change statements and
further assignments, transfers, documents, acts, matters and things {including further schedules hereto) as may be
reasonably requested by RBC of or with respect to Collateral in order to give effect to these presents and to pay all costs
for searches and filings in connection therewith;

(e} topay all {axes, rates, levies, assessments and other charges of every nature which may be lawfully levied,
assessed or imposed against or in respect of Debtor or Collateral as and when the same bscome due and payable;

(f) to insure collateral in such amounts and against such risks as would customarily be insured by a prudent
owner of similar Collateral and in such additional amounts and against such additional risks as RBC may from time to
time direct, with loss payabie to RBC and Debtor, as insureds, as their respective interests may appear, and to pay all
premiums therefor and deliver copies of policies and svidence of renewal to RBC on request;

_lg} to prevent Collatersl, save Inventory sold or |sased as permitted hereby, from being or becoming an
accession to other property not covered by this Security Agreement;

{h) to carry on and conduct the business of Debtor in a proper and efficient manner and so as to protect and
preserve Collateral and to keep, in accordance with generally accepted accounting pringiples, consistentty applied, proper

books of account for Debtor's business as well as accurate and complete records concerning Collateral, and mark any
and all such records and Collateral at RBC's raquest so as to indicate the Security Interest;

(il to deliver to RBC from time to time promptly upon request:

{i} any Documents of Title, Instruments, Securities and Chattel Paper constituting, representing or
refating to Coltateral,

i) alf books of account and all records, ledgers, reports, correspondence, schedules, documents,
statements, lists and other writings relating to Collateral for the purpose of inspecting, auditing or
copying the same,

{iii} all financial statements prepared by or for Debtor regarding Debtor’s business,

(iv) all policies and certificates of insurance relating to Collateral, and

{v) such information cancerning Collateral, the Debtor and Debtor's business and affairs as RBC may
reascnably request.
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5. USE AND VERIFICATION OF COLLATERAL

Subject to compliance with Debtor's covenaris contained herein and Clause 7 herecf, Debtor may, until defauit,
possess, operate, collect, use and enjoy and deal with Collateral in the ordinary course of Debtor's business in any
manner not inconsistent with the provisions hereof; provided always that RBC shall have the right at any time and from
time to time to verify the existence and state of the Collateral in any manner RBC may cansider appropriate and Debtor
agrees to furish all assistance and information and to énerform all such acts as RBC may reascnably request in
connection therewith and for such purpose to grant to RBC or its agents access to all places where Collateral may be
located and to &lf premises occupied by Debtor,

6. SECURITIES, INVESTMENT PROPERTY

I¥ Collateral at any time includes Secwrities, Debtor authorizes RBC to transfer the same or any part thereof into
its own name or that of ks nomineels) so that RBC or its nomineels) may appear of record as the sole owner thereof;
provided that, until default, RBC shall deliver promptly to Debtor all notices or other communications received by it or ifs
nominee(s) as such registered owner and, upon demand and receipt of payment of any necessary expenses thereot, shall
issus to Debtor or its order a proxy to vote and take all action with respect to such Securities. After default, Debtor
waives all ri%hts to receive any notices or communications received by RBC or its nominea(s) as such registered owner
and agrees that no proxy issued by RBC to Debtor or its order as aferesaid shall thereafter be effective.

Where any Investment Property is held in or credited to an account that has been established with a securities
intermediary, RBC may, at any time after default, give a notice of exclusive control to eny such securities intermediary
with respect to such Investment Property.

7. COLILECTION OF DEBTS

Before or after default under this Security Agreement, REC may notify all or any Account Debtors of the
Security Interest and may also direct such Account Debtors to make all payments on Collateral to RBC. Debtor
acknowledges that any payments on or other proceeds of Collateral received by Debior from Account Debtors, whether
before or after notification of this Security Interest 1o Account Debtors and whether before or after default under this
Security Agreement, shall be received and held by Debter in trust for RBC and shall be turned over to RBC upon request.

8. INCOME FROM AND INTEREST ON COLLATERAL

{a) Untll defautt, Debtor reserves the right to receive any Money constituting income from or interest on
Collateral and if RBC receives any such Money prior to defauit, REC shali either credit the same against the Indebtedness
or pay the same promptly to Debtor.

o) After default, Debtor will not request or receive any Money constituting income from or interest on
Callateral and if Debtor receives any such Money without any request by it, Debtor will pay the same promptly to RBC.

9. INCREASES, PROFITS, PAYMENTS OR DISTRIBUTIONS
(#) Whether or not default has occurred, Debtor authorizes RBC:

li} 1o receive any increase in or profits on Collateral {other than Monsy) and to hold the same as part
of Collateral. Money so received shall be treated as incorne for the purposes of Clause 8 hereof and
dealt with accordingly;

{H} to receive aniy payment or distribution upon redemption or retirement or upon dissalution and
liquidation of the issuer of Collateral; to surrender such Collateral in exchange therefor and to
hold any such payment or distribution: as part of Collateral.

(b) | Debtor receives any such increase or profits {other than Money) or payments or distributions, Debtor will
deliver the same promptiy to RBC to be held by RBC as herein provided.

10. DISPOSITION OF MONEY

Subject to any applicable requirements of the P.P.S.A., all Money collected or received by RBC pursuant to or in
exercise of any right it possesses with respect to Collateral shall be applied on account of Indebtedness in such manner
as RBC deems best or, at the option of RBC, may be held unapprepriated in & coliateral account or released to Debtor, all
without pre{udice to the fiability of Debter or the rights of RBC hereunder, and any surplus shall be accounted for as
required by law.

11. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

The é’la}ppfltr)ing of any of the foltowing events ar conditions shall constitute default hereunder which is herein referred to
as "default”™:

(al the nonpayment when due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, of any principal or interest forming part of
Indebtedness or the failure of Debtor to observe or perform any obligation, covenant, term, provision or condition
contained in this Security Agreement or any other agreement between Debtor and RBC;

i 'ctib) l the death of or a declaration of incompetency by a court of competent {urisdiction with respect to Debtor, if
an individual;

{c] the bankruptcy or insolvency of Debtor; the filing against Debtor of a petition in bankruptey; the making of
an assignment for the benefit of creditors by Debtor; the appointment of a receiver or trustee for Debtor or for any
assete of Debtor or the institution by or against Debtor of any other type of insolvency proceeding under the Bankruptey
and Insolvency Act or otherwise;

{d} the institution by or against Debtor of any formal or informal proceeding for the dissolution or liguidation of,
settlement of claims against or winding up of affairs of Debtor;

{e} if any Encumbrance affecting Coliateral becomes enforceable against Collateral;

{f} if Debtor ceases or threatens to cease to carry on business or makes or agrees to make a bulk sale of
assets without complying with applicable law or commits or threatens to comnmit an act of bankruptcy;

{g) if any execution, sequestration, extent or other process of any court becomes enforceabYe against Debtor or
if distress or analogous process is levied upon the assets of Debtor or any part thereof;
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h) it any certificate, statement, representation, warranty or audit report heretofore or hereafter furnished by or
on behalf of Debtor pursuant to or in connection with this Security Agreement, or cotherwise (including, without
limitation, the representations and warranties contained herein) or as an inducement to RBC to extend any credit 1o or to
enter into this or any other agreement with Debtor, proves to have been false in any material respect &t the time as of
which the facts therein set forth were stated or certified, or proves to have omitted anx substantial cortingent or
unliquidated fiability or claim against Debtor; or if upon the date of execution of this Security Agreement, there shall have
been any material adverse change in any of the facts disclosed by any such certificate, representation, statement,
warranty or audit report, which change shall not have been disclosed to RBC at or prior to the time of such execution.

12. ACCELERATION

RBC, in its sole discretion, may declare all or any part of Indebiedness which is not by its terms payable on
demand to be immediately due and payabie, without demand or notice of any kind, in the event of default, or if RBC
considers itself insecure or that the Collaterai is in jeopardy. The provisions of this clause are not intended in any way to
affect any rights of RBC with respect to any Indebtedness which may now or hereafter be payable on demand.

13, REMEDIES

{a) Upon defauit, RBC may appoint or reappoint by instrument in writing, any person or persons, whether an
officer or officers or an employee or employees of RBC or not, to be a receiver or receivers {hereinafter called a
"Receiver",; which term when used herein shall include a receiver and manager} of Collateral {including any interest,
ircomae or profits therefrom) and may remove any Receiver so appointed and appoint another in his/her stead. Any such
Receiver shall, so far as concerns responsibility for his/her acts, be deemed the agent of Debtor and not RBC, and RBC
shall not be in any way responsible for any misconduct, negligence or non-feasance on the part of any such Receiver,
his/her servants, agents or emplayees. Subject to the provisions of the instrument appointing him/her, any such Receiver
shail have power to 1ake possession of Collateral, to preserve Collaterat or its value, to sarry on or concur in carrying on
all or any part of the business of Debtor and to sell, [eage, license or otherwise dispose of or concur in selling, leasing,
licensing or otherwise disposing of Collateral. To facilitate the foregoing powers, any such Recsiver may, to the
exclusion of all others, including Debitor, enter upon, use and occupy all premises owned or occupied by Debtor wherein
Coilateral may be situate, maintain Collateral upon such premises, borrow mongy on a secured or unsecured basis and
use Collateral directly in carrying on Debtor's business or as security for loans or advances to enable the Receiver to
carry on Debtor's business o otherwise, as such Receiver shall, in its discretion, determine. Except as may be
otherwise directed by RBC, all Money received from time to time by such Receiver in carrying out his/her appointment
shall be received in trust for and paid over to RBC. Every such Receiver may, in the discretion of RBC, be vested with all
or any of the rights and powers of RBC,

{b) Upon default, RBC may, either directly or through its agents or nominees, exercise any or &ll of the powers
and rights given to a Receiver by virtue of the foregoing sub-clause (a}.

{c} RBC may take possession of, collect, demand, sue on, enforce, recover and receive Collateral and give valid
and binding receipts and discharges therefor and in respect thereof and, upon default, RBC may sell, license, lease or
otherwise dispose of Coilateral in such manner, at such time or times and place or places, for such consideration and
upon such terms and conditions as to RBC may seem reasonable.

(d) In addition to those rights granted herein and in any other agreement now or hereafter in effect between
Debtor and RBC and in addition to any other rights RBC may have at law or in equity, RBC shall have, both before and
after defauit, all rights and remedies of a secured party under the P.P.S.A. Provided always, that RBC shall not be liable
or accountable for any failure to exercise its remedies, take possession of, collect, enforce, realize, sell, lease, license or
otherwise dispose of Collateral or to institute any proceedings for such purposes. Furthermore, REC shall have no
obligation to take any steps to preserve rights against prior parties to any Instrument or Chattel Paper whether Coliateral
or proceeds and whether or not in RBC's possession and shall not be liable or accountable for faiiure to do so.

{e} Debtor acknowledges that RBEC or any Receiver appointed by it may take possession of Collateral wherever
it may be |ocated and by any method permitted by law and Debtor agrees upon request from RBC or any such Recaiver
to assemble and deliver possession of Collateral at such place or places as directed.

{f) Debtor agrees to be liable for and te pay all costs, charges and expenses reasonably incurred by RBEC or any
Receiver appointed by it, whether directly or for services rendersd {including reasonable solicitors and auditors costs ant
other legal expenses and Receiver remuneration), in operating Debtor's accounts, in preparing or enforcing this Security
Agreement, taking and maintaining custody of, preserving, repairing, processing, preparing for disposition and disposing
of Collaterai and in enforcing or collecting Indebtedness and all such costs, charges and expenses, together with any
amounts owing as a resuft of any borrowing by RBC or any Receiver appointed by it, as permitted hereby, shall be a first
charge on the proceeds of realization, coilection or disposition of Collateral and shall be secured hereby.

{g) RBC will give Debtor such notice, if any, of the date, time and place of any public sale or of the date after
which any private disposition of Collateral is to be made as may be required by the P.P.8.A.. )

(ht Upon default and recelving written demand from RBC, Debtor shall take such further action as may be
necessary to evidence and effect an assignment or licensing of Intellectua! Property to whomever RBC directs, including
to RBC. Debtor appoints any officer or director or branch manager of RBC upon default to be its attorney in accordance
with applicable legistation with full power of substitution and to do on Debtor's behalf anything that is required to
assign, license or transfer, and 1o record any assignment, licence or fransfer of the Collateral. This power of attorney,
which is coupled with an interest, is irrevocable until the release or discharge of the Security Interest.

14, MISCELLANEOQUS

(a} Debtor hereby authorizes RBC to file such financing statements, financing change statements and other
documents and do such acts, matters and things (including completing and adding schedules hareto identifying Collateraf
or any permitted Encumbrances affecting Collateral or identifying the locations at which Debtor's business is carried on
and Collateral and recards relating thereto are situate} as RBC may deem appropriate to perfect on an ongoing basis and
continue the Security Interest, to protect and preserve Collateral and to reafize upon the Security Interest and Debtor
hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Manager or Acting Manager from tirme to time of the herein mentioned
branch of RBC the true and ‘awful attorney of Debtor, with fuill power of substitution, to do any of the foregoing in the
name of Debtor whenever and wherever it may be deemed necessary or expedient.

{b} Without limiting any other right of RBC, whenever Indebtedness is immediately due and payable or RBC has
the right to declare Indebtedness to be immediately due and payable (whether or not it has sc declared), RBC may, in its
sole discretion, set off against Indebtedness any and all amounts then owed to Debtor by RBC in any capacity, whether
or not due, and RBC shall be deemed to have exercised such right to set off immediately at the time of making its
decision 1o do so even though any charge therefor is made or entered on RBC's records subsequent thereto.

(¢} Upon Dabtor's failure to perform any of its duties hereunder, RBC may, but shall not be obligated to,
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perfarm any or all of such duties, and Debtor shall pay to RBC, forthwith ugon written demand therefor, an amount equal
to the expense incurred by RBC in so doing plus interest thereon from the date such expense is incurred untii it is paid at
the rate of 18% per annum.

{d) RBC may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give up security, accept compositions,
compound, compromise, settle, grant releases and discharges and otherwise deal with Debtor, debters of Debtor,
sureties and others and with Collateral and other security as RBC may see fit without prejudice to the liability of Debtor
or ABC's right to hold and reaiize the Security Interest. Furthermare, RBC may demand, collect and sue on Collateral in
sither Debter's or RBC's name, at RBC's option, and may endorse Debtor’s name on any and all cheques, commercial
paper, and any other Instruments pertaining to or constituting Collateral.

{e} No delay o omission by RBC in exercising any right or remedy hereunder or with respect to any
Indebtedness shall operate as a waiver thereof or of any other right or remedy, and no single or partial exercise thereof
shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other tight or remedy. Furthermore, RBC may
remedy any default by Debtor hereunder or with respect to any Indebtedness in any reasonable manner without waiving
the default remedied and without waiving any other prior or subsequent default by Debtor. Alf rights and remedies of
RBC granted or recognized herein are cumulative and may be exercised at any time and from time to time independently
or in combination.

Debtor waives protest of any Instrument constituting Collateral at any time held by BBC on which Debtor is
in any way liable and, subject to Clause 13(g) hereof, notice of any other action taken by RBC.

{g) This Security Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their
respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors-and assigns. In any action brought by an assignee of this
Security Agreement and the Security Interest or any part thereof to enforce any rights hereunder, Dabtor shail not assert
against the assignee any claim or defence which Debtor now has or hereafter may have against RBC. [f more than one
Debior executes this Security Agreement the obligations of such Debtors hereunder shall be joint and several.

th) RBC may provide any financial and other information it has about Debtor, the Security Interest and the
Coliateral to any one acquiring or who may acquire an interest in the Security Interest or the Collateral from the Bank or
any one acting on behalf of the Bank,

{iy Save for any schedules which may be added hereto pursuant to the provisions hereof, no modification,
variation or amendment of any provision of this Security Agreement shall be made except by a written agreement,
exscuted by the parties hereto and no waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless in writing.

)  Subject to the requirements of Clauses 13{g) and 14(k] herect, whenever either party hereto is required or
entitled to notify or direct the other or to make a demand or request upon the other, such notice, direction, demand or
request shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given, in the case of RBC, if delivered to it or sent by prepaid
reg{;istered mail addressed to it at its address herein set forth or as changed pursuant hereto, and, in the case of Debtor, if
delivered to it or if sent by prepaid registered mail addressed to it at its last address known to RBC. Either party may
notify the other pursuant hereto of any change in such party's principal address 10 be used for the purposes hereof.

(k) This Security Agreement and the security afforded hereby is in addition to and not in substitution for any
ather secutity now or hereafter held by RBC and is intended to be a continuing Security Agreement and shall remain in
full force and effect until the Manager or Acting Manager from time to time of the herein mentioned branch of RBC shail
actually receive written notice of its discontinuance; and, notwithstanding such notice, shall remain in full force and
effect thereafter uniil all Indebtedness contracted for or created before the receipt of such notice by RBC, and any
extensions or renewals thereof (whether made before or after receipt of such noticel together with interest accruing
thereon after such notice, shall be paid in full,

(Il  The headings used in this Security Agreement are for convenience only and are not be considered a part of
this Security Agresment and do not in any way limit or amplify the terms and provisions of this Security Agreement,

im} When the context so requires, the singular number shall be read as if the piural were expressed and the
provisions hereof shall be read with all grammatical changes necessary dependent upon the person referred to being a
male, female, firm or corporation,

(n In the event any provisions of this Security Agreement, as amended from time to time, shall be deemed
invalid or void, in whole or in part, by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions of this
Security Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

{0] Nothing herein contained shall in any way obligate RBC to grant, continue, renew, extend time for payment
of or accept anything which constitutes or would constitute Indebtedness.

p) The Security Interest created hereby is intended to attach when this Security Agreement is signed by
Debtor and delivered to RBC.

{c} Debtor acknowledges and agrees that in the event it amalgamates with any other company or companies it
is the intention of the parties hereto that the term "Debtor” when used herein shall apply to each of the amalgamating
companies and to the amaigamated company, such that the Security Interest granted hereby

(it shall extend to "Collateral” (as that term is herein defined) owned by each of the amalgamating
companies and the amalgamated company at the time of amaigamation and to any "Collateral” thereafter owned or
acguired by the amai?amated company, and

(il shall secure the "Indebtedness” {as that term is herein defined) of each of the amalgamating companies
and the amalgamated company to REBC at the time of amalgamation and any "indebtedness" of the amalgamated
company to REC thereafter arising. The Security Interest shail attach to "Collateral” owned by each company
amalgamating with Debtor, and by the amalgamated company, at the time of the amalgamation, and shall attach to any
"Goilateratl” thereafter owned or acquired by the amatgamated company when such becomes owned or is acquired.

() In the event that Debtor is a body corporate, it is hereby agreed that The Limitation of Civii Rights Act of
the Province of Saskatchewan, or any provision thereof, shail have no application to this Security Agreement or any
agreement or instrument renewing or extending or collateral to this Security Agreement. In the event that Debtor is an
agricultural corporation within the meaning of The Saskatchewan Farm Security Act, Debtor agrees with RBC that all of
Part IV {other than Ssction 46) of that Act shail not apply to Debtor.

{s) This Security Agreement and the transactions evidenced hersby shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the province in which the herein branch of RBC is located, as those laws may from time to
time be in effect, except if such branch of RBC is located in Quebec then, this Security Agreement and the transactions
evidenced hersby shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Prevince of Ontario and the
laws of Canada applicable therein.

15. COPY OF AGREEMENT

{a) Debtor hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of this Security Agresment.

(b) Debtor waives Debtor's right to receive a copy of any financing statement or financing change statement
registered by RBC or of any verification statement with respect to any financing statement or financing change
statement registered by RBC, {Applies in all P.P.8.A. Provinces except Ontario).
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18, Dabtor represents and warrants that the following information is accurate:

INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR

SURNAME (LAST NAME) FIRST NAME SECOND NAME BIRTH DATE
YEAR MOBNTH DAY

ADDRESS OF INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR CiTy PROVINCE POSTAL CADE

SURNAME {LAST NAME| FIRST NAME SECOND NAME BIRTH DATE
YEAR MONTH DAY

ADDRESS OF IN DIVIDUA.L'DEBTDF\ (F DIFFERENT FROM AEOVE§ CITY PROVINCE POSTAL CODE

BUSINESS DEBTOR
NAME OF BUSINESS. DEBTOR

2163279 ONTARIO INC, _
ADDRESS QF BUSINESS DEBTOR cITy PROVINCE POSTAL CORE

UNIT 2 oy
2380 BRIGHTON ROAD QAKVILLE . ON L6H 583

TRADE NAME (IF APPLICABLE)
TRADE NAME OF DERTOR

PRINCIPAL ADDRESS (F DIFFERENT FROM ABCVE} ciTy PROVINCE POSTAL CODE

b ,4/ -
IN WITNESS WHEREOF Debtor has executed this Security Agteement this ig day of 2 ouErn LR , 35} y .
Loreto Grimaldi

2163279 ONTARIO INC. ;

/ LO, Gener#l Counsel & Secretary
e - / / CAS Patlent Care Automation Services Inc.
WITNESS i / {1
f[-’;@_,’“"’l L\/‘\"\,\/L\j l /\‘QW M
WITNESS.

BRANCH ADDRESS

MISS-KBI ONTARIO-LIFE SCIENCES
6880 FINANCIAL DR 2ND FLR LINK
MISSISSAUGA ON

LSN 7Y5
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SCHEDULE "A”

{(ENCUMBRANCES AFFECTING COLLATERAL}
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SCHEDULE "B”

Locations of Debtor's Business Operations

UNIT 2

2880 BRIGHTON ROAD
OAKVILLE, ON
L6583

l.ocations of Records relating to Collateral (if different from 1. above) |
SAME AS ABOVE

Locations of Collateral (if different from 1. above)
SAME AS ABOVE
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SCHEDULE "C"

(DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY)
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Attached is Exhibit “K” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22" day of March, 2012

?Um’&j/ SO 4

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc
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INVENTORY PURCHASE - MONEY SECURITY AGREEM !LN'f

For valuzhle consideration and 83 continuing security for the due payment of all monies now or at any time and from

time to me hereafter owing or payable by the undersigned PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC.

{the "Customer") to Koll & Frisch Limited "K&F") and the due and faithful performance of all obligations (whether now existing,
presently arising or ereated in the future} ofihe Customer in favour of K&F (ineluding all costs, charges and expenses incurred

in connection with such liabilities) (all such monies, liabilities and obligations referred to in this paragraph being hercinafter
together called the "Obligations"), the Customer hereby agrees with K&F and provides as follows:

1. The Customer hereby grants to K&F a security interest in all inventory of whatscever kind and wheresoever situate

now owned by the Customer which has been acquired from K&F and all inventoty of whatever kind and wheresoever situate
which may hereafier be acquired by the Customer from K&F fncluding, without limitation, pharmaceutical, household, tobacco
and health and beauty products, confectionary and ather sundries and any property in any form derived directly or indirectly
from any dealings with any property herein described (including without limitation ali products and cash and non-cash proceeds
thereof); indemnification or compensation for any such property lost, destroyed, damaged or lawfully or untawfuily taken or
injuriously affected; all increases, all additions and accessions thereto and substifutions thereof (herein calied the "Inventery”).

9. The Customer acknowledges that the parties intend the security intorest hereunder to attach upon the execution of this
Agreement, that value has been given and that the Custoser has rights in the Inventory. The seourity interest hereunder
constitutes a purchase-money security interest.

3. Unless such event of default is waived by K&F, any obligation of K&F to supply Inventory or extend credit fo the
Customer shall immediately tertninate, all Obligations and all monies setured hereby shall at the option of K&F become
forthwith due and payable and all of the rights and remedies hereby conferred in Tespect of the Tnventory shall become
immediately enforceable if (a) defawlt occurs in payment or performance of any of the Obligations; (b) the Customer commits
an act of hankruptey or becomes insolvent within the meaning of any benkrupioy or insolvency legistation applicable to it or 2
petition or other process for the bankruptcy of the Custormer is filed or instituted; (c) a receiver, administrator, manager, trustes,
custodian ar other similar official is appointed with respect to o material part of the Customer's assets; (d) proceedings sre
comimenced by the Custorner or any other porson for any re-organization, comproimise, arrangeinent or other relief respecting
the labilities of the Customer or a Taterial portion. thereof, {e) the Customer ceases ta carry on jis business or makes or proposes
to muke any sale of its assets in bulk or any sale of its assets out of the usual course of its business; or (f) any act, matter or thing
is done toward, or any action or proceeding is Jaunched, had or taken for, terminating the corporate existence of the Customer,
whether by winding-up, surrender of charter or otherwise,

4, The secusity of this Agreement may be realized and the righis enforced by any remedy or in any manser authorized or
permitted by Taw or equity and no remedy for the realization of the security hereof shall be exclusive of or dependent upon any
other remedy and atl or any remedies may from time to time be exercised independently or in any combination.

5. Any and all payments made at any time in respect of the Obligations and the proceeds realized from any sepurities held
therefor (including monies realized from the enforcament of this Agreement) may be applied (and reapplied from time to time
notwithstanding any provious application) to such part or parts of the Obligntions as K.&F sees fit. The Customer shail be
acconntable for any deficiency and K&F shafl be accountable for ay surplus.

6. The Customer shall not, without the prior written consent 0f K&F, create or permit to arisc in respect of any of the
Inventory any morigage, lien, pledge, assignment, nttachment, secutity interest or encumbrance of any nanre or kind
wihatsoever howsoever arising (wheiher consensual, statutory or arising by opetating of law or ofherwise).

7. The Customer shall on demand pay all costs, charges and expenses, including without limitation legal fees ona full
indemnity basis, incurred by K&F in connection with the Obligations, including without limitation all such costs, charges
and expenses as may be incurred by K&F in preserving and enforcing its ights in connection theresvith.

8, The Customer shall keep all Inventory insured to its full insurable value ageinst loss or damage by fire or other
casualty, shall keep alf Inventory seourely stored and shall not dispose of any of the Inventory except by sale in the ordinary
course of its busitiess and for the purpose of carrying on the same.

9, Bxcept for Inventory which is a consumer good, the Customer shall keep all Inventory in a new and nnused condition.

10. No act or omission by K&F in any manner whatever in the premises shall extend to or be taken to affeot any provision
herzof save only express waiver in writing, A waiver of default shafl not extend fo, or be taken in any manner whatsoever to
affect the rights of K&F with respect to, any subsequent detault, whether sipilar or not. The Customer waives every defence
based upen any or all indulgences that may be granted by K&F.

11. This Agreement and all its provisions shall enure to the benefit of K&F, its successors and assigns, and shall be binding
on the Customer, the Customer’s successers and assigns, Time shall be in all respeots of the essence hereof. The Customer
acknowledges receipt of a copy hercof and 2 copy of the financing statement in respect of the securdty created hereby. Terms
which are defined in the Personal Praperty Security Act (_Ontatio_) shall have the same meaning where used hesein,




2.

12, Any notice or wnitten communication given pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be given by delivering the same personally or by prepaid courier, prepaid registered mail o fassimile, addressed to the
party to be notified at the address of such party set out herein.

13. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Province of Ontario and the foderal laws of Canada applicable %
therein. '

IN WITKESS WHERFEOF this Agreement has been exectted by the Costomer on the razé day of Ki/g , 2008

Per a
e T

I have authority to bind the Corporation, i

Address: 2880 Brighton Road, Unit #2, Oalwville, ON, L3H 583

Fax: 905-829-5504

ACKNOWLEDGED this IQ day of HCU’C'&} | ,2008. K&F hereby reserves title and ownership to.cach item of
Inventory sold from time to time until the purchase price therefor has been paid and satisfied in full, whersupon title and
ownership thereof shali pass to the Customer, buf subject to the security interest created in the above Agreement unitil all
Obligations have been paid and satisfied in full,

Address: 7622 Keele Street, Concord, ON, LAK 2R3

Fax: 905-660-1792
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Attached is Exhibit “L” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22" day of March, 2012

Q/me—ﬁ/f 5@ .

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc




GENERAL SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made s ofthe b ™ day of N Ol 2.0 H\

BETWEEN: KOHL & FRISCH LIMITED,

-and -

a.cofporation incorporated under the laws of Ontario {the “Creditor”}

LecaL name:_ D Mo DR AT onilie (N (the “Debtor”)
TRADE NAME: | DOU Poy Wit ?WHD\—%

WHEREAS the Creditor has agreed to advance credit to the Debior pursuant 1o certain :supply arrangements between the

Creditor and the Debior pursuant to certain writen, oni-line and/or verbal agreemenis between the Creditor and the Debtor.

THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that, in consideraticn of the sum of $1.00 in lawful money of Canada now paid by the

Creditor to the Debtor {the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowiedged), the Debtor agrees with the Creditor as follows:

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

22

23
24

02/2011

ARTICLE 1 - INTERPRETATION
In this agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:

{a) “Act’ means the Personal Propsity Security Act (Orttario), as the same may from time to time hereafter be amended
or any legislation that may be substituted thersfor, as the same may from time to time be amended;

(b} “Business Day’ means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on whieh chartered banks are open for business
during normal banking hours in Toronte, Ontario;

(©) “Collateral” means all proparty, assets and undertaking now owned or hereafter acquired by the Debtor including,
wherever locgted, withaut fimitation, the Debtors accounts, equipment, goods, inventory {including, without Eimitation,
al goods, marchandise, raw materials, work in process, finished goods, goods held for sale or resale or lease and
goods used in or pracured for packing or packaging), the assets of the Debtor referred io in section 2.1;

{d) "Event of Default' has the meaning aseribed thereto in section 4.1;

(e) “Obligations” means the aggregate of all indebtedness, obligations and liabilities of the Debtor to the Creditor,
whether incurred prior to, at the time of, or subsequent 10 the execution hereof, including extensions and renewals,
and including without imitation all ehligations and liabllities of the Debtor to the Craditor under any present or future
guarantee by the Debtor of the payment or performance or both of the debts, obligations or fiabilities of any third party
to the Creditor; and

(H “Sécurity interest’” means callectively the mortgage, charge, pledge, assignment and transfer of, and the security
interest i, the Collateral granted to the Creditor by the Debtor pursuant to section 2.1

noow v

The terms “atcount’, “equipment’, “goods’, *inventory”, "personat property” and “proceeds” sh_éil have the meanings
ascribed thereto respectively by the Act, provided always that the term "goods” when used herein shall hot include “consumer
goods” of the Debtor as that term is defined in the Act.

[t any provisicn herein i determined to be void, voidable or uneriforgeable, in whole or in part, such determination shall not
affect or impair or be deémed to affect or impair the validity of any other provision hereof and all the provisions hereof are
hefeby declared to be separate, severabie and distinct.

Any reference in this agreement to any person, firm or corporation in the singular shall, where the context permits, include a
refarence to miore than one of such person, firm or corporation, and the use of any gender shall be applicable to all genders.

This agresment is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the Act and the other laws of the Province of
Ontario, and the parties hereby attorn to the non-exciusive jurisdiction of the courts of such province.

ARTICLE 2 - CREATION AND ATTACHMENT OF SECURITY INTEREST

As continuing collateral security for the due and timely payment and performance by the Debtor of the Obligations, the Debtor
hereby mortgages, charges, pledges, assigns; transfers and-sets over to the Crediter, and grants to the Creditor a general and
continuing security interest in the Collateral.

To the extent that the Creditdr gives value for the purpose of enabling the Debtor to acquire rights in or to any of the Collateral,
the Debior hereby grants to the Creditor a Purchase-Money Security Interest (as defined in tha-Act) in such Collateral.

The Security Interest shall extend to all proceeds of the Gollateral.

The Creditor and the Debtor hereby acknowiedge and agree that value has been given for the graniing of the Security Interest,
that the Debtor has rights In the Collateral (except fultre Collateral}, and that the parties have agreed not to postpone the-time
for attachment of the Security Interest.

Kohl & Frisch Limited — Ganeral Security Agreement



25

2.6

3.1

4.1

02/2011

-2-
The last day of the ferm of any lease, sublsase or agresment therefor is specifically excaepted from the Security Interest, but
the Debtor agrees to stand possessed of such last day in trust for such perscn as the Creditor may direct and the Debtor shall
assign and dispose thereof in accordance with such direction.

To the extent that the Security Interest would constitute a breach or cause the acceleration of any agreement, contractual
right, license or permit to which the Debter is a party, the Security Interest shall not attach thereto but the Debtor shall hold its
interest therain in trust for the Creditor, shall use its best efforts to obtain the appropriate consents to the attachment of said
seourity interast and shall grant a security interest in such agreement, contractual right, license or permit to the Creditor
farthwith upon obtaining the appropriate consents to the creation of such security interest.

ARTICLE 3 - WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF THE DEBTOR
The Debtor hereby warrants, covenants and agrees with the Creditor that.

(@) The Debtor shall permit a representative of the Creditor to inspect the Collateraf and the operations of the Debtor and
for that purpose to enter the Debtor's premises and any other location where the Collateral may be situated during
reasonable business hours and upon reasonabie notice.

((9)] The Debtor shalt furnish the Creditor with such information regarding the Coitateral and its value and location as the
Craditor may from time to time reasonably request and permit a representative of the Creditor, upon request, o
inspect the Debtor's books of account, records, decuments and financiat statements, and to make copies, extracts
and summaries therefrom;

(c) The Debtor shall affix labals to any inventory which is supplied by the Creditor which permits identification of such
nventory as being supplied by the Creditor;

{d) The Debtor shall pay or reimburse the Creditor, upon request, for all costs and expenses of the Creditor, its agents,
officers and employees {including, without limitation, legal fees and disbursements on a substantial indemnity basis)
incurred with respect to the enforcement of the agreement and the amount of alt such expenses shall be deamed to
farm part of the Obligations and shall be secured heraunder.

(e) The Debior shall promptly noiify the Creditor in writing of the detalls of any amendment fo its articles, inchiding
without limitation by virtue of the filing of articles of amalgamation, effecting a change in the Debtor's name or
authorizing it fo use a French version of its name; and

{f) The Debtor shali not, without the prior written consent of the Creditor, amalgamate with ary other corporation or
corporations or enter intc any arrangement or agreement, which, sither separately or in combination with any other
transactions, arrangements or agresments, would have the effect of the Debior merging, amalgamating or entering
into any joint venture or co-tenancy arrangement with any other person.

(g} The Debtor shali keep the Collateral insured against damage, destruction of cther loss by fire, theft and such other
risks as Creditor may reasonably require to the full insurable value thereof, and all such insurance policies shall
contaln mortgage and loss payable endersements in favour of Creditor. Each policy of insurance shall provide that
the insurer thareunder shall give Creditor af least 30 days notice prier to any amendment or termination thereof and
that no act, omission or default of the Debtor or any other persen shall affect Greditor's right to recover under such
policy in case of theft, damags, destruction or other loss. All such policies cr certificates of the insurer with respect
thereto shall be delivered to and held by Creditor upon reguest by it. Should the Debter default in is cbligafions as
aforasaid, Creditor may maintain such insurance and any premiums paid by Creditor together with interest thereon at
the rate of 20% per annum shall be payable by the Debtor to Creditor on demand. The Debtor shali promptiy notify
Creditor of any loss or damage to the Collateral or any part thereof. The Debtor shall provide copies to Creditor of ali
insurance policies to Creditor promptly upon Creditor's request.

) In the event that the Debtor sells, leases, fransfers or othetwise disposes of any inventory which was supplied to the
Debtor by the Creditor, the Debtor agrees to hoid the proceeds (including, without limitation, any manufacturers
rebates associated with such inventory) which may arise from such sale, lease, fransfer or other disposition as
trustee, in trust for the Creditor, untif such time as all Obligations in respect of such inventory shall have been paid or
performed in full.

ARTICLE 4 - EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Default hereunder shall be deemed to occur in each of the following instances (each of which is herein called an *Event of
Defauit’);

{a) the Debtor defaults in payment or performance of any of the Obtigations;

{b) the Deblor defaulis in making any payment hereby required or in performing or complying with any covenant,
undertaking, condition or obligation contained herein or in any other agreement between the Bebtor and the Creditor;

(c) any order is made or & resoiution passed for the winding-up of the Debtor or if an application for a bankruptcy order is
filed or a bankruptey order is made against the Debtor under the Bankrupfcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) or an
authorized assignment for the benefit of creditors is made by it or if a receiver or agent is appointed by or on behaif of
a secured creditor of the Debtor or pursuant to @ court order or an application is made under the Comparies’
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Creditors Arrangement Act {Canada) or notice of intention to make & propesal is filed or a proposal is made by the
Debior to its creditors under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada),

an encumbrancer, whether permitted or otherwise, takes possession of any substantial part of the Collateral, or any
process of a court, execution, distress, or analogous process becomes enforceable or is enforced against any
substantial part of the Collateral and the Debtor is not instituting proceedings to vacate or lift such execution, disfress
or analogous process;

the Debior ceases or threatens to cease to cairy on its business, commits any act of bankruptey, becomes insolvent,
Droposes a Compromise or arrangsment to fis creditors or makes an unauthorized sale in bulk of its assets; or

the Debtor is liguidated, dissolved or its corporate charter expires or is revoked.
ARTICLE 5 - REMEDIES

5.1 Upon the accurrence of an Event of Default, the Security Interest shall immediately become enforceabls and the Creditor may,
forthwith or at any time thereafter and without notice to the Debtor except as required by the Act or by this agreement:

(@)
(b)

(c}
(d)

(e)

M

(@

(i}

)

02/2011

commence legal acticn o enforce payment or performance of any or ali of the Obligations;

make payments fo paries having prior charges or encumbrances on properties on which gither the Debtor or the
Creditor may hold charges or encumbrances;

enter onto any premises where the Collateral may be located;

take possession of all or any part of the Coliateral with power to exclude the Debtor, its agents and its servants
therefrom;

appoint any persan to be an agent or any person to he a receiver, manager or receiver and manager (herein calied a
“Recelver') of the Collateral and to remove any Receiver so appointed and to appoint another if the Creditor so
desires; it being agreed that any Receiver so appointed shail have all of the powers of the Creditor hereunder, and in
addition, shall have the power to carry on the business of the Debtor; it being further agreed that any such Receiver
shali be deemed fo be the agent of the Debtor for the purpose of establishing liabitity for the acts or omissions of the
Receiver and the Creditor shall not ba liable for such acts or omissions and, without restricting the generality of the
foregoing, the Debtor hereby irrevocably authorizes the Creditor to give instructions to the Receiver refating to the
performance of the Receiver's duties;

notify the account debtors or obligors under any accounts of the assignment of stch accounts to the Creditor and
direct such account debtars or obligors to make payment of all amounts due or to become due io the Debtor
thereundsr directly to the Creditor and give valid and binding receipts and discharges therefor and in respect thereof
and, upon such notification and at the expense of the Debtar, enfarce collection of any accounts, and adjust, settle or
compramise the amount or payment thereof, in the same manner and to the same exient as the Deblor might have
done;

enjoy and exercise all of the rights and remedies of a secured party under the Act)

file such proofs of claim or other documents as may be necessary or desirable to have s claim lodged in any
bankruptey. winding-up, iquidation, dissolution or other proceedings (voluntary or involuntary) relating to the Debtor;

preserve, protect and maintain the Collateral and make such replacements thereof and additions thereto as the
Creditor shall deem advisabie;

sell, lease or dispose of all or any part of the Collateral whether by public or private sale or lease or otherwise and on
any terms so long as every aspect of the disposition is commercially reasonable, including, without limitatien, terms
that provide time for payment on credit; provided that

(i neither the Creditor nor any Receiver will be required to sell, lease or dispose of the Coilateral, but may
peaceably and quietly take, hold, use, occupy, possess and enjoy the Collateral without molestation,
eviction, hindrance or interruption by the Debtor or any other person or persons whomsoaver for such pericd
of time as is commercially reasonable,

(if) the Creditor or any Receiver may convey, fransfer and assign to a purchaser or purchasers the titie to any of
the Collateral so soid, and

{ili} the Dabtor will be entitled to be credited with the actual proceeds of any such sale, lease or other disposition
only when such proceeds are received by the Creditor or any Receiver in cash; and

dispose of ali or any part of the Collateral in the condition in which it was cn the date possession of it was taken, of
after any commercially reasonable repair, processing or preparation for disposition;

pravided, however, that the Creditor shall act in & commercially reascnable manner in exercising its rights under this
agreement.

Kohl & Frisch Limited — General Security Agreement
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The remedies provided in section 5.1 are cumulative and in addition to al! other remedies axisting at tfaw or in eguity or by
siztute.

The Debtor agraes to indemaify and reimburse the Creditor far all costs and expanses of the Creditor, its agents, advisors and
consultants (inghiding without limitation legal fees and disbursements on a solicitor-and-client basis) incurred with respect to
the exercise by the Creditor of any of its rights, remedies and powers under this agreement {including without limitation. costs
and expenses telated tathe custody, preservation and realization of the Collateral; the. remuneration of the Receiver, and all
costs and expenses incurred by the Receiver in performing its functions under its appointment), or with respeci to dealing with
other creditors of the Debtor in connection with the establishment, confirmation, amendment or preservation of the priority of
the Seturity Interest, and such costs and expenses shall be added to and shall form part of the Obligations.

ARTICLE 6 - GENERAL

No delay or omission to exercise any right or ramedy accruing to the Creditor upon any breach or default by the ‘Debtor
hereunder shall impair any such; fight or remedy by the Creditor nor-be construed as a waiver of any stch breach or default or
of any similar breach or default thereafter oceurring, nor shall any waiver of a single breach or default be deemed a waiver of
any subseguent breach or default. All waivers hereunder must be in writing and signed by the waiving partly.

Any demand, notice or other communication in connection with this agreement shalt be in ‘writing and shall be personaily
delivered to an officer or other responsible employee of the addressee, mailed by registered mail or sent by direct written
electropic means such as telefacsimile, charges prepaid, af or to the address or telefacsimile number of the party as follows
{or to such other address or telefacsimile number as either parly may designate): {a) in the case of the Creditor, to Kohl &
Frisch Limited, 7622 Keele Street, Concord, Ontario L4K 2RS5, Attention: Vice President, Finance, Facsimile.: (908)
660-3682 and Director, Credit & Collections, Facsimile No.: {305} 860-1792; and (b) in the case of the Creditor, at its
address for notice set out néxt to the signature block befow. Any demand, notice or other communication whigh is personally
delivered as aforesaid shall be deemed to have been given on the date of delivery if such date is a Business Day and such

delivery was made during nosmal business hours of the reciplent; otherwise, it shall be deemed to have been given on the

8.3

6.4

6.5

6.6
8.7

6.8

Debtor:

Business Day next following such date of delivery. Any demand, notice or other communication mailed as aforesaid shall be
desmed fo have been given on the fifth Business Day following the date of mailing. Any demand, notice or other
communication which is transmitted by telefacsimile or other electrdriic means shall be deemed 10 have been given on the
date of transmission if such date is a Business Day and such transmission was made during normal business hours: of the
recipient; otherwise, it shall be deemed to have been given on the Business Day next following such date of transmission.

The Debtor shall do, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to.be dong, executed, acknowiedged and delivered, such
further acts, dseds, mortgages; transfers, assurances or other documents as the Creditor shall reasonably require to give
effect to or 10 preserve and perfectthe Security Interest in the Gollateral intended to be granted to the Creditor hereunder.

This agreement shalf become effective according 16 its terms immediately upen: the execution hereof by the parties hereto.
This agreament and the Security Interest are in addition to and not in substitution for any other agreement made between the
Creditorand the Debtor or any other security granted by the Debtor to the Creditor whether bafore orafter the execution of this
agreement.

There are no ropresentations, agréements, warranties, condgitions, covenants or terms, express or imptlied, coliateral or
otherwise, affecting this agreement or the Security Interest or the Debtor's. obligations. and liabilities hereunder other than as
expressed hereln,

Time shall be of the essence hereof.

This agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding Upon the parties herete and their respective successors and
assigns.

The Debtor, in executing this agreement, hereby acknowledges receipt of an executed copy thereof
IN WITNESS WHEREQCF the parties hereto have executed this agreament as of the date first above written,

m 2 [, é 3 2 _Tq— 5 Q’LIWI'D pod Address for Nofice:

By: X

Legal Namg

~ 288D QAL R
:; j%ﬁg/ 2 2RBO L .t}

Print Name:

Title:

/’ Signature o#’Signing(pfﬂcer ' OfAaeE O Lele RN

OV Gerdepn, Cooadbe

Loreto Grimaldi
- LD, General Counsel & Secretary

022011

PCAS Pafient Care Aviometion Services Ine.
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Attached is Exhibit “M” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012

(DU ﬂé’xzz/%( S@-{\(‘

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc




PRIORITIES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made as of the day of November, 2011.
BETWEEMN:

KOHL & FRISCH LIMITED
7622 Keele Street

Concord, Ontario

LAK 2RS5

(hereinafter called “XFL")

OF THE FIRST PART
. and -
ROYAL BANK OF CANADA
$880 Financial Drive, 2nd Floor Link
Mississauga, Ontario
LSNTYS
(hereinafter called the “Secured Party”™)
OF THE SECOND PART

-and -

PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC.
2880 Brighton Road

Unit 2

Qalkeville, Ontario

L6H 583

(hereinafter catled the “Corporatien™)

OF THE THIRD PART

- and —

2163279 ONTARIO INC,
2880 Brighton Road

Unit 2

Oakville, Ontario

L6H 5583

(hereinafier called “216™)

OF THE FOURTH PART

WHEREAS each of the Corporation and 216 {collectively, the “Obligors™) have executed in
favour of the Secured Party certain security over the following property and assets of the Obligors including
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without limitation, a general security agreement by each of the Obligors in favour of the Secured Party granting
a security interest to the Secured Party in all of the property and assets of the Obligors (collectively, the
“Secured Party's Security”); which Secured Party’s Security was registered against the Obligors under the
Personal Property Security Act (Ontario) (the “PPSA”) as more particularly described in Schedule “A”
annexed hereto as continuing collateral security for the debts, Hiabilities and obligations of each ofthe Obligors
to the Secured Party more particutarly described in the Secured Party's Security (collectively, the “Secared
Party Indebtedness™); ‘ - ‘

AND WHERKEAS as continuing coliateral security for the debts, liabilities and obligations of
each of the Obligors to KFL (collectively, the “KFL Indebtedness™), each of the Obligors have executed in
favour of KFL certain security over certain property and assets of the Obligors, including without limitation: (i)
a general security agreement by 216 in favour of KFL dated November 11, 2011 granting a security interest to
KFL in all of the property and assets of 216; and (if) an inventory purchase money security agreement by the
Corporation in favour of KFL dated February 26, 2008 granting a securify inferest to KFL in all of the
inventory supplied by KFL to the Corporation and the proceeds theveof (collectively, the “KFL Security”);

AND WHEREAS the parties hereto consider that it is desirable to establish and record that
the KFL Indebtedness and the KFL Security shall at all times be considered to be prior to the Secured Party's
Security insofar as it relates solely to any and all present and future Inventory (as defined under the PPSA)
supplied by KFL to each of the Obligors from time to time, together with all proceeds thereof (collectively, the
“KFL Inventory™);

NOW THEREFORE THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH that in consideration of the
premises and the sum of ONE DOLLAR ($1.60) of lawful money of Canada now paid by each of the parties
hereto to the other (the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by each party), 1T IS
HERFBY DECLARED AND AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

L. The Secured Party hereby consents to each of the Obligors granting to KFL the KFL Securify and to
the registration of the KT Security.

2. KFL hereby consents to each of the Obligors granting to the Secured Party the Secured Party’s
Security and to the registration of the Secured Party’s Security.

3. Except as set forth herein, the KFL Security or any part thereof is hereby fully subordinated in all
respects to the Secured Party's Security or any part thereof, to the full extent of the Secured Party
Indebtedness and the Secured Party's Security will have priority to the full extent of the Secured Party
Tndebtedness over the KFL Security or any part thereof and the KFL Indebtedness in all respects and
at all times.

4. The Secured Party hereby agrees that the KFL Security over the KFL Inventory shall at all times rank
in priority, to the extent of the KFL Indebtedness, over the Secured Party's Security insofar as the
Secured Party's Security and the Secured Party Indebtedness relate solely to the KFL Inventory.

5. The Secured Party acknowledges that each of the Obligots has agreed to enter into certain supply or
other agreements with KFL under which KFL will, from time to time, provide Inveatory financing fo
each of the Obligors. The Secured Party hereby agrees that upon advances by KFL to each of the
Obligors, the Secured Party’s Seeurity over, and all of the Secured Party’s right, title and interest in
and to, the KFL Inventory, shall thereby be subordinated to the KFL Security.
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The priorities of the Secured Party's Security and the K¥L, Security are applicable irrespective of the
time or order of attachment or perfection thereof, the method of perfection, the time or order of
registration, the filing of financing statements or taking of possession, recording of mortgages or other
instruments, assignments or agreements or the giving of or the faijure to give notice of the acguiring of
. any charge, lien or security interest, ‘ :

KFL dgrees that the Secured Party shail not incur any responsibility to KFL or the Obligors for any
loss whatsoever which KFL may suffer arising out of or in any way connecied with the KFL
Indebtedness or this Agreement. Moreover, with the exception of money deposited in any accounis.
designated as frust accounts by the Obligors for the benefit of KFL, the Secured Party may operate the
bank accounts of the Obligors maintained by the Secured Party in the ordinary course until receipt of a
notice of enforcement from KFL. Until that time, all proceeds of the KFL Inventoty when deposited in
any Obligor’s bank accounis {other than a trust account), shall be subject to the Secured Party” s right
of setoff. All proceeds of the KFL Inventory deposited in the bank acceunts of the Obligors after the
date of receipt of a notice of enforcement from KFL shalt be subject to the terms of this Agreement. If
the Seoured Party receives a notice of enforcement restraint it may otherwise deal with the accounts in
such a marmer as the Secured Party may, in its sole discretion, deem advisable int order to give effect
fo the priorities established in this Agreement.

Before the exercise by KFL of any rights of enforcement contained in the KFL Security, it shall give
not less than seven (7) days prior written notice to the Secured Party, provided that the failure to give
any such notice shall not result in any Lability of KFL to the Secured Party. Any notice to be
provided under Agreement shall be addressed to the Secured Party or KFL atthe following addresses:

(&) if10 KFL:

Kohl & Frisch Limited

76272 Keele Strest

Concord, Ontario

L4K 2R5 .

Attention: Account Manager, PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc./2163279
, Ontario Inc. '

Telecopier: 505-660-1792

{b) if 1o RBC:

6880 Financial Drive, 2nd Floor Link

Mississauga, Ontario

LSNT7YS )

Attention: Account Manager-PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Ine.
Telecopier: (905) 286-727%

and shall be delivered by facsimile transmission and shall be deemed to have been received on
transmission.

This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns.
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This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which when so execnied shatl be
deemed to be an original and such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

This Aoreemem shall be govemed by and construed in accordance with the laWS of the Province of

IN WITNESS WHEREQCFT this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

KOHL & FRISCH LIMITED

By:

Name:
I have the authority to bind the Corporation,

ROYAL BANK OF CANADA

By:

Name:
I have the authority to bind the Bank.

PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES
INC.

%ﬁ’ ]

Neme: Laqohe (rrmnalls
I have the authority to bind the Cerporation.

2163279 ONTARIO INC. %
/ ndz/
Ngifie: A_’;,ff;é; P a i
i have the authority to bind the Corperation.




15,

11,

-d-

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be
doented to be an original and such counterparts together shall constitute one and the sama nstromaent,

This Agreement shall b governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of
Ontario,

IN WITNESS WHEREOGF this Agreemeht has been executed By the parties hereto,

“Except the Kahl & Frisch Limited supplied inventory
K where Kol & Erisch Limited will retain first position”.

B P S M.w :
. Mr. Shaun McDonneli
Director, Cradit & Collections

ROYAL BANK OF CANADA

By:

Name:
1 have the authority to bind the Bank.

PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES

INC.
By
Name:
1 have the authority to bind the Corporation,
2163279 ONTARIO INC.,
By:

Name:
1 have the authority to bind the Corporation.




SCHEDULE “A™

SECURITY AGAINST THE 2163276 ONTARIG INC./CORPORATION
HELD BY THE SECURED PARTY

General Security Agreement dated -, 2011 (the “216 GSA™);

Financing Statement No. - on File No.
registered against 2163276 Ontario Inc. with respect to the 216 GSA over mventory, equipment,
aceounts, other collateral and motor vehicle; and

General Security Agreement dated , 2011 {the “Corporation GSA”);
Financing Statement No. ___ on File No.

registered against the Corporation with respect to the Corporation (3SA over inventory, equipment,
accounts, other collateral and motor vehicle.
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Attached is Exhibit “N” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012

(Du ne Q/J{ gmr\fi

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc




SR&ED/OITC/HST PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Tn consideration.of the mutual agreements and covenants herein contained and for other good
and valuable consideration now paid by each of the parties hereto to the other (the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby ackrowledged), the parties agree as follows:

1. Purchase and Sale: CASTCAN INVESTMENTS INC,, IN TRUST (“Purchaser”) hereby
purchases and PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC., a corporation organized
and existing under the federdl laws of Canada, and 2163279 ONTARIQ INC,, a corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the Provinee of Ontario, each with an office at 2880
Brighton Road, Unit 2, Oakville, ON L6H 553 (colicctively, “Vendor™), hereby sells, on a full
recourse basis, all of Vendor’s right, title and interest in and to the Tax Credit Entitlements (as
hereinafter defined). In this Agreement, the term “Tax Credit Eniiflements” means, collectively,
the Scientific Research and Experimental Development refundable tax credit entitements, the
Ontario Innovation Tax Credit entitlements and Harmonized Sales Tax refinds more particularly
described in anmexed Schedule “A” together with all tax refunds in respect thereof and any interest
thereon (collectively, the “Refunds”) payable or to be payable to Vendor in respect thereof as set ouf
in annexed Schedule “A”. Subjectonly to the provisions of section 12 hereof, ownership of the Tax
Credit Entitlements (and all rightsrelated thereto) shall automatically transfer to Purchaser upon the
execution and delivery of this Agreement.

2, Purchase Price: The aggregate puichase price {the “Purchase Price”) for the Tax Credit w
Entitlements, subject to adjustment (which shall include adjustments for interest received on the Tax W

Credit Entitlements) as hereinafter provided in section 4 hereof, is $1,288,298.00 less the Discount "~
Amount {as hereinafier defined). In this Agreement, the term “Disconnt Amount” means

$288,298.00. ?ﬂ

3. Purchase Price Pavment: The Purchase Price shall be payable as follows:
() $1,000,000.00 (the “Advance Amount”), prorptly upon the execution and delivery
of this Agreement by Purchaser; and

(b)  the balance of the Purchase Price less the Discount Amount and any other charges
under this Agreement payable by Vendor, within one (1) business day following
_receipt by Purchaser of the Refunds.

4. Purchase Price Adjustment: If the actual amount of the Refunds received by Purchaser
(including, without limitation, interest received) exceeds the aggregate of the Advance Amount, the
Discount Amount.and any other charges under this Agreement owing by Vendor (such aggregate
being hereinafter referred to as the “Purchaser Entitlement”), then the amount of the Purchase
Price shall be adjusted, upwards or downwards as the case may be, to reflect the actual amount of the
Refunds received by Purchaser. If the actual amount of the Refunds received by Purchaser is equal
to or less than the Purchaser Entitlement, then the amount of the Purchase Price shall be decreased to
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equal the Purchaser Entitlemént. For greater certainty, should any assessment or reassessment of
Vendor by any relevant taxing authority result in any requirement for all or any part of the Refunds
previously received by Purchaser to be repaid, such obligation shall be the: sole responsibility of
Vendor. -

5. Recourse: Should there be an Event of Defauit (as hereinafter defined), then Purchaser shall
have the right at any time thereafter to require Vendor to immediately re-purchase, on a without
recourse basis, the Tax-Credit Entitlements (including, without limitation, any Non-Assignable
Rights) for an amount (the “Repurchase Price”) equal to the Advance Amount plus the Discount
Amount less the actual amount of the Refunds, if any, having theretofore been received by Purchaser,
together with interest osi the Repurchase DPrice at the Rate {as hereinafter defined) from the date
Purchaser requires such re-purchase.

6. Interest on Late Payments: All amourts owing hereunder by Vendor to Purchaser shall bear
interest at the rate (the “Rate”) of 30% per annum calculated yearly not in advance on any amounts
owing hereunder and overdue interest, if any, from time to time remaining unpaid, such interest to
accrue daily from and including the date the amount becomes owing hereunder {(eg. the date
Purchaser requires any re-purchase of the Tax Credit Entitlements) and to be payable on demand.
Payments received shall be applied firstly in payment of unpaid accrued interest and the balance if

any in reduction of other obligations.

7. Representations and acknowledgements of Vendor: Vendor represents, warrants and
acknowledges to Purchaser as follows:

(a) Vendor is duly incorporated, organized and existing under the federal laws of Canada
or the iaws of the Province of Ontario, as applicable, and has ail requisite power to
enter into, exercise its rights and perform and comply with its obligations under this
Agreéement; ‘

(b)  Vendor is not a party to any agreement under the terms of which Vendor is prohibited
ot restricted from entering into any of the obligations assumed, liabilities imposed, or
restrictions accepted by Vendor under this Agreement,

(¢)  the .description-s of the Tax Credit Entitlements set out in annexed Schedule “A” are
true and correct in all material respects and Vendor is fully enfitled under all
applicable law to receive the full amount of the Refunds;

(@)  Vendorisnotinreceipt of any cotrespondence, notices, enquiries, objections or other
communications from Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) respecting the Tax Credit

Entitlements that have not been provided to Purchaser or Royal Bank of Canada;

{e) the Tax Credit Entitlements have not been assigned, encumbered or postponed, in
whole or in part otherwise than in favour of Purchaser;
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(b

all information which has been provided to Purchaser relating to the Tax Credit
Entitlements is true and correct in all material respects and no material fact or facts
have been omitted therefrom which would make such information misleading;

no due djligenéé undertaken by Vendor in respect of the Tax Credit Entitlements, or
otherwise, shall affect, lessen, reduce or mitigate any of the representations,
warranties or other obligations of Vendor under this Agreement; and

Purchaser does not guarantce Or warrant in any way the validity, eligibility,
completeness or any other aspect of the Tax Credit Entitlements and Purchaser shall
not be liable or in any way responsible for the same.

8 Obligations of Vendor: Until receipt of the Refunds and/or churchasc Price by Purchaser

.
i 3 P P io Ao net oo ool
and payment in full of any accrued interest and other charges under this Agreement, Yendor shall:

@

(b)

(c}

@

(e)

@

()

give Purchaser written notice and copies of all correspondence, notices, enquiries,
objections or other communications received from CRA respecting or affecting the
Tax Credit Entitlements or the Refunds, within one (1) business day following
receipt- thereof, and not respond thereto without the prior written approval of
Purchaser (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed);

hold in trust, not intermingle with any other assets of Vendor and immediately remit
to Purchaser, within one (1) business day of receipt thergdf,’ any pottion of the
Refunds received by Vendor; :

fully co-operate with Purchaser respecting the collection of the Refunds;

not consent or agree to any modification of the Tax Credit Entitlements without the
prior written consent of Purchaser (such consent notto be unreasonably withheld or
delayed);

execute all documents and do all things which Purchaser, acting reasonably, from
time to time, deems necessary or desirable in connection with this Agreement
including, without limitation, the exccution of directions to CRA 1o make payment of
the Refunds to Purchaser or to forward such payment to an account (controlled by
Purchaser) or address designated by Purchaser from time to fime;

not revise or revoke any directions to CRA without the prior written approval of
Purchaser;

observe and conform to all laws and alt valid requirements of any govemnmental
authority with respect to all or any part of its business and the Tax Credit
Entitlements;
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(h)  remit-when due any and all taxes, withholdings and other charges due to any
governmerital authority (including employee source deductions, EHT, PST, HST,
ete.) and advise Purchaser in writing of any arrears within twenty (20) days of the
applicable due dates; - I

)] defend the Tax Credit Entitlements against claims and demands of all other parties
claifning to have an interest therein, and not create or suffer or permit to be created or
levied upon the Tax Credit Entitlemenis or any part thereof any charge, lien,
encumbrance, execution, sequestration, extent or analogous process;

i keep proper books and records with respect to the Tax Credit Entitlements and,
pérmit Purchaser, by its officers or agents, upon reasonable notice, to enter the
premises of Vendor and inspect and make copies of such books and records from
time to time during Vendor’s normal business hours or such other iime as the pariies

may mutually agree;

(k) provide Purchaser with such financial and other information as Purchaser may
reasonably request, from time to time;

) pay all reasonable costs incurred by Purchaser, including legal fees, professional
fees, search and registration fees etc. in respect of negotiating and completing the
transaction provided for in this agreement and all related security, any ongoing
charges incurred in maintaining or reviewing the Tax Credit Entitlements or the
secutity requirements of Purchaser, and the costs of any discharges.

9. Power of Attorney: Vendor hereby irrevocably appoints Purchaser as its attorney to execute
(including the power to execute under the seal of Vendor) and deliver in Vendor’s name all deeds,
instruments or other documents that Purchaser may consider necessary or advisable in order to
perfect Purchaser’s title to the Tax Credit Entitlements, and Purchaser may supply any endorsement
to any cheque or other instrument relating to the Tax Credit Entitlements or to the Refunds in order
to obtain payment therefor, and that power of attorney shall be deemed to be coupled with an

interest.

10.  FEvents of Default: The happening of any of the following events or conditions shall
constitute default under this Agreement (each an “Event of Default”):

(a) any material adverse change in events or circumstances relating to the current or
previous tax returns of Vendor, or to the Tax Credit Entitlements;

(b) anjr default under any agreement by Vendor in favour of Purchaser or under any
agreement by any other person in favour of Purchaser respecting debts and

obligations of Vendor;

(c) any material defanlt by Vendor of its obligations to any third party, which default
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could reasonably be expected to cause a material adverse change in the financial
conditions, operations ot ownership of Vendor; '

{4} any material adverse change in financial conditions, operations or ownership of
Vendor;

{e) the failure of Vendor to observe or perform any obligation, covenant, term, or
provision contained in this Agreement and such failure having not been remedied by
Vendor with five (5) days of having been given notice thereof;

§3) Pufciiaser not being in receipt of the Refunds for the full amount of those Tax Credit
Entitlements identified in Part I of annexed Schedule “A” by June 30, 2012;

{(g)  Purchaser not being in receipt of the Refunds for the full amount o those Tax Credit

Entitlements identified in Part Il of annexed Schedule “A” by November 15, 2012;

(h) the actual amount of the Refunds received by Purchaser being less than the Purchaser
Entitlement.

11.  Indemnity by Vendor: Vendor hereby forever indemnifies and holds harmless Purchaser
from and against all liabilities, debts, costs (including solicitors costs ona solicitor and its own client
basis) and expenses incurred or which Purchaser may incur due to:

(a) exercising its rights hereunder (including without limitation cbliecting the Refunds or
the Repurchase Price); or

(b} itg eﬁecutiom delivery or performance of this Agreement.

12.  Non-Assignable Rights: Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as an assignment of,
or an attempt to assign to Purchaser any right or entitlement which would otherwise be part of the
Tax Credit Entitlements and which, as a matter of law is either not assignable or not assignable

without the approval or consent of a government authority (collectively, “Non-Assignable Rights™).
In connection with Non-Assignable Rights, Vendor shall, at its own expense:

(@) co-operate with Purchaser in any reasonable and lawful arrangements designed to
provide the benefits of such Non-Assignable Rights to Purchaser, including without
limitation, holding any such Non-Assignable Rights in trust for Purchaser or acting as
agent for Purchaser;

(b) enforce any rights of Vendor arising from such Non-Assignable Rights against the
applicable government authority;

(©) take-all such actions and do or cause to be done all such things at the.request of
Purchaser as shall reasonably be necessary and proper in order that the value of any
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Non-Assignable Rights shall be preserved and shall enure fuily to the benefit of
Purchaser; and

(d) payoverto Purchaser all monies collected by or paid to Vendor in respect of such
Non-Assignable Rights. L

Jid Vendoris:i;ﬂébie to lawfully provide to Purchaser the benefit of any Non-Assignable Riglt,
Vendor shall not use any such Non-Assignable Right for its own purposes or assign the benefit
thereof to any other person. ~ : :

12, Notice: Any notice, instruction or document required or permitted to be given or served by
this Agreement or by law may be given personally or by telecopier or by prepaid courier or registered
mail to the intended recipient at its address as set out in this Agreement and any party may by notice
given in accordance with this section change its address for the purposes of this section. Any notice
shall be deemed (in the absence of evidence of prior receipt) to have been received by the intended
recipient the same day if personally served, the next business day if sent by telecopier fransmission or

by courier, and on the fifth (5™ business day next following where sent by registered mail.

14. Generéi:

(a)  This Agreement (including Schedule “A” annexed hereto) constitutes the entire
agreement between the parties hereto with respect to- all matters herein, and its
execution has not been induced by, nor do any of the parties hereto rely upon or
regard’ as mhaterial, any representations, warranties or promises whatsoever not
incorporated herein or made a part hereof,

(b)  This Agreement shall not be deemed to be, or construed as having been, amended as
a result of any oral communication between the parties or as a result of any practice
ofthe parties. All amendments shall be in writing and signed by the party or parties
to be bound thereby but may be executed in separate counterparts and delivered by
telecopy transmission,

(c) Section headings contained herein are included solely for convenience of reference,
are not intended to be full or accurate descriptions of the contents thereof and shall
not be considered part of this Agreement,

(d)  Time shall be the essence hereof.
(e) Any provision of this Agreement which is illegal, prohibited or unenforceable in any
jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be meffective to the extent of such illegality,

prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof
or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction.,
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® If two ot more individuals or corporations (or any combination of two or more

thiereof) are named above and execute this Agreement as Vendor, the liability of

*  such parties under this Agreement shall be joint and several and this Agreement shal]

be interpreted to reflect multiple partles being named and executing this Agreement

as Vendor and selling their interests in the respective Tax Credit Entitlements and
Refunds.

(g) Tius Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto
and their respective successors and assigns.

(hy  This Agreement may be executed by the parties in separate counterparts and
delivered by telecopy or other means of electronic transmission, each of which when
-850 executed and delivered shall be deemed io be an original and all such counterparis
shall together constifute one and the same instrument.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED as of the 6th day of March, 2012.

PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION
SERVICES INC.
(Vendor)

By: ‘ﬂ‘ﬁ'?\ﬁt CE-&J‘{@
Name: Dong TunkS

Title: Q£4)
{Authorized Signing Officer)

2163279 ONTARIO INC.
v endor)

by ilora (ferP
Name: Devnd Tln kS
Tide: oL@ - .
{Authorized Signing Officer)

Accepied and agreed to byCASTCAN INVESTMENS INC., IN TRUST this 6th day of March,
2012,

CASTCAN INVESTMENTS INC,, IN TRUST

(PWChW
By: / 7, K

Name: ’ Tonl Sortwnre
Title: A 50
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SCHEDULE “A”

' ,TAX CREDIT ENTITLEMENTS
PART |

2009/ 2010 SRED / ITC

claim
2009
Federal 480,021, see CRA letter dated July 21, 2011 - tabie on page 1
Provincial : 169,568 and Delnittes letter of March 6, 2012 - page 1
Total 649,589
cash received 406,248 -
243,341
2Q10
Federal . 380,931 see Deloittes letter of March 6, 2012 - page 1
provingal 120,931
Total 501,862
RBC .
ican o 408,374 see SRED recovery letter dated October 24, 2011
HST Credits
2012 160,085 see HST filing for PCAS
2011  Touchpoint 441,680 see HST filing for TouchPoint
Total Part 1 938,594
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PART

2011 SRED/ ITCclaim
— ‘ see Deloittes letter of March 6, 2012 - page 2 bullet

Federal’ 265,438 7

see Deloittes letter of March 6, 2012 - page 2 buliet
Provincial 84,266 7 Co
Total- . - . 349,704
Total Part 2 348,704
Total ' 1,288,298 -

Tely  Nox  Crreld
Ut T T by B 2277
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Attached is Exhibit “O” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012

!
(Pu nee )f S@m

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc




GENERAL SECURITY AGREEMENT

1. SECURITY INTEREST

101 . . For value received, the undersigned PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION
SERVICES INC., a corporation incorporated under the federal laws of Canada (the “Debtor”),
hereby grants to CASTCAN INVESTMENTS INC., IN TRUST (the “Creditor”), by way of morigage,
charge, assignment and-transfer, a security interest (the “Security Interest”) in the undertaking of
the Debtor and in all of the Debtor’s present and after acquired personal property including, without
limitation, in all-Goods (including all parts, accessories, attachments, special tools, additions and
accessions thereto), Accounts, Chattel Paper, Docurents of Title (whether negotiable or not),
Equipment, Instruments, Intangibles, Inventory, Money and Securities now owned or hereafter
owned or acquired by or on behalf of the Debtor or in which the Debtor has any right, title or interest
whatsoever or wheresoever (including such as may be returned to or repossessed by the Debtor) and
in all Proceeds and renewals thereof, accretions thereto and substitutions therefor (the “Collateral”),
and including, without limitation, all of the following now owned or hereafter owned or acquired by
or on behalf of the Debtor:

(a) all inventory of whatever kind and wherever situate;

(b)  all Equipmént (other than Inventory) of whatever kind and wherever situate,
‘including, without limitation, all machinery, tools, apparatus, plant, furniture, fixtures
and vehicles of whatsoever nature or kind; .

(¢)  all Accounts and book debts and generally all debts, dues, claims, choses in action
and demands of every nature and kind howsoever arising or secured including
_guarantees, indemnities, letters of credit and advices of credit, which are now due,
owing or accruing or growing due to or owned by or which may hereafier become
due, owing or accruing or growing due to or owned by the Debtor (hereinafter
collectively called “Debts™);

@ all deeds, documents, writings, papers, books of account and othier books relating to
ot being records of Debts, Chattel Paper or Documents of Title or by which such are
ot may hereafter be secured, evidenced, acknowledged or made payable;

(&)  all contractual rights, licenses and insurance claims and all goodwill, patents,
trademarks, copyrights, and other intellectual property and industrial property and
any rights of renewal or extension thereof;

D all monies other than trust monies lawfully belonging to others; and

(g)  all property described in any schedule now or hereafter annexed hereto.
1.02 “The Seoﬁrity'Interest granted hereby shall not extend or apply to and the Collateral
shall not include the last day of the teim of any lease or agreement therefor but upon the enforcement

of the Security Interest the Debtor shall stand possessed of such last day in trust to assign the same to
any person acquiring such term, including, without limitation, the Creditor.
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1.03 The terms “Accessions”, “Account”, “Chattel Paper”, “Document of Title”,
“Equipment”, “Goeds”, “Instrument’, “Intangibie”, “Inventory”, “Money”, “Personal
Property”, “Proceeds” and “Security” whenever used herein shall be interpreted pursuant to their
respective meanings when used in the Personal Property Security Act of Ontario, as amended from
time to time, which Act; including amendments thereto and any Act substituted therefor and
amendments thereto is hereiti referred to as the “P.P.8.A.”, Provided always that the term “Goods”
when used herein shall not include “Consumer Goods” of the Debtor as that term is defined in the
P.P.S.A., and the term “Inventory” when used herein shall inchude livestock and the young thereof
after conception, crops that become growing crops, fish after they are caught, minerals or
hydrocarbons after they are exiracted and timber after it is cut. Any reference herein to the
“Collateral” shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be deemed a reference to the “Collateral
or any part thereof”. ‘

Z INDEBTEDNESS SECURED

2.01 The Security Interest granted hereby secures payment and performance of any and all
obligations; indebtedness and liability of the Debtor to the Creditor (including, without limitation,
interest thereon) present or future, direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, matured or not, extended
or renewed, wheresoever and howsoever incurred and any ultimate unpaid balance thereof and
whether the same is at any time and from time to time reduced and thereafter increased or entirely
extinguished and thereafter inowrred again and whether the Debtor be bound alone or with another or
others and whether as principal or surety (hereinafter collectively called the “Indebtedness™). For
greater certainty; the Indebtedness includes, without Iimitation, all obligations, indebtedness and
liability of the Debtor to those for and on behalf of whom Castcan Investments Inc. may now or
hereafter hold interests in a certain SR&ED/OITC/HST Purchase Agreement bistween the Debtor and
7163279 Ontario Inc. and the Creditor dated even date herewith and the fransaction provided for
therein. Ifthe Security Interest in the Collateral is not sufficient, in the event of default, to satisfy all
Indebiedness of the Debtor, the Debtor acknowledges and agrees that the Debtor shall continue to be
liable for any Indebtedness remaining outstanding and the Creditor shall be entitled to pursue full
payment thereof,

3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE DEBTOR

3.01 The Debtor represents and warrants and so long as this Security Agreement remains in
effect shall be deemed to continuously represent and warrant that:

(8  the Collateral is genuine and owned by the Debtor free of all security interests,
mortgages, liens, claims, charges or other encumbrances (hereinafter collectively
called “Encumbrances™), save for the Security Interest and those Encumbrances
shown on Schedule “A” hereto or hereafter approved in writing, prior to their
creation or assumption, by the Creditor (hereinafter collectively called “Permitted
Encumbrances”); provided, that nothing in the foregoing définition of “Permitted
Encumbrances” or otherwise in this Agreement (including, without limitation,
Schedule “A”) shall (i) be construed as evidencing an intention or agreement on the

' part of the Creditor that the Security Interest or the Indebtedness be or have been
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(b)

©

(@)

(b)

3

subordinated to any such Permitted Encumbrances or (i) cause any such
subordination to ocout.

to the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Debtor, (i) each Debt,
Chattel Paper and Instrument constituting the Collateral is enforceable in accordance
with its-terms against the party obligated to pay the same (the “Account Debtor™),
and the amount represented by the Debior to the Creditor from time to time as owing
by each Account Debtor or by all Account Debtors will be the correct amount
actually and unconditionally owing by such Account Debtor or Account Debtors,
except for normal cash discounts where applicable, and (i) no Account Debtor now
has any defence, set off, claims or counterclaim against the Debtor which can be
asserted against the Creditor, whether in any proceeding to enforce the Collateral or
otherwise; and .

the locations specified in Schedule “B” hereto as to the location of the business

operations and records of the Debtor are accurate and complete and, with respect to
Goods (including, without limitation, Inventory) constituting the Collateral, the
locations specified in Schedule “B” hereto are accurate and complete, save for Goods
in transit to such locations and Inventory on lease ot consignment; and all fixtures or

'Goods about to become fixtures and all crops and all oil, gas or other minerals to be

extracted and all timber to be cut which forms part of the Collateral will be situate at
one of such locations,

COVENANTS OF THE BEBTOR
So long as this Security Agreement remains in effect the Debtor covenants and agrees:

10 defend the Collateral against the claims and demands of all other parties claiming
the same or an interest therein; to keep the Collateral free from all Encumbrances,
except for the Security Interest and the Permitted Encumbrances; and not to sell,
exchange, transfer, assign, lease, or otherwise dispose of the Collateral or any interest
therein without the prior written consent of the Creditor; provided always, that, until
default, the Debtor may, in the ordinary course of the Debitor's business, sell or lease
Inventory and, subject to section 7,01 hereof, use monies available to the Debtor and
the Debtor may sell or otherwise dispose of equipment which has become wom out
or damaged or otherwise unsuitable for its purpose on condition that the Debtor shall
substitute therefor, subject to the Security Interest, property of equal or greater value
so that the Collateral shall not thereby be in any way reduced or impaired;

to notify the Creditor in writing promptly of:

) any chénge in the information contained herein or in the Schedules hereto

relating to the Debtor, the Debtor's business or the Collateral;

Gi)  the details of any significant acquisition of Collateral; '.




©

@

(€}

(®

LY

®

4

{(iii)  the details of any claims or litigation affecting the Debtor or the Collateral;
(iv) any significant loss of or damage to the Collateral;

{(v)  anymaterial default by any Account Debtor in payment or other performance
of its obligations with respect to the Collateral; and

(vi) - the return to or repassession by the Debtor of the Collateral;

to keep the Collateral in good order, condition and repair and not to use the Collateral
in violation of the provisions of this Security Agreement or any other agreement
relating to the Collateral or any policy insuring the Collateral or any applicable
statute, law, by-law, rule, regulation or ordinance;

to do, execute, acknowledge and deliver such financing statements, financing change
statements and further assignments, transfers, documents, acts, matters, information
and. things . (inchuding, without limitation, further schedules hereto) as may be
reasonably requested by the Creditor of or with respeci to the Collateral in order to
give effect to these presents and to pay all costs for searches and filings in connection
therewith;

to pay all taxes, rates; levies, assessments and other charges'c_if every nature which
may be lawfully levied, assessed or imposed against or in respect of the Debtor or the
Collateral as and when the same become due and payable;

to insure the Collateral for such periods, in such amounts, on such terms and against
loss or damage by fire and such other risks as the Creditor shall reasonably direct
with loss payable to the Creditor and the Debtor, as insureds, as then' respective
interests may appear, and to pay all premiums therefor; ‘

to' prevent the Collateral save Inventory sold or leased as permitted hereby, from
being or becoming an accession to other property not charged by this Security
Agresment;

to carry on and conduct the business of the Debtor in a proper and efficient manner
and .s0. as to protect and preserve the Collateral and to keep, in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied, proper books of
account for the Debtor's business as well as accurate and complete records
concerning the Collateral, and mark in the manner specified by the Creditor from
time to time any and all such records and the Collateral at the Cteditor's request so as
to indicate the Security Interest; and

to deliver to the Creditor from time to time promptly upon request:

(®  any Documems of Title, Instruments, Securities and Chaitel Paper
constituting, representing or relating to the Collateral;
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(i)  all books of account and all records, ledgers, reporis, correspondence,
- schedules, documents, statements, lists and other writings relating to the
Colla‘_cg_ral for the purpose of inspecting, auditing or copying the same;

(i)  all financial statements prepared by or for the Debtor rega:rdmg the Debtor's
business;

(iv).  .all policies and certificates of insurance relating to the Collateral; and

(v)  such information conceming the Collateral, the Debtor and the Debtor's
business and affairs as the Creditor may reasonably reguest.

5. USE AND VERIFICATION OF THE COLLATERAL
5.0t .Subject to compliance with the Debtor’s covenants contained herein and section 7.01

hereof, the Debtor may, until defauit, possess, operats, collect, use and enjoy and deal with the

Coliateral in the ordinary.course of the Debior's business-in any manner not inconsistent with the -

provisions hereof; provided always that the Creditor shall have the right at any time and from time to
time to verify the existence and state of the Collateral in any manner the Creditor may consider
appropriate and the Debtor agrees to furnish all assistance and information and to perform all such
acts as the Creditor may reasonably request in connection therewith and for such purpose to grant to
the Creditor or its agents access to all places where the Collateral may be located and to all premises
occupied by the Debtor.

6. SECURITIES

6.01 ‘I'the Collateral at any time includes shares in any affiliates of the Debtor, the Debtor
authorizes the Creditor, upon the expiry of 180 days from the date of this Security Agreement
without the Indebtedness having been repaid in full, to transfer the same or any part thereof into its
own name or that of its nominee(s). Ifthe Coliaterai at any time includes other Seourities (other than
shares in any affiliates of the Debtor), the Debtor authorizes the Creditor, upon defanlt, to transfer
the same or any part theteof into its own name or that of its nominee(s) so that the Creditor or its
nominee(s) may appear of record as the sole owner thereof. After any transfer as aforesaid, the
Debtor waives all right to receive any notices or communications received by the Creditor or its
nominee(s) as such registered owner. Subject to the foregoing, upon the request ofthe Creditor, the
Debtor will instruct the issuer, clearing agency, custodian or nominee to make an entry in its records
of the Creditor's security interest in the Securities so as to effect delivery to and possession by the
Creditor of those securities.




7. COLLECTION OF DEBTS

7.01 Before or after defanlt under this Security Agreement, the Creditor may notify all or
anty Account Debtors of the Security Intérest and may also direct such Accounf Debstors to make all
payments on the Collateral to the Creditor. The Debtor acknowledges that any payments on or other
proceeds of the Collateral received by the Debtor from Account Debtors, whether before or after
notification of this Security Interest to Account Debtors and whether before or after default under
this Security Agreement, shall be received and held by the Debtor in trust for the Creditor and shall
be turned over to the Creditor upon request.

INC{)ME FROM AND INTEREST ON THE COLLATERAL

-

2.01 ' Unﬁ? default, the Debtor reserves the right to receive any monies constituting income
from or interest on the Collateral and if the Creditor receives any such monies prior to default, the

Creditor shall either credit same against the Indebtedness or pay the same prompitly to the Debtor.

8.02. Aﬁer dcfault the Debtor will not request or receive any monies constituting income
from or interest on the Collateral and if the Debtor receives any such monies without any request by
it, the Debtor will pay the same promptly to the Creditor. :

9. INCREASES, PROFITS, PAYMENTS OR DISTRIBUTEONS
9,01 Whether or ot default has occutred, the Debtor authorizes the Creditor:

(a)  toreceive any increase in or profits on the Collateral (other ﬂmn money) and to hold
the same as part of the Collateral, Money so received shall be treated as income for
the purposes of sections 8.01 and 8.02 hereof and dealt with accordingly; and

(b)  to receive any payment or distribution upon redemption or retirement or upon
dissoiution and liquidation of the issuer of the Collateral; to surrender such Collateral
in exchange therefor; and to hold any such payment or distribution as part of the
Collateral.

9.02 Ifthe Debtor receives any such increase or profits (other than money) or payments or
distributions, the Debtor will deliver the same prompily to the Creditor to be held by the Creditor as
herein provided.

10. DISPOSITION OF MONIES

10.01 Subject to any applicable mandatory requirements of the P.P.S.A,, all monies
collected or received by the Creditor pursuant to or in exercise of any right it possesses with respect
to the Collateral shall be applied or reapplied on account of the Indebtedness in such manner as the -
Creditor deems best in its sole discretion or, at the opinion of the Creditor, may be held
wnappropriated in a collateral account or released to the Debtor, all without prejudice to the Hability
of the Debtor or the rights of the Creditor hereunder, and any surplus shall be accounted for as
required by law.




1.

11.01

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

The happening of any of the following events or conditions shail constitute default

hereunder which is herein referred 10 as “default™;

(a)

@

()

3]

(g

Y

. thenon-payment when due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, of any principal or

interest forming part of the Indebtedness or the failure of the Debtor to observe or
perform any obligation, covenant, term, provision or condition contained in this
Security Agreement or any other agreement between the Debtor and the Creditor;

-the death of or a declaration of incompetency by a court of competent jurisdiction
with respect to the Debtor, if an individual;

the bankrupicy or insolvency of the Debtor; the filing against the Debtor of a petition
in bankruptey; the making of an authorized assignment or proposal for the benefit of
-creditors by the Debtor; the appointment of a receiver or trustee for the Debtor or for

 any assets of the Debtor; or the institution by or against the Debtor of any other type

of insolvency proceeding under the Bankrupicy and Insolvency Act or otherwise;

the instifution by or against the Debtor of any formal or informal proceeding for the
dissolution or liquidation of, settlement of claims against or winding up of affairs of
the Debtor;

if any Encumbrance affecting the Collateral becomes enforceable against the
Collateral; 2

if the'Debtor ceases or threatens to cease to carry on business or makes or agrees to
make a bulk sale of assets without complying with applicable law or commits or
‘threatens to commit an act of bankrupicy;

if any execution, sequestration, extent or other process of any court becomes
enforceable against the Debtor or if a distress or analogous process is levied upon the
assets of the Debtor or any part thereof or

if any certificate, statement, representation, warranty or audit report heretofore or
hereafier furnished by or on behalf of the Debtor pursuant to or in connection with
this Security Agreement, or otherwise (including, without limitation, the
representations and warranties contained herein) or as an inducement to the Creditor
to-extend any credit to or to enter into this or any other agreement with the Debor,
proves to have been false or inaccurate in any material respect at the time as of which
the facts therein set forth were stated or certified, or proves te have omitied any
substantial contingent or unliquidated liability or claim against the Debtor; or if upon
the date of execution of this Security Agreement, there shall have been any material
adverse change in any of the facts disclosed by any such certificate, representation,
statemient, warranty or audit report, which change shall not have been disclosed to the
‘Credifor at or prior to the time of such execution.




12. ACCELERATION

12.01 “The Creditor, in its sole discretion, may declare all or any part of the Indebtedness
which is not by ifs térnis payable on deémand to be immediately due and payable, without demand or
notice of any kind, in the event of default, or, if the Creditor in good faith believes and has
commercially rcasonable grounds to believe that a material adverse change has occurred in the
financial and business position of the Debter. The provisions of this section 12.01 are not intended
in any way to affect any right of the Creditor with respect to Indebtedness which may now or
hereafter be payable on demand.

i3. REMEDIES

13.01 Upon default, the Crediter may appoint or reappoint by instrument in writing, any
person or persons, whether an officer or officess or an employee or employees of the Creditor or not,
to be a receiver or receivers (hereinafter called a “Receiver”, which term when used herein shall
include a receiver and manager) of the Collateral (including any interest, income or profits
therefrom) and may remove any Receiver so appointed and appoint another in his stead. Any such
Receiver shall, so far as concerns responsibility for his acts, be deemed the agent of the Debtor and
not the Creditor, and the Creditor shall not be in any way responsible for any misconduct,
negligence, or non-feasance on the part of any such Receiver, his servants, agents or employees.
Subject to the provisions of the instrument appointing him, any such Receiver shall have power to
take possession of the Collateral, to preserve the Collateral or its value, fo carry on or ¢concur in
carrying on all or any part of the business of the Debtor and to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of or
concur in selling, leasing or otherwise disposing of the Collateral. To facilitate the foregoing
powers, any such Receiver may, to the exclusion of all others, including the Debtor, enter upon by
peacsable or forcible means at any time of the day or night, use and occupy all premises owned or
occupied by the Debtor wherein the Collateral may be situate, maintain the Collateral upon such
premises, borrow money on a secured or unsecured basis and use the Collateral directly in carrying
on the Debtor's business or as security for loans or advances to enable him to carry on the Debtor's
business or otherwise, as such Receiver shall, in his discretion, determine. Except as may be
otherwise directed by the Creditor, all monies received from time to time by such Receiver in
carrying out his appointment shall be received in trust for and paid over to the Creditor. Every such
Receiver may, in the discretion of the Creditor, be vested with all or any of the righis and powers of
the Creditor, ‘

13.02 Upon default, the Creditor may, either directly or through its agents or nominees,
exercise all the powers and rights given to a Receiver by virtue of section 13.01 hereof,

13.03 The Creditor may take possession of, collect, demand, sue on, enforce, recover and
receive the Collateral and give valid and binding receipts and discharges therefor and in respect
thereof and, upon default, the Creditor may sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the Collateral in such
manner, at such time or times and place or places, for such consideration and upon such terms and
conditions as to the Creditor may seer reasonable,

13.04 In addition to those rights granted herein and in any other agreement now or hereafter
m effect between the Debtor and the Creditor and in addition fo any other rights the Creditor may
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have at law or in equity, the Creditor shall have, both before and after default, all rights and remedies
of a secured party under the P.P.S.A. Provided always, that the Creditor shall not be liable or
accountable for any failure to exercise its remedies, take possession of, collect, enforce, realize, sefl,
lease or otherwise dispose of the Collateral or to institute any proceedings for such purposes,
Furthermore, the Creditor shall have no obligation to take any steps to preserve rights against prior
parties to any Instrument or Chattel Paper, whether Collateral or Proceeds and whether or notin the
Creditor's possession, and shall not be liable or accountable for failure to do so.

13.05 The Debtor acknowledges that the Creditor or any Receiver appointed by it may take

possession of the Collateral wherever it may be located and by any method permitted by law and the
Debtor agrees upon. request from the Creditor or any such Receiver to assemble and deliver
possession of the Collateral at such place or places as directed.

13.06 In the event of defauit, the Debtor agrees to pay all costs, charges and expenses
reasonably incurred by the Creditor or any Receiver appointed by it, whether directly or for services
rendered (including reasonable solicitors and auditors costs, other legal expenses and Receiver
repmuneration), in operating the Debtor's accounts, in enforcing this Security Agreement, taking and
maintaining custody of, preserving, repairing, processing, preparing for dispositions and disposing of
the Collateral and in enforcinig or collecting indebtedness and all such costs, charges and expenses
together with any monies owing as a result of any borrowing by the Creditor or any Receiver
appointed by it, as permitted hereby, shall be a first charge on the proceeds of realization, collection
or disposition of the Collateral and shall be secured hereby,

13.07 Unless the Coﬂateral in question is perishable, the Creditor believes on reasonable
grounds that the Collateral in question will decline speedily in value, the Collateral in question is of
the type customarily sold on a recognized market, the cost and storage of the Collateral is
disproportionately large relative to its value or a court of competent jurisdiction orders otherwise, the
Creditor will give the Debtor such notice, if any, of the date, time and place of any public sale or of
the date after whlch any private disposition of the Collateral is to be made, as may be required by the
P.P.S.A

14, MISCELLANEQUS

14.01 The Debtor hereby authorizes the Creditor fo file such financing statements, financing
change statements and other documents and do such acts, matters and things (including completing
and adding schedules hereto identifying the Collateral or any permitted Encumbrances affecting the
Collateral oridentifying the locations at which the Debtor's business is carried on and the Collateral
and records relating thereto are situate) as the Creditor may deem appropriate to perfect on an
ongoing basis andcontinue the Security Inferest, o protect and preserve the Collateral and to realize
upon the Security Interest and the Debtor hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints any officer or
director from time to time of the Creditor the true and lawful attorney of the Debtor, with full power
of substitution, to do any of the foregoing in the name of the Debtor whenever and wherever it may
be deemed necessary or expedwnt

14.02 Without limiting any other right of the Creditor, whenever Indebtedness is
immediately due and payable or the Creditor has the right to declare Indebtedness to be immediately
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due and payable (whether or not it has so declared), the Creditor may, in'its sole discretion, set off
against such Indebtedness any and all monies then owed to the Debtor by the Creditor in any
capacity, whether ornot due, and the Creditor shall be deemed to have exercised such right of setoff
immediately at the tifne of thaking its decision to do so even though any charge therefor is made or
entered on the Creditor's records subsequent thereto. :

14.03 Upon the Debtor's failure to perform any of its duties hereunder, the Creditor may, but
shall not be obligated 1o, perform any or all of such duties, and the Debtor shall pay to the Creditor,
forthwith upon written demand therefor, an amount equal to the expense incurred by the Creditor in
so doing plus interest thereon from the date such expense is incurred until it is paid at the rate 0f 30%
per ananm.

14.04 The Creditor may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give up
bcbu.ul.y, accepr bGLﬁPOSI"IOﬁS eempuuuu, wmpromlse setile, gramt releases and aischarges and
otherwise deal with the Debtor, debtors of the Debtor, sureties and others and with the Collateral and
other security as the Creditor may see fit without prejedice to the Hability of the Debtor or the

Creditor’s right to hold and realize the Security Interest.. Furthermore, after default, the Creditor may -

demand, collect and sue on the Collateral in either the Debior's or the Creditor's name, at the
Creditor's option, and may endorse the Debtor's name on any and all cheques, commercial paper, and
any other Instruments. pertaining to or constituting the Collateral.

14.05 No delay or omission by the Creditor in exercising any right or remedy hereunder or
with respect to any Indebtedness shall operate as a waiver thereof or of any other right or remedy,
and no single or partial exercise thereof shall preclude any other or firther exercise thereof or the
exercise of any other right or remedy. Furthermore, the Creditor may remedy any default by the
Debtor hereundét or with respect to any Indebtedness in any reasonable manner without waiving the
defauit remedied and without waiving any other prior or subsequent default by the Debtor. All rights
and remedies of the Creditor granted or recognized herein are cumulative and may be exercised at
any time and from time to time independently or in combination. -

14.06 The Debtor waives protest, notice of protest, notice of presentment and notice of
dishonour of any Instrument constituting the Collateral at any time held by the Creditor on which the
Debior is in any way liable and subject to section 13.07 hereof, notice of any other action taken by
the Creditor.

14.07 This Security Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal legal representatives, successors
and assigns. In any action brought by an assignee of this Security Agreement and the Security
Interest or any part thereof to enforce any rights hereunder, the Debtor shall not assert against the
assignee any claim or defence which the Debtor now has or hereafier may have against the Creditor.
If more than one Debior exccutes this Security Agreement the obligations of such Debtors hereunder
shall be joint and several.

14.08 Save for any schedules which may be added hereto pursuant to the provisions hereof,
no modification, variation or amendmernt of any provision of this Security Agreement shall be made
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except by a vmtten agreement executed by the parties hereto and no waiver of any provision hereof
shall be effective unless in writing.

- 14,09 Subject to the requirements of section 13.07 hereof, whenever either party heréto is
required or entitled to notify or direct the other or to make a demand or request upon the other, such
notice, direction,: demand or request shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given if delivered by
mail to the party for whom it is intended at the last known address of such party or if sent by prepaid
registered mail addressed to the party for whorm it is intended at the last known address of such party.

Either party may notify the other pursuant hereto of any change in such party's address to be used for
the puzrposes hereof.

14.10 : Thls Security Agreement and the security created hereby is in addition to and not in
substitution for any other security now or hereafter held by the Creditor and is, and is intended to be,

: nm e I 1 I S O SR, I
a continuing Sect ""hr Agreemcn‘t and shall remain in full force and effect wntil a1} Indebtedness

contracted for or created and any extensions or renewals thereof, together with interest accruing
thereon shall be paid in full and this Security Agreement is discharged. Ifall of the Indebtedness has
been paid and satisfied and the Debtor has otherwise observed and performed all of its obligations
under this Security Agreement and is not then in default hereunder, then the Creditor shall at the
request and expense of the Debtor release and discharge the Security Interest and execute and deliver

such deeds and other instroments as shall be requisite therefor.

14.11 The headings used in this Security Agreement are for convenience only and are not to
be considered a part of this Security Agreement and do not in any way limit or amplify the terms and
provisions of this Security Agreement.

14.12 When the context so requires, the singular number shall be read as if the plural were
expressed and the provisions hereof shall be read with ali grammatical changes necessary dependant
upon the person refeired to being a male, female, firm or corporation.

14.13 Inthe event any provistons of this Security Agreement, as amended from time to time,
shall be deemed invalid or void, in whole or in part, by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the
remaining terms and provisions of this Security Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

1414 Nothing herein contamed shall in any way obligate the Creditor to grant, continue,
renew, extend time for payment of or accept anything which constitutes or would constitute
Indebtedness. :

14.15 The Security Interest created hereby shall attach when this Sécuri‘cy Agreement is
signed by the Debtor and delivered to the Creditor. The Debtor and the Creditor acknowledge that
value has been given and the Debtor has rights in the Collateral.

14.16 ‘The Debtor acknowledges and agrees that in the event it amalgamates with any other
company Or companies it is the intention of the parties hereto that the term “Debtor” when used
herein shall apply to each of the amalgamating companies and to the amalgamated company, such
that the Security Interest granted hereby:
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{a)  shall extend fo “Collateral” (as that term is herein defined) owned by each of the
amalgamating comparies and the amalgamated compeany at the time of amalgamation
and to any “Collateral” thereafter owned or acquired by the amalgamated company;

(b)  shall secure the “Indebtedness” (as that term is herein défined) of each of the
amalgamating companies and the amalgamated company to the Creditor at the time
of amalgamation and any “Indebtedness” of the amalgamated company to the
Creditor thereafter arising. The Security Interest shall attach to “Collateral” owned

"by each company amalgamating with the Debtor, and by the amalgamated company,
at the time of amalgamation, and shali attach 1o any “Collateral” thereafter owned or
acquired by the amalgamated company when such becomes owned or is acquired.

14.17 This Security Agre:emeht and the transactions evidenced hereby shall be governed by
and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario as the same may from time to
time be in effect, mcluchng, wherc apphcabie, the P.PS.A.

is. COPY OF AGREEMENT

15.01 The Debior hereby acknowledges receipt of acopy of this Secunty Agreement and all
financing statements inrespecthereof. In the event that the Creditor pays to the Debtor any penalties
pursuant to subsection 46(7).of the P.P.S.A. then the Debtor shall indemnify and hold harmless the
Creditor from all costs, expenses, penalties or charges arising in conniection with any action by oron
behalf of the Debtor pursuant to subsection 46(7) of the P.P.8.A.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF the Debtor has executed this Security Agreement as of
the 6th day of March, 2012.-

PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION
SERVICES INC.

! '
By AdOmi gjo r ofs
Netme: Devrgs 7 e B5
Title: ¢ fcé- '
(Authorized S1gmng Officer)




} SCHEDULE "A"
10 the foregoing General Security Agreement

Encumabrances
Security interésfs”ﬁéffectéd by fégistra’cion under P.P.S.A. as of the date of the foregoing General
Security Agreement under the following: 7
1 File number 675318627 in favour of GE VFS Canada Limited Parﬁlérsiﬁp;
2. File number 674595342 iﬁ favour of Royal Bank of Canada;
3. File munber 66666761 71' in favour of IBM Canada Limited; and

4. File number 642941379 in favour of Xohl & Frisch Limited.




SCHEDULE "B"

to the foregoing General Security Agreement

Business Loeations

2880 Brighton Road, Unit 2, Oakville, Ontario L6H 583,

Location of Recort_ié relating to Collateral
2880 Brighton Road, Unit 2, Oakville, Ontario L6H 553.

Locations of Collateral

2880 Brighton Roead, Unit 2, Oakville, Ontario L6H 583.
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Attached is Exhibit “P” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012

(Pg ‘mw)ﬂ Cﬁ@ﬂl

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc




GENERAL SECURITY AGREEMENT
L SECURITY INTEREST

1.01. " For value received, the undersigned 2163279 ONTARIO INC.,.a corporstion .

incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario (the “Debtor™), hereby grants to CASTCAN
INVESTMENTS INC., IN TRUST (the “Creditor”), by way of mortgage, cherge, assignment and
transfer, a security interest (the “Security Interest™) in the undertaking of the Debtor and in gl of
the Debtor’s present and after acquired personal property including, without limitation, in all Goods
(inchuding all ‘parts, accessories, attachments, special tools, additions and accessions thereto),
Accounts, Chattel Paper, Documents of Title (whether negotizble or not), Equipment, Instruments,
Intangibles, Inventory, Moncy and Securities now owned or hereafter owned or acquired by or on
behalf of the Debtor or in which the Debtor has any right, title or interest whatsoever or wherescever
(including such as may be returned to or repossessed by the Debtor) and in all Proceeds and renewals
thereof, accretions thereto and substitations therefor (the “Collateral”), and including, without
limitation, all of the foﬂomng now owned or hereafter owned or acquired by or on behalf of the
Debtor:

(a)  all Inventory of whatever kind and wherever situate;

(b) . al} Equipment (other than Inventory) of whatever kind and wherever situate,
including, without limitation, all machinery, tools, appa:catus pidnt, furniture, fixtures
and vehicles of whatsoever nature or kind;

() all Accounts and book debts and generally all debts, dues, claims, choses in action
and demands of every nature and kind howsoever arising or secured inchiding
‘guarantees, indemnities, letters of credit and advices of credit, which are now due,
owing or accruing or. growing due to or owned by or which may hereafter become
due, owing or accruing or growing due to or owned by the Debtor (hereinafter
collectively called “Debts™);

(d)  alldeeds, documents, writings, papers, books of account and other books relating to
or being records of Debts, Chattel Paper or Documents of Title or by which such are
or may hereafter be secured, evidenced, acknowledged or made payable;

(e  all contractual rights, licenses and insurance claims and all goodwill, patents,
trademarks, copyrights, and other intellectual property and industrial property and
any rights of renewal or extension thereof;

5y} all monies other than trust monies lawfully belonging to others; and

{g) all property described in any schedule now or hereafter annexed hereto.
1.02 " The Secutity Inferest granted hereby shall ot extend or apply to and the Collatersl
shall not include the last day of the term of any lease or agreement therefor but upon the enforcement

of the Security Interest the Debtor shall stand possessed of such last day in trust to assign the same to
any person acquiring such term, including, without limitation, the Creditor,
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1.03 The terms “Accessions”, “Account”, “Chattel Paper”, “Document of Title”,
“Fquipment”, “Goods”, “Instrument”, “Intangible”, “Inventory”, “Money”, “Personal
Property”, “Proceeds” and “Seenrity” whenever used herein shall be interpreted pursuant to their
respective meanings when used in the Personal Property Security Act of Ontario, as amended from
time to time, which Act, including amendments thereto and any Act substituted therefor and
amendments thereto is hereinreferred to as the “P.P.S.A.”. Provided always that the term “Goods”
when used herein shall not include “Consumer Goods” of the Debtor as that term is defined in the
P.P.S.A,, and the term “Inventory” when used herein shall include livestock and the young thereof
after conception, . crops. that become growing crops, fish after they are caught, minerals or
hydrocarbons afier they are extracted and timber after it is cut. Any reference herein to the
“Collateral” shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be deemed a reference to the “Collateral
or any part thereof”.

2 INDEBTEDNESS SECURED
2.01 The Security Interest granted hereby secures payment and performance of any and all

obligations, indebtedness and liability of the Debtor to the Creditor (including, without limitation,
interest thereon) present or future, direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, matured or not, extended
or renewed, wheresoever and howsoever incurred and any ultimate unpaid balance thereof and
whether the same is at-any time and. from time to time reduced and thereafter increased or entirely
extinguished and thereafier incurred again and whether the Debtor be bound alone or with another or
others and whether as principal or surety (hereinafter collectively called the “Indebtedness™). For
greater certainty, the Indebtedness includes, without limitation, all obiigations, indebtedness and
liability of the Debtor to those for and on behalf of whom Castcan Investments Inc. may now or
hereafter hold interests in a certain SR&ED/OITC/HST Purchase Agreement between the Debtor and
PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc. and the Creditor dated even date herewith and the |
transaction provided for therein. If the Security Interest in the Collateral is not sufficient, in the
event of default, to satisfy all Indebtedness of the Debtor, the Debtor acknowledges and agrees that
the Debtor shall continue to be liable for any Indebtedness remaining outstanding and the Creditor
shall be entitled to pursue full payment thereof.

3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE DEBTOR

3.01 The Debtor represents and warrants and so long as this Security Agreement remains in
¢ffect shall be deemed to continuously represent and warrant that:

(a)  the Collateral is genuine and owned by the Debtor free of all security interests,
mortgages, liens, claims, charges or other encumbrances Chereinafter collectively
called “Encumbrances”), save for the Security Interest and those Encumbrances
shown on Schedule “A” hereto or hercafter approved in writing, prior to their
creation or assumption, by the Creditor (hereinafter collectively called “Permitted
En”cﬁmbmnce_sf’) ; provided, that nothing in the foregoing definition of “Permitted
Encumbrances” or otherwise in this Agreement (including, without limitation,
Schedule “A™) shall (i) be construed as evidencing an intention or agreement on the
part of the Creditor that the Security Interest or the Indebtedness be or have been

==
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1.03 The terms “Accessions”, “Account”, “Chattel Paper”, “Document of Title”,
“Bquipment”, “Goods”, “Instrument”, “Intangible”, “Tnventory”, “Money”, “Personal
Property”, “Proceeds™ and “Security” whenever used herein shall be interpreted pursuant to their
respective meanings when used in the Personal Propeérty Security Act of Ontario, as amended from
time to fime, which Act, including amendments thereto and any Act substituted therefor and
amendments thereto is herein reférred to asthe “P.P.8.A.”. Provided always that the term “Goods”
when used herein shall not include “Consumer Goods” of the Debtor. as that term is defined in the
P.P.S.A,, and the term “Inventory” when used herein shall include livestock and the young thereof
after conception, crops that become growing crops, fish after they are ¢aught, minerals or
hydrocarbons after they are extracted and timber after it is cut, Any reference herein to the
“Coliateral” shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be deemed a reference to the “Collateral
or any part thereof”,

2. INDEBTEDNESS SECURED
2.01 The Security Interest granted hereby secures payment and performance of any and all

obligations, indebtedness and liability of the Debtor to the Creditor (including, without limitation,
interest thereon) present or future, direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, matured or not, extended
or renewed, wheresoever and howsoever incurred and any ultimate unpaid balance thereof and
whether the same Is at any time and from time to time reduced and thereafter increased or entirely
extingvished and thereafter incurred again and whether the Debtor be bound alone or with another or
others and whether as principal or surety (hereinafter collectively called the “Indebtedness™). Ifthe
Security Interest in the Collateral is not sufficient, in the event of default, to satisfy all Indebtedness
of the Debtor, the Debtor acknowledges and agrees that the Debtor shall continue to be lable for any
Indebtedness remaining outstanding and the Creditor shall be entitled to pursue full payment thereof.

3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE DEBTOR

3.01 The Debtor represents and watrants and so long as this Security Agreement remains in
eifect shail be deemed to continuously represent and warrant that:

{a)  the Collateral is genuine and owned by the Debtor free of all security interests,
mortgages, liens, claims, charges or other encumbrances (hereinafier collectively
called “Enctumbrances™), save for the Security Interest and those Encumbrances
shown on Schedule “A” hereto or hereafier approved in writing, prior to their
creation or assumption, by the Creditor (hereinafter collectively called “Permitted
Encambrances™); provided, that nothing in the foregoing definition of “Permitted
Encumbrances” or otherwise in this Agreement (including, without limitation,
Schedule “A™) shall (i) be construed as evidencing an intention or agrecment on the
part of the Creditor that the Security Interest or the Indebtedness be or have been
subordinated - to any such Permitted Encumbrances or (i) cause any such
subordination to occur.

{b)  to the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Debtor, (i) each Debt,
Chattel Paper and Instrument constituting the Collateral is enforceable in accordance
‘with its terras against the party obligated to pay the same (the “Account Debtor™),
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(b)
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and the amount represented by the Debtor to the Creditor from time to time as owing
by each Account Debtor or by atl Account Debtors will be the correct amount

' .éc!:uéll'y and unconditionally ewing by such Account Debtor or Account Debtors,

except for normal cash discounits where applicable, and (i) rio Account Debfor now
has any defence, set off, claims or counterclaim against the Debtor which can be
asserted against the Credltor whether in any proceeding to enforce the Collateral or
othermse, and

the lo'cations- specified in Schedule “B” hereto as to the location of the business
operations and records of the Debtor are accurate and complete and, with respect to
Goods (including, without limitation, Inveniory) constituting the Collateral, the
locations specified in Schedule “B” hereto are accurate and complete, save for Goods
in transit to such locations and Inventory on lease or consignment; and all fixtures or
Goods about to become fixtures and all crops and all oil, gas or other minerals io be
extracted and all timber to be eut which forms part of the Collateral will be situate at
one of such locations.

COVENANTS OF THE DEBTOR

So long as this Security Agreement remains in effect the Debtor covenants and agrees:

to defend the Collateral against the claims and demands of all other parties claiming

the same or an interest therein; to keep the Collateral free from all Encumbrances,
except for.the Security Interest and the Permitted Encumbrances; and not to sell,
exchange, transfer, assign, lease, or otherwise dispose of the Collateral or any interest

therein without the prior written consent of the Creditor; provided always, that, until

default, the Debtor may, in the ordinary course of the Debtor's business, sell or lease
Inventory and, subject to section 7.01 hereof, use monies available to the Debtor and
the Debtor may sell or otherwise dispose of equipment which has become worn out
or damaged or otherwise unsuitable for its purpose on condition that the Debtor shall
substitute therefor, subject to the Security Interest, property of equal or greater value
so that the Collateral shall not thereby be in any way reduced or impaired;

to notify the Creditor in writing promptly of: -

§)] any change in the information contained herein or in the Schedules hereto
relating to the Debtor, the Debtor's business or the Collateral;

(i)  the details of any significant acquisition of Collateral;
(iif)  the details of any claims or litigation affecting the Debtor or the Collateral;
(iv)  any significant loss of or damage to the Collateral:

(v)  anymaterial default by any Account Debtor in payment or other performance
of its obligations with respect to the Collateral; and
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(vi) | the return to or repossession by the Debtor of the Collateral,

- to keep the Collateral in good order, condition and repair and notto use the Collateral

in-violation of the provisions of this Security Agreement or any other agreement

 relating to the Collateral or any policy insuring the Collateral or any applicable

statute, law, by-law, rule, regulation or ordinance;

to do, execute, acknowledge and deliver such financing staterents, financing change
statements and further assignments, transfers, documents, acts, matters, information

-and things {including, without limitation, further schedules hereto} a3 may be

reasonably requested by the Creditor of or with respect to the Collateral in order to
give effect to these presents and to pay all costs for searches and filings in connection

thasaunth.
LIIUWILLL,

1o pay all taxes, rates, levies, assessments and other charges of every nature which

- may be lawfully levied, assessed or imposed against or in respect of the Debtor or the

Collateral as and when the same become due and payable;

to insure the Collateral for such periods, in such amounts, on such terms and against
loss or damage by fire and such other risks as the Creditor shall reasonably direct

~ with-loss payable to the Creditor and the Debtor, as insureds, as their respective
- interests may appear, and to pay all premivms therefor;

to prevent the Collateral, save Inventory sold or leased as permitted hereby, from
being or becoming an accession to other property not charged by this Security
Agreement;

to carry on and conduct the business of the Debtor in a proper and efficient manner
and so as to protect and preserve the Collateral and to keep, in sccordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied, proper books of
account for the Debtor's business as well as accurate and complete records
concerning the Collateral, and mark in the manmer specified by the Creditor from
tirhe to time any and all such records and the Collateral at the Creditor's request so as
to indicate the Security Interest; and

to deliver to the Creditor from time to time prompitly upon réquest:

()  .any Documents of Title, Instruments, Securities and Chattel Paper
constituting, representing or relating to the Collateral;

@ity  all books of account and all records, ledgers, reports, correspondence,
schedules, documents, statements, lists and other writings relating to the
Collateral for the purpose of inspecting, auditing or copying the same;
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(i)  all financial statements prepared by or for the Debtor regarding the Debtor's
business;.

(iv)’ all pbiiéiés and certificates of insurance retating to the Collateral; and

(v)  such information concerning the Collateral, the Debtor and the Debtor's
-busmess and affairs as the Creditor may reasonably request.

S, A, 'USE AN]) VERIF TCATION OF THE COLLATERAL

5.01 Subject to comphance with the Debior’s covenanis contained herein and section 7.01
hereof, the Debtor may, until default, possess, operate, collect, use and enjoy and deal with the
Collateral in the ordinary course of the Debtor's business in 1 any marmer not inconsistent with the
provisions hereof; provided always that the Creditor shall have the right at any time and from time to
time to verify the existence and state of the Collateral in any manner the Creditor may consider
appropriate and the Debtor agrees to furnish all assistance and information and to perform all such
acts as the Creditor may reasonably request in comection therewith and for such purpose 1o grant to
the Creditor or its agents access to all places where the Collateral may be located and to all premises
occupied by the Debtor.

. SECURITIES

6.01 If the Collateral at any time includes shares in any affiliates of the Debtor, the Debtor

authorizes the Creditor, upon the expiry of 180 days from the date of this Security Agreement

without the Indebtedness having been repaid in full, to transfer the same or any part thereof into its

own name or that of its nomines(s). If'the Collateral at any time includes other Securities (other then

shares in any affiliates of the Debtor), the Debtor authorizes the Creditor, upon default, to transfer
the same or any part thereof into its own name or that of its nominee(s) so that the Creditor or its
nominee(s) may appear of record as the sole owner thereof, After any transfer as aforesaid, the
Debtor waives all right to receive any notices or communications received by the Creditor or its
nominee(s) as such registered owner. Subject to the foregoing, upon the request of the Creditor, the
Debtor will instruct the issuer, clearing agency, custodian or nominee to make an enfry in its records
of the Creditor's security interest in the Securiiies so as to eiffect delivery to and possession by the
Creditor of those securities.

2 COLLECTION OF DEBTS

7.01 - Before or after default under this Security Agreement, the Creditor may notify all or
any Account Debtors of the Security Interest and may also direct such Account Debtors to make all
payments on the Collateral to the Creditor. The Debtor acknowledges that any payments on or other
proceeds of the Collateral received by the Debtor from Account Debtors, whether before or after
notification of this Security Interest to Account Debtors and whether before or after default vnder
this Security Agreement, shall be received and held by the Debtor in trust for the Creditor and shall
be turned over to the Creditor upon request,
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8. ' INCOME FROM AND INTEREST ON THE COLLATERAL

8.01 Until defanlt, the Debtor reserves the right to receive any monies constituting income
~ from or interest on'the Collateral and if the Creditor receives any such monies prior to default, the”
Creditor shall eithet credit same against the Indebtedness or pay the same prompily to the Debtor.

8.02 After defanlt, the Debtor will not request or receive any monies constituting income
from or interest on the Collateral and if the Debtor receives any such monies without any request by
it, the Debtor will pay the same promptly to the Creditor.

2. . INCREASES, PROFITS, PAYMENTS OR DISTRIBUTIONS
9.01 © Whether or not default has occurred, the Debior authorizes‘th@ Creditor:

{a)  toreceive any increase in or profits on the Collateral (other than money) and to hold
‘the same as part of the Collateral. Money so received shall be treated as income for
- the purposes of sections 8,01 and 8.02 hereof and dealt with accordingly; and

{b)  to receive any payment or distribution upon redemption or retirement or upon
dissolution and liquidation of the issuer of the Collateral; to surrender such Collateral
in exchange therefor; and to hold any such payment or distribution as part of the
Collateral, .

9.02 Ifthe Debtor receives any such increase or profits (other than money) or paymenis or
distributions, the Debior will deliver the same promptly to the Creditor to be held by the Creditor as
herein provided.

16. DISPOSITION. OF MONIES

10.01 Subject to any applivable mandatory requirements of the P.P.S.A,, all monies
collected or received by the Creditor pursuart to or in exercise of any right it possesses with respect
to the Collateral shall be applied or reapplied on account of the Indebtedness in such manner as the
Creditor deems best in its sole discretion or, af the opinion of the Creditor, may be held
unappropriated in a collateral account or released to the Debtor, all without prejudice to the Hability
of the Debtor or the rights of the Creditor hereunder, and any surplus shall be accounted for as
required by Iaw.

11. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

11.01 The happening of any of the following events or conditions shall constitute defanlt
hereunder which is herein referred io as “default™

(a) the non-payment when due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, of any principal or
interest forming part of the Indebtedness or the failure of the Debtor to observe or
perform any obligation, covenant, term, provision or condition contained in this
Security Agréement or any other agreement between the Debtor and the Creditor;
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12.01

the death of or a declaration of incompetency by a court of competent jurisdiction
w1th respect to the Debtor, 1f an md1v1dua1

the bankruptcy or insolvency of the Debtor; the filing against the Debtor of'a petition
in bankruptéy; the making of an authorized asslgmnent or proposa! for the benefit of

creditors by the Debtor; the appointment of a receiver or frustee for the Debtor or for
any assets of the Debtor; or the institution by or against the Debtor of any other type
of insolvency proceeding under the Bankruptcy and solvency Act or otherwise;

the 11?13‘(":‘?6&0'1 by or against the Debtor of any formal or informal proceeding for the

dissolution or liquidation of, setflement of claims agannst or winding up of affairs of

the Debtor;

if any Encumbrance affecting the Collateral becomes enforceable against the
Collateral

1f the I)ebtor ceases or threatens to cease 1o carry on business or makes or agrees to

make a bulk sale of assets without complying with apphcable law or commits or
threatens to commit an act of bankruptoy;

if. éﬁy ‘execution, sequestration, extent or other process of any court becomes
enforceable against the Debtor or if a distress or analogous process is levied upon the
assets of the Debtor or any part thereof; or

if any certificate, statement, representation, warranty or audit report heretofore or
hereafter furnished by or on behalf of the Debior pursuant to or in connection with

this f'Sequri_ty. Agreement, or otherwise (including, without limitation, the
- representations and warranties contained herein) or as an inducernent to the Creditor

10 extend any credit to or to enter into this or any other agreement with the Debior,
proves to have been false or inaccurate in any material respect at the time as of which
the facts therein set forth were stated or certified, or proves to have omitted any
substantial contingent or unliquidated liability or claim against the Debtor; or ifupon
the date of execution of this Security Agreement, there shall have been any material
adverse change in any of the facis disclosed by any such certificate, representation,
statement, warranty or andit report, which change shall not have been disclosed to the
Creditor at or prior to the time of such execution.

_ACCELERATION

The Creditor, in its sole discretion, may declare all or any part of the Indebtedness

which is not by its terms payable on demand to be immediately due and payable, without demand or
notice of any kind, in the event of default, or, if the Creditor in good faith believes and has
commercially reasonable grounds to believe that a material adverse change has occurred in the
financial and business position of the Debtor. The provisions of this section 12.01 are not intended
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in any way to aﬂ’ec':tahy. right of the Creditor with respect to Indebtedness which may now or
hereafier be payable on demand.

- 130 REMEDIES

13.01 Upon default, the Creditor may appoint or reappoint by instrument in writing, any
person or persons, whetheran officer or officers or an employee or employees of the Creditor ornot,
to be a receiver or receivers (hereinafter called a “Reeceiver”, which term when used herein shall
include a receiver and manager) of the Collateral (including any interest, income or profits
therefrom) and may remove any Receiver so appointed and appoint another in his stead. Any such
Receiver shall, so far as concerns responsibility for his acts, be deemed the agent of the Debior and
not the Creditor, and the Creditor shall not be in any way responsible for any misconduct,
negligence; or non-feasance on the pa:t of any such Recezver, his eFrvants, agents or employees.
Subject to the provisions of the instrument appointing him, any such Receiver shall have power to
take possession of the Collateral, to preserve the Collateral or its value, to carry on or concur in
carrying on all or any part of the business of the Debtor and to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of or
concur in selling, leasing or otherwise disposing of the Collateral. To. facilitate the foregoing
powers, any such Receiver.may, to the exclusion of all others, including the Debtor, enter upon by
peaceable or forcible ‘means at any time of the day or night, use and occoupy all premises owned or
occupied by the Debtor whe_rem the Collateral may be situate, maintain the Collateral upon such
premises, borrow money on a secured or unsecured basis and use the Collateral directly in carrying
on the Debtot's business or as security for loans or advances to enable him to carry on the Debtor's
business or otherwise, ‘as such Receiver shell, in his discretion, determine. -Except as may be
otherwise directed by the Creditor, all moniss received from time to time by such Receiver in
carrying out his appointment shall be received in trust for and paid over to the Creditor. Every such
Receiver may, in the discretion of the Creditor, be vested with all or any of the rzghts and powers of
the Creditor. .

13.02 Upon default, the Creditor may, either directly or through its agents or nominees,
exercise all the powers and rights given to a Receiver by virtue of section 13.01 hereof.
13.03 The Creditor may take possession of, collect, demand, sue on, enforce, recover and

receive the Collateral and give valid and binding receipts and discharges therefor and in respect
thereof and, upon default, the Creditor may sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the Collateral in such
manner, at such time or times and place or places, for such consideration and upon such terms and
conditions as to the Creditor may seem reasonable,

13.04 In addition to those rights granted herein and in any other agreement now or hereafter
in effect between the Debtor and the Creditor and in addition to any other rights the Creditor may
have at law or in equity, the Creditor shall have, both before and after default, all rights and remedies
of a secured party under the P.P.S.A. Provided always, that the Creditor shall not be liable or
accountable for any failure to exercise its remedies, take possession of, collect, enforce, realize, sell,
lease or otherwise dispose of the Collateral or to institute any proceedings for such purposes.
Furthermore, the Creditor shall have no obligation to take any steps to preserve rights agamst prior
parties to any Instroment or Chattel Paper, whether Collateral or Proceeds and whether or not in the
Creditor's possession, and shall not be liable or accountable for failure to do so.




13.05 The Debtor acknowledges that the Creditor or any Receiver appointed by it may take
possession of the Collateral wherever it may be located and by any method permitted by law and the
Debtor agrees. upon‘request from the Creditor or any such Receiver to asserible and deliver
possession of the Collateral at such place or places as directed.

13.06 In the event of default, the Debtor agrees to pay all costs, chafges and expenses
reasonably incurred by the Creditor or any Receiver appointed by it, whether directly or for services
rendered (mciudmg reasonable solicitors -and auditors costs, other legal expenses and Receiver
remuneration); in operating the Debtor's accounts, in enforcing this Security Agreement, taking and
maintaining custody of, preserving, repairing, processing, preparing for dispositions and disposing of
the Collateral and in enforcing or collecting indebtedness and all such costs, charges and expenses
together with any monies owing as 2 result of any barrewiﬂg by the Creditor or any Recefver
akn]1 o n Beogt nlhomern ae thim s anadn A e a sl oo

appointed h}“ it,as pei'}u"Iﬁud hereby ¥, Shali ve & 1irst Charge on the proceeds of realization, collection

or disposition of the Collateral and shall be secured hereby.

13.07. .~ Unless the Collateral in question is perishable, the Creditor believes on reasonable
grounds that the Collateral in question will decline speedily in value, the Collateral in question is of
the type customarily sold on a recognized market, the cost and storage of the ‘Collateral is
dispmportionaxely large relative to its value or a court of competent jurisdiction orders otherwise, the
Creditor wili give the Debtor such notice, if any, of the date, time and place of any public sale or of
the date after which any private disposition of the Collateral is to be made, as may be required by the
P.PS.A.

14, MISCELLANEOUS

14.01 ‘The Debtor nereoy authorizes the Creditor to file such financing statements, financing
change statements and other documents and do such acts, matters and things (including completing
and adding schedules hereto identifying the Collateral or any permitted Encumbrances affecting the
Collateral or identifying the locations at which the Debtor's business is carried on and the Coilateral
and records relating thereto are situate) as the Creditor may deem appropriate to perfect on an
ongoing basis and continue the Security Interest, to protect and preserve the Collateral and to realize
upon the Security Interest and the Debtor hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints any officer or
director from time to time of the Creditor the true and tawful attorney of the Debtor, with full power
of substitution, to do any of the foregoing in the name of the Debtor whenever and wherever it may
be deemed necessary or expedient.

14.02 Without limiting any other right of the Creditor, whenever Indebtedness is
immediately due and payable or the Creditor has the right to declare Indebtedness to be immediately
due and payable (whether or not it has so declared), the Creditor may, in its sole discretion, set off
against such Indebtedness any and all monies then owed to the Debtor by the Creditor in any
capacity, whether or not due, and the Creditor shall be deemed to have exercised such right of setoff
immediately at the time of making its decision to do so even though any charge therefor is made or
entered on the Creditor's records subsequent thereto.
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14.03 Uponthe Debtor's failure to perform any of'its duties hereunder, the Creditor may, but
shall not be obligated to, perform any or all of such duties, and the Debtor shali-pay to the Creditor,
forthwith upon written demand therefor, an amount equal to the expense incurred by the Creditor in
so doing plits interest théreon from the date such expense is incurred untit it is paid at the rate of 30%
perannum, |7 :

14.04 The Creditor may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give up
security, accept compositions, compound, compromise, settle, grant releases and discharges and
otherwise deal with the Debtor, debtors of the Debtor, sureties and others and with the Collateral and
other security as the Creditor may see fit without prejudice to the liability of the Debtor or the
Creditor's right to hold and realize the Security Interest. Furthermore, after default, the Creditor may
demand, collect and sue on the Collateral in either the Debtor's or the Creditor's name, at the
Credifor's option, and may endorse the Debtor's name on any and all cheques, commercial paper, and
ainy other Instraments pertaining to or constituting the Collateral.

1405 No delay or omission by the Creditor in exercising any right or remedy hereumder or
with respect t6' any Indebtedness shall operate as a waiver thereof or of any other right or remedy,
and no single or partial exercise thereof shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the
exercise of any other right or remedy.. Furthermore, the Creditor may remedy any defauli by the
Debtor hereunder or with respect to any Indebtedness in any reasonable manner without waiving the
default remedied and without waiving any other prior or subsequent default by the Debtor. All rights
and remedies of the Creditor granted or recognized herein are cumulative and may be exercised at
any time and from time to time independently or in combination.

14.06 The Debtor waives protest, notice of protest, notice of presentment and notice of
dishonour of any Instrument constituting the Collateral at any time held by the Creditor on which the
Debtor is in any way liable and subject to section 13.07 hereof, notice of any other action taken by
the Creditor.

14.07 This Security Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal legal representatives, successors
and assigns. In any action brought by an assignee of this Security Agreement and the Security
Interest or any part thereof to enforce any rights hereunder, the Debtor shall not assert against the
assignee any claim or defence which the Debtor now has or hereafier may have against the Creditor.
If more than one Debtor executes this Security Agreement the obligations of such Debtors hereunder
shall be joint and several,

14.08 Save for any schedules which may be added hereto pursuant to the provisions hereof,
no modification, variation or amendment of any provision of this Security Agreement shall be made
except by a written agreement, executed by the parties hereto and no waiver of any provision hereof
shall be effective unless in writing.

14.09 Subject to the requirements of section 13.07 hereof, whenever either party hereto is
required or entitled to notify or direct the other or to make a demand or request upon the other, such
notice, direction, demand or request shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given if delivered by
mail to the party for whom itis intended at the last known address of such party or if sent by prepaid
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registered mail addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the last known address of such party.
Either party may notify the other pursuant hereto of any change in such pafty’s address to be used for
the purposes hercof

14.10 ’{h}s Sectmty Agreement and the security created nereby is in addition to and not in
substitution for. any other security now or hereafter held by the Creditor and is, and is intended to be,
a continuing Security Agreement and shall remain in full force and effect until all Indebiedness
contracted for or created, and any extensions or renewals thereof, together with interest accruing
thereon shall be paid in full and this Security Agreement is discharged. Ifall of the Indebtedness has
been paid and satisfied and the Debtor has otherwise observed and performed all of its obligations
under this Security Agreement and is not then in default hereunder, then the Creditor shall at the
request and expense of the Debtor release and discharge the Security Interest and execute and deliver
such deeds and other instruments ag shall be requisite therefor. :

14.11 The headings used in this Security Agreement are for convenience only and are not to
be considered a part of this Security Agreement and do not in any way limit or amplify the terms and
provisions of this Security’ Agreement.

14.12 When the context so requires, the singular number shall be read as if the pharal were
expressed and the provisions hereof shall be read with all grammatical ohanges necessary dependant
upon the petson referred to being a male, female, firm or corporation.

14.13 fIn the event any provxswns of this Security Agreement, as amended from time to time,
shall be deemed invalid or void, in-whole or in part, by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the
remaining terms and provisions of this Security Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

14.14 Nothmg herein contained shall in any way obligate the Creditor to grant, continue,
renew, extend. time for payment of or accept anything which constitutes or would constitute
Indebtedness..

14.15 The Security Interest created hereby shall attach when this Secmty Agreement is
signed by the Debtor and delivered to the Creditor. The Debtor and the Creditor acknowledge that
value has been given and the Debtor has rights in the Collateral,

14.16 The Debior acknowledges and agrees that in the event it amalgamates with any other
company or companies it is the intention of the parties hereto that the term “Debtor” when used
herein shall apply to each of the amalgamating companies and to the amalgamated company, such
that the Security Interest granted hereby:

(@  shall extend to “Collateral” (as that term is herein defined) owned by each of the
amalgamating companies and the amalgamated company at the time of amalgamation
and to any “Cellateral” thereafter owned or acquired by the amalgamated company;
and

(b) _shaﬂ secure the “Indebtedness” (as that term is herein defined} of each of the
amalgamanng companies and the amalgamated company to the Creditor at the time




12

of amalgamation and any “Indebtedness” of the amalgamated company to the
Creditor thereafter arising. The Security Interest shall attach to “Collateral” ovwned
by each company amalgamating with the Debtor, and by the amalgamated company,
-atthe time of dmalgamation, and shall attach to any “Coliateral” thereafier owned or
dcquired by the amalgamated company when such becomes owned or is acquired,

14.17 This Security Agreement and the transactions evidenced hereﬁy shail be governed by
and construed in accordance with the laws of the Provines of Ontario as the same may from time to
time be in effeqt,‘including,.whérc applicablc, the P.PS.A,

is, C OF AGRELBEE

1501 The Debtor hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of this Security Agreement and all
financing statements in respect hereof. In the event that the Creditor pays to the Debtor any penalties
pursuant to subsection 46(7) of the P.P.S.A. then the Debtor shall indemnify and hold harmless the
Creditor from all costs, expenses, penalties or charges arising in contiection with any action by or on
behalf of the Debtor pursuant to subsection 46(7) of the P.P.S.A.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Debtor has executed this Security Agreement as of
the 6th day of March, 2012,

216327% ONTARIO INC.

By: pﬁﬁ’f\& M o/s
Name: Lhvra Tun £5
Title:  ofd)

{Authorized Signing Officer)




SCHEDULE "A™
10 the foregoing General Security Agreement

Encumbrances

Security interests perfected by registration under P.P.S.A. as of the date of the foregoing General
Security Agreement under the following:




SCHEDULE "B"
fo the foregoing General Security Agreement

Businesslmcaﬁons._
2880 Brighton Road, Unit 2, Oakville, Ontario L6H 583.

Lacation of Records relating to Collateral
2880 Brighton Road, Unit 2, Oakville, Ontario L6H 583.

Locations of Collateral

2880 Brighton Road; Unit 2; Oakville, Ontario L6H 553.
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Attached is Exhibit “Q” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012

r‘%n%a]l/ ,ﬁsm

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, etc




AMONG:

Province

1.0}

®

- {*Purchaser™}.

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT dated as of the 6th day of March, 2012.

ROYAL BANK OF CANADA, a chartered bank under the laws of
Canada, T .

(“RBC”)
- OF THE FIRST PART
~and -

CASTCAN INVESTMENTS INC., IN TRUST, a corporation
incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario,

OF THE SECOND PART
- and -

PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC., a corporation

. incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario,

{“PCAS").

OF THE THIRD PART

- and -

' 2i63279;0N?1‘AR10 INC., a corporation incorporated under the laws of the

of Ontario,

{“Touchpoint™)
OF THE FOURTH PART

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

In this Agreement, the following terms have the following meanings:

“2010 SR&EDVOITC Receivable” means the monies the Company is entitled to
receive from the Canada Revenue Agency under the SR&ED and Onterio
Inrovation-Tax Credit Program for the year ending December 31, 2010,
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(b}  “Companies” means, collectively, PCAS and Touchpoint and “Compamy”
o m‘cans eizher one of thcrn;

{c} - “Creditors” means‘ collectively, Purchaser and RBC and “Creditor” means
either one of them: o

(d)  “Proceeds™ has the meaning ascribed to such term in the Personal Property
- Securi{y.dc! {Ontario);

&y “P‘urchased Tax Credifs and Refunds” means the Tax Credits and Refimds

described or referenced in attached Scheduls "A™;

(fy  *Purchaser Security” means any sec:;rity interest, charge, Hen or encumbratice
Purchaser has, now or in the future, in or against any assets of any of the
Companies;

{8)  “RBC Secarity” means any security interest, charge, lien or encumbrance RBC
has, now or in the futare, in or against any assets of any of the Companies; and -

(hy  “Tax Credits and Refunds” means (i} any present or future-tax refund, tax credit
- or similar payment which cither Company is or may be entitled to receive from
Canada Revenue Agency under the Scientific Research and Experimental
Development Expenditures (SREED) Program and Ontario Innovation Tax Credit
Program administered by Canada Revenue Agency, and (i) any. present or future

tx refund, tax credit or similar payment which either Company is or may be
entitled to receive from Canada Revenue Agency in connection with Harmonized

~ Sales Tax (HST).

ARTICLE 2 - CONSENTS

2.1 RBC consents to the creation and issue by the respective Campames to Purchaser
of the Purchaser Security, agrees that the said oreation and jssuance shall not constitute an event
of default under the RBC Security and consents to the incurring by the Companies of the
indebtedness and obligations secure:d by the Purchaser Security.

2.02 RBC further consents to the absolute assignment by the Companies to Purchaser of
the Purchased Tax Credits and Refunds save and except for the 2010 SR&ED Receivable free
and clear of the RBC Szcurity.

2.03 - Purchaser consents {o the creation and issue by the respective Companies to RBC
of the RBC Security, agrees that the said creation and issuance shall not constitute an event of
defzult under the Purchaser Seciwity and consents to the incurring by the Companies of the
indebtedness and obligations secured by the RBC Security. o
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ARTICLE 3 - SUBORDINATION

- The RBC Security and the Purchaser Security, subject to Section3.04, shall have

the following priorities and are hereby subordinated and postponed to-give effect to such

priorities:

@

(b)

3.02

The Purchaser Security shall have priority over the RBC Security solely in respect
of the Tax Credits & Refunds save and except for the 2010 SR&ED/OITC
Receivable to the extent of the Companies' indebtedness and’ liabilities to the
Purchaser with respect to the purchase and sale of the Purchased Tax Credit
Entitlements and Refunds only and securing the obligations of the Companies to

- the Purchaser relative to those transactions: and

The RBC Sectérity shall have priority over the Purchaser Security, except as set
out in Seetion 3.01{a) above.

Subject to Ssction 3.04, the subordination and postponements ¢oniained hercin

shall apply in all.events. and circumstances regardless of:

(@)

(b}

{c}. .

{d)

(e}

303

* The date of execution, attachment, registration or perfection of any security

interest held by RBC or Purchaser:

The date of any advance or advances or any supply or supplies méde to any of the

-Companies by RBC or Purchaser;

The daté-éf default by any of the Companies under any of the RBC Security or the
Purchaser Security or the dates of crystallization of any flosting charges held by
RBC or Purchaser;

The date of any notice to or demand upon any of the Companies (6r the failure to

give any natice or demand): or

* Any priority granted by any principle of law or any statute, including, without

limitation, any personal property security, corporation securities registration or
like statute, S

Any proceeds of insurance or expropriation received by any of the Companies,

RBC or Purchaser in respect of the collateral charged by the RBC Security or the Purchaser
Security shalil be dealt with as though such proceeds of insurance or expropriation were paid or
payable as proceeds of realization of the collateral for which they compensate. For greater
certainty it is acknowledged and agreed that for the purposes of this Agreement the ferm
“Purchased Receivable” shall include, without limitation, all proceeds thereof and the rights of
any of the Companies 10 and the benefit of all insurance and guarantees for such Purchased
Receivable from any parties,

3.04

If any of the RBC Seeurity or the Purchaser Security is found to be unenforceable,
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Invalid, unregistered or unperfected against any perty other than RBC or Purchaser by a court of
competent jurisdiction and-all appeals from any such finding have bsen heard and determined or
the period for making any such appeal has expired without an appeal being made, the foregoing
provisions of this Article 3 shall not apply to such seeurity. None of the. parties hereto shall take
any steps or do any act or thing whereby the prioritics provided for herein ay be defeated or
impaired. If any third party shall have a valid claim to the proceeds of any of the property or
assets of any-of the Companies in priority o or on 2 parity with one of the Creditors bat not in
priority to dr on-a parity with the other Creditor, then this Agreement shall not apply so as to
diminish the rights (as such rights would have been but for the provisions of this Agreement) of
such other Creditor against any such other third party to the proceeds of disposition of such
property or assets, -

3.05 The Creditors shall allow each other, and their agonts, access at all reasonable times to
any property and assets of any of the Companies upon which such other Creditor has a charge or
security interest to view the same, and access to, so as fo make copies of or extracts from, any
books of account and all records, ledgers, reports, documents and other writings relating to such
property and assets, and to permit such other Creditor at all reasonable Times. 10 remove any
property and assets of any of the Companies upon which its charge or 'security interest has
priocity under this Agreement from the premises of any of the Companies , without imerference,
provided that such other Creditor shall promptly repair any damage caused to the premises by the
removal of any such property or assets and the Companies waive any right to require security for
the costs of such repair or compensation.

ARTICLE 4 - COVENANTS OF COMPANIES

4.01  The Companies hereby confirm to and agrec with the Creditors that so long a8 any of the
Companies remain obligated or indebted to RBC and Purchaser, they shall hold and deal with
their respective assets for the Creditors in accordance with their respective interests and priorities
under this Agreement.

492 The Companies shall notify RBC forthwith upon receipt of the Purchased Tax Credit
Entitlements and upon the Companies having repaid or satisfied their obligations to the
Purchaser in fitll:

ARTICLE 5 - GENERAL

3.01  The Creditors and the Companies shall do, perform, execute and deliver all acts, deeds
and documents at the reasonable request of cither Creditor and at the expense of the Companies
as may be necessary from time to time to give full force and effect to the intent of this
Agreement.,’ ‘

5.02  Neither RBC nor Purchaser shall transfer or assign any of RBC Security or the Purchaser
Security without obtaining from the assignee or wransferee an agreement to be bound by the
provisions of this Agreement to the same extent as the Creditor assigning same.

5.03  Any notice or written communication given pursuant to or in connection with this
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Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given by delivering the same personally.or by prepaid
courier, pre-paid registered mail or telecopier, addressed to the party to be notified, at the address
of such party set out below, or at such other address of which such party has given notice 1o the
other parties-hereto. Any-such notice shall be conclusively deemed to have been given and
received on the actual date of receipt by the addressee or, if given by pre-paid registered mail, on
the fifth day following the mailing date (absent a general disruption in postal service).

ToRBCat; , R
6880 Financial Drive, 2™ Floor Fax: 905-286-7279
Mississauga, ON LSN 7Y3

Attention:  Accownt Manager, PCAS Patient Care Automation Services
Inc.

To Purchaser at:
3760 Steeles Avenue West, Suite 800 Fax: 905-856-9801

Vaughan, ON L4L 8M9

Attention: Paul Joseph Sorbara

To the Companies at; _ '
2880 Brighton Road, Unit 2 Fax: 9035-829-5504

Oakville, ON L6H 5583
Attention: Loreto Grimaldi, CLO General Counsel & Secretary

5.04 This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each:of which when so
executed shall be deemed to be an original and such counterparts together shall constitute one
and the same instrument and shall be effective as of the formal date hereof. This Agreement may
ais0 be exccuted and delivered by fax and such faxed signatures shall be as effective as original
signatures. -

5.05 This Agreemem shall enure to the benefit of and be bmdm upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns. ‘

5.06 This Agreement :';hai! be governed by the laws of Ontaria,

507 - This Agreement shall constitute a continuing agreement, notwithstanding that any

Company may not be indebted to a Creditor at any time, and each Creditor may, without notice
10 the other Creditor, purchase receivables, lend money, extend credit and make other financial
accommodations to or for the account of any Company on the faith hereof. Nothing herein shall
restrict any Creditor from revising, replacing, amending or supplementing the security in its
Tavour, or acquiring additional encumbrances upon any property or assets of any Company (now
or hereafter acquired). provided that all such securities and encumbrances shall be held and dealt
with in accordance with the provisions herein. This Agreement shall continue in force until
terminated by the mutual consent in writing of the Creditots or until either of the Creditors has
discharged all of the security in its favour granted by the Companies.




508 - Neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof may be changed, waived,

- discharged or terminated except-by instrument in writing, signed by the parties or by the party ~

against whom enforcement of the change, waiver, discharge or termination is sought.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no consent of any of the Companies shall be necessary to any
amendment to the terms hercof by the Creditors unless the interests of the Companies are
directly affected thereby.

5.09 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed es confemring any rights
or benefits of any kind whatsoever upon any of the Companies, or any persoty who. is not a party
to this Agresment, or as modifying an other agreement between the Credifors or any of them and
any of the Companies, and none of the Companies shall be entitled to enforce any provision of
this Agreemhent.

310 Any provision of this Agreement which is invalid or unenforceable under the laws
of any jurisdiction in which this Agreement is sought to be enforced shall, as to such jurisdiction,
and to-the extent such provision-is invalid or unenforccable, be deemed severable and shall not
affect any other provision of this Agreement.

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank — Signature page follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement .mder the
hands of their du ly authorized officers.

ROYAL BANK OF CANADA

Pear:_ —

Title: ==t Pea c’u--.c}u- M“‘e—ﬁa?
{Authorized Signing Officer)

CASTCAN INVESTMENTS INC,, IN TRUST
{Purchaser)

Per:. - :
Name: {?ml SoR34cA

Title:

(Authorized Signing Officer) /

PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION
SERVICES INC.

(PCAS)

Per; \..0 @.M«,ﬁj)

Name: Toana TlntS

Title: 082

{Authorized Signing Officer)

2163279 ONTARIO INC.
{Touchpaint)

vor_rlorg ot
Name: DoA HlntD>
Title: o8>

{Authorized Signing Officer)




- PARTI

2009 / 2010 SRED / ITC
claim

2009
Federal
Pravincial
Total

cash received

2010
Federal
Provincial

Total

RBC
ioan

HST Credits
2012
2011 Touchpoint

Total Part 1

SCHEDULE “A”

TAX CREDIT ENTITLEMENTS

480,021

649,589

380,931

408,374

160,085

441,680

169568
406,248

243,341

120,931

501,862

938,594

see CRA letter dated July 21, 2011 - table on page 1

and Deloittes letter of March 6, 2012 - page 1

see Deloittes letter of Maﬁ:h 6, 2012 - page 1

see SRED racovery letter dated Qctobar 24 3

see HST filing for PCAS

see HST filing for TouchPoint

Page 8 of 8




PART

I
2011 SRED /1TC claim - , .
_ see Deloittes letter of March 6, 2012 - page 2 bullet
Federal 265,438 7
see Deloittes letter of March 6, 2012 - page 2 bullet
Provincial 84,266 7
Total 349,704
Total Part 2 349,704
Total - . ‘ 1,288,298
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DATED as of March 6, 2012,
AMONG:

ROYAL BANK OF CANADA
-and -
CASTCAN INVESTMENTS INC., IN TRUST
-and -

PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION
SERVICES INC.

-and -

2163279 ONTARIO INC.

AGREEMENT
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Attached is Exhibit “R” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22" day of March, 2012

Q,JMPDT QOHI

Commissioner for taking Affidavits, ete




SEARCH SUMMARY

Enquiries and searches were made at the registration system maintained pursuant to the Personal
Property Security Act (Ontario) (the “PPSA”™) against the names set out below:

i
PCAS Patient Care ¥ an active federal corporation incorporated on March 3, 2006
Automation Services Inc. | 3 Registered office: 2880 Brighton Road, Suite # Unit 2
QOakville, Ontario, Canada L6H 583
» Registered Business Name: not available on profile

» Prior/Predecessor Names: PCAS Physician Clinic Automation
Services Inc.

¥ Director(s)/Officer(s): Donald Waugh

2163279 Ontario Inc. » an active Ontario corporation incorporated on February 12, 2008
» Registered office; 2880 Brighton Road, Suite # Unit 2
Qakville, Ontario, Canada L6H 583

» Registered Business Name:

- Touchpoint Pharmacy

- Pharmatrust Drug Logistics

» Prior/Predecessor Names:

- Touchpoint Pharmacy Inc.

- Direct Care Pharmacy Inc.

- PCAS Newco Pharmacy Inc.

» Director(s)/Officer(s):

- Jim Gray, Director

- Sandeep Lalli, Director

- Bonnie Lewis, Director

- Peter Saunders, President

- Dana Tunks, Treasurer

- Donald Waugh, Diirector & Chairman

The currency of each of the aforementioned searches is as follows:

SEARCHES AND CURRENCY

PCAS Patient C#i‘e Automation Services Inc. March 18,2012 B
PCAS Physician Clinic Automation Services Inc. | March 16, 2012
2163279 Ontario Inc. March 18, 2012
Touchpoint Pharmacy Inec. March 18, 2012
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Direct Care Pharmacy Inc.

i}

March 18, 2012

PCAS Newco Pharmacy Inc.

March 18, 2012

Such enquiries and searches failed to disclose any undischarged registrations, filings or recordings with
respect to the aforementioned names except as follows:

Legend:

A - Accounts
Caution Filing

CF -

CG -

Consumer
Goods

PPSA REGISTRATIONS
DOM -  Date of Maturity TI- Inventory 0 - Other
E - Equipment MV - Motor Vehicle RSLA  Repair & Storage
- Lien Act
GCD -  General Collateral NFMD - No Fixed Maturity $- Amount

Description:

Date

I. | 20080226 1613 1862 5534 642941379 | February | PCAS Patient | Kohl & Frisch | I
Renewed for 3 years by 26,2014 | Care Limited GCD: PM.S.L
20110112 1024 1862 0064 Automation
Services Inc.
PCA
SERVICES
INC.,
2. | 20101220 1451 1530 1324 666667611 | Decembe | PCAS Patient | Ibm Canada | E, A, O
r 20, | Care Limited - Law | GCD: see below
2014 Automation Clerk/Ppsa
Services Inc, Administrator

GCD: All present and after-acquired goods supplied, leased or financed by the secured party, including but not limited
to, all office machines, office equipment, computier hardware, software and ail other equipment of any kind whatsoever as
well as all ancillary products related thereto, and all upgrades, additions, substitutions and accessions thereto and thereon

and all proceeds therefrom of every kind and description.

3. | 20110411 1946 1531 6702 669008349 | April 11, | PCAS Patient | Royal Bank Of | LE, A, O, MV
2016 Care Canada
Automation
. Services Inc.
4, | 20111124 1052 1529 7488 674595342 | Novemb | PCAS Patient | Royal Bank Of | O
er 24, | Care Canada GCID): see below
2016 Automation

Services Inc.

GCD: Inter-Company Creditor Agreement dated November 18, 2011, between Royal Bank of Canada, Kohl & Frisch

Limited, PCAS Patient Care Automation Services Inc., and 2163279 Ontario Inc.
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5. | 20111228 1638 5064 0020 675318627 | Decembe | PCAS Patient | Ge Vis Canada | E, O
r 28, | Care Limited GCD: Account
2016 Automation Partnership Schedule-
Services Inc. 8713314001
6. | 20120306 1449 1530 7679 676656324 | March 6, | PCAS Patient | Castcan LE A O MV
2014 Care Investments Inc.,
Automation In Trust
Services Inc.

2 e S 5 G o s
1. | 20080408 1537 1862 8543 644006151 | April 8, { PCAS Newco | Kohl & Frisch | CG,LE, A, O
Renewed for 3 years by 2014 Pharmacy Inc. | Limited
20110214 1409 1862 2602
Amended to add debtors by Direct Care
20111114 0921 1862 4011 Pharmacy
2163279
Ontario Inc.
Touch  Point
Pharmacy
2. | 20111115 1622 1590 1296 674381628 | Novemb | 2163279 Royal Bank Of | LLE, A, O, MV
er 15, | Ontario Inc. Canada
2016
3. 1 20120306 1449 1530 7680 676656333 | March 6, | 2163279 Castcan LE, A, O, MV
Amended secured party name 2014 Ontario Inc. Investments Inc.,
by in Trust
20120306 1944 1531 8670

"L [ 20110411 1946 1531 6703

669008358 | April

2016

Direct  Care
Pharmacy Inc.

Canada

FH#104217




TAB S



Attached is Exhibit “S™ Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012
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Attached is Bxhibit “T” Referred to in the
AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD WAUGH
Sworn before me this 22™ day of March, 2012
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DIP LOAN AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT made as of the 22" day of March, 2012.

BETWEEN:

2320714 ONTARIO INC.

(herein called the “Lender”),

- and -

PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC.

(herein called the “Borrower”)

THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that, in consideration of the mutual covenants and
agreements herein contained and for other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged), the parties hereto covenant and agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - INTERPRETATION
1.01 Defined Terms

The following terms shall for all purposes of this agreement, or any amendment hereto, have the
respective meanings set forth below unless the context otherwise specifies or requires or unless
otherwise defined herein:

“Approval Order” means the anticipated Order (or Orders, collectively) of the Court,
among other things, approving the DIP Loan and granting the DIP Charge in an amount
sufficient to secure all obligations of the Obligors hereunder, all in a form satisfactory to
the Lender;

“Banking Day” means any day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks
generally are open for business in Toronto, Ontario;

“BIA” means the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada);

“Cash Flows” means the cash flow statement of the Borrower attached herecto as
Schedule “A”, as may be revised from time to time with the approval of the Lender;

“CCAA” means the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act;
“CCAA Proceedings” means CCAA proceedings of the Borrower;

“CCAA Monitor” means the Monitor appointed in the CCAA Proceedings;

PCAS DIP Loan Agreement




“Collateral” means all present and future property, assets and undertaking of the Debtor
pledged, assigned, mortgaged, charged, hypothecated or made subject to a security
interest pursuant to the DIP Charge;

“Court” means the Ontario Superior Court of Justice (Commercial List);

“Court Officer” means PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. in its capacity as Proposal Trustee
or CCAA Monitor, whichever is applicable’

“Default” means any event which is or which, with the passage of time, the giving of
notice or both, would be an Event of Default;

“DIP Charge” means a Court-ordered super-priority security interest and charge in and
over all of the existing and after-acquired real and personal, tangible and intangible,
assets of the Borrower in favour of (i) the Lender and (ii) the DIP Financiers, pro rata,
sccuring the Borrower’s obligations hereunder, subordinate to (x) an adminisiration
charge in respect of the professional costs and expenses of the Borrower and the Court
Officer, and (y) the Permitted Liens in favour of the Royal Bank of Canada and Castcan
Investments Inc., in trust, and perfected purchase money security interests existing as at
the date of hereof}

“DIP Financiers” means the third-parties who have extended credit to the Lender, or
who have committed to extending credit to the Lender, for the specific purpose of
funding the DIP Facility, as detailed on Schedule “B” hereto;

“DIP Loan Facility” has the meaning set out in section 2.01;

“DIP Loan” means monies lent by the Lender to the Borrower under the DIP Loan
Facility;

“Event of Default” means any one of the events set forth in section 9.01;

“Governmental Authority” means, without limitation, any domestic or foreign
government, whether national, federal, provincial, state, municipal or other political
subdivision of any of the foregoing, any entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial,
regulatory or administrative functions of or pertaining to government and any corporation
or other entity owned or controlled (through stock or capital ownership or otherwise) by
any of the foregoing;

“Guarantors” means, collectively, Touchpoint and any other affiliate of the Borrower
who may make guarantees of the Borrower’s obligations hereunder in favour to the
Lender, and, each, a “Guarantor”;

“Indebtedness” means any and all principal, interest, fees or expenses owing by the
Borrower to the Lender pursuant to this agreement;
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“Liens” means any and all liens, pledges, charges, mortgages, security interests,
hypothecs and other encumbrances which now or in the future may affect all or any
portion of the Collateral;

“Loan Documents” means this agreement and any document delivered in connection
with this agreement;

“Maturity Date” means the earliest of

(i) the date that is three months from the date of the initial advance under the
DIP Loan Facility;

(ii)  the effective date of any Court-approved proposal under the BIA or plan
of arrangement under the CCAA;

(iti)  the closing date of a sale of all or substantiaily all of the assets of the
Borrower; and

(iv)  the occurrence of any Event of Default,

which Maturity Date may be extended only at the sole option and discretion of the
Lender;

“Obligors” means, collectively, the Borrower and the Guarantors and, each, an
“Obligor”;

“Permitted Liens” means the Liens which have been, or in the future are, permitted or
consented to in writing by the Lender, including, without limitation,

(a) any such current and future Liens the particulars of which are listed in Schedule
“{” to this agreement

(b) Liens incurred or pledges and deposits made in connection with workmen’s
compensation, employment insurance, old-age pension and similar legislation;

(c) Liens securing the performance of bids, tenders, leases; contracts (other than for
the repayment of borrowed money), expropriation proceedings, public or statutory
obligations of like nature and Liens in connection with surety or appeal bonds and
costs of litigation incurred as an incident to and in the ordinary course of business;

(d) statutory Liens of landlords, undetermined or inchoate Liens and other Liens
imposed by law, such as carriers’, warchousemens’, mechanics’, construction,
materialmens’ and vendors’ Liens, incurred in the ordinary course of business;

(e) Liens securing the payment of taxes, assessments and governmental charges or
levies, either (i) not delinquent or (i) being contested in good faith by appropriate
proceedings and for which adequate reserves are being maintained,
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(H) permits, rights-of-way, zoning restrictions, easements, licenses, reservations,
restrictions on the use of real property or minor irregularities or minor title defects
incidental thereto which do not in the aggregate materially detract from the value
of the property or assets of the Borrower taken as a whole or materially impair the
operation of the business of the Borrower taken as a whole;

(g) Liens arising out of the leasing of personal property by the Borrower in the
ordinary course of business;

(h) security given in the ordinary course of business by the Borrower to a public
utility or any municipality or governmental or public authority in connection with
operations of the Borrower other than in connection with borrowed money; and

(1) Liens in favour of the Lender created under the Loan Documents or the DIP
Charge;

“PPSA” means the Personal Property Security Act (Ontario);

“Prepayment Date” has the meaning set out in section 4.02;

“Proposal Proceedings” means BIA proposal proceedings of the Borrower;
“Proposal Trustee” means the proposal trustee appointed in the Proposal Proceedings;

“Restructuring Proceedings” means the Proposal Proceedings or the CCAA
Proceedings, as applicable; and

“Touchpoint” means 2163279 Ontario Inc.
1.02  Applicable Law

This agreement and all documents delivered pursuant hereto shall be governed by and construed
and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada
applicable therein and the parties hereto do hereby attorn to the jurisdiction of the courts of the
Province of Ontario.

1.03  Consents and Approvals

Whenever the consent or approval of a party hereto is required in a particular circumstance, such
consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed by such party.

1.04 Plural and Singular

Where the context so requires, words importing the singular number shall include the plural and
vice versa.
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1.05 Headings

The division of this agreement into Articles and sections and the insertion of headings in this
agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the construction or
interpretation of this agreement.

1.06 Currency
All monetary amounts in this agreement refer to Canadian Dollars unless otherwise specified.
1.07 Other Usages

References to “this agreement”, “the agreement”, ‘“hereof’, “herein”, “hereto” and like
references refer to this agreement and not to any particular article, section or other subdivision of
this agreement.

1.08 Time of the Essence

Time shall in all respects be of the essence of this agreement and no extension or variation of this
agreement or of any obligation hereunder shall operate as a waiver of this provision,

ARTICLE 2 - DIP LOAN FACILITY
2.01 Establishment of DIP Loan Facility

Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the Lender, relying on the representations and
warranties of the Borrower set forth in Article 6 hereof, hereby establishes in favour of the
Borrower a non-revolving debtor-in-possession term loan facility (the “DIP Loan Facility”) in
the maximum amount of CDN$2,800,000. Advances under the DIP Loan Facility shall be made
in accordance with the Cash Flows and on request of the Borrower upon not less than five (5)
Business Days advance written notice to the Lender. Each such notice shall specify the date of
the requested advance (which shall be a Business Day) and the amount of such advance. The
DIP Loan Facility may be increased to a maximum amount of CDN$10,000,000 by subsequent
amendment(s) to this agreement subject to commensurate increase(s) in the DIP Charge
sufficient to secure all obligations of the Obligors hereunder.

2.02  Time and Place of Payments

Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, the Borrower shall make all payments pursuant to
this agreement or pursuant to any document, instrument or agreement delivered pursuant hereto
by delivery of a cheque or wire transfer to the Lender before 1:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on the day
specified for payment. Any such payment received on the day specified for such payment but
after 1:00 p.m. (Toronto time) thereon shall be deemed to have been received prior to 1:00 p.m.
(Toronto time) on the Banking Day immediately following such day specified for payment.
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2.03 Evidence of Indebtedness

The Lender shall maintain records wherein the Lender shall record the amount of outstanding
advances, each payment of principal and interest on account of the DIP Loan and all other
amounts becoming due to and being paid to the Lender hereunder. The Lender’s records
constitute, in the absence of manifest error, prima facie evidence of the indebtedness of the
Borrower to the Lender pursuant to this agreement.

ARTICLE 3 - INTEREST AND FEES
3.01 Interest Rates

The principal amount outstanding from time to time under the DIP Loan Facility and the amount
of overdue interest from time to time shall bear interest at a rate equal to fifteen percent (15%)
per annum.

3.02 Calculation of Interest

Interest on the outstanding principal amount from time to time of the DIP Loan and on the
amount of overdue interest thereon from time to time shall accrue from day to day (both before
and after maturity and as well after as before judgment), shall be calculated on the basis of the
actual number of days elapsed divided by the actual number of days in the year and shall be
compounded monthly.

3.03 Payment of Interest

Interest, calculated at the aforesaid rate and in the aforesaid manner on the unpaid portion from
time to time outstanding under the DIP Facility shall be payable to the Lender in arrears on the
Maturity Date.

ARTICLE 4- REPAYMENTS AND PREPAYMENTS
4,01 Repayment of the DIP Loan Facility

The principal amount of the DIP Loan then outstanding, together with all accrued and unpaid
interest and other amounts payable under this agreement shall be due and payable in full by the
Borrower to the Lender on the Maturity Date.

4.02  Prepayment and Early Termination

The Borrower shall be entitled to prepay the whole of the principal amount of the DIP Loan then
outstanding, together with all accrued and unpaid interest and other amounts payable under this
agreement at any time as may be specified by the Borrower (the “Prepayment Date”) in a
written notice to the Lender at least five (5) days before such Prepayment Date.
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ARTICLE 5 - CONVERSION
5.01 Right to Convert

At any time and from time to time after the date of issue thereof, the Lender shall have the right
to convert all or any portion of the Indebtedness (as at the date of election to so convert) into
fully paid and non-assessable common shares of the Borrower at a conversion rate equal to one
(1) common share for each $0.38 of Indebtedness so converted. Such conversion may be
effected written notice by the Lender notifying the Borrower as to the exercise of the right of
conversion and specifying the amount of the Indebtedness to be converted and setting forth the
name and address of the person(s) in whose name(s) the shares issuable upon such conversion
are to be registered (a “Conversion Notice™). For greater certainty, no conversion in part or in
whole of the Indebtedness shall extinguish or satisfy, or relieve the Borrower of its obligation to
pay, any interest on such Indebtedness, or interest on such interest, accruing prior to the effective
date of such conversion.

5.02 Issue of Share Certificates

As promptly as practicable after receipt of a Conversion Notice, the Borrower shall issue to the
Lender or its nominee(s) a certificate or certificates representing the number of fully paid and
non-assessable common shares into which all or any portion of the Indebtedness has been
converted.

5.03 No Fractional Shares

No fractional share or scrip representing a fractional share shall be required to be issued upon the
conversion of any Indebtedness. Rather, the number of shares that are issuable upon any
conversion shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

5.04 Time of Conversion

The conversion of any portion of the Indebedness shall be deemed to have been made at the
close of business on the date on which the Conversion Notice in respect of such Indebtedness in
received by the Borrower, so that the Tender’s rights in respect of the converted portion shall
terminate at such time, and the person or persons entitled to receive the shares into which the
such portion of the Indebtedness is converted shall be treated, as between the Borrower and such
person or persons, as having become the holder or holders of record of such shares at such time.

5.05 Subdivision, etc.

If the Borrower at any time subdivides or consolidates the shares issuable upon conversion, the
Lender shall thereafter be entitled on conversion to receive the shares to which it was before such
subdivision or consolidation entitled, as subdivided or consolidated, and the conversion rate of
Indebtedness shall be adjusted accordingly. Any such adjustment shall become effective on the
date and at the time that such subdivision or consolidation becomes effective.
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5.06 Reclassification, etc.

In case of:
(a) any reclassification or change of shares issuable upon conversion;

(b) any consolidation, merger or amalgamation of the Borrower with or into another
corporation or corporations;

(c) the Borrower paying any stock dividend or stock dividends or making any other
distribution other than dividends in the ordinary course upon its common shares;

(d)  the sale of the properties and assets of the Borrower substantially as an entirety to
' any other corporation or corporations followed by a winding-up of the Borrower
ot a distribution of its assets to the shareholders; or

(e} the sale of the properties and assets of the Borrower substantially as an entirety to
another person or persons in exchange for securities in or of such other person or
persons or any affiliate thereof;,

the Lender shall have the right thereafter to convert the Indebtedness (or any portion thereof) into
the kind and amount of shares or other securities and property (or the applicable portion thercof)
receivable on such reclassification, change, consolidation, merger, amalgamation, stock dividend
or other distribution upon the common shares or sale that the Lender would have been entitled to
receive thereupon had the Lender been the registered holder of the number of shares into which
such Indebtedness might have been converted immediately prior thereto. The provisions of this
section shall similarly apply to successive reclassifications and changes of shares and to
successive consolidations, mergers, amalgamations and sales.

ARTICLE 6 - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
6.01 Representations and Warranties

To induce the Lender to enter into this agreement, the Borrower hereby represents and warrants
to the Lender as follows and acknowledges and confirms that the Lender is relying upon such
representations and warranties in providing the DIP Loan hereunder:

(a) Status and Power. The Borrower is a corporation duly incorporated and
organized and validly subsisting under the laws of the jurisdiction of its
incorporation and is duly qualified, registered or licensed in all jurisdictions
where such qualification, registration or licensing is required to the extent that it is
material. The Borrower has all requisite corporate capacity, power and authority
to own, hold under licence or lease its propetties, to carry on its business as now
conducted and to otherwise enter into, and carry out the transactions contemplated
by the Loan Documents.

(b)  Authorization and Enforcement of Documents. All necessary action, corporate
or otherwise, has been taken by the Borrower to authorize the execution, delivery
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and performance of the Loan Documents and the Borrower has duly executed and
delivered each Loan Document to which it is a party. Each Loan Document to
which the Borrower is party is a legal, valid and binding obligation of the
Borrower enforceable against the Borrower by the Lender in accordance with its
terms.

Compliance with Other Instruments. The execution, delivery and performance
of the Loan Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated
herein and therein do not and will not conflict with, result in any breach or
violation of, or constitute a default under, the terms, conditions or provisions of
the constating documents or by-laws of the Borrower or of any law, regulation,
judgment, decree or order binding on or applicable to the Borrower or by which
the Borrower benefits or to which any of its property is subject or of any material
agreement, lease, licence, permit or other instrument to which the Borrower is a
party or is otherwise bound or by which the Borrower benefits or to which any of
its property is subject and does not require the consent or approval of any other
party, or any governmental body, agency or authority.

Permits. The Borrower has all necessary permits, patents, copyrights,
trademarks, tradenames and agreements for the operation of their business and
will duly perform and observe all of the terms and conditions thereof.

Subsidiaries. The Borrower has no direct or indirect subsidiary other than the
Guarantors.

Litigation. Other than disclosed to the Lender in writing, there are no actions,
suits, inquiries, claims or proceedings (whether or not purportedly on behalf of
any Obligor) pending or threatened against or affecting the Borrower before any
Governmental Authority or court or before any private arbitrator, mediator or
referee which in any case or in the aggregate may result in any material adverse
change:

(i) in the condition, financial or otherwise, of the Borrower; or

(ii)  in the ability of the Borrower to perform its obligations under any Loan
Document.

Other Instruments in Good Standing. Other than as disclosed in writing to the
Lender, the Borrower is not in default of any obligations under any material
agreement, lease, licence, permit or other instrument to which the Borrower is a

party.

Compliance with Laws. Other than as disclosed in writing to the Lender, the
Borrower is not in violation of any mortgage, franchise, licence, judgment,
decree, order, statute, rule or regulation relating in any way to the Borrower, to
the operation of its business or to its property or assets and which would have a
material effect on the condition, financial or otherwise, of the Borrower.
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Taxes. All taxes (including income tax, capital tax, payroll taxes, employer
health tax, workers® compensation payments, property taxes, customs duties and
land transfer taxes), duties, royalties, levies, imposts, assessments, deductions,
charges or withholdings and all habilities with respect thereto including any
penalty and interest payable with respect thereto (collectively, “Taxes™) due and
payable or required to be collected or withheld and remitted, by the Borrower
have been paid, collected or withheld and remitted as applicable. All tax returns,
declarations, remittances and filings required to be filed by the Borrower have
been filed with all appropriate Governmental Authorities and all such returns,
declarations, remittances and filings are complete and accurate and no material
fact or facts have been omitted therefrom which would make any of them
misleading. To the knowledge of the Borrower, except as disclosed to the Lender
in writing, no examination of any fax return of the Borrower is currently in
progress and there are no issues or disputes outstanding with any Governmental
Authority respecting any taxes that have been paid, or may be payable, by the
Borrower. There are no agreements, waivers or other arrangements with any
taxation authority providing for an extension of time for any assessment or
reassessment of taxes with respect to the Borrower.

Governmental Proceedings. No legal or governmental proceedings or inquiries
by any Governmental Authority are pending to which the Borrower or any of the
Guarantors are a party or to which their respective property is subject that would
result in the revocation or modification of any certificate, authorization, permit or
license necessary to conduct the business now owned or operated by the Borrower
or the Guarantors, and no such proceedings have been threatened against or, to the
knowledge of the Borrower, are contemplated with respect to the Borrower or any
of the Guarantors or their respective properties and assets.

Environmental Laws. The Borrower and the Guarantors: (i) are in compliance
with any and all applicable foreign, federal, provincial, state and local laws and
regulations relating to the protection of human health and safety, conservation, the
environment or hazardous or toxic substances or wastes, pollutants or
contaminants (“Environmental Laws™); (i) have received all material permits,
licenses or other approvals required of any of them under applicable
Environmental Laws to conduct their business; and (iii) are in compliance with all
terms and conditions of any such permit, license or approval. There have been no
past, and, to the knowledge of the Borrower, there are no pending or threatened
claims, complaints, notices or requests for information received by the Borrower
or any of the Guarantors with respect to any alleged violation of any
Environmental Laws and no conditions exist at, on or under any property now or
previously owned, operated, leased or contracted to perform work by the
Borrower or the Guarantors which, with the passage of time, or the giving of
notice or both, would give rise to liability under any Environmental Laws. There
arc no orders, rulings or directives issued, pending or threatened against the
Borrower or any of the Guarantors under or pursuant to any Environmental Laws
requiring any work, repairs, construction or capital expenditures with respect to
the property or assets of the Borrower or any of the Guarantors.
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(I Insurance. The assets of the Borrower and its businesses and operations are
insured against loss, damage and appropriation with responsible insurers on the
basis consistent with insurance obtained by reasonably prudent participants in
comparable businesses, and such coverage is in full force and effect, and the
Borrower has not failed to promptly give any notice of any claim thereunder.

(m)  Full Disclosure. The Borrower is not aware of any fact which it has not disclosed
or caused to be disclosed to the Lender in writing which might materially
adversely affect the business, operations, investments, property or prospects of
any Obligor, or materially adversely affect the ability of any Obligor to observe
and perform its obligations hereunder or relating to the DIP Loan.

6.02  Survival of Representations and Warranties

All of the representations and warranties of the Borrower contained in Section 6.01 shall survive
the execution and delivery of this agreement notwithstanding any investigation made at any time
by or on behalf of the Lender.

ARTICLE 7 - CONDITIONS PRECEDENT
7.01  Loan Documents

The Lender’s obligations to advance credit under this agreement shall be conditional on, as the
case may be, satisfaction of the following conditions or the execution and delivery of each of the
following by each relevant party (concurrently with execution and delivery of this agreement,
unless otherwise specified):

(a) this agreement executed and delivered by all Obligors;

(b) a general security agreement executed and delivered by the Borrower in a form
satisfactory to the Lender;

(c) a guarantee of the obligations of the Borrower hereunder executed and delivered
by Touchpoint in a form satisfactory to the Lender;

(d) a general security agreement executed and delivered by Touchpoint in a form
satisfactory to the Lender;

(e) issuance and entering of the Approval Order, and no appeal shall have been
initiated in respect thereof by any person.

ARTICLE 8 - COVENANTS
8.01 Covenants

The Borrower hereby covenants and agrees with the Lender that, so long as there 18 any
outstanding indebtedness or obligations hereunder and unless the Lender otherwise expressly
consents in writing:
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Financial Reporting. The Borrower shall provide the Lender: (a) weekly reports
of cash collections, deposits, sales and generation of accounts receivable and
disbursements; and (b) such other information as the Lender may require in its
discretion, all in form and substance satisfactory to the Lender, and the Borrower
specifically authorizes the Lender to divulge such information to the DIP
Financiers.

Conduct of Business. The Borrower shall conduct its business in such a manner
so as to comply in all material respects with all applicable laws and regulations.
The Borrower shall carry on and conduct its business in a proper and efficient
manner and will keep or cause to be kept proper books of account and shall make
therein true and accurate entries of all dealings and transactions in relation to such
business, and shall make or cause to be made such books of account available for
inspection by the Lender and its representatives during normal business hours,

Access. The Borrower shall provide the Lender with reasonable access during
normal business hours to any and all Collateral, any and all locations where any
of the Obligors’ assets may be located and any and all books and records and/or
computer systems in connection with their operations.

Reporting by Court Officer. The Borrower covenants and agrees to authorize
the Court Officer to provide the Lender, where reasonably required by the Lender,
with copies of all documents, records, reports and information received or
prepared by the Court Officer, to fully disclose to the Lender, whether verbally or
in writing, where reasonably required by the Lender, all matters arising out of its
engagement relating to the operations of the business, and to advise the Lender
immediately of any situation that could materially affect the Lender’s interests or
rights under the Loan Documents. The Borrower specifically waives any right of
confidentiality with respect to any such confidential information provided by the
Borrower to the Court Officer. The Borrower specifically authorizes the Lender
to divulge such information to the DIP Financiers or pursuant to any Court
proceeding commenced by, or to which the Lender is a party or in connection
with the exercise of any of the Lender’s remedies against the Obligors including,
without limitation, enforcing its security, or to any potential assignee of the
Lender’s rights under the Loan Documents.

Use of Preceeds. The proceeds of the Loan will be used by the Borrower in
accordance with the Cash Flows.

Material Adverse Change. The Borrower shall promptly notify the Lender, and
shall authorize and direct the Court Officer to promptly notify the Lender, of any
material adverse change in the financial condition of any Obligor or in the ability
of any Obligor to satisty its obligations under any Loan Document.

Reimbursement. The Borrower shall reimburse the Lender, in arrears on the
Maturity Date, for all reasonable costs, charges and expenses incurred by the
Lender or the DIP Financiers, or on any of their behalves, in the development,
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preparation, negotiation and execution of this agreement and any amendment
hereto and all documentation ancillary to the completion of the transactions
contemplated by this agreement, and for all reasonable costs, charges and
expenses incurred by the Lender or the DIP Financiers, or on any of their
behalves, in interpreting and enforcing the rights of the Lender under this
agreement or any other documentation ancillary to the completion of the
transactions contemplated by this agreement including, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, all legal fees and disbursements, whether in
connection with the Proposal Proceeding or otherwise.

(h) Notice of Default. The Borrower shall promptly notify the Lender of the
occutrence of any Default or Event of Default and shall concurrently deliver to
the Lender a detailed statement of a senior officer of the Borrower of the steps, if
any, being taken to cure or remedy such Default or Event of Default.

Notwithstanding any reporting or access obligations of the Borrower hereunder or under any
other Loan Document, the Lender acknowledges that, in light of the Lender’s stated intention to
bid for certain of the Borrower’s assets in the sales process to be conducted by the Court Officer,
the Lender’s access to information concerning third-party bids in such sales process may be
restricted by the Court Officer (acting reasonably, and with direction of the Court where
required), to preserve the integrity of such sales process.

8.02 Lender Entitled to Perform Covenants

If any Obligor shall fail to perform any covenant on its part contained in section 8.01, the Lender
may, in its discretion, perform any of the said covenants capable of being performed by it and, if
any such covenant requires the payment or expenditure of money, the Lender may make such
payments but shall be under no obligation so to do. All sums so expended by the Lender shall be
payable by the Borrower on demand and shall bear interest at twelve percent (12.0%) per annum
from the date of such expenditure until paid, but no such performance or payment shall be
deemed to relieve the Borrower from any default hereunder.

8.03 Restrictive Covenants

The Borrower hereby covenants and agrees with the Lender that, until all advances outstanding
hereunder have been repaid in full and the Loan Facility has been terminated, and unless the
Lender has otherwise given its prior written consent thereto:

(a) Cash Flows. The Borrower shall not permit:

(1) actual cash flows for any given week to be lower than forecasted for that
week in the Cash Flows by more than 20%, tested weekly;

(i)  the cumulative net cash flows for any rolling three week period to be
lower than forecasted in the Cash Flows by more than 15%, tested
weekly;
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Borrowing. The Borrower shall not borrow any material money, incur any
material indebtedness or repay any indebtedness outside of the ordinary course of
business.

Liens. The Borrower shall not enter into or grant, create, assume or suffer to exist
any Lien affecting any of its property, assets or undertaking, save and except only
for the Permitted Liens.

Nature of Business. The Borrower shall not change the nature of its business
carried on as at the date of this agreement, discontinue any of their material
businesses, enter into any transaction or material contract not in the ordinary
course of business or engage in any business enterprise or activity different from
that carried on as of the date hereof.

Insolvency. The Borrower shall not:

(i} make an assignment of its property for the general benefit of its creditors
under the BIA;

(ii}y  institute any proceeding, other than the Restructuring Proceedings,
seeking liquidation, dissolution, winding-up, reorganization, compromise,
arrangement, adjustment, protection, moratorium, relief, stay of
proceedings of creditors generally (or any class of creditors), or
composition of it or its debts or any other relief, under any federal,
provincial or foreign law now or hereafler m effect relating to
bankruptcy, winding-up, insolvency, reorganization, receivership, plans
of arrangement or relief or protection of debtors (including the BIA, the
CCAA and any applicable corporations legislation) or at common law or
in equity, or file an answer admitting the material allegations of a petition
filed against it in any such proceeding;

(iii)  apply for the appointment of, or the taking of possession by, a receiver,
interim receiver, receiver/manager, liquidator or other similar official for
it or any substantial part of its property;

(iv)  seek or consent to any proposal, plan of reorganization or hqmda‘uon
without the prior approval of the Lender; or

(v)  threaten to do any of the foregoing, or take any action, corporate or
otherwise, to approve, effect, consent to or authorize any of the actions
described in this section 8.03(e), or otherwise act in furtherance thereof
or fail to act in a timely and appropriate manner in defence thereof.

ARTICLE 9 - DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

9.01 Events of Default

Upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following events:
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the non-satisfaction of any of the conditions set out in section 7.01 to this
agreement;

the non-payment of any amount due hereunder which is not paid within five (5)
Banking Days after written notice to do so by the Lender;

any representation or warranty made by any Obligor in this agreement or any

Loan Document proves to have been incorrect in any material respect when made
or furnished;

there occurs any breach of any covenant or term of this agreement, including
without limitation, the covenant to maintain cash flows in accordance with the
Cash Flows;

a new breach or failure of due observance or performance by any Obligor of any
covenant, obligation or provision of any Loan Document other than those
heretofore dealt with in this section 9.01, or of any other document, agreement or
instrument delivered pursuant hereto or referred to herein which is not remedied
by such Obligor within ten (10) Banking Days after (i) such breach or failure shall
first have become known to any officer of the Obligor or (ii) written notice from
the Lender to do so shall have been received by the Borrower;

if there occurs, in the opinion of the Lender, acting reasonably, a materially
adverse change in the financial condition or operation of any Obligor;

if the stay of proceedings in favour of the Borrower in the Restructuring
Proceedings is lifted, expires or ceases to be in effect;

if the Court-ordered sales process or the powers of the Court Officer are revoked
or amended by any Court order in any manner other than as may be acceptable to
the Lender; or

if the Court makes any order (subsequent to the Approval Order) which affects
the priority of the DIP Charge, in any manner other than as may be acceptable to
the Lender and the DIP Financiers,

the Lender may, by notice to the Borrower, declare all indebtedness of the Borrower to the
Lender pursuant to this agreement to be immediately due and payable whereupon all such
indebtedness shall immediately become and be due and payable without further demand or other
notice of any kind, all of which are expressly waived by the Borrower. The Lender shall
thereafter be entitled to take any action, remedy or proceeding authorized pursuant to the Loan
Documents, at law or in equity, subject to the Approval Order.
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ARTICLE 10 - MISCELLANEQGUS
10.01 Reservation of Rights

The Lender’s rights and remedies against the Borrower and its property, undertaking and assets
under this agreement are in addition to and not in substitution for the Lender’s rights and
remedies as such may have existed prior to this agreement.

10.02 Waivers and Amendments

No failure or delay by the Lender in exercising any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver of
such right nor shall any single or partial exercise of any power or right hereunder preclude its
further exercise or the exercise of any other power or right. Any waiver by the Lender of the
strict observance, performance or compliance with any term, covenant or condition of this
agreement is not a waiver of any subsequent default and any indulgence by the Lender with
respect to any failure to strictly observe, perform or comply with any term, covenant or condition
of this agreement is not a waiver of the entire term, covenant or condition or any subsequent
default. Any term, covenant, agreement or condition of this agreement may only be amended
with the unanimous consent of all of the parties hereto or compliance therewith may only be
waived (either generally or in a particular instance and either retroactively or prospectively) by
the Lender.

10.03 Netices

All notices and other communications provided for herein shall be in writing and shall be
personally delivered to the addressee or if the addressee is a corporation, to an officer or other
responsible employee of the addressee, or sent by telefacsimile or other direct written electronic
means, charges prepaid, at or to the applicable addresses, email addresses or telefacsimile
numbers, as the case may be, sct opposite the party’s name on a signature page hereof or at or to
such other address or addresses, email addresses, telefacsimile number or numbers as any party
hereto may from time to time designate to the other parties in such manner, together with a copy
to the addressee’s counsel of record in the Restructuring Proceedings. Any communication
which is personally delivered as aforesaid shall be deemed to have been validly and effectively
given on the date of such delivery if such date is a Banking Day and such delivery was made
during normal business hours of the recipient; otherwise, it shall be deemed to have been validly
and effectively given on the Banking Day next following such date of delivery. Any
communication which is transmitted by telefacsimile or other direct written electronic means as
aforesaid shall be deemed to have been validly and effectively given on the date of transmission
if such date is a Banking Day and such transmission was made during normal business hours of
the recipient; otherwise, it shall be deemed to have been validly and effectively given on the
Banking Day next following such date of transmission.

10.04 Severability

Any provision hereof which is prohibited or unenforceable shall be ineffective to the extent of
such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof.
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10.05 Successors and Assigns

This agreement shall enure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their
respective successors and permitted assigns.

10.06 Assignment

Neither this agreement, any Loan Document nor the benefit thereof may be assigned by the
Borrower. The rights and obligations of the Lender hereunder and under any Loan Document
may be assigned or participated by the Lender in whole or in part at the Lender’s sole discretion,
without any notice or consent of the Borrower, and the Borrower hereby covenants and agrees to
execute and deliver to the Lender or to whom the Lender may direct all acknowledgements or
other documents reasonably required by the Lender in connection with any such assignment.

10.07 Further Assurances

The Borrower shall do, execute and deliver or shall cause to be done, executed or delivered all
such further acts, documents and things as the Lender may reasonably request for the purpose of
giving effect to this agreement and to each and every provision hereof.

10.08 Entire Agreement and Paramountcy

This agreement and the agreements referred to herein and delivered pursuant hereto constitute
the entire agreement between the parties hereto and supersede any prior agreements,
undertakings, declarations, representations and understandings, both written and verbal, in
respect of the subject matter hereof.

10.09 Pari Passu Priority Agreement

The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the rights and obligations contemplated herein are
subject to the terms of a Pari Passu Priority Agreement dated as of the date hereof among the
Lender, the Borrower, Touchpoint, Castcan Investments Inc. and the DIP Financiers.

10.10 Counterparts
This agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and by facsimile transmission or

emailed PDF, each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which, when taken
together, shall constitute one and the same agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF the parties hereto have executed this agreement.

2320714 ONTARIO INC.
c/s
By:
Attention: Name:
Telefax: Title:
I have authority to bind the Corporation
2-2880 Brighton Road PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION
QOakville, Ontario L6H 583 SERVICE INC.
c/s
Attention: Loreto Grimaldi By:
Telefax: 905.829.5504 Name;:
Title:

I have authority to bind the Corporation
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CASH FLOWS
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PCAS Patient Care Automation Systerns Inc.
13 Week CCAA Cash Flow Forecast

March 22 fo June 185, 2012

{in Canadian doflars})

Weak 1 Week 2 Week 3 Wesak 4 Week § Week 6 Week 7 Week & Week 9 Week 10 Week 11 Week 12 Week 13 Total
Week ended Notes. 23-Mar-12 30-Mar-12 06-Apr-12 13-Apr-12 20-Apr-12 27-Apr-12 04-May-52 11-May-12 18-May-12 25-May-12 01-Jun-12 98-Jun-12 15-Jun-12
Receipts
New AR Collactions 3 15,000 10,000 10,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5000 5,000 10,000 10,000 10,008 10,000 10,000 110,000
SRED Recovery 4 - - 243,341 501,862 - - - - - . - - - - 745,203
HST Recovery 5 - 160,085 - - 107,280 - - 441 680 137,454 - - - 95,089 941,538
Total Receipts 15,000 170,085 253,341 508,862 112,250 5,000 5,000 446 BE0 147,454 10,000 10,000 10,000 105,068 1,796,741
Disbursements
Employee and coniractor costs 6 805,450 12,000 859,200 58,500 £73,450 12,000 531,100 43,400 487,200 12,000 531,100 12,000 457,200 4,289,800
Operating casts 7 169,455 1,400 96,845 180,317 - 1,400 123,848 52,000 - 90,948 34,300 52,000 89,548 872,061
Lease costs 8 86,850 55,300 - 45,000 - 109,300 38,000 - - 108,300 38,000 - - 481,750
SGARA 9 214,103 38,900 48,000 185,000 17,500 19,200 43,000 50,000 15,000 21,800 43,600 50,000 15,000 732,803
DIF Interest 10 - - - - - - - - - - - - 105,000 105,000
Principal payment 11 42,000 160,085 243,341 543,882 - - - 483,680 - - - 42,000 248 667 1,763,635
Professional Fees 12 390,000 130,000 105,000 105,000 155,000 284,785 105,000 105,000 105,000 120,000 109,000 105,000 105,000 1,819,786
HST Payments i3 83,122 24,128 38,070 29,510 30,7132 47,032 48,730 20,410 13,810 37,251 35139 20,410 25,551 452 026
Total Disbursements 1,790,980 422813 1,490,456 1,097,189 578,663 474,417 887,728 759,450 801,118 391,288 787139 281,419 1,055,968 10,616,660
Net cash flow (1,775,980) (252,728) (937,115) (590,327) 1764,413) (468,417) (882,728) (312,810 (453,656) (381,299) (777,129) (271,410) 1950,897)  (8,819,819)
Beginning Cash - 1,024,020 771,292 {165,823) {756,150) {1,520,563) (1,989,980} (2,872.708) {3,185,518) (3,638,174} {4,020,473) {4,797.612) (5,068,022) -
Change in Cash (1.775,980) (252,728} (937,115) (590,327) (764,413) 1469,417) (882.728) 1312,810) (453,656) 1381,299) (777.139) (271.410) (950,837)  (8,819,819)
DIP Draw / (Repaymant) 14 2,800,000 - - - - - - - - - - - - 2,800,000
Total Ending Cash 1,024,020 771,292 (165,823) (755,150) _ (1.620,663)  (1,080.080)  (2,972,708)  (3,185518) (3839,174)  (4020473) (4757.812) (5069.022) (6.012919) (6019919
Cumulative Cash Invested - - - - - - - - - - - N - _
Available Cash 1,024,020 771,292 (165,823) (758,150) (1,520,563) (1,989,980} {2,872,708) (2,185,518} {3.639,174) (4.020,473) (4,797,612 (5,069,022) (6,019.919) (6,019,918)
Additional DIP Reguired - - 200,000 800,000 1,600,000 2,000,000 2,800,000 3,200,000 3,700,000 4,100,000 4,800,000 5,100,000 6,100,000 6,105,000

Notes and assumptions

1 Cash Fiow Statement is based on Assumptions regarding futlre events, actual results will vary from the information presenied even if the Hypothetical Assumptions occur, and the variations may be materal.
This Gast-Flow Statement has been preparsd solely for the purpose described in Note 2 and raadars are cautioned fhat i may not be appropriate for other purposes.

2 The Cash Flow Statement is prapared assuming a going-concem sales procass for the Gompany. The Cash-flow Statement is based on the assumplions detailed below. The Company is working diligently to identify and
implement various contingency plans to further reduce costs during the forecast period.

3 Sales are forecast to decline from the current $15k per week as a result of lower inventory of drugs resulting from pre-filing cash flow constraints, pharmacists are requirad to send customers to other pharmacies for their
prescribed medication and accordingly, demand in the short term is expected to decline.

4 Salentific Research and Experimental Development {"SRED") tax credits for 2009 and 2010 are anticipated to be recovered during the forecast period. Al SRED recoveries (including the not yet calcluated 2011 credit) have
heen pledged as security or factored for loans from RBC and Casfcan Investments. Accordingly, the repayments of these loans are shown as disbursements in the Cash Flow Statement.

5 HST recovery Is recoverabie excise sales tax resulting from expenditures oy PCAS and TouchPeint, The PCAS amounts are regular monthly recoveries assumed to come in six (5) weeks after filed. However, Touchpaint has
filed an annual return for 2011 and anficipates a recovery of $441,680 during $he forecast period which has been pladged as sécurity on a loan fram Castean Investmeants inc. and is forecast to be repaid upon receipt in the
normal course.

& Employee and contractor costs are forecast 1o be reduced pestiling limiting remaining staff to those required to maintain the fechnical knowhow and integrity of the nefwork and installed MedCentres. Vacation pay remains
accrued and is not assumed to be pald during the forecast period. Benefits, including healthcare insurance will be paid for remaining employees. There are no defined henefit or define contribution pension schemes in the
Company. Additionally, certain key contraciors wil b retained to negotiate 2 contract with major customer, project manage the technology infrastructure build for that customer and assist with critical tax and accounting werk for
the Comparny. The Gompany is analyzing various options to furiher reduce costs during the forecast period.

7 Operating costs include purchases of drug and packaging Inventories in TouchPoint, start up costs for new MedCentres, data centre ¢osts and communications links between head office and remote MedCentures. These
MadCentres provide a proof of concept for potential new investors and customers, Purchases are assumed on cashi on defivery terms.

8 Lease costs include the rent for the monthly cost of the buildings occupied by PCAS, the equipment [eases for speciabst [T equipment and office printers,

g SO&A includes amounts expected to be inclyred for utilities, insurance, telephones and commumnication, office supplies and services, travel and security.

10 DIP interest has been calcuiated as 15% of the drawn down balancs and paid at the end of the 12 week pariod.

1 Principal repayments the RBC SRED loan is paid as the SRED recovery is made and the Castcan investment loan is repaid as the SRED and HST is recoversd.

12 Professional fees are assumed to be incurred for PCAS legal counsel st $35k per week with & retainer of $75k, The Monitor is assumed incur fees of §40k per week for monitoring costs as well as running a sales process with
a retainer of $75k. Monitor's counsel's fees are forecast at $30k per week with a $50k retainer. Additionally, other professional fes costs include 2011 SRED consultancy fess ($50k), 20491 Audit fee (§175k) and $15k per
month legal costs of patents.

13 HST dishursements are incurred based on the timing of cash disbursements.
14 The Cempany is working to obtain additional DIF financing in order to fund a sales process, however at this ime the amount and timing of this funding is not confirmed.



SCHEDULE “B”
DIP FINANCIERS

|Archibald, David]

Aubie, Roy

Barrett, Matthew

Cochrane, James

Culham, Harry

Delaney, Stephen

Dr. M. Page, Dr. Brode, Dr. C. Page and David Page
Barrett, Matthew

[Earthy, Daniel J.]

[Earthy Holdings Incorporated]
Fenn, Bob

Fox, Wayne

[Gibbins, David]

Peter Jamieson/Jamieson Motor Products
Joubert, Jean

Marcon, Norman

Maulsby, Lawrence

Mazza, Vince

Messier, Byron

Panneton, John

Perofsky, Renah

Potter, Dr. C. Peter

Rajan, Dr.

Ruby, John

[Skaade, Hans]

Suma, Peter

Swan, George

PCAS DIP Loan Agreement
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Swan, James
Tautrims, Liane
The Sorbara Group

Uhren, Cameron

PCAS DIP Loan Agreement




120483207

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

SCHEDULE “C”
PERMITTED LIENS

Security granted in favour of Royal Bank of Canada, registered pursuant to the
Ontario Personal Property Security Act (the “PPSA”) under reference file
number 669008349,

Security granted in favour of Kohl & Frisch Limited, registered pursuant to the
PPSA under reference file number 642941379,

Security granted in favour of IBM Canada Limited, registered pursuant to the
PPSA under reference file number 666667611,

Security granted in favour of Castcan Investments Inc., In Trust, registered
pursuant to the PPSA under reference file numbers 676656324 and 676656333,

PCAS DIP Loan Agreement
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Court File No. £V-12 %65 boect.
ONTARIO |
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
COMMERCIAL COURT .

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES' CREDITORS
ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.8.C. 1985, ¢c. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE OR
ARRANGEMENT OF PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION
SERVICES INC. AND 2163279 ONTARIO INC. (the
“Applicants”)

~ APPLICATION UNDER THE COMPANIES' CREDITORS
ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.8.C. 1985, ¢. C-36, AS AMENDED

CONSENT

PWC INC., HEREBY CONSENTS to act as Monitor in the above-captioned
proceedings.

Dated at Toronto this 21* day of March, 2012.

PWCINC. e

%)/H

Name: Paul van Eyk
Title: Senior Vice President

Per:




IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’ CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT,
R.S8.C, 1985, ¢. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER COF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE OR ARRANGEMENT
OF PCAS PATIENT CARE AUTOMATION SERVICES INC, AND 2163279 ONTARIO INC.

Court File No. CV-12-9656-00CL

12092047 .1

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
COMMERCIAL LIST

Proceeding commenced at Toronto

APPLICATION RECORD

AIRD & BERLIS LLP
Barristers and Solicitors
Brookficld Place
181 Bay Street, Suite 1800
Toronto, Ontario MS5J 2T9

Sam Babe (LSUC # 49498B)
Tel: 416.865.7718
Fax: 416.863.1515
Email: shabei@airdberlis.com

Tan Aversa (LSUC # 55449N)
Tel: 416.8635.3082
Fax: 416.863.1515
Email: iaversatiairdberlis.com

Lewyers for the Applicants



